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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ERRHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”, or the
“Directors”) of Beijing Capital Land Ltd. (“BCL" or the
“Company”; together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), |
am pleased to present the Group's interim results for the
six months ended 30 June 2020.

In the first half of 2020, as the Covid-19 pandemic
plunged the world economy into recession and disrupted
global industry and supply chains, international trade and
investment plummeted remarkably and commodity markets
witnessed significant volatility. The fallout, compounded
by trade tensions and geopolitical disputes, posed
additional challenges to the global economic recovery.
Against this backdrop, China made coordinated efforts to
prevent and control the spread of the pandemic, while
steadily advancing its social and economic development.
While imposing the pandemic containment measures,
the Chinese government also maintained its general
focus on pursuing progress while ensuring stability, and
continued to implement its new development philosophy
by concentrating resources on supply-side structural reform.
It also took further steps to maintain security in “six
areas”, including employment, basic livelihood, company
operations, food and energy security, supply chain stability,
and the effective functioning of primary-level governments,
in a bid to ensure stability on “six fronts”, namely,
employment, financial markets, foreign trade, foreign
investment, domestic investment and overall expectations.
Additionally, China continued to implement proactive
fiscal policies and prudent monetary policies to mitigate
the impact of the outbreak. Thanks to such broad-based
efforts, businesses in China gradually returned to normal
as the pandemic was mostly brought under control. After
a 6.8% year-over-year drop in the first quarter, China’s
economy bounced back as GDP rose by 3.2% year-over-
year in the second quarter.
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During the period, the Chinese government continued to
implement regulations to support “houses are for people
to live in, not for speculation” as the overarching theme
of its real estate policy. The government’s tightening grip
on the property sector remained in place and stringent
credit and capital policies continued to weigh on the
housing market. Confronting the negative impact of the
pandemic on the property market, some cities started
to ease policies to shore up the slowing market based
on their specific situations; however, measures to restrict
home purchases and property loans remained mostly
unchanged in general. Under pressure from the stringent
industry policies and disruptions of the continued anti-
virus measures, the Chinese real estate market experienced
a significant slowdown in terms of transaction volumes
and transaction prices in the first quarter. As the outbreak
gradually subsided in the second quarter, property markets
started to recover driven by a surge of market demand.
However, the recovery was geographically uneven, with
a resilient and rapid recovery in the Yangtze River Delta
and the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area,
whereas the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region saw a relatively
slow recovery because of a resurgence of Covid-19 cases.

During the first half of 2020, the Group made strenuous
efforts to counter the impact of the outbreak on its
businesses. BCL adheres to the business strategy of
striving to ensure stable development while pursuing
progress and agility along the way by taking proactive
anti-virus measures, making coordinated planning efforts
around business reopening to minimize the impact of
the epidemic and employing an integrated online-offline
marketing approach in response to changing consumer
behaviors. These initiatives allowed the Group to effectively
take advantage of market opportunities as the pandemic
abated. BCL also further improved its sell-through rates by
consolidating different platforms to create synergies across
projects and reinforcing the leading role of its proprietary
sales platform. In addition, the Group further accelerated
cash collection by reinforcing performance incentives based
on cash collection. In the first half of 2020, the Group
recorded RMB33.7 billion in contracted sales at an average
selling price of RMB34,000 per sg.m.. The average sell-
through rate of newly launched projects was nearly 80%,
topping the sales charts in multiple regional markets.
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In the first half of the year, the Group continued to
implement a prudent investment strategy by investing
only in the best projects. The Group continued to acquire
prime land resources at low costs in a non-competitive and
differentiated manner by leveraging strategic cooperation,
M&A, and synergies across business segments. Specifically,
the Group acquired 6 new projects at their initial bidding
prices, with a total investment of RMB12.58 billion and
an aggregate GFA of 3.076 million sq.m.. In particular,
the Group secured two projects with a total GFA of
726,000 sg.m. in Nanjing and Chongging, both at their
initial bidding prices, by advancing its “Property Plus” land
acquisition model such as exploiting synergies with its
high-tech business.

During the period, the retail industry was hard hit by the
outbreak. Capital Grand, the commercial property arm of
the Group, remained committed to its corporate social
responsibilities and supported retail tenants by offering
phased rent reductions or waivers during the pandemic.
Meanwhile, Capital Grand also implemented rigorous
anti-virus measures and comprehensively coordinate
the prevention and control of the epidemic in outlets
nationwide. As the pandemic was effectively contained in
China, the Group was able to start gradually reopening
its various outlets. Taking advantage of the recovery of
consumer demand, the Group launched innovative sales
campaigns such as "“off-peak shopping”, cross-platform
sales at 12 outlets, the online mall “Grand MAX", and
livestreaming ecommerce. As a result, the outlet business
achieved rapid growth in terms of both foot traffic and
sales volume. In the first half of the year, the Group's
outlets generated RMB2.9 billion in total sales, and
customer traffic hit 14.66 million.
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During the first half of 2020, the Group continued to
incubate diversified innovative businesses and develop new
profit drivers. With respect to the cultural and creative
business, the Beijing Yongyuan Project, an ICH-themed
park, achieved an occupancy rate of 85%, despite the
challenging market environment, thanks to the park’s high-
grade operations and management know-how; The BOM
HALL Project, a digital entertainment platform situated at
the Jinma Plaza, was officially launched as a demonstration
base to promote culture and technology integration. With
respect to the high-tech business, following the success
of the Group’s benchmark IC Park Project in Beijing,
sister projects were launched in Nanjing and Chongging,
enabling the Group to acquire prime land resources in
a non-competitive fashion via business synergies. With
respect to the residential leasing business, phase | of the
Shanghai Baoshan WEPARK Project was officially launched.
The project is the first of its kind where the Group operates
on management contracts, marking a breakthrough for
BCL's asset-light business model.

During the period, despite the continued credit squeeze in
property markets, the Group managed to secure sufficient
financing reserves by effectively leveraging its well-rounded
financing platform and expanding its funding channels.
Specifically, the Group advanced further towards the
H-share full circulation, as the resolution was approved
at the general meeting and submitted for regulatory
approval. In terms of debt financing, in January, the
Group successfully issued 5.5-year offshore senior notes
for an aggregate nominal amount of USD450 million in a
transaction that was nearly eight times oversubscribed. In
addition, BCL successfully tapped a new funding facility in
the China inter-bank bond market by issuing 3-year notes
for an aggregate nominal amount of RMB1.5 billion at a
coupon rate of 3.4%. The Group also issued three tranches
of domestic private corporate bonds totaling RMB5.2
billion, with a 3+2-year tranche that had a rate of as low
as 3.6%.
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In the second half of 2020, the ongoing pandemic is
expected to continue weighing on the international and
domestic economy, and the precautionary measures against
the virus are likely to persist. While remaining committed
to the general principle of pursing progress while ensuring
stability, the Group will diligently boost sales, improve
cash collection and accelerate destocking. The Group will
also continue to implement a stable investment strategy
and enhance resource acquisition for strategic, core and
major projects by leveraging synergies across business lines.
Furthermore, the Group will actively work to incubate
innovative businesses and accelerate structural adjustments
by further consolidating its property management
business and increasing capital investments to scale up its
operations at the appropriate time. In addition, the Group
will continue to explore high-quality financial resources
to enrich financing reserves and enhance its ability to
withstand risks. Lastly, the Group will forge ahead with its
plans for H-share full circulation, which would help boost
shareholder value and lay the foundation for future capital
operations.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to sincerely express
our gratitude to all of our shareholders, partners, and
customers for your long-term and determined care,
support, and help. BCL will continue to forge ahead,
enhance its competitive advantages, and strive to become
China’s most valuable integrated property developer.

Li Songping
Chairman

Beijing, 17 August 2020
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

During the first half of 2020, the Group’s revenue
totaled approximately RMB9,219,283,000 (first half of
2019: RMB10,476,385,000), decrease approximately
12% from the same period last year. Operating profit
decrease approximately 47% year-on-year to approximately
RMB1,153,591,000 (first half of 2019: RMB2,178,675,000).
Profit attributable to owners of the Company decrease
approximately 28% year-on-year to RMB850,221,000 (first
half of 2019: RMB1,187,493,000). Earnings per share (basic
and diluted) were RMBO0.11 (first half of 2019: RMBO0.30),
representing of decrease approximately 63% compared
with the first half of 2019. The Board resolved not to
declare an interim dividend for the six months ended 30
June 2020.

PROPERTY SALES PERFORMANCE

During the first half of 2020, China’s real estate industry
suffered a critical setback amid the Covid-19 pandemic,
with the widespread suspension of construction activities
and sales center closures across the country. The Group's
contracted sales were affected in the turbulent market.
The Group effectively coordinated efforts between
pandemic control and business operations. The Group
adopted a targeted “point-to-point” approach alongside
comprehensive measures to ensure the smooth and orderly
return to normal operations. It put in place an innovative
online-and-offline marketing model and quickly launched
online sales campaigns. The Group's in-house sales team
developed a cross-selling mechanism between projects and
tapped into synergies across different regions and business
lines, all of which helped to contribute to total contracted
sales of RMB12.9 billion. In the second quarter, the Group
fully returned to normal business operations, placing its
property sales performance on a fast track to recovery.

During the first half of 2020, the total contracted sales
area of the Group’s projects was 997,000 sq.m., total
contracted sales were RMB33.70 billion, and the average
selling price was RMB34,000 per sq.m.. During the period,
contracted sales in the three key metropolitan areas was
RMB29.19 billion, accounting for roughly 87% of the total.
In particular, the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region maintained
its position as the Group’s primary focus and contributed
RMB17.64 billion, or 52% of total contracted sales. The
Group took advantage of opportunities in the Yangtze
River Delta region to consolidate and upgrade its position.
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Contracted sales in the area were RMB10.41 billion, up
30% year-over-year. During the period, the average sell-
through rate for the Group’s newly launched projects was

[}
on °

nearly 80%. Some key projects, including “Tian Yue Yun
He Yuan” in Hangzhou and “Tian Yue Lakeside Residence”
in Suzhou achieved a sell-through rate of more than
90% on the day of launch, while a number of projects
including those in Beijing Sunhe and the Qingpu District
of Shanghai successfully generated the highest turnover in

their respective regions.
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Geographical distribution of property sales performance in 1H of 2020 and 1H of 2019
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Approximate
Approximate Contracted Approximate
Contracted Average Contracted
Sales Area Selling Price  Sales Revenue
BMOEN BMOEN BMOELD
City W SHEHE® HEHYE HESH
(sq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.) (RMB'000)
(AR®/ (AR
(F77K) F 7 AK) F7)
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei RRE 388,829 45,367 17,639,901
Region
Yangtze River Delta k=85 279,289 37,255 10,405,028
Guangdong-Hong Kong- EER 52,775 21,746 1,147,629
Macao Region
Others Hfth 275,951 16,350 4,511,738
Totals &t 996,844 33,811 33,704,296
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COMMERCIAL PROPERTY

During the first half of 2020, economic growth around
the world was sluggish due to the Covid-19 pandemic,
and the retail sector was greatly impacted. Capital Grand,
the commercial property arm of the Group, adopted
a proactive approach, effectively implemented various
science-based pandemic prevention measures and actively
fulfilled its social responsibility as a state-owned enterprise
by offering rent reductions or waivers to tenants at some
of its outlets. At the same time, Capital Grand also took
advantage of its nationwide deployment and branding
strength, integrated online and offline channels, worked
with Alibaba Cloud to continue to improve its data analytics
and operational capabilities and push forward its transition
to leaner, digitalized operations. With these efforts in place,
Capital Grand achieved an overall recovery in operating
performance and minimized the impact of the pandemic.

During the first half of 2020, the Group's outlets generated
turnover of RMB2.9 billion and customer traffic of 14.66
million. Through unified marketing activities that were
launched on June 6 to celebrate the anniversaries of the
Beijing and Wuhan outlets, the turnover of the Group’s
outlet projects in 12 cities across the country increased
almost 40% sequentially and turnover at the Wuhan
outlets more than doubled over the same period last
month. Focusing on the consumer experience while
remaining in compliance with pandemic restrictions, the
Beijing Fangshan Capital Outlets launched the first “off-
peak shopping” campaign to ensure a safe shopping
environment and increase sales opportunities. During the
three-day promotion for its 7th anniversary, the Beijing
Fangshan Capital Outlets achieved customer traffic of
125,000 and turnover of RMB44.8 million, both of which
were record highs.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

During the first half of 2020, the Group, together with

LRYE
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its joint ventures and associated companies, completed A& BEQARER LT HEEMAEKAERE

the construction of projects with an aggregate GFA of

approximately 650,500 sqg.m..

Approximate

SEMEA65.058FHK -

Attributable

Project Type Completed GFA Interest
B4 & HAIE
HEERE MEER BEEEE FE 45 ¥ £
(sq.m.)
(F 77 K)
Phase | of Zhoupu West High-rise 153,908 51%
JB B 78— HA = 8
Phase | of China Chic Western Style House/ 46,220 25%
M 7= B — 5 High-rise
KR/ =B
Phase | of Capital of Vision Western Style House/ 60,278 100%
REVEI—H High-rise
HE/ BB
Phase | of Xana Shine Western Style House 68,247 50%
it E—H =
Phase | of Xi Rui Shan He Western Style House 111,443 100%
72 35 1L A — £P ==
Phase Ill of Tian Yue lJia Ling High-rise 155,138 50.9%
AE=E=H = &
Phase | of Tian Kong Yun lJing Ultra-High-rise 55,290 33%
REEHE —H e E
Total &t 650,524
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LAND BANK

During the first half of 2020, the Group adhered to a
prudent investment strategy by investing only in the best
projects. The Group continued to acquire prime land
bank at low costs in a non-competitive and differentiated
manner by synergies across business segments, leveraging
strategic cooperation and synergies between primary and
secondary land development. Specifically, BCL invested a
total of RMB12.58 billion in 6 secondary land development
projects located in Beijing, Zhengzhou, Nanjing and
Chongging, among other cities, with an aggregate GFA of
3.076 million sgq.m.. All of the 6 projects were acquired
at the initial bidding prices. In particular, the Beipingyuan
Demonstration Zone Project in Zhengzhou, has a total
GFA of 1.521 million sgq.m. and is planned to be a large-
scale integrated community that encompasses residential,
Yuanwu Ancient Town and a cultural tourism city, among
others. The project represents a new addition to the
Group's growing list of core projects acquired through
strategic cooperation at the initial biding price, each with
a GFA of over 1 million sq.m..

During the first half of 2020, the Group further promoted
its “Property Plus” land acquisition model and secured
two separate projects in Nanjing and Chongging with
an aggregate GFA of 726,000 sq.m., at initial bidding
prices, by leveraging synergies with its high-tech business.
Specifically, the Nanjing BCL Internet Industrial Park project,
which is situated in the core area of the Hexi CBD in the
Jianye District of Nanjing, sits right next to Alibaba’s Jiangsu
headquarters and Xiaomi’s East China headquarters. With a
total GFA of 327,000 sq.m., the project will also welcome
the East China head office of 58.com, China’s largest
online classifieds marketplace, which will make it a pivotal
hub for digital economy companies in the region.

As of 30 June 2020, the Group had total land bank with an
aggregate GFA of 17.90 million sgq.m., and a total ground
area of 13.92 million sg.m.. The aggregate GFA attributable
to the Group’s equity interests was 11.40 million sg.m.,
and the ground area attributable to the Group's equity
interests was 8.76 million sq.m. of the total land bank,
89% is for property development projects, and 11% is for
investment properties and other uses. The existing land
bank is considered to be of optimal scale and sufficient for
the Group’s development over the next three years.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT B 6 T

Total Above
Total GFA Ground
Attributable  Site Area of Land GFA of
Project Project Name Location Type Interest of Land Bank Land Bank
HRIEX RE AEB L
HEEMH EEER By E WEERR : $:3:407] HiEE LEEER BEEE
(sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.)
(FAK) (EAK) (FAK)
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
RENE
1 Fangshan Capital Outlets Fangshan District, Beijing Commercial 70.73% 90,766 196,490 196,490
AT ERmEILR [EE3
2 Wanning Capital Outlets Liji Town, Wanning, Hainan Province Commercial 100% 199,807 103,200 103,200
BEERERE BHAEEMRLHE [EE
3 Huzhou Capital Outlets Taihu Lake Resort, Huzhou, Zhejiang Commercial 70.73% 214,317 54,700 54,700
Province
RIESE S HT T & 8 N T K A IR R [EE
4 Kunshan Capital Outlets East New Town, Kunshan, Jiangsu ~ Commercial 71.12% 93,026 100,530 100,530
Province
SIESE Y] TEE R LT R [EE3
5  Nanchang Capital Outlets Nanchang, Jiangxi Province Commercial 86,987 159,400 159,400
BHERERE IREMmam [EE
Site A 70.73% 56,833 129,700 129,700
Al 58
Site B 28.29% 30,153 29,700 29,700
Bt 3%
6  Hangzhou Capital Outlets Fuyang District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Commercial 70.73% 101,691 112,280 112,280
Province
T B 5 A HIERMNTEG R HE
7 Wuhan Capital Outlets East Lake New Town, Wuhan, Hubei Commercial 70.02% 89,757 107,560 107,560
Province
RERBRG HIEERETREHE HE
8  Xi'an Capital Outlets Xi‘an Hi-Tech Industrial Development Commercial 70.73% 81,301 118,840 118,840
Zone, Xi‘an, Shanxi Province
AR RERE BRELAHAZTaNRMELRAEE /%
9 Zhengzhou Capital Outlets Zhengzhou, Henan Province Commercial 70.73% 80,790 96,580 96,580
EPESST{) EEIEY ikl HE
10 Jinan Capital Outlets Tangye New Town, Licheng District, Commercial 70.73% 114,929 121,520 121,520
Jinan, Shandong Province
ERRERE LWELERTERERE LR HE
11 Hefei Capital Outlets Binhu New Area, Hefei, Anhui Commercial 70.73% 87913 96,270 96,270
Province
BIRRERE ZHEERTERTE B
12 Chongging Capital Outlets Lujiao New Town, Banan District, ~ Commercial 70.73% 74,349 110,560 110,560
Chongging
EFRBRG EETEHEREATN [EE
13 Kunming Capital Outlets Wuhua District, Kunming, Yunnan ~ Commercial 60.12% 67,920 136,040 136,040
Province
BRRBRE EHERRTRER [EE
14 Qingdao Capital Outlets Qingdao High-tech Zone, Shandong Commercial 70.73% 93,972 97,600 97,600
Province
EERERE LWREEETRITE [EE3
15 Nanning Capital Outlets Xingning District, Nanning, Guangxi Commercial 70.73% 101,974 145,590 145,590
Zhuang, Autonomous Region
MERBRE BELKEAEHETAER HE
16 Xiamen Capital Outlets Xiang An District, Xiamen, Fujian ~ Commercial 70.73% 55,657 124,870 124,870
Province
EFRERE BEEEMTAZE HE
17 Beijing Haidian Yongfeng  IC-Park Haidian District, Beijing Office/ 50% 59,750 96,029 63,141
Industrial Base Project Apartment
Site B2
IRBEKEEEEMB2  ICPark IRmERE BTE/1RE
18 Capital Group Plaza Capital Group ~ Dongcheng District, Beijing Office/ 100% 7,069 48,431 35,867
Plaza Commercial
TREEKRE BEIKE I RTRE R BT/ B
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERE A0S

Total Above
Total GFA Ground
Attributable  Site Area of Land GFA of
Project Project Name Location Type Interest of Land Bank Land Bank
HRIEX *E FEHE
HEER EREER wENE LS i 1 2 b 6 HHER AEEAR BEER
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.)
(FAHAK) (EAHXK) (FAHAK)
DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES
HENMF
19 Beijing Hujialou Project Xanadu Chaoyang District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 34,163 51,096 38,208
Commercial
EREREER B ERMHGE TE/HE
20  Beijing Haidian Yongfeng  Capital of Haidian District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 65,219 30,720 6,726
Industrial Base Project Western Apartment/
Site F1 Village Commercial/
Office
ERERKEEZFENN  REAEL ERTEER T/ 28/
HE/BFE
21 Beijing Haidian Yongfeng  IC-Park Haidian District, Beijing Office/ 50% 59,750 35,381 35,381
Industrial Base Project Commercial
Site B2
EREEKGEEEMB2  IC-Park ERTEER BFR/HE
22 Lize Financial Business Fengtai District, Beijing Office/ 26,352 4,089 253
District Project Apartment
BECREBE IRTERE BFE/1B
Lize Site F02 50% 15,963 2,284 —
BEEF02
Lize Site FO5 Tian Yue 100% 10,389 1,806 253
Mansion
BEEFO5 PNPN
23 Beijing Lize Financial Fengtai District, Beijing Apartment/ 20% 23,799 183,133 159,508
Business District Project Commercial/
D0708 Office
EREELRAEHFEDOT0S LRMEARE NV E V4
BT
24 Beijing Fengtai Qinglong Fengtai District, Beijing Residential/ 5% 230,356 125,065 125,061
Lake Project Commercial/
Office
EREAEEMNER ERTEaE TE/EE/
BTE
25 Beijing Chaoyang Sunhe  Xi Rui Chun Qiu Chaoyang District, Beijing Residential 50% 90,394 81,145 59,612
Xidian Village Project
TRBEGRIEANME BREN ERWHBGE i3
26 Beijing Chaoyang Sunhe  Tian Rui Chen  Chaoyang District, Beijing Residential 20% 53,526 46,072 25,036
Beidian West Village Zhang
Project
ERBEGHETLAEMIE RHRE LIRTHEGE FE
27  Beijing Chaoyang One Liang Ma  Chaoyang District, Beijing Residential/ 10% 61,023 87,472 53,181
Tuofangying Project Commercial
ERBGER 21058 25 IRTHEE TE/HE
28  Beijing Zhaoquanying Site  Passion World  Shunyi District, Beijing Apartment/ 100% 27121 3,731 3,731
F1-01 Project Commercial
St E#2EFI-01ER I i B0 ERMIEEE RE/EE
29  Beijing Zhaoquanying Site  Enjoyable Trees Shunyi District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 104,345 96,210 59,986
No. 4 Project Apartment
TRE2 2450 B ERMIEZE FE/ 1B
30 Beijing Zhaoquanying Site  Enjoyable Bay  Shunyi District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 114,154 100,146 68,771
No. 2 Project Apartment/
Commercial
EREZE25 1 1 & ERTIEE R TE/ 28/
GRS
31 Beijing Shunyi No. 17 Xanadu Shunyi District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 85,056 12,816 3,204
Project Mountain Apartment
ERIER17HEER Bl ERTIEER TE/ 1B

BRIBEXBRNBERAR —Z_2FhHRE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT B 6 T

Total Above
Total GFA Ground
Attributable  Site Area of Land GFA of
Project Project Name Location Type Interest of Land Bank Land Bank
HRIEX & FEHE
HEER EREER wENE LS i i Ll EHER AEEAR BEER
(sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.)
(FAHXK) (FAHXK) (FAK)
32 Beijing Zhaoquanying Site Shunyi District, Beijing Apartment/ 100% 17,277 43,191 34,507
F2-01 Project Commercial
R 2 2F2-018E ERTIEER B/ EE
33 Beijing Shunyi New Town  Capital Park #26 Shunyi District, Beijing Residential/ 12.5% 88,702 3,479 3,479
Block No. 26 Project Commercial
ERIEZHM6EEEE  BEX6HE ERTIEZRE TE/HE
34 Beijing Miyun Yunfeng Villa Beijing Miyun District, Beijing Residential 100% 334,855 59,208 47,472
Project Landscape
Villa
TREEZRELEEE REL ERMEER EE
35 Beijing Miyun New Town  The Happiness ~ Miyun District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 56,254 32,706 8,476
Project Commercial
ERETHER BT ERTEER FE/BE
36  Beijing Miyun New Town  Lang Garden  Miyun District, Beijing Residential/ 24% 13,868 8,497 —
Block No. 0102 Project Commercial
ERBEEHHIEREE ZEERE LRTEER TE/THE
37 Beijing Miyun Tanying Town Yue Xin Hui Miyun District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 60,999 81,853 41,913
Project Commercial
TREEBERHEA 5 RE IRTEER TE/BE
38  Beijing Pinggu Glory Mansion  Pinggu District, Beijing Residential/ 25% 220,878 93,302 65,135
Changchunyuan Project Commercial
ERFAGEEER MERE ERFTFAR TE/HE
39  Beijing Pinggu Jinhai Lake Pinggu District, Beijing Apartment/ 100% 176,100 188,391 149,882
Hanzhuang Village B1 Commercial/
Project Office
ERFASENEEIN ERTTAR rB/EE/
B1ith 5% BT
40  Beijing Pinggu linhai Lake Pinggu District, Beijing Residential 33% 58,643 104,463 58,384
Hanzhuang Village 6014
Project
ERFALEHEEN ERTFAR FE
60143 52
41 Beijing Pinggu linhai Lake Pinggu District, Beijing Residential/ 49% 133,408 209,804 154,207
Hanzhuang Village 6019 Commercial
Project
ERFACEHEEN ERFTFAR TE/HE
6019 5
42 Beijing Pinggu linhai Lake Pinggu District, Beijing Commercial 49% 48,800 65,680 65,680
World Leisure Congress
Project
ERTASE R R ERHTAR GRS
AEER
43 Beijing Fangshan Higher ~ Nobles Mansion Fangshan District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 56,138 43,585 24,223
Education Park Project Apartment/
Commercial
EREILEHEER Zha ERME LR TE/ 28/
[GES
44 Beijing Huang Xin Zhuang Ealing Fangshan District, Beijing Residential 95% 114,166 137,054 99,819
Project
EREFHER R ERFTELR T
45 Beijing Fangshan Liangxiang The Great City Fangshan District, Beijing Residential/ 11.1% 53,579 121,246 85,647
Project Commercial/
Office
EREILRBER T8 ERmELE ﬁt%/@%/
BY
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT B A 6 T

Total Above
Total GFA Ground
Attributable  Site Area of Land GFA of
Project Project Name Location Type Interest of Land Bank Land Bank
HRIEX *E FEHE
HEAMW EEER wENE LS i i LAl ERER ABREER BEER
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.)
(FAHAK) (EAHXK) (FAHAK)
46 Beijing Daxing Sun Village Enjoyable City  Daxing District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 61,512 35,343 31,432
Project Apartment/
Commercial
ERAREHENIRE & E IRTARR TE/ 28/
GRS
47  Beijing Daxing Huang Daxing District, Beijing Apartment/ 100% 84,213 128,264 108,998
Village Project Commercial
ERAEENIER LIRTAER NE/HE
48  Beijing Daxing Yinghai Site Grand Harmony Daxing District, Beijing Residential/ 30% 75,065 144,630 96,030
Emerald Commercial
Residence
ERREF G5 BEBANLEE JHRTAER FE/HE
49  Beijing Daxing Yizhuang  Sino Ocean Daxing District, Beijing Residential/ 50% 76,286 172,744 118,094
Site Commercial/
Office
I RARE T 5 B KRE ERTAER TE/HE/
50  Beijing Shijingshan Xihuang Wisdom Shi Jingshan District, Beijing Residential 49% 48,464 84,929 50,213
Village Project Mansion
ERAERLBENIER EWRER IRTARLUE %
51 Shijingshan Xihuang Village Shi Jinshan District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 38,379 177,888 117,018
Project Phase I Commercial/
Office
TRARWAEN ZHHE TRTARLE TE/HBE/
BFE
52 Tianjin Shuangang No. 121 Fortune Class  Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential/ 55% 255,038 35,061 30,721
Project Apartment/
Commercial/
Office
REEE121ER BRL RETRER TE/ 28/
53 Tianjin Xiging Project Landing House  Xiging District, Tianjin Residential/ 40% 151,596 17,100 17,100
Office
RXEESRE BEHE RETESER TE/ 878
54 Tianjin Hongni River Project Tianjin Capital  Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential/ 100% 257,093 18,838 18,838
City Commercial
KA AR KRR RETRER TE/HE
55 Tianjin MTR Project Tian Yue River  Hebei District, Tianjin Residential/ 100% 66,888 216,742 147,862
Apartment/
Commercial/
Office
REBHER R REMAL R TE/ 28/
56  Tianjin Beiyunhe Project Grand Canal Hebei District, Tianjin Residential/ 100% 62,817 151,693 74,630
Milestone Apartment/
Commercial
RALENIER RKARE REMAL R TE/ 28/
EES
57  Tianjin Zhongshan Road Metropolis Hebei District, Tianjin Residential/ 100% 22,455 96,234 69,467
Project Commercial/
Office
REFLEES A#e REMTLR TE/HBE/
BFE
58  Tianjin Xinzhuang No. 3 Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential/ 100% 86,088 153,924 152,113
Project Commercial
RERFE=RER RETRER TE/HE
59  Tianjin Xinzhuang No. 5 Poetic Life Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential 20% 82,164 1,874 1,538
Project
XERFHEARWIER 15 11128 REMEER FE
BRIBEEROAERAR —Z_TFPHRSE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT B 6 T

Total Above
Total GFA Ground
Attributable  Site Area of Land GFA of
Project Project Name Location Type Interest of Land Bank Land Bank
HRIEX RE AEB L
HEEMH EEER BN E MERR : $:3:407] ERER ABREER BEAR
(sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FAK) (EAK) (FAK)
60 Tianjin Hongxianli Project  North Shore Hongagiao District,Tianjin Residential/ 25% 106,920 71,153 64,854
Center Commercial/
Office
REBAREER LERL RKEMLBRE tE/HE/
61  Tianjin Youzhichang Project Xanadu Garden Honggiao District,Tianjin Residential/ 100% 38,704 40,829 40,829
Commercial
REHMEBER B [ REMAER Fx/EE
62 Tianjin Xiging Zhongbei ~ Xanadu Capital Xiging District, Tianjin Residential 50% 41,175 68,024 57,384
Town Project
REFAEHRILHEER BB AEMESTR T
63 Tianjin Beichen Liuyuan Oriental Beichen District, Tianjin Residential 24.7% 129,903 253,937 173,178
No. 1 Site Mansion
REIEREEFHIER REA REmiRE [is
64  Tianjin Beichen Liuyuan 188 Long Chau Beichen District, Tianjin Residential 17.5% 98,263 137,516 87,373
No. 2 Site Road
X2 REE2%HIEA B iE188 XEmERE FxE
65  Tianjin Binhai New District Binhai New District, Tianjin Residential 100% 173,988 226,068 223,619
Ninghe Project
REBGTEZ R REMEEHR FE
66  Tianjin Wuging Project Wuging District, Tianjin Residential/ 1,783,033 730,593 730,593
Commercial/
Office
REREER REMHRER tx/HE/
Site 08-02 International 100% 171,418 20,562 20,562
Peninsula
08-021t % EiltEd
Site 01-05 International 100% 193,496 15,680 15,680
Peninsula
01-051 58 CiltEd S
Site 03-02 International 100% 174,948 21,223 21,223
Peninsula
03-02:t % ARts
Site 04-02 International 100% 187,396 47,950 47,950
Peninsula
04-023t % AR+s
Site 07-02 International 100% 49,871 4,064 4,064
Peninsula
07-023 % AF¥s
Site 06-09 International 100% 401,601 8,567 8,567
Peninsula
06-09: 3 AF+E
Site 07-08 International 100% 24,584 9,661 9,661
Peninsula
07-083 3% EiltEd
Jingzhu Square Jingzhu Square 100% 18,103 18,101 18,101
HNES MRS
Site 03-06/03-07 Xi Rui Shu 30% 164,005 166,858 166,858
03-06/03-071t 5% ERE
Site 01-01 Xi Rui Kun Ting 50% 132,169 170,657 170,657
01-014 3% EWEE
Site 06-02 Xi Rui Li 50% 92,906 68,906 68,906
06-021t 52 EBRE
Site 02-02 50% 145,341 136,997 136,997
02-021 3%
Site 04-10 100% 27,195 41,367 41,367
04-103 58
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERE A0S

Total Above
Total GFA Ground
Attributable  Site Area of Land GFA of
Project Project Name Location Type Interest of Land Bank Land Bank
HRIEX *E AE L
HEAMW EEER wENE MEERR i LAl ERER ABREER BEER
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.)
(FAK) (FAK) (FAK)
67  Shanghai Qingpu Yingpu  The Happiness  Qingpu District, Shanghai Residential/ 100% 204,781 235,320 129,588
Lane Project Commercial
FEEHREHERE = FETERR TE/HE
68  Shanghai Yangpu Pingliang Capital of Vision Yangpu District, Shanghai Residential/ 100% 32,360 22,324 3,560
Project Commercial/
Office
HEBETRER REET LETHEER EE/HE/
69  Shanghai Zhoupu Project  Supremacy Pudong New Area, Shanghai Residential 51% 69,433 117,995 60,038
FBABER REEEIE FETERTR FE
70 Shanghai Xinchang Project Xana Shine Pudong New Area, Shanghai Residential 50% 56,887 82,775 33,072
LRHSER EBREE LETERNR T
71 Shanghai Minhang Huacao Minhang District, Shanghai Residential 100% 18,049 18,920 6,152
Town Site 08-05
FERITEEE08-05 17 LEWRTR FE
72 Shanghai Minhang Huacao Minhang District, Shanghai Residential 100% 16,902 41,162 29,429
Town Site 09-04
EERTEEE0-041 12 FETRTE FE
73 Hangzhou Yuhang Project Xanadu Yuhang District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Residential/ 100% 85,897 160,059 110,015
Province Commercial
MMAMEE ElLf WIEmMMmRNE TE/HE
74 Hangzhou Yuhe New City Gongshu District, Hangzhou, Residential/ 36% 40,488 11,254 2,794
Project Zhejiang Province Commercial
N E AR IE B WIEMMTHER Fx/HE
75 Ningbo Ninghai New Town Ninghai New Town, Ningbo, Zhejiang Residential/ 55% 48,361 52,398 42,843
Project Province Commercial
EREBNMER HTE 2R T E 83 tx/HE
76 Huzhou Taihu Project Huzhou Taihu Lake Resort, Huzhou, Zhejiang Residential/ 100% 145,153 79,595 69,471
Integrated Province Commercial
Outlets
Projects
HINAHIER MNREBRE G HTERAMTONREERR T/ HE
a8
77 Suzhou Qingjian Lake Suzhou Industrial Park, Jiangsu Residential 3.06% 71,841 101,316 72,809
Project Province
BMNEHHMER IHEHMNTIEER FE
78 Kunshan Capital Outlets ~ Kunshan East New Town, Kunshan, Jiangsu  Residential/ 100% 354,912 145,900 106,437
Project Integrated Province Apartment/
Outlets Commercial
Project
BILREREER BLURBREG TIHERLTRBPHAMN tx/ 28/
aE RS
79 Kunshan Zhangpu Project Zhangpuzhen District, Kunshan, Residential 100% 68,114 203,493 166,543
Jiangsu Province
B 1L 5% it 4R IHERBUTREER %
80 Wuxi Dongting Town Wuxi Gentle Xishan District, Wuxi, Jiangsu Residential/ 100% 162,911 16,160 13,947
Project House Province Commercial
EHRTHEER BEHER IHEEHTHIUE tx/HE
81 Wuxi Airport Road Project Wuxi Joyous Wuxi New District, Jiangsu Province Residential/ 100% 96,598 5,595 1,007
House Commercial
EHRISRER EH R IHERESTHR tx/HE
82 Jiangyin Yuyue Project Jiangyin Yushan Bay, Jiangyin, Jiangsu Residential/ 100% 78,258 3,223 1,960
Auspicious Province Commercial
House
IRHEER IRGERE IHETIRMELE TE/HE
BEIBEXERMHBRAR —Z_ZTFHRHPRE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB WM

Total Above
Total GFA Ground
Attributable  Site Area of Land GFA of
Project Project Name Location Type Interest of Land Bank Land Bank
HRIEX & REHE
HEAM® EEER wENE LS i i Ll ERER ABREER BEAR
(sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FAHXK) (FAHXK) (FAK)
83  Zhenjiang National Joyous House  Zhenjiang Technology Development Residential/ 100% 111,364 11,574 3,21
University Science Park Zone, Jiangsu Province Commercial
Project
HIBERAZHREEE HEINF THERTIT R ER TE/HE
84 Nanjing Fintech Industrial Jianye District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Apartment/ 75% 59,352 309,115 232,383
Park Project Commercial/
Office
AREBMMREXEERE IHEERTEER Q%/P&é%/
BY
85  Shenzhen Longhua Project Capital Longhua Longhua District, Shenzhen Apartment/ 100% 9,519 10,555 10,555
Centre Commercial/
Office
RINBEEIER BEIEEDDL RBREMITEER RB/EE/
86  Guangzhou Zengcheng Zengcheng District, Guangdong, Residential/ 51% 40,778 112,751 78,032
Shiwei Road Project Guangzhou Commercial
EMEHAREEE BREBMTENE TE/HE
87  Guangzhou Zengcheng Zengcheng District, Guangdong, Residential/ 20% 85,336 305,980 226,420
Licheng Street Project Guangzhou Commercial
BEMEH R EEE BREBMTENE TE/THE
88  Foshan Shishan Town Foshan Xi Yue  Nanhai District, Foshan, Guangdong Residential/ 100% 25,001 60,371 46,823
Project Tai Commercial
Il mILERE wlEis EREHFLTHER TE/BE
89  Foshan Shishan Town Xi Rui Hua Fu  Nanhai District, Foshan, Guangdong Residential/ 100% 74,600 151,192 102,302
Xingye Road East Project Commercial
BMLERERRER BRERN EREBUTHER TE/HE
90 Dongguan Wangniudun Dongguan, Guangdong Residential/ 100% 38,796 112,158 85,144
Project Commercial
RRE4HEE ERERZM TE/HE
91 Wuhan Jingkai Project Wuhan Economic & Technological ~ Residential/ 49.4% 667,900 2,152,143 1,785,250
Development Zone, Hubei Commercial/
Office
REEHER MItERETEERMEER tE/HE/
92 Wuhan Jingkai No. 33 Site Wuhan Economic & Technological ~ Residential/ 49.4% 122,987 369,886 279,471
Development Zone, Hubei Apartment/
Commercial
RELRE3IR MR WA RETRERMEERE TE/ 28/
GRS
93 Zhengzhou North Pingyuan Pingyuan Demonstration zone, Residential/ 40% 752,139 1,420,757 1,168,120
Demonstration Zone Xinxiang, Henan Commercial/
Project Amusement
park
BN TRTERER AEEHATIRAERE e/ HE/
94 Xiamen Xiang'an New City Xiangan District, Xiamen, Fujian Residential/ 65% 16,786 41,348 25,980
J05 Project Commercial
B FI B % 3 053 38 BREEMTAZE TE/HE
95  Xiamen Xiang'an New City Xiangan District, Xiamen, Fujian Residential/ 100% 12,320 37,408 24,462
H19 Project Commercial
E AT H190 42 BREEMTAZR TE/HE
96  Xiamen Xiang'an New City Xiangan District, Xiamen, Fujian Residential/ 100% 18,723 50,045 37,864
H24 Project Commercial
B PI B % # i H24 3 38 BREEMTARR TE/HE
97  Kunming Panlong Zhongba Panlong District, Kunming, Yunnan  Residential/ 100% 58,687 271,048 189,125
Project Commercial
EHBENHHE ZHERPTEER TE/BE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT B A 6 T

Total Above
Total GFA Ground
Attributable  Site Area of Land GFA of
Project Project Name Location Type Interest of Land Bank Land Bank
HRIEX *E FEHE
HEAMW EREER wENE LS i i LAl HHER AEEAR BEER
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.)
(FAHAK) (EAHXK) (FAHAK)
98  Kunming Wujiaba Guandu District, Kunming, Yunnan  Residential/ 49.85% 51,714 268,547 222,355
No. 5 Site Commercial
BEHRRKGEESH EHERATEER e/ B%
99  Kunming Dianzhong Dianzhong New Area, Kunming, Residential/ 49% 508,322 1,505,895 1,247,001
Changshui Airport At Yunnan Apartment/
Project Commercial
ERERRKEISER EHERBTERTE TE/ 28/
Al 5% GES
100 Chongging Hongensi Hong'en Jiangbei District, Chongging Residential/ 100% 229,314 53,615 357
Project International Commercial
Living District
EFBEFHE BEHKEEE EBRTILE TE/ ¥
101 Chongging Xiyong Project Chongging Eco  Shapingba District, Chongging Residential/ 96.39% 146,394 113,977 22,828
Village Apartment/
Commercial
BEEFXKER EERA EETHIBE TE/ 28/
GRS
102 Chongging Jialingchang  Chongging Shapingba District, Chongging Residential/ 50.9% 218,303 346,382 167,929
Project Capital City Commercial
EEEEBER EEHAW ERFTOITEE e/ HE¥
103 Chongging High-tech Shapingba District, Chongging Residential/ 100% 164,738 375,128 273,358
Industrial Park Project Commercial/
Office
EEFSHMREXEER ERMONEE TE/HBE/
BT
104 Chongging Dapingquan  Tian Yue Shi Dai Yuzhong District, Chongging Residential/ 33% 14,447 35,424 16,203
Project Apartment/
Commercial
EFRFEER REBR EETATE T/ 28/
[GES
105 Chongging Nan‘an Tea Nan'an District, Chongging Residential/ 100% 95,092 182,707 129,962
Garden Project Commercial
EEFRFAEER EETHER TE/HE
106 Chongging Xipeng Project Jiulongpo District, Chongging Residential/ 30% 67,855 104,424 65,509
Commercial
EEAYER ERMAERE TE/HE
107 Chengdu Qinglongchang ~ Chengdu Eco  Chenghua District, Chengdu, Residential/ 100% 87,312 91,030 30,675
Project Village Sichuan Commercial
KABERSER KB S A mIERBTKER e/ B%
108 Chengdu Huaxin Village  Galaxy No. 1 linjiang District, Chengdu, Sichuan  Residential/ 70.5% 95,663 61,581 17,042
Project Commercial
RABEHNIER EF15% m)I&R#BT LR TE/HE¥
109 Chengdu 68 Mailbox Chengdu The  Chenghua District, Chengdu, Residential/ 100% 50,836 63,783 26,613
Project Palace No. 68  Sichuan Commercial
H#68EMH A KRE68# mERBTRER TE/HE
110 Chengdu Tianfu New Area Xanadu Jinjiang Tianfu New Area District, Chengdu, Residential/ 100% 48,322 57,378 20,468
Project Sichuan Commercial
BRI HEIEE BRI mIERBTRFHE TE/HE
111 Chengdu Qingyang Project Qingyang District, Chengdu, Sichuan Residential 100% 49,437 104,142 81,261
KEBEFER mIERBTEFE %
112 Xi'an Feng-cheng Road Xi‘an First City ~ Xi'an Economic and Technology Residential/ 70.73% 355,909 355,384 228,837
Project Development Zone, Shaanxi Commercial/
Province Office
BZEWERE 7 2 F B RELAZHTLERBHER TE/HBE/
BT

BRIBEXBRNBERAR —Z_2FhHRE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT B 6 T

Total Above
Total GFA Ground
Attributable  Site Area of Land GFA of
Project Project Name Location Type Interest of Land Bank Land Bank
HRIEX & REHE
HEAM® EEER wENE LS i i Ll ERER ABREER BEAR
(sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FAHXK) (FAHXK) (FAK)
113 Shenyang Shenying Road ~ Shenyang First  Hunnan New District, Shenyang, Residential/ 30% 175,348 36,482 13,314
Project City Liaoning Province Apartment/
Commercial
LB ERIER 5 BRI BELLBTERNE TE/ 28/
GRS
114 Shenyang Shenzhong Street Shenyang Eco ~ Hunnan New District, Shenyang, Residential/ 100% 194,249 34,643 1,438
Project Village Liaoning Province Commercial
LR REHEE B K R BELALGTERNE TE/HE
115 Shenyang Hupoda Bay Xi Rui Chang He Qi Pan Mountain District, Shenyang, Residential/ 100% 231,666 28,838 28,838
Project Liaoning Province Commercial
AGRIAEER Bl & REALGTEA LR TE/BE
116 Shenyang Tiexi District Xi Yue Da Guan Tiexi District, Shenyang, Liaoning  Residential/ 100% 16,338 34,719 31,167
No. 3 Project Province Commercial
AGEREE3R [N RELLBETHAER TE/HE
117 Shenyang Tiexi District Xi Yue Da Jing Tiexi District, Shenyang, Liaoning  Residential/ 100% 16,479 38,442 34,307
No. 4 Project Province Commercial
LEEERAY BRKE BEELGTERR TE/HE
118 Qingdao Chengyang Airport Chengyang District, Qingdao, Commercial/ 100% 92,455 30,910 30,910
Project International Shandong Province Office
Centre
E5HEHE EEEBRDL  LREERTHER HE/RFE
119 Qingdao Park No. 1 Project Qingdao Central Chengyang District, Qingdao, Residential/ 100% 81,016 347 347
Park No. 1 Shandong Province Apartment/
Commercial
EEREIREE NI LREEETHER T/ 28/
[GES
120 Yantai Sunny Chief Yard  Yantai Sunny Fushan District, Yantai, Shandong  Residential/ 100% 195,609 697 697
Project Chief Yard Province Commercial
EaBkERER Eabrgh WLEEEATHELUE TE/HE
121 Qingdao Cang'an Road Xi Yue Tian Hai Licang District, Yantai, Shandong Residential/ 100% 29,219 29,154 29,145
Project Province Apartment/
Commercial
EEERKAR BHRE LREERTEERR EE/ 128/
GRS
122 Hainan Wanning Project  Hainan Liji Town, Wanning District, Hainan  Residential/ 100% 188,514 126,497 120,595
Integrated Province Apartment/
Outlets Commercial
Project
BHEBEER BEENRNS SHEEETELHE T/ 28/
Ak [GES
123 Nanchang Capital Outlets  Nanchang Nanchang, Jiangxi Province Commercial 28.29% 30,153 24,468 24,468
(for sale) Capital
Outlets
HERRRKN(HEESND) HEERREN IAEHEED GRS
124 Jinan Capital Outlets (for  lJinan Capital Tangye New Town, Licheng District, Commercial 70.73% 114,929 1,390 1,390
sale) Outlets Jinan, Shandong Province
BEASREHELS) ERHERRE LWREERTEHAEELRHR GES
125 Chongging Capital Outlets Chongging Lujiao New Town, Banan District, ~ Commercial 70.73% 74,349 6,011 6,011
(for sale) Capital Chongging
Outlets
BEERRAN(HES) BZEERBRE SEETCEHEBAHRM BE
126 Nanning Capital Outlets (for Nanning Capital Xingning District, Nanning, Guangxi Commercial 70.73% 101,974 8,213 8,213
sale) Outlets Zhuang Autonomous Region
BEESRE(HERS) HEERKE EALKEAEHRETEER GRS
127 Project Merrylands Sydney, Australia Residential 50% 21,043 16,472 16,472
Merrylands & B RAFTERS fid]
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Total Above

Total GFA Ground

Attributable  Site Area of Land GFA of

Project Project Name Location Type Interest of Land Bank Land Bank

HRIEX RE AE L

HEEMH EEER wENE MEERR : $:3:407] HiEE LEEER BEEE

(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.)

(FAK) (FAK) (FAK)

128 Project Arden Brisbane, Australia Residential 50% 2,319 973 973
ArdenIE E BAAGmERIED FE

129 Project Max Sydney/Brisbane, Australia Residential 50% 37,356 5,784 5,784
Max8 B BAFEEE/HEHED FE

130 Project Campsie Sydney, Australia Residential 50% 2,612 289 289
Campsie 25 B RAFGERT %3

131 Project Thornleigh Sydney, Australia Residential 50% 1,148 219 219
Thornleigh 78 B RAMEERED FE

132 Project Park Sydney, Australia Residential 50% 2,016 785 785
Parkig B RAFEERD FE

133 Project Rose Sydney, Australia Residential 50% 4,519 1,244 1,244
RoseEH RAFTERES F=x

17,899,205 13,922,219

HUMAN RESOURCES

As of 30 June 2020, the Group employed 3,857
professionals with median age of 33.8. In terms of
education level, 78% of employees held a bachelor’s
degree or higher, and 12.7% held a master's degree or
higher. Employees with intermediate or senior professional
titles accounted for 15.7%.

Amid the adverse impact of the Covid-19 pandemic in
the first half of 2020, the Group focused on “building up
core competencies” as its key management strategy, as
it further expanded regional deployments and optimized
organizational management. Specifically, the Group
diligently promoted the establishment of new regional
platforms by consolidating available resources, while
boosting its existing market presence via organizational
integration. Meanwhile, the Group continued to develop
innovative businesses to generate balanced and sustainable
development.

8T

HE_ZT_ZTFA=Z1TH Xx5EHEER
BR385TAMEXEEK - BETEREFY
FH338m% c BE T H - AEAMRIA LR
FEETIE78% @ EPELRIUN FEFETH
127%  -FXTHEH EETPEABMEETHE
15.7% -

“EOTRFELHYF O EHHEAERBENTNE
2 KEERIFEASERER | EERAE
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®ONABEAMABCRRERE B
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The Group continues to adhere to its belief that “talent
is the most crucial capital” and consistently maintained
strong employee relations to retain talent. The Group
actively tapped into the full potential of its employees
while fulfilling strategic needs by expanding internal
talent mobility, which not only offered employees more
opportunities for horizontal growth, but also helped to
optimize talent deployment and increase team dynamics.
In addition, to facilitate easy communication across teams
and regions during the pandemic, BCL built a proprietary
online platform for employees to learn and share as part
of its efforts to cultivate talent in a more timely, agile
and efficient fashion, thus effectively elevating the overall
competencies of its teams.

OUTLOOK

Currently, the world economy is still under pressure as the
pandemic continues to spread globally. Thanks to effective
virus containment, the Chinese economy has demonstrated
strong signs of recovery. Going forward, China is expected
to further shore up its economy by adopting a more
proactive fiscal policy and a prudent monetary policy with
moderate flexibility. For the domestic real estate industry,
regulatory policies are unlikely to relax in the short term,
and the overarching theme of “housing is for people to
live in, not for speculation” and “implementing city-specific
measures” will continue to be the key focus of China’s
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5 AREREEERBEERRINEE
B MEBFAEAT  BRAE 18T
STIEBER RANTHRER

real estate policies. While property developers have started
to see a gradual recovery in the real estate market, they
still face continuous headwinds, as access to funding for

property markets is expected to remain tightly controlled
and the regularly imposed measures for pandemic
containment will add to further uncertainties. Therefore, it
remains a top priority for industry players to maintain solid
growth to navigate the challenges ahead. Looking forward
to the second half of 2020, BCL will continue to uphold
“quality growth” as its core mission and adhere to stable
development while pursuing progress and agility along the
way. The Group will implement the following development
strategies:

1. The Group will adhere to a “fast turnover” strategy
and continue to execute “369 project construction
standards” while comprehensively upgrading the
“BCL Intelligently Made 2025" operating strategy,
in order to make sure that projects are delivered
on time and key projects are launched as planned.
It will further enhance synergies across online and
offline sales as well as in-house sales teams, and
set up special rewards program to accelerate sales
and destocking. BCL will aim to mitigate the impacts
of the epidemic as far as possible. In addition, the
Group will continue to reinforce cash collection by
further tapping into the value of inventory assets and
existing cooperative projects, strengthen employee
performance evaluation and incentives, and build
up a systematic and standardized process for the
management of cash collections.

2. The Group will continue to employ a prudent
investment strategy and select the best projects
among new investment targets. The Group will focus
on acquiring projects with a non-competitive and
differentiated approach through coordination across
industries, M&A, strategic cooperation and synergies
between primary and secondary land development.
Leveraging its diversified business advantages, the
Group will further advance its “Property Plus” land
acquisition model in a bid to strengthen its strategic
resource acquisition.

BRAATIRAEIRE FAEE
36912 % - 2 E T+ & [ E A& 3&2025)
BERR  BEHEHE  REEHRA
BiER  E—FPRttRERTHS B
HERBY NEFEEEERL RE
HEEBEERE NFERBEFERE
R FERMER - RIEEAERE
FEEEEE BELEREZHE - #
ERFRIERRCRIBEER -

HEBEBETZ2RENRERE  EF
EE - BERE BREFEHF MU
FAERBEX®R - HE - BEAE -
——ARBFEZRLHTN ROEES
TTEBES  RAMEME+ 2R
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3. The Group will continue to adhere to a stability-
oriented approach while pursing business
optimization by actively cultivating diversified
innovative businesses. Centering around projects
in the cultural and creative industries, high-tech
industrial properties and rental housing, the Group
will further enhance the benchmarking of its brand
projects, expand and integrate industrial resources,
create sustainable and profitable business models
as well as new profit drivers, and strengthen cross-
industry collaboration and synergies to acquire
valuable land resources.

4.  The Group will continue to expand its funding
channels with a focus on direct financing from the
capital markets, and proactively explore innovative
funding methods to ensure sufficient financing
reserves. The Group will strive to achieve H-share
full circulation in order to increase shareholder
value and lay a solid foundation for subsequent
capital operations. The Group will also promote the
integration of its property management resources
to generate significant growth opportunities that
are supported by well-timed capital investments.
Leveraging its advantages in finance and property
integration, as well as high-quality financial services,
Prime Golden Capital will help to expand the Group's
core resource acquisition and generate high-quality
growth.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

In the first half of 2020, the operating revenue of the
Group was approximately RMB9,219,283,000 (first half
of 2019: RMB10,476,385,000), representing a decrease
of approximately 12% as compared with the first half
of 2019. Such decrease in operating revenue was mainly
attributable to the decrease in sales revenue of property
development during the period. In the first half of 2020,
the Group achieved a gross profit margin after business
tax of approximately 24%, representing a decrease of 14
percentage points as compared to 38% in the first half of
2019, which was mainly attributable to a decrease of gross
profit margin in property development and sale business
during the period.
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In the first half of 2020, the operating profit of the
Group was approximately RMB1,153,591,000 (first half
of 2019: RMB2,178,675,000), representing a decrease of
approximately 47% as compared with the first half of
2019.

1. Financial Resources, Liquidity and Liability
Position

During the period under review, the Group
maintained a healthy liquidity position and a
reasonable appropriation of financial resources.
As at 30 June 2020, the Group's total assets
were RMB202,408,431,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB185,269,318,000), of which current assets
were RMB165,285,508,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB155,377,694,000) and non-current assets
were RMB37,122,923,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB29,891,624,000); the total liabilities were
RMB156,934,840,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB143,228,212,000), of which current liabilities
were RMB73,296,416,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB69,262,690,000) and non-current liabilities
were RMB83,638,424,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB73,965,522,000); and the total equity
was RMB45,473,591,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB42,041,106,000).

The Group has sound liquidity and solvency. Current
ratio of the Group as at 30 June 2020 was 2.26 (31
December 2019: 2.24).
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As at 30 June 2020, the Group's cash at bank
and on hand amounted to RMB32,387,804,000
(31 December 2019: RMB27,035,244,000), which
represented sufficient funds for operations. As at
30 June 2020, loans and debentures of the Group
amounted to RMB103,863,839,000 (31 December
2019: RMB94,670,594,000) in aggregate, of which
the long-term loans and debentures amounted
to RMB79,886,336,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB70,935,863,000). The bank loans were mainly
used to satisfy the capital requirements of the Group's
property development projects.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group's gearing ratio was
approximately 78% (31 December 2019: 77%). The
gearing ratio of the Group is calculated as the total
liabilities divided by the total assets.

Changes in major subsidiaries, principal
jointly controlled entities and associates

Henan Rong Shou Innovative Cultural and Travel Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (AR EMEIXIKEZHBR LA, a
subsidiary of the Group, was established in February
2020, and 40% of its equity interest was held by the
Group.

Beijing Jinghui Real Estate Co., Ltd. (It REBE XA
R A d]), a subsidiary of the Group, was established
in March 2020, and 100% of its equity interest was
held by the Group.

Chongging Shou Hong Technology and Development
Co., Ltd. (EEEABIHEREARAF), a subsidiary of
the Group, was established in April 2020, and 100%
of its equity interest was held by the Group.

During the period, the Group entered into an
agreement with its former joint venture, Wuhan
Rong Cheng Innovative Investment and Development
Co., Ltd. (MERHARIREERAGR LA ("Wuhan
Rong Cheng Innovative”) in terms of approaches to
cooperation. Thereafter, the Group has control over
Wuhan Rong Cheng Innovative, which became a
subsidiary of the Group in June 2020.
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During the period, the Group entered into an
agreement with its former joint venture, Shouwan
Yuye (Shanghai) Property Services Co., Ltd. (B&E%
(EB)WERBAERATR) (“Shouwan Yuye”) in terms
of approaches to cooperation. Thereafter, the Group
has control over Shouwan Yuye, which became a
subsidiary of the Group in January 2020.

Wuhan Rong Shou Innovative Investment and
Development Co., Ltd. (BUER B AR EERERA
A]), an associate of the Group, was established in
May 2020, and 49% of its equity interest was held
by the Group.

Entrusted Deposits and Overdue Time
Deposits

As of 30 June 2020, the Group did not have any
entrusted deposits in financial institutions in the PRC.
Most of the Group’s cash was held in commercial
banks in the PRC in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations. The Group has no bank deposits,
which are not recoverable upon maturity.

Borrowings

As at 30 June 2020, bank borrowings of
RMB41,853,001,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB35,627,681,000) were from credit facilities
obtained by the Group, of which, RMB40,634,128,000
(31 December 2019: RMB34,005,681,000) were
secured by guarantees provided by the Group for its
subsidiaries; and RMB1,218,873,000 (31 December
2019: RMB1,622,000,000) were general credit facilities
obtained by the Group.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group’s guaranteed
bank borrowings amounted to RMB3,615,000,000
(31 December 2019: RMB4,131,000,000), of
which, RMB1,115,000,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB1,631,000,000) were secured by the guarantees
provided by the Company and the third parties for the
subsidiaries; and RMB2,500,000,000 (31 December
2019: RMB2,500,000,000) were guaranteed by
Beijing Capital Group Co., Ltd. ("Capital Group”), the
controlling shareholder of the Company.
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As at 30 June 2020, the Group’s mortgaged bank
borrowings amounted to RMB12,270,288,000
(31 December 2019: RMB8,565,668,000). Of
them, RMB6,157,813,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB4,487,151,000) were secured by certain relevant
properties under development; RMB180,000,000
(31 December 2019: RMB198,000,000) were
secured by investment properties and land use
rights; RMB1,295,000,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB877,262,000) were secured by guarantees
provided by the Group for its subsidiaries and by
certain relevant properties under development of the
subsidiaries; RMB1,698,500,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB1,265,000,000) were secured by guarantees
provided by the Group for its subsidiaries and by
investment properties and land use rights of the
subsidiaries; RMB320,000,000 (31 December 2019:
Nil) were secured by guarantees provided by inter-
company guarantees between subsidiaries of the
Group and by investment properties and land use
rights of the subsidiaries; RMB2,618,975,000 (31
December 2019: RMB1,738,255,000) were secured
by inter-company guarantees between subsidiaries of
the Group and by certain relevant properties under
development of the subsidiaries.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group’'s pledged bank
borrowings amounted to RMB2,700,000,000 (31
December 2019: RMB2,333,263,000). Of them, Nil
(31 December 2019: RMB833,263,000) were secured
by the entitlement to the receivables to be generated
from the sales of properties under development of
the Group; and RMB2,700,000,000 (31 December
2019: RMB1,500,000,000) were secured by the trade
receivables of subsidiaries of the Group.
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As at 30 June 2020, the Group’s mortgaged
and pledged bank borrowings amounted
to RMB1,055,000,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB1,055,000,000), which were secured by
guarantees provided by the Group for its subsidiaries,
investment properties and land use rights of the
subsidiaries of the Group and the entitlement to trade
receivables of the Group.

Corporate Bonds

In May 2015, the Group issued 5-year RMB listed
bonds in a principal amount of RMB3,000,000,000
with an interest rate of 4.58% per annum. The bonds
had been fully settled in May 2020.

In April 2016, the Group issued 5-year RMB private
bonds in a principal amount of RMB2,300,000,000
with a prevailing interest rate of 4.50% per annum.
The issuer shall be entitled to an option to adjust the
coupon rate and the investors shall be entitled to an
option to sell back the bonds at the end of the third
year. The current balance is RMB640,000,000.

In June 2016, the Group issued 5-year RMB private
bonds in a principal amount of RMB1,700,000,000
with a prevailing interest rate of 4.40% per annum.
The issuer shall be entitled to an option to adjust the
coupon rate and the investors shall be entitled to an
option to sell back the bonds at the end of the third
year. The current balance is RMB750,000,000.

In July 2016, the Group issued 5-year RMB private
bonds in a principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000
with a prevailing interest rate of 4.10% per annum.
The issuer shall be entitled to an option to adjust the
coupon rate and the investors shall be entitled to an
option to sell back the bonds at the end of the third
year. The current balance is RMB380,000,000.

In September 2017, the Group non-publicly issued
3-year RMB corporate bonds in a principal amount
of RMB500,000,000 with a prevailing rate of 5.00%
per annum. The current balance is RMB250,000,000.
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In November 2017, the Group non-publicly issued
RMB corporate bonds in a principal amount of
RMB500,000,000 with a maturity in September 2020
and an interest rate of 5.70% per annum. The current
balance is RMB250,000,000.

In January 2018, the Group non-publicly issued
RMB corporate bonds in a principal amount of
RMB1,000,000,000 with a maturity in September
2020 and an interest rate of 5.70% per annum. The
current balance is RMB400,000,000.

In April 2018, the Group issued 5-year RMB
denominated private bonds in a principal amount of
RMB2,000,000,000 with a prevailing interest rate of
5.84% per annum. The issuer shall be entitled to an
option to adjust the coupon rate and the investors
shall be entitled to an option to sell back the bonds
at the end of the third year.

In April 2018, the Group issued 3-year RMB
denominated private bonds in a principal amount of
RMB1,000,000,000 with a prevailing interest rate of
2.95% per annum. The issuer shall be entitled to an
option to adjust the coupon rate and the investors
shall be entitled to an option to sell back the bonds
at the end of the second year. The current balance
is RMB200,000,000.

In July 2018, the Group issued 3-year RMB
denominated private bonds in a principal amount of
RMB1,500,000,000 with a prevailing interest rate of
5.80% per annum. The issuer shall be entitled to an
option to adjust the coupon rate and the investors
shall be entitled to an option to sell back the bonds
at the end of the second vyear.

In July 2018, the Group issued 5-year RMB
denominated private bonds in a principal amount of
RMB500,000,000 with a prevailing interest rate of
5.94% per annum. The issuer shall be entitled to an
option to adjust the coupon rate and the investors
shall be entitled to an option to sell back the bonds
at the end of the third year.
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In September 2018, the Group issued 5-year RMB
denominated listed corporate bonds in a principal
amount of RMB2,500,000,000 with a prevailing
interest rate of 4.89% per annum. The issuer shall
be entitled to an option to adjust the coupon rate
and the investors shall be entitled to an option to sell
back the bonds at the end of the third year.

In September 2018, the Group non-publicly issued
3-year RMB denominated corporate bonds in a
principal amount of RMB1,500,000,000 with a
prevailing interest rate of 6.00% per annum.

In December 2018, the Group issued 3-year RMB
denominated listed corporate bonds in a principal
amount of RMB1,500,000,000 with a prevailing
interest rate of 4.16% per annum.

In December 2018, the Group issued 5-year RMB
denominated listed corporate bonds in a principal
amount of RMB1,000,000,000 with a prevailing
interest rate of 4.50% per annum.

In January 2019, the Group issued 3-year RMB private
bonds in a principal amount of RMB1,500,000,000
with an interest rate of 6.00% per annum.

In April 2019, the Group non-publicly issued 3-year
RMB denominated corporate bonds in a principal
amount of RMB1,500,000,000 with a prevailing
interest rate of 4.30% per annum. The issuer shall
be entitled to an option to adjust the coupon rate
and the investors shall be entitled to an option to sell
back the bonds at the end of the second year.

In April 2019, the Group non-publicly issued 5-year
RMB denominated corporate bonds in a principal
amount of RMB1,000,000,000 with a prevailing
interest rate of 4.58% per annum. The issuer shall
be entitled to an option to adjust the coupon rate
and the investors shall be entitled to an option to sell
back the bonds at the end of the third year.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B M AT

RZE-N\FNLA AEBHTEFH
}\Eﬁ%’&% 7]1&2,500,000,0007T -
ZEFEIFRMEBTARBREAN X
EERMREELRERE  BRFH
E74.89% o

RZZF—)\FENA  AEEFRREIT=
FH AR Q7FE,500,000,0007T -
E AR X 2%6.00% °

RZZE—)\F+R  AEEET=FH
AR AE R FE1,500,000,0007T
EAFENEXS54.16% °

RZZE—)\F+H  rEEHTHFH
/\E% N5 A 7]1&1,000,000,0007T -
EAFEMNEXS450% -

RZE-NF—R AEEET=FH
A R#¥F 5E1,500,000,0007T * F F
2?37,%6.001:70 ©

RZZE-—NFWA  AEEFFEQFET
_Eﬁﬁ/\ﬁ“ﬂz a]1&%1,500,000,000

T ZBEFE2FRMBETABABRER
ﬂ%%%%ﬂ&ﬁ%@ﬁ% LR EA
FMERL30% °

RZF-NFNA  NEEFARET
EFH AR AFE%1,000,000,000
T ZEFEIFRMBETARBERE
FMEEZRMREECBEERE  EA0
FHMEHL58% -



32

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
32 8 51w M AT

In May 2019, the Group non-publicly issued 5-year
RMB denominated corporate bonds in a principal
amount of RMB3,460,000,000 with a prevailing
interest rate of 4.37% per annum. The issuer shall be
entitled to an option to adjust the coupon rate and
the investors shall be entitled to an option to sell back
the bonds at the end of the third year.

In July 2019, the Group non-publicly issued 5-year
RMB denominated corporate bonds in a principal
amount of RMB2,130,000,000 with a prevailing
interest rate of 4.26% per annum. The issuer shall be
entitled to an option to adjust the coupon rate and
the investors shall be entitled to an option to sell back
the bonds at the end of the third year.

In September 2019, the Group issued non-publicly
3-year RMB corporate bonds in a principal amount of
RMB2,000,000,000 with an interest rate of 5.40%
per annum.

In March 2020, the Group non-publicly issued 5-year
RMB denominated corporate bonds in a principal
amount of RMB790,000,000 with a prevailing interest
rate of 3.65% per annum. The issuer shall be entitled
to an option to adjust the coupon rate and the
investors shall be entitled to an option to sell back
the bonds at the end of the third year.

In April 2020, the Group non-publicly issued 3-year
RMB denominated corporate bonds in a principal
amount of RMB1,500,000,000 with an interest rate
of 3.40% per annum.

In May 2020, the Group non-publicly issued 5-year
RMB denominated corporate bonds in a principal
amount of RMB3,000,000,000 with a prevailing
interest rate of 3.60% per annum. The issuer shall be
entitled to an option to adjust the coupon rate and
the investors shall be entitled to an option to sell back
the bonds at the end of the third year.
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6.

Notes

In February 2014, Central Plaza Development Ltd.
(“Central Plaza”) established a Guaranteed Medium
Term Notes and Perpetual Securities Scheme (the
“Scheme"”), pursuant to which International Financial
Center Property Ltd. (“IFC") or the Company (as the
case may be) would provide guarantees for securities
to be issued thereunder. Under the Scheme, Central
Plaza may offer and issue securities in a principal
amount of up to USD1,000,000,000.

In January 2017, Central Plaza renewed the Scheme
above, pursuant to which IFC or the Company (as the
case may be) would provide guarantees for securities
to be issued thereunder. Under the renewed Scheme,
Central Plaza may offer and issue securities in a
principal amount of up to USD1,000,000,000.

In January 2017, Central Plaza made a drawdown
under the above renewed Scheme to offer and
issue 3-year notes in a total principal amount of
UsD400,000,000 at an interest rate of 3.875% per
annum. The above notes were repaid in January
2020.

In July 2017, Central Plaza made a drawdown under
the above renewed Scheme to offer and issue 3-year
notes in a total principle amount of USD100,000,000
at an interest rate of 3.70% per annum. The above
notes were repaid in June 2020.

In January 2018, Central Plaza renewed the above
Scheme, pursuant to which IFC or, as the case may
be, the Company would provide guarantees for
securities to be issued thereunder. Under the renewed
Scheme, Central Plaza may offer and issue securities
in a principal amount of up to USD2,000,000,000.

In January 2018, Central Plaza made a drawdown
under the above renewed Scheme to offer and
issue 3-year notes in a total principal amount of
USD500,000,000 at an interest rate of 3.875% per
annum.
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In August 2018, Trade Horizon Global Limited
issued 3-year notes in a total principal amount of
UsD400,000,000 at a prevailing interest rate of
4.84% per annum.

In October 2019, Central Plaza renewed the above
Scheme, pursuant to which IFC or, as the case may
be, the Company would provide guarantees for
securities to be issued thereunder. Under the renewed
Scheme, Central Plaza may offer and issue securities
in a principal amount of up to USD3,000,000,000.

In January 2020, Central Plaza made a drawdown
under the above renewed Scheme to offer and
issue 5.5-year notes in a total principal amount of
USD450,000,000 at an interest rate of 3.85% per
annum.

Equity Instrument

In September 2017, the Group through Huaxin
International Trustee raised amounted to
RMB2,000,000,000. According to the terms of
Investment Agreement, other equity instruments
recognized amounted to RMB1,970,027,000 after
deducting the inevitable dividend payable in the
foreseeable future.

In December 2017, the Group through Sino-
Australian International Trust raised amounted to
RMB1,100,000,000. According to the terms of
Investment Agreement, other equity instruments
recognized amounted to RMB1,024,650,000 after
deducting the inevitable dividend payable in the
foreseeable future.

In March 2018, the Group issued a debt financing
plan of RMB600,000,000. According to the terms of
the Prospectus, other equity instruments recognized
amounted to RMB553,800,000 after deducting the
inevitable dividend payable in the foreseeable future.

In April 2018, the Group issued a debt financing
plan of RMB200,000,000. According to the terms of
the Prospectus, other equity instruments recognized
amounted to RMB184,600,000 after deducting the
inevitable dividend payable in the foreseeable future.
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In June 2018, the Group issued perpetual
medium-term notes of RMB2,000,000,000. Other
equity instruments recognized amounted to
RMB1,988,000,000 after deducting issue expenses.

In August 2018, the Group issued perpetual
medium-term notes of RMB2,000,000,000. Other
equity instruments recognized amounted to
RMB1,991,000,000 after deducting issue expenses.

In August 2018, the Group issued a debt financing
plan of RMB1,800,000,000. Other equity instruments
recognized amounted to RMB1,735,200,000 after
deducting the inevitable dividend payable in the
foreseeable future.

In September 2018, the Group issued perpetual
bonds of RMB870,000,000 through Sino-Australian
International Trust. Other equity instruments
recognized amounted to RMB796,050,000 after
deducting the inevitable dividend payable in the
foreseeable future.

In September 2018, the Group issued a debt financing
plan of RMB350,000,000. Other equity instruments
recognized amounted to RMB337,400,000 after
deducting the inevitable dividend payable in the
foreseeable future.

In April 2019, the Group issued perpetual bonds
of RMB1,800,000,000 through AVIC Trust. Other
equity instruments recognized amounted to
RMB1,685,347,000 after deducting the inevitable
dividend payable in the foreseeable future.

In April 2019, the Group issued a debt financing
plan of RMB2,000,000,000. Other equity instruments
recognized amounted to RMB1,862,842,000 after
deducting the inevitable dividend payable in the
foreseeable future.

In April 2019, the Group issued perpetual
medium-term notes of RMB1,000,000,000. Other
equity instruments recognized amounted to
RMB995,500,000 after deducting the relevant
expenses.
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In November 2019, Central Plaza issued Perpetual
Securities amounted to USD500,000,000 at a
distribution rate of 5.75% under the Medium
Term Note and Perpetual Securities Program. After
deducting relevant issuing costs, the Group received
RMB3,470,846,000. As the issuer, Central Plaza may
defer distribution without any frequency limitations
only if Central Plaza or the Company do not declare
or pay dividends. The Group has no contractual
obligation to repay its principal or to pay any
distribution. The perpetual securities do not meet the
definition of financial liabilities by the Group. The
Group recognized non-controlling interests amounted
to RMB3,470,846,000. Subsequent distribution
declared will be treated as profit distribution to non-
controlling interests.

In June 2020, a subsidiary of the Group issued Debt
Investment Program amounted to RMB500,000,000
at a distribution rate of 6.50%. After deducting
the inevitable dividend payable in the foreseeable
future, the Group recognized non-controlling
interests amounted to RMB475,870,000. Subsequent
distribution declared will be treated as profit
distribution to non-controlling interests.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had arranged bank facilities for certain
purchasers of its properties and provided guarantees
to secure the repayment obligations of such
purchasers. The outstanding balances of guarantees
amounted to RMB9,621,571,000 at 30 June 2020
(31 December 2019: RMB6,919,548,000). Such
guarantees will be terminated upon: (i) the issuance
of the real estate interestship certificates which will
generally be available within six months to two
years after the Group transfers the ownership of the
relevant property to its purchasers; (ii) the completion
of the mortgage registration; and (iii) the issuance of
the real estate other right certificates relating to the
relevant property.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group provided a guarantee
of RMB255,000,000 for a long term borrowing
borrowed by a subsidiary of a joint venture.
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As at 30 June 2020, the Group provided a guarantee
of RMB83,453,000 for a long term borrowing
borrowed by a subsidiary of a joint venture.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group provided a guarantee
of RMB144,000,000 for a long term borrowing
borrowed by a subsidiary of a joint venture.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group provided a guarantee
of RMB598,476,000 for a long term borrowing
borrowed by an associate.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group provided a guarantee
of RMB51,891,000 for a long term borrowing
borrowed by a joint venture.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group provided a guarantee
of RMB690,014,000 for a long term borrowing
borrowed by a joint venture.

Save for the above, the Group had no other material
external guarantee.
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LATEST INFORMATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS
£5t 9T Jbe A 18R i A = BB R

SHARE CAPITAL (RN

As of 30 June 2020, there was a total issued share capital ARAR-_ZT-_ZTFNA=ZTHHBETR
of 4,362,941,850 shares of the Company (the “Shares”) X /&4,362,941,8500 i 5 + E R B3 :
which include:

Approximate
Number of percentages of

Shares share capital

g §=| REMOBE D

Domestic Shares A& & 2,473,808,550 56.70%
Non-H Foreign Shares JEHIL INE A 357,998,300 8.21%
H Shares H A& 1,561,134,000 35.09%
4,362,941,850 100%
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LATEST INFORMATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS
BRAT R AR A E Z R

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" INTERESTS IN FTERRFRIBRN
SHARES

So far as is known to any directors of the Company, as ARRRZZEZZTFAAA=1+H BEME
of 30 June 2020, the following parties (other than the =A@ FHIA L (LIFEARRZESS B
directors or chief executives of the Company) had interests &R A B)RAR BB MH M@K PEE A
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the RIEZESK B EEHIXVEE2RIEMHME
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company ARG Z#EH A A -

under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of

the SFO:
Approximate percentages Approximate percentages
in relevant class of shares (%) in total issued share capital (%)
HEREEANRG2ENE D (%) HEBRTRGZBAES (%)
Number of
Shares directly
and indirectly Direct Indirect  Aggregate Direct Indirect ~ Aggregate
Name of shareholders held Class of Shares interests interests interests interests interests interests
EERBERE
BRREH ZRHBBE ROER EfER BEER BREY EfER BEER BREY
Capital Group 2,473,808,550  Non-listed Shares 87.36 - 87.36 56.70 - 56.70
EEES (Note 1) FEMERH (long position) (long position)
(W) (2) (2)
Beijing Rongtong Zhenghe 357,998,300  Non-listed Shares - 12.64 12.64 - 8.21 8.21
Investment Management Co., (Notes 1 and 2) 3ELmRA (long position) (long position)
Ltd. (WEF1R2) (f72) (§F2)
TRBAEAREEEERAF
Guoda Limited 357,998,300  Non-listed Shares - 12.64 12.64 - 8.21 8.21
BEARAR (Note 3) 3k EmHRMH (long position) (long position)
(K 2E3) (§#2) (§F2)
China Resource Products 357,998,300  Non-listed Shares 9.72 2.9 12.64 6.31 1.90 8.21
Limited (Note 4)  FELmiH (long position) (long position) (long position) (long position)
HENEERAF (M 5¥4) (2) (f2) (2) (f2)
Yieldwell International 82,762,100  Non-listed Shares 2.9 - 2.92 1.90 - 1.90
Enterprise Limited ¥EMRH (long position) (long position)
EEARCEERAF (fF8) (fF8)
Reco Pearl Private Limited 181,194,000  H Shares 11.83 - 11.83 415 - 4.15
Hfk (long position) (long position)
(2) (2)
Recosia China Pte Ltd. 181,194,000 H Shares - 11.83 11.83 - 4.15 4.15
(Note 5)  HE (long position) (long position)
GED) (§#2) (§#2)
Recosia Pte Ltd. 181,194,000 H Shares - 11.83 11.83 - 4.15 4.15
(Note 6)  HR% (long position) (long position)
GED) (f2) (f2)
GIC (Realty) Private Limited 181,194,000  H Shares - 11.83 11.83 - 415 4.15
(Note 7)  Hi& (long position) (long position)
(W 2E7) (§#2) (§#2)
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LATEST INFORMATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS

RARAG R MEERR

Notes:

1. 2,473,808,550 Shares are directly held by Capital Group. As at
the Latest Practicable Date, China Resource Products Limited is
held as to 31.53% by Beijing Sunshine Real Estate Comprehensive
Development Company* (1t R[5 3% B i & 42 & B 8 2 &) - which in
turn is wholly-owned by Capital Group. Accordingly, Capital Group
is not deemed to be interested in 275,236,200 Shares held through
China Resource Products Limited and 82,762,100 Shares held
through China Resource Products Limited and Yieldwell International
Enterprise Limited pursuant to the SFO.

2. 275,236,200 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to
the SFO indirectly held through Guoda Limited and China Resource
Products Limited. 82,762,100 Shares are deemed corporate interests
pursuant to the SFO indirectly held through Guoda Limited, China
Resources Products Limited and Yieldwell International Enterprise
Limited.

3. 275,236,200 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to
the SFO indirectly held through China Resource Products Limited.
82,762,100 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to the
SFO indirectly held through China Resources Products Limited and
Yieldwell International Enterprise Limited.

4. 82,762,100 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to
the SFO indirectly held through Yieldwell International Enterprise
Limited.

5. 181,194,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to the

SFO indirectly held through Reco Pearl Private Limited.

6. 181,194,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to the
SFO indirectly held through Reco Pearl Private Limited and Recosia
China Pte Ltd.

7. 181,194,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to the
SFO indirectly held through Reco Pearl Private Limited, Recosia China
Pte Ltd. and Recosia Pte Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors,
as of 30 June 2020, none of the parties (other than the
directors or chief executives of the Company) had any
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

As at 30 June 2020, none of the directors, supervisors and
senior management of the Company had any interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company or the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers. None of the directors, supervisors
and senior management of the Company or their spouses or
children under 18 years of age had any rights to subscribe
for equity or debt securities of the Company or had exercised
any such rights during the period.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed auditing, internal control and financial report
matters, including the review of the unaudited interim
report for the six months ended 30 June 2020.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the six months ended 30 June 2020, the Company
had not redeemed any of its shares. Neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities during the period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “Corporate
Governance Code”) as set out in the Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited during the period from 1
January 2020 to 30 June 2020.

In addition to compliance of the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code, the Company has also
adopted, as far as practicable, recommended best practices
in the Corporate Governance Code.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code which is on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the “Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”
(the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

All directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by
the Company that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code and the company
code throughout the period.

OTHER INFORMATION
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
B OF Ko w ) E R AR

AS AT 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
“ECEERAZTR(BREREBS SREL/RARE T

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
“ECER “E-NE  ZZZER ZE-NE
AAZtH +ZA=+-A ~NAZTH TZA=t+-H

Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company
i At | NG
Notes Unaudited Audited  Unaudited Audited
Assets BE i3l REE ey REBEH K&
Current assets RBEE
Cash at bank and on hand ERES 4(1):16(1) 32,387,804 27,035,244 16,681,786 10,003,378
Trading financial assets RHUEREE 4(2).16(2) 972,144 3,761,342 102,595 189,198
Trade receivables fE Y B 3% 4(3) 5,076,926 5,218,581 159 159
Advances to suppliers BNHE 4(4) 781,597 2,443,991 10,481 1,444
Other receivables o 45)16(3) 20,628,029 22,350,997  78,495920 89,277,050
Inventories FE 4(6) 98,186,944 85,928,699 33,544 33,544
Contract assets RREE &7) 6,132,721 5,734,719 - -
Current portion of non-current —ERIHNERDEE
assets 4(9) 367,790 311,975 = -
Other current assets EtreEE 4(8) 751,553 2,592,146 5,678 6,064
Total current assets RBEERH 165,285,508 155,377,694 95,330,163 99,510,837
Non-current assets FRBEE
Derivative financial assets TEeREE 4(32) 266,583 95,931 - -
Long-term receivables REEYHT 7,424 2,000 - -
Long-term equity investments RARER? 4(11):16(4) 5,994,478 5,700,367 7,926,537 7,892,784
Other equity instrument EtERIERE
investments 4(12):16(5) 288,283 288,283 50,000 50,000
Other non-current financial EERYeBEE
assets 4(10):16(6) 6,154,643 3,450,024 1,133,245 1,133,245
Investment properties REREHE 4(13) 17,169,814 16,743,273 = -
Fixed assets ETdE 4(14):16(7) 437,273 324,203 52,609 52,698
Right-of-use assets FREEE 4(15) 1,099,453 915,045 - 825
Intangible assets EWEE 4(16) 329,709 38,508 - -
Long-term prepaid expenses REGEER 4(17) 479,075 453,144 = -
Deferred income tax assets ERFMEHEER 4018)16(8) 2,274,291 1,870,925 1,636,472 1,360,255
Other non-current assets HEREE 4(19) 2,621,897 9,921 - -
Total non-current assets FRBEEST 37,122,923 29891624 10,798,863 10,489,807
Total Assets BEAG 202,408,431 185,269,318 106,129,026 110,000,644
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
BEHERRIBEERER

AS AT 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
TECZERAZTHREHNEAN  REL/ARE T T

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019

ot Sl £:3 “E-nNE  ZZZER ZE-NE
~AA=ZtH T-B=1-H ~B=tH +ZA=+-H

Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company
bt aft AL N
Notes Unaudited Audited  Unaudited Audited
Liabilities and equity BERREES 32 REEG TEq KEEG TEs
Current liabilities nEBEE
Short-term borrowings SRR 4(21),16(9) 824,281 1,717,672 93,449 930,113
Notes payables ERNZE 53,450 51,817 = -
Trade payables e B 4(22) 9,053,587 8,551,640 30,090 40,049
Contract liabilities ARBE 4(23) 21,522,543 19,475,282 807 807
Employee benefits payables BB IEHM 4(24),16(10) 160,960 258,554 113,223 162,862
Taxes payable EXHE 4(25) 5,463,792 5,204,477 12,197 26,404
Other payables LR AR 420)16(11) 12,192,322 11184175 49,067,412 51,253,319
Current portion of non-current —ERIANERDAR
liabilities 427:16(12) 24,025,481 22,819,073 9,795,237 11,228,269
Total current liabilities RBARAH 73,296,416 69,262,690 59,112,415 63,641,823
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Long-term borrowings REBER 4(28) 47,024,831 39,728,054 = -
Debentures payable ERER 429)16(13) 30,144,029 28,490,333 24,155,155  22,247516
Lease liabilities HEEE 4(30) 1,053,133 875,318 - -
Long-term payables RHENT 4(31) 2,717,416 2,717,476 - -
Provisions BHEE 2,846 - = -
Deferred income tax liabilities BELMERAR 4(18) 2,695,929 2,153,741 = -
Other non-current liabilities EtERBAR 180 600 = -
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBAH 83,638,424 73965522 24,155,155 22,247516
Total liabilities BEE 156,934,840 143,228,212 83,267,570 85,889,339
Equity LY 3
Share capital KA 4(33) 4,362,941 3,852,563 4,362,941 3,852,563
Other equity instruments Hip#ERIH 16(14) 15,124,416 15,124,416 15,124,416 15,124,416
| Including: Perpetual bonds Heh: kB 16(14) 15124416 15124416 15124416 15124416 |
Capital reserve EARTE 4(34).16(15) 685,677 395,293 3,805,725 3,515,341
Other comprehensive income Eirela 4(35) 317,385 289,943 = -
Surplus reserve BHLE 4(36) 829,151 829,151 829,151 829,151
Retained earnings KARFHE 4(37)16(16) 10,492,390 11,412,652 (1,260,777) 789,834

Total equity attributable to owners
of the Company

BERELARRAEA
31,811,960 31,904,018 22,861,456 24,111,305

Non-controlling interests YERERR 13,661,631 10,137,088
Total equity REESEH 45,473,591 42,041,106 22,861,456 24,111,305
Total liabilities and equity BERRRERAT 202,408,431 185,269,318 106,129,026 110,000,644

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these H#WHBHREMFEATBRENERITSD ©

financial statements.

Legal representative:
rEEEAN:

Person in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
TEEIENEREA: BARBREE A

EAIERRNERAT —F-FEFHEE
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY INCOME STATEMENTS
B OF 23w R AR

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE-Z2-%% HE-T-NE BE-E-FF HEIT-N%
AAZTHL ~NA=THIE AR=ZTHLE ~NA=TBIE
~MEREE N A B AEAHE ~NERHE

Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company
&t aft A7 NG
Notes Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Items EH Wi REE FEE FEEH RIEE
Revenue EELON 4(38) 9,219,283 10,476,385 9,013 37,265
Less: Cost of sales W EERA 4(38) (6,882,475) (6,317,344) - -
Taxes and surcharges e Rmm 4(39) (554,268) (1,032,729) (8,643) (1,191)
Selling and distribution expenses HEER 4(40) (242,751) (275,723) - -
General and administrative expenses EREH 4(40);16(17) (480,537) (538,477) (81,039) (101,006)
Financial expenses BEER 4(41):16(18) (1,361,880) (1,476,779) (788,342) (982,893)
including: Interest expenses Hbh:FBER (1,525,382) (1,527,923) (871,781) (1,002,267)
Interest income FEWA 154,768 155,692 89,935 91,561
Add: Other income e E s 4(42) 20,506 62,640 4,297 -
Investment income BB E 4(43):16(19) 1,147,189 1,071,740 308,271 452,519
Including: Share of profit of E ﬁﬂ?ﬁ R
associates and joint HREH
ventures Tﬁﬁ”& & 19,138 107,651 3,653 15,162
Gains on net exposure hedges FHAER A = 5,887 = -
Gains arising from changes in fair MABEEPNE
value 4(44) 291,189 199,985 1,097 25,928
Credit impairment losses EERERX (2,792) - - -
Gains on disposal of assets REREWS 127 3,090 = 167
Operating profit/(loss) EENE/(FR) 1,153,591 2,178,675 (555,346) (569,211)
Add: Non-operating income m:gEMA 19,728 7,603 333 3313
Less: Non-operating expenses T (6,408) (8,355) (1,332) -
Profit/(loss) before income tax FE/ (5B aE 1,166,911 2,177923 (556,345) (565,898)
Less: Income tax expenses WG RER 4(45):16(20) (147,250) (418,840) 276,217 273,841
Profit/(loss) for the year FHRE/(F8) 1,019,661 1,759,083 (280,128) (292,057)
Classified by operating continuity REERENDE
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations SEigE
FHE/(EBB) 1,019,661 1,759,083 (280,128) (292,057)
Profit from discontinuing operations RIEREFTA - - - -
Classified by attributions of the RREESEDE
ownership
Attributable to owners of the Company FERBAAREN
g 850,221 1,187,493 N/A TEHA N/A T E R
Attributable to non-controlling interests LYEREER 169,440 571,590 N/A T iE R NA TER
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY INCOME STATEMENTS
CR NGRS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HEZ_ZFAAZTHENEASRE(RERNGZHIN eBHELRARETT)
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BHZ-Z-ZF HE-T-NF HZE-T-ZF BE-T-NE
~AB=tEE  AA=tALE  AA=TAL  KA=TALE
~MIAEH ~ERHH ~EREE NERE:
Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
i aft A7 AL
Notes Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Items EE ik REE REE REEG REE G
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for ~ Eft&m4kE/(H58)
the period, net of tax HB%FE 4(35) 27,442 (121,604) - -
Attributable to owners of the Company FEREDRAR % E’] it
Fals/ (FR) N
kEE 27,442 (121,604) = -
Items that cannot be reclassified to THENFEBRNE
profit or loss thereafter i &N E - - - -
Changes in fair value of other equity ,Jﬁ REIARE
instrument investments MEEEY - - - -
ltems that may be reclassified to profit BEAREER
or loss thereafter & ﬁ‘rﬁz“ a
W&/ (B#8) 27,442 (121,604) - -
Recycling of changes in fair EIE RPN i
value of investment properties Hﬁlmﬁxﬁ \?ﬁ%tﬁjfk
previously recognized in other DhEEEHEH
comprehensive income a1 (10,403) (29,618) - -
Effective portion of gains or losses BeREEHRE
on hedging instruments in a cash
flow hedge 4,656 (77975) = -
Currency translation differences NERBRE
hEEE 33,189 (14,011) = -
Attributable to non-controlling interests GERVBRRNEM
GalimmbieFE - - - -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) AlE/(BR) A8
for the year 1,047,103 1,637,479 (280,128) (292,057)
Attributable to owners of the Company GERERAAREN
Galirgs 877,663 1,065,889 N/A TEA N/A T & A
Attributable to non-controlling interests FEROHERD
REWRES 169,440 571,590 N/A 7 A N/A 7T i A
Earnings per share for profit attributable & W&
to ordinary shares of the Company 4(46)
Basic earnings per share (RMB Yuan) EREHENE(ARET) 0.11 030 N/A 7 &R N/A T &R
Diluted earnings per share (RMB Yuan) mEGRKE(ARET) 0.11 030 N/A 7R N/A T &R

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.

BT BRERMER/MBREINVERTED -

Legal representative:
TrEBEEAN:

Person in charge of accounting:
TEEAIENEE A

Head of accounting department:
SARBREE AN
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

B F e A\ B4 iR AR

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HE_Z_ZFAZFTHENEABRE(RENZHIN eBELRARE T
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE-Z-2%f HET-NEF HE-RZZE BECTNF
ARZTHL ~NAZTEL AAZTHLE ~NA=TEL
~EAHE A~ E R ~MIAEE ~ERHH
Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
At a | NG
Notes Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Items B i3 KEE REE FEE AEBE
Cash flow from operating activities REZBHELN
BeHE
Cash received from sales of goods and HEAR RMULH
rendering of services WEHBEE 10,401,378 14,450,388 6,823 32,855
Cash received relating to other operating KEEmELEED
activities BHMAS 4(47)(a) 434,608 293,649 8,781,867 21,646,460
Sub-total of cash inflows REZHREFAN 10,835,986 14,744,037 8,788,690 21,679,315
Cash paid for goods and services BEAR EXHH
TR (8,539,681) (9,414,827 = -
Cash paid to and on behalf on employees SHEBINR
ARIXNMAS (676,881) (635,367) (104,232) (133,814)
Payments of taxes and surcharges TRNEERE (1,940,324) (1,596,092) (41,212) (9,941)
Cash paid relating to other operating XFREMELEEED
activities EENER 4(47)(b) (630,390) (974,758) (3,570,326) (15,074,028)
Sub-total of cash outflows BEZTBREML 5T (11,787,276) (12,621,044) (3,715,770) (15,217,783)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated BEEDRA)/EEN
from operating activities REFEFE (951,290) 2,122,993 5,072,920 6,461,532
Cash flow from investing activities REZHELM
BeRE
Cash received from refund of WEkERE SRS
investments 389,916 2,439,175 389,916 2,439,175
Net cash received from acquisition of REFRATEMS
subsidiaries ReRE 125,420 - = -
Net cash received from disposal of fixed REETEEM
assets and other long-term assets ERBEENR
NEEFE 3,143 11,543 = 167
Net cash received from disposal of RETARLEAMALES
subsidiaries and other companies I BB e 58 2,156,014 912,264 1,671,668 837,423
Cash received relating to other investing KEAMERERD
activities EBENES 4(47)(0) 3,509,024 5,913,754 1,607,025 1,431,847
Sub-total of cash inflows BREZBHRESR AN 6,183,517 9,276,736 3,668,609 4,708,612
Cash paid to purchase fixed assets and ERETEAEANER
other long-term assets RAEESANRS (384,326) (875,653) (1,136) (1,514)
Cash paid to acquire investments REIRAMRS (3,018,966) (2,868,900) (330,100) (2,600,000)
Net cash paid for acquisition of FEFRAREMERE
subsidiaries and other companies NXANBRLFE - (1,381,229) - -
Cash paid relating to other investing XHEMEREED
activities EENES 4(47)(d) (3,152,289) (9,968,045) (787,200) (1,529,141)
Sub-total of cash outflows REFBRES AL NG (6,555,581) (15,093,827) (1,118,436) (4,130,655)
Net cash flow (used in)/generated from BEZFH(ER) /EEH
investing activities BEeREFE (372,064) (5,817,091) 2,550,173 577,957
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
BHERRRERESR

HEZ_ZFAAZTHENEASRE(RERNGZHIN eBHELRARETT)
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE-Z-ZF HE-T-NE HE-Z-ZE HE-Z-NF
AA=THL ANA=TALE AA=THL ~NA=ZTAIE
~EAHE A A HE ~ERHE ~MEAHE
Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
&t i A NG
Notes Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Items EH ik KEE REE FEEH FEE G
Cash flows from financing activities BERHELNRS
ik
Cash received from capital contributions R EWERR S 1,300,762 295,050 800,762 -
Including: Cash received from A REEENS
owners WREe 800,762 - 800,762 -
Cash received from FARRY
investments of the LYERE
non-controlling REKE
interests mEe = 295,050 = -
Cash received from FREAES
spedific capital BEHE
management plan by Rz &
subsidiary WE@ES  6(1)(b)b2) 500,000 - - -
Proceeds from other equity instruments REBTAMER
issued by the Company IERI®ES = 4,778,342 = 4,778,342
Cash received from borrowings RERRGENES 17,178,516 15,131,267 - -
Proceeds from bonds issued BrERRENRS 8,350,793 7421140 5,269,985 7421140
Cash received relating to other financing KEEMESEES
activities EENES 4(47)(e) 2,065,589 6,297,780 529,556 -
Sub-total of cash inflows EREDRERA 28895660 33923579 6600303 12,199,482
Cash repayments of borrowings EREBX TE’J fﬁé (16,962,478) (11,215,853) (5,655,263) (5,130,000)
Cash payments for interests expenses AEBRH - FERENT
and distribution of dividends or BX #E’Jfﬁﬁ
profit (3,746,055) (3,641,725) (1,810,254) (1,809,654)
Cash paid relating to other financing XHEMERELED
activities EBENES 4(47)(f) (2,064,728) (247,404) (89,083) (137,733)
Sub-total of cash outflows EREBREML NG (22,773,261) (15,104,982) (7,554,600) (8,077,387)
Net cash flows generated from/ EETHEL/ (BRI
(used in) financing activities BERERE 6,122,399 18,818,597 (954,297) 4,122,095
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EZZBHHRERES
on cash ZENNEE 41,785 (25,481) 9,612 (10,395)
Net increase in cash and cash BeRRLZEN
equivalent FENE 4(48) 4,840,830 15,099,018 6,678,408 11,151,189
Add: Cash and cash equivalent at mEHNRe kRS
beginning of period SENHE 25,791,105 21,748,206 10,003,378 8,580,020
Cash and cash equivalent at end of BARERES
period ZENHE 4(48) 30,631,935 36,847,224 16,681,786 19,731,209

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.

Legal representative:
TrEBEAN:

Person in charge of accounting:

TEEFIENRRA:

B BERERMESMBRROAKED

Head of accounting department:

ERTHBEREEA:

—E_ZFERHBRSE

HABXRHBERAT —F
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
B DF Ji SRORE 25 5 B A%

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-ZERNA=THIENEASB R ENZTHAN

CHEURARBE T

Unaudited
AEEH

Attributable to owners of the Company

BERBRARRER

Other equity
instruments Other Non-
Share perpetual ~ Capital comprehensive  Surplus  Retained  controlling Total
capital bond  reserve income  reserve earnings interests equity
Notes HfBHIA AE  JERR  RRE:
Items EA Bzt A KEE  AADE  AftheWE BHLE ik R ait
Balance at 1 January 2019 “E-NE-F-BRIKE 3027960 13,476,018 469,930 438746 665381 11037245  9,085290 38,200,570
Movement for the six months ended HBE-R-AEAAZTAL
30 June 2019 AMIRBEEHEHE - 3,096,045  (52,355) (121,604) - 237,051 754,808 3913945
Comprehensive income for the period Fakagg
Profit for the year B - - - - - 1187493 571590 1,759,083
Other comprehensive loss HHEAEE 4(35) - - - (121,604) - - - (121,604)
Total comprehensive income RAKBEBA - - - (121,604) - 1187493 571,590 1637479
Capital contribution and withdrawal by owners ~ EREATE L ER
Capital contribution from owners REZAER - - - - - - 295,050 295,050
Capital contribution by owners of other equity EERIARBERAER
instruments - 4,543,689 - - - - - 4543689
Recycling of other equity instruments EHERTAEL - (1447644 - - - - - (1,447644)
Profit distribution NERE
Profit distribution to owners HREOAE 4(37) - - - - - (666,151 (111,832 (777983)
Profit distribution to owners of other equity HABRETIARBENAR
instruments 4(37) - - - - - (284291) - (284291)
Repayment of other equity instruments ahead HHRMBREMERIA
of schedule prospectively - - (52,3%) - - - - (52,355)
Balance at 30 June 2019 CE-AEAACTREABE 3027960 16,572,063 417575 317,142 665381 11,274,296 9,840,098 42,114,515
Balance at 1 January 2020 CEIEE-F-ABNBE 3,852,563 15,124,416 395,293 289,943 829,151 11,412,652 10,137,088 42,041,106
Movement for the six months ended HE-B-ZERAZTAL
30 June 2020 AMIRBEEHEBE 510,378 - 290,384 27,442 - (920,262) 3,524,543 3,432,485
Comprehensive income for the period FehagE
Profit for the year BHE = = = = - 850221 169,440 1,019,661
Other comprehensive income Epiaka 435) = = = 27,482 = = = 27,482
Total comprehensive income Gakagga = = = 21,442 - 850,221 169,440 1,047,103
Capital contribution and withdrawal by owners ~ EREAFE L ER
Capital contribution from owners RERAER 510,378 - 290,384 - - - 3,682,889 4,483,651
Profit distribution NERE
Profit distribution to owners HRENAR 4(37) - - - - - (741,700)  (226,083)  (967,783)
Profit distribution to owners of other equity HABRETIARBENAR
instruments 4(37) - - - - - (1,028,783)  (101,703) (1,130,486)
Balance at 30 June 2020 CEIZERACTRERRE 4,362,941 15124416 685,677 317,385 829,151 10,492,390 13,661,631 45,473,591

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.

Legal representative:
TEBEEAN:

Person in charge of accounting:

TEEHIENEEA:

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2020
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
25 7 IR AR 25 T

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

Unaudited
RAE
Other equity Other
Share  instruments Capital  comprehensive Surplus Retained Total
capital perpetual bond reserve income reserve eamings equity
Note EfERTA EtEa AR REE&E
Items BR it i R XEE  EADE k& BRLE HE CEH
Balance at 1 January 2019 ZE-NE-RB-RBOHE 3,027,960 13,476,018 3,059,320 - 665,381 788,162 21,016,841
Movement for the six months ended BE-E-AERA=TAL
30 June 2019 ~MIABEEHERE - 3,096,045 (52,355) - - (1,242,499 1,801,191
Comprehensive loss for the period GaERaeE
Loss for the period FEE 16(16) - - - - - (292,057)  (292,057)
Total comprehensive loss GAERABAH - - - - - (9,057 (292,057)
Capital contribution and withdrawal by BRERANRDER
owners
Capital contribution by owners of other EHERTIARES
equity instruments BRAER - 4,543,689 - - - - 4543689
Recycling of other equity instruments HESTAEY - (1,447 644) - - - - (1,447644)
Profit distribution MBAE
Profit distribution to owners HRENIE 16(16) - - - - - (666,151) (666,151)
Profit distribution to owners of other HEMBERTEAEEN
equity instruments R 16(16) - - - - - (284291)  (284.291)
Repayment of other equity instruments HEARMERAMERTE
ahead of schedule prospectively - - (52,355) - - - (52,355)
Balance at 30 June 2019 ZE-AEAAZTABREE 3027960 16,572,063 3,006,965 - 665381 (454337) 2281803
Balance at 1 January 2020 “ECEE-A-BHUBE 3,852,563 15,124,416 3,515,341 - 829,151 789,834 24,111,305
Movement for the six months ended BE-S-BEAAZTHL
30 June 2020 ~MIAREEHEDE 510,378 - 290,384 - - (2,050,611) (1,249,849)
Comprehensive loss for the period GaEBRaE
Loss for the period FEE 16(16) - - - - - (280,128)  (280,128)
Total comprehensive loss GABBEEAH = = = = - (280,128)  (280,128)
Capital contribution and withdrawal by RERARFPER
owners
Capital contribution from owners BREZEAER 4(33) 510,378 - 290,384 - - - 800,762
Profit distribution AR
Profit distribution to owners HRENSE 16(16) - - - - - (741,700)  (741,700)
Profit distribution to owners of other HEMBERTEREEY
equity instruments i 16(16) - - - - - (1,028,783) (1,028,783)
Balance at 30 June 2020 CECBENACTRHOABE 4,362,941 15,124,416 3,805,725 = 829,151  (1,260,777) 22,861,456

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these M BEREMTIAMBERENOEXLD »
financial statements.

Legal representative: Person in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
rEBEEAN: TEGFIENERA: A RBEE AN

EAIERRNERAT —F-FEFHEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 25 i 4% M R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z-_ZFXNA=TALAEANEGRENZHAN  SEECAARE T

GENERAL INFORMATION

Beijing Capital Land Ltd. (hereinafter “the Company”)
was established by seven companies (hereinafter
“the promoters”) on 23 July 2002, namely Beijing
Capital Group Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Capital
Group”), Beijing Sunshine Real Estate Comprehensive
Development Company, Beijing Capital Sunshine
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., Beijing Capital
Technology Investment Co., Ltd., Beijing Capital
Hangyu Economic Development Co., Ltd. (renamed
“Beijing Capital Investment & Development Co.,
Ltd.” as at 4 December 2013, hereinafter “Beijing
Capital Investment”), China Resource Products Limited
and Yieldwell International Enterprise Limited. The
Company’s place of registry is Beijing, the People’s
Republic of China (hereinafter “the PRC") and is
headquartered in Beijing, China.

The Company’s parent company and the ultimate
controlling party is Capital Group, a state-owned
enterprise established in Beijing.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in June 2003.
As at 30 June 2020, the total share of the Company
is RMB4,362,941,000 with RMB1 per share.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
“the Group"”) are principally engaged in the real
estate development and investment, primary land
development, commercial real estate operation and
property consulting services.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HE_Z-_TFXA=+BELEXRNEADRHE(RERZHN  2EECRARBETT)

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

The outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus
("COVID-19") had brought unprecedented challenges
and added uncertainties to the economy. COVID-19
may affect the financial performance and position of
the industry of real estate including the construction
and delivery of properties, rental revenue and
occupancy rate of investment properties, allowance
for expected credit losses on trade and other
receivables, fair value of investment properties and so
on. Since the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group kept
continuous attention on the situation of the COVID-19
and react actively to its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group. As at the
date that the condensed consolidated interim financial
information are authorised for issue, COVID-19 does
not have material adverse impact on the financial
position and operating result of the Group.

These consolidated financial statements were
approved by the Board of Directors on 17 August
2020.

The interim financial statements were unaudited.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BHE

2.

TECEERAZTHIESNEASB R EREHAN

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(1)

(2)

(3)

Basis of preparation

The financial statements were prepared in
accordance with the Basic Standard of the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
issued by the Ministry of Finance on 15 February
2006, Interpretations of Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises and other relevant
regulations issued thereafter (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises” or “CAS").

The financial statements were prepared on basis
of going concern.

Certain related matters in the financial
statements have been disclosed in accordance
with the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Statement of compliance with the
Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises

The financial statements of the Company for
the six months ended 30 June 2020 are in
compliance with the Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises, and truly and
completely present the financial position of the
Consolidated and the Company as at 30 June
2020 and of their financial performance, cash
flows and other information for the six months
ended 30 June 2020.

Accounting year

The accounting year starts on 1 January and
ends on 31 December.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HE_Z-_TFXA=+BELEXRNEADRHE(RERZHN  2EECRARBETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING . FEEGTBRENgE AR (&)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(4) Functional currency (4) RERAN®
The functional currency of the Company and RABRRE D FRAREARM
most of its subsidiaries is Renminbi (RMB). MABARYE - KRR TEBF AR
The functional currency of the Company’s BEHEKEMENEZKERE
subsidiaries is determined based on the primary MEHEERANUE  NEEGZM
economic environment in which they operate, £ % B AR K F 38 2 F R A A
the functional currency of certain subsidiaries of EERAUEREWER - XK
the Group incorporated in France and Australia BEAARKETR -

are local currency, the consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB.

(5) Business combinations (5) tox&6t
(a) Business combinations involving (@) EB—EHTHLEESH

enterprises under common control

The consideration paid and net assets A ZAEE O EE R
obtained by the acquirer in a business FHFEEYKREREEES
combination are measured at the carrying B EE R &AES
amount, but measured on the basis of the F AR E R E = U 2R
acquiree’s carrying amount of assets and B BIAEEHTHNEE -
liabilities (including the goodwill generated BEEEZEES T KE
from the acquisition of the acquiree by WEMHAMEKEEE)E
the ultimate controlling party) presented BARES A SR I Rk A
in the consolidated financial statements WEEEERER - &0
of the ultimate controlling party, under ARG FEERTEESR
the condition that the acquiree was Xt EFHEREEED
acquired from a third party by the ultimate EZH ABREBXRQABRAR
controlling party in previous years. The wE) BARTE(RAEE)
difference between the carrying amount TR - AEBFK
of the net assets obtained from the e RETEESMEEN
combination and the carrying amount of BEEHBEERRNZELERA
the consideration paid for the combination EHERD - REESHME
is recognized in the capital reserve (share TRRMEEFHIEH LRSS
premium). If the capital reserve (share MZXZER  sTAERER
premium) is not sufficient to absorb FHEBILE FNVIRER
the difference, the remaining balance is T o

recognized in retained earnings. Costs
directly attributable to the combination
shall be recognized in profit or loss in the
period when occurred. Transaction costs
associated with the issue of equity or debt
securities for the business combination are
included in the initially recognized amounts
of the equity or debt securities.

ERIBEXROBERLAR — T2 FhHRSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-ZERNA=THIENEASB R ENZTHAN

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(5) Business combinations (Continued)

(b) Business combinations involving

enterprises not under common control

The consideration paid and identifiable
net assets obtained by the acquirer in a
business combination are measured at
fair value at the acquisition date. Where
the cost of the combination exceeds
the acquirer’s interest in the fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets,
the difference is recognised as goodwill;
where the cost of combination is lower
than the acquirer’s interest in the fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets, the difference is recognised in
profit or loss for the current period. Costs
directly attributable to the combination are
included in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred. Transaction costs
associated with the issue of equity or debt
securities for the business combination are
included in the initially recognised amounts
of the equity or debt securities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HE_Z-_TFXA=+BELEXRNEADRHE(RERZHN  2EECRARBETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING . FEEGTBRENgE AR (&)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(6) Preparation of consolidated financial (6) B BRERNFERS
statements
The consolidated financial statements comprise RESOHUBREE 2086 E
the financial statements of the Company and all BRERARBIREEF AR -

of its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on HMEFRANEERZESE A
which the Group obtains control and are de- B AEEREEEAAS O &
consolidated from the date that such control PR ERIESIE 2 ARFLE
ceases. For a subsidiary that is acquired in MAEHEE - HRE—FHT
a business combination involving enterprises TrESHRISHFAR B AHE
under common control, it is included in the RARRAZ &S 7ES 2 A
consolidated financial statements from the BAARRBEOEE - W5 E
date when it, together with the Company, EEHARNERNFNEES O
comes under common control of the ultimate FEXRPEINBEERMR -

controlling party. The portion of the net
profits realized before the combination date is
presented separately in the consolidated income

statements.

In preparing the consolidated financial EREESHMBHRERET - F2RF]
statements, where the accounting policies HARNFERAN G RERGE
and the accounting periods are inconsistent HEA 38 BRARFANE
between the Company and subsidiaries, the AHRENSGHHEEFAREH
financial statements of subsidiaries are adjusted MRETHENFE - HRFER
in accordance with the accounting policies —EH T RESIRENTF AR
and accounting period of the Company. WIEERRAHRFEERAAEE
For subsidiaries acquired from a business REMBEMBHRRETAE -

combination involving enterprises not under
common control, the individual financial
statements of the subsidiaries are adjusted
based on the fair value of the identifiable net
assets on the acquisition date.

ERIBEXROBERLAR — T2 FhHRSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z-_ZFXNA=TALAEANEGRENZHAN  SEECAARE T

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING . FEesr KRG hE &)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)
(6) Preparation of consolidated financial (6) B BRERNEE T E(E)

statements (Continued)

All significant inter-group balances, transactions
and unrealized profits are eliminated in
the consolidated financial statements. The
portion of a subsidiary’s equity, the portion
of a subsidiary’s net profits and losses and
comprehensive income for the year not
attributable to the Company are recognized as
non-controlling interests and income attributed
to non-controlling interests as presented
separately in the consolidated financia
statements within equity, net profits and
comprehensive income respectively. Unrealized
inter profit or loss in transactions where the
Company sells assets to its subsidiaries are
fully eliminated to the net profits attributable
to owners of the Company. Unrealized inter
profit or loss in transactions where a subsidiary
sells assets to the Company are eliminated
between the net profits attributable to owners
of the Company and the profit or loss of
the non-controlling interest in proportion to
the Company’s allocation to the subsidiary.
Unrealized inter profit or loss in transactions
between subsidiaries selling assets are
eliminated between the net profits attributable
to owners of the Company and the profit or loss
of non-controlling interest in proportion to the
Company’s allocation to the selling side.

A transaction will be adjusted from the
perspective of the Group in condition that
assertions are different when accounting
entities are the Group and the Company or its
subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FEEHRENGEEE#E)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(7) Cash and cash equivalent (7) REeRRESEEY
Cash and cash equivalent comprises cash on RekBAeEBYREEFRS -
hand, deposits that can be readily drawn on AERARINOTER LR
demand and short term highly liquid investments ERHRE REtR  HHNHE
that are readily convertible into known amounts BMEEAMcHEEe BEEZHA
of cash, and subject to an insignificant risk of BRNERE -

changes in value.

(8) Foreign currency translation (8) isHin&E
(a) Foreign currency transaction (a) HEBRH
Foreign currency transactions are HNE R F IR R 53 H )BT
translated into functional currency using HiE =M e ITE R
the spot exchange rates at the dates of the BRANALEEAER ©

transactions.

At the balance sheet date, monetary items REEBERB  INEEK
denominated in foreign currencies are MEERAEERBEREN
translated into functional currency using HEXRFERIDERA N
the spot exchange rates on the balance Wo-RBERSERERE
sheet date. Exchange differences arising AR 48 & E i A K Sh
from these translations are recognized BEFEREENELE
in profit or loss for the current period, HEERMCHBEANTIAER
except for those attributable to foreign b BEMER ZHEHEETA
currency borrowings that have been EHERE  UWELKAHE
taken out specifically for the acquisition BWINEIERBIEIER N E
or construction of qualifying assets, EBEXRAKARSEER
which are capitalized as part of the cost EVENERE 4T o ERE
of those assets. Non-monetary items HReWgEHERERE
denominated in foreign currencies that are KPEFIR -

measured at historical costs are translated
at the balance sheet date using the
spot exchange rates at the date of the
transactions. The effect of exchange rate
changes on cash is presented separately in
the cash flow statement.

BEIEXEKRNABRRR —Z_FFPHRS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-ZERNA=THIENEASB R ENZTHAN

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(8) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

Translation of foreign currency
financial statements

The asset and liability items in the
balance sheets for overseas operations
are translated at the spot exchange rates
on the balance sheet date. Among the
owners' equity items, the items other than
“retained earnings” are translated at the
spot exchange rates on the transaction
dates. The income and expense items
in the income statements of overseas
operations are translated at the spot
exchange rates on the transaction dates.
The differences arising from the above
translation are presented separately in the
owners’ equity, as other comprehensive
income. The cash flows of overseas
operations are translated at the spot
exchange rates on the dates of the cash
flows. The effect of exchange rate changes
on cash is presented separately in the cash
flow statement.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2020

CHEURARBE T

I8

- T S
* =

BRI G E o)

(8) sEIHEE)

(b)

HEMBRROFTE

BIOIMNRENEERBERTH
EEMABERE  KAEE
BEXRANNPERFE
P SR 4 o P BR R 0 BL A1 B IR
BN HMIEBERAELR
MBNHEE RHTH - JHIMEE
BRI B 2R R R A BB R IR
B RAXZELENEH
EXRFHE AT EELD
SNEHRERTEERE  GTAR
iR W EE - JINE LR
ERERE REARSRE
HEAMBMERTE - &
REPHRINTER &
ReREXRTEREIR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments

Financial instruments are contracts forming
financial assets of a party and financial liabilities
or equity instruments of other parties. When
the Group becomes a party to the financial
instrument contract, the Group recognizes the
related financial asset or financial liability.

(a) Financial assets
(i) Classification and measurement

Financial assets are classified into the
following three categories depends
on the Group's business mode of
managing financial assets and cash
flow characteristics of financial
assets: financial assets at amortized
cost, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial assets are measured at
fair value at initial recognition. The
relevant transaction costs of financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss are recognized in profit or loss
for the current period. Transaction
costs related to other financial assets
are included in their initial recognition
amounts. Trade receivables or notes
receivables arising from the sale of
products or rendering of services,
which do not contain or do not take
into account significant financing
elements, are initially recognized by
the Group in accordance with the
amount of consideration expected to
be entitled to receive.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z-_ZFXNA=TALAEANEGRENZHAN  SEECAARE T

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. FEEeSBEMEEEET &)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)
(9) Financial instruments (Continued) 9) €I HE(E)
(a) Financial assets (Continued) (a) &WEEE)
(i) Classification and measurement () DEHMAEE)
(Continued)
Debt instruments EFITA
Debt instruments held by the Group AEBFENERKL
are instruments that meet the BRERBTHAED
definition of financial liabilities from mMEecemBaEEE
the issuer’'s point of view and are BWIE  DRIFAUT
measured at the following three —REFRETEE:
ways:

at amortized cost:

The Group's business model for rEEERELLESR
managing such financial assets is BENEBEXRMA
aimed at collecting contractual cash WHRERRKRERER
flow, and the contractual cash flow R HitlEemEE
characteristics of such financial WaRE®MERFH
assets are consistent with the basic HEEXEBEERZHMRE—
lending arrangements, i.e. cash flow B AEREHEES
generated on a specific date is only MEERE EAY
payment of principal and interest KeMARERNEE
based on the amount of outstanding PREAERHOT S
principal. The Group recognizes XA e AREEH R I
interest income for such financial FemEAERRER
assets in accordance with the T REFERFBUA o
effective interest rate method. Such e EETER
financial assets mainly include cash at FE¥ES  BWE
bank and on hand, trade receivables, R H A W R R
other receivables, and long-term HEKRSE KEE
receivables. The Group lists the long- REEEBBERAL—
term receivables maturing within one FRE-F)INHD
year (including one vyear) since the RHERKRZ  JWRE
balance sheet date as current portion —FRNEERERD
of non-current assets. BE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING . FEEGTBRENgE AR (&)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued) 9) eI AE)

(a) Financial assets (Continued) () eRMEEE)
(i) Classification and measurement (i) ZBEAFEGE)

(Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued) EFETAE)
at fair value through other URAnBEsGE8H
comprehensive income: g_EjJnJr)\H th 47 & U
The Group’s business model for AEBEREESR
managing such financial assets is BENEBEARR
aimed at collecting contractual cash L& R\ e R E R
flow and selling, and the contractual BEXNHERERE
cash flow characteristics of such BltlremEENE
financial assets are consistent with ARESREFHEA
the basic lending arrangements. Such AKEETHE - -
financial assets are measured at fair EEREERRA
value through other comprehensive nEEFEEEE
income, while impairment losses or AHMir ek B
gains, exchange gain or loss and WMEBXHAE - E
interest income calculated according HESMERRBRERN
to the effective interest rate method EORFTEMF ,%\ HSZ)\
are recognized in profit or loss for STAEEESD - L8
the current period. Such financial TRMEEXE &?ﬁﬁ
assets mainly include other equity thERTARES

instrument investments.

at fair value through profit or loss: NAnEBEFELE
EHAANEHB R
The Group lists debt instruments REEBFHBEHARSE D
which are not measured by amortized RUABERK ARG &M
cost or at fair value through other NARBEFEREA
comprehensive income as trading FEFAEMEE K
financial assets at fair value through mHEBIA UR
profit or loss. Those that are maturing NEBEEFEAEEE
over one year and expected to be ”r)\”‘HHTEﬁﬁ C IR
held for more than one year since the XEEEHMEE - B
balance sheet date are recognized as ﬁ%ﬁ%i‘%ﬁﬁﬁi@—
other non-current financial assets. FRHBERS AR

B—Fm R RE
MmIERDEREE -

BEEXBROBERAT —E-TEPHEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FEERENGEEE#E)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued) 9) &mITAE)

(@) Financial assets (Continued) () &WMEEGE)
(i) Classification and measurement (i) ZEAFEE)

(Continued)
Equity instruments #m T A
Investments in equity instruments REBEGHEREE
which are not controlled, jointly #l - AR E X
controlled or significantly affected TENBRIARE
by the Group will be measured at BRRAAEBENER
fair value through profit or loss and HEHtAEHER -
presented as trading financial assets; NWRAERSMESmME
those that are expected to be held for E BEEARKXBR
more than one year since the balance TR BB —FH
sheet date will be recognized as other FIRBEMIERE S
non-current financial assets. BEE -
In addition, the Group designates pEoh - NREE SIS IE
some non-tradable equity instrument R TARER
investments as financial assets which ERURABEGE
are measured at fair value through BHEFHFAHMES
other comprehensive income and are War <& E 5
presented as other equity instrument TREMDESTIAR
investments. The relevant dividend B-ZBemEEND
income of the financial assets is 8 B8 R A U AT R 1R
included in the current profit or loss HEREFAEHIES

when certain conditions are met.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HE_Z-_TFXA=+BELEXRNEADRHE(RERZHN  2EECRARBETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. EEEeStBEMFEEE &)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

9) £s@mIEE)
(a) Financial assets (Continued) (a) sWMEEE)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment

The Group accounts for the
impairment of contract assets, lease
receivables, financial guarantee
contracts and financial assets at
amortized cost based on expected
credit loss. The Group takes into
account reasonable and valid
information on past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions, with the risk
of default as the weight, to calculate
the probabilistic weighted amount of
the present value of the difference
between the cash flow receivable
from contract and the expected cash
flow to be received and recognize the
expected credit loss.

On each balance sheet date, the
Group measures the expected
credit losses of financial instruments
at different stages. The financial
instrument is in the first stage if
its credit risk has not increased
significantly since the initial
recognition. The Group measures
loss provision according to the
expected credit loss in the next 12
months. The financial instrument
is in the second stage if its credit
risk has increased significantly since
the initial recognition, but no credit
impairment has occurred. The Group
measures loss provision according
to the lifetime expected credit loss.
The financial instrument is in the
third stage if credit impairment has
occurred. The Group measures loss
provision according to the lifetime
expected credit loss.

(i)

e 18

REBUNREREE -
FEW M &R B ISR
R & [B 70 DA 88 82 5K AR
ARENEREES
NEHERBEXRE
WHERBREHS - K
SEEREHEBAESE
B E AR A M
AN R AR AR S Y TR R
EERBEAKENE
S NBEAENDE
REE FTEAR
ﬁﬂ&miﬁﬁmgﬂﬁiﬁ
ERINREeRE
Zﬁ%%mﬁﬁmm
EmMELE BRE
HEREBX -

REBEEERAERA -
AEBHRER TR
BEENTETAMNE
HERBRDHETT
AE-2RMIABY
REERRE A ARK
aaﬁ%i‘bﬂﬁ’] BN E
EE AREIZR
ﬂiPKJr_MHWE’ﬁEi
HERBXRFERX
EH - eRmIEBVH
EREREAERD#
ERMEEKRBELE
PR (B &Y J@J‘E’\%:
PEER - AEEIRIER
E:%éﬂ?‘%f,ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁfﬁ%ﬁ
ERABRKRAERXE
B R TAEBYRE
REDKEBELEERM
BR - BREFE=FEE
AEBERBZIAE
EFEMNBERER
BAGAEBBERES -

ERIBEXROBERLAR — T2 FhHRSE

63



64

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-ZERNA=THIENEASB R ENZTHAN

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued)

(@) Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment (Continued)

For financial instruments with low
credit risk on the balance sheet date,
the Group assumes that their credit
risk has not increased significantly
since the initial recognition, and
measures the loss provision according
to the expected credit loss over the
next 12 months.

For financial instruments in the first
and second stage and with lower
credit risk, the Group calculates
interest income on the basis of their
book value without deducting the
provision for impairment and using
effective interest rates. For financial
instruments in the third stage,
interest income is calculated on the
basis of their book value deducting
the amortized cost after the provision
for impairment has been made and
using the effective interest rates.

For trade receivables and contract
assets generated from sales of
goods and rendering of services, the
Group measures loss provisions in
accordance with lifetime expected
credit loss whether or not significant
financing elements exist. For lease
receivables, the Group also measures
loss provisions in accordance with
lifetime expected credit loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued)
(@) Financial assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment (Continued)

When it is unable to evaluate the
information of expected credit
loss of a single financial asset at a
reasonable cost, the Group divides
the receivables into portfolios
according to the characteristics of
credit risk, calculates the expected
credit losses on the basis of the
portfolio, and determines the
portfolio on the basis of the
following:

Portfolios of JRE LS B 5 IR &

receivables AR ERAE
from related
parties and
joint bidding
Portfolios of JEU B A
receivables
from
customers
Property tenant ¥ ¥ &R P
Portfolio 1 e —
Property tenant ¥ E AR
Portfolio 2 HEeE—
Portfolios HEmmElhIEAEE
of other
receivables

18
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9 E&mIAE
(@) =MEEGE)

(i)

Receivables from
joint ventures,
associates and

other cooperate

companies

Receivables from

property buyers

Receivables
from lessee of
Outlets

Receivables from
lessee of other
investment
properties

Others
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued)
(@) Financial assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment (Continued)

For trade receivables and lease
receivables divided into portfolios,
the Group refers to the experience of
historical credit losses and combines
the current situation with the forecast
of future economic conditions to
calculate expected credit loss by
using default risk exposure and the
lifetime expected credit loss rate.
For other receivables divided into
portfolios, the Group refers to the
experience of historical credit losses
and combines the current situation
with the forecast of future economic
conditions to calculate expected
credit loss by using default risk
exposure and the expected credit loss
rate over the next 12 months or over
the lifetime.

The Group recognized the accrued

or reversed loss provision in profit or
loss for the current period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued)
(@) Financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognized
when any of the below criteria is
met: (1) the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows from the
financial asset expire; (2) the financial
asset has been transferred and the
Group transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset to the transferee;
or (3) the financial asset has been
transferred and the Group has not
retained control of the financial asset,
although the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset.

On derecognition of other equity
instrument investments, the
difference between the carrying
amount and the sum of the
consideration received along with
the cumulative changes in fair value
that had been recognized directly
in other comprehensive income, is
recognized in retained earnings;
On derecognition of other financial
assets, the difference between the
carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received along with the
cumulative changes in fair value that
had been recognized directly in other
comprehensive income, is recognized
in profit or loss.

i
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-ZERNA=THIENEASB R ENZTHAN

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into
financial liabilities at amortized cost and
financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss at initial recognition.

The Group's financial liabilities are mainly
financial liabilities at amortized cost,
including notes payables, trade payables,
other payables, long-term payables,
borrowings and debentures payable
which are initially recognized at fair value
deducting transaction costs and recorded
at amortized cost using effective interest
rate in subsequent measurement. Financial
liabilities with repayment period within
1 year (including 1 year) are stated as
current liabilities; other financial liabilities
with repayment period over 1 year but
repayment date within 1 year since balance
sheet date are stated as current portion of
non-current liabilities; others are stated as
non-current liabilities.

A financial liability is derecognized or
partly derecognized when the current
obligation is discharged or has been partly
discharged. The difference between the
carrying amount of the derecognized
part of the financial liabilities and the
consideration paid is recognized in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING . FEEGTBRENgE AR (&)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued) 9) eI AE)

(c) Determination of fair value of financial ) 2MIENAREERTE

instrument
The fair value of a financial instrument that FarEBRmEN eI A
is traded in an active market is determined IERM ISR mEET
by the quoted price in the active market. EQAAREBE - TFEEERM
The fair value of a financial instrument HHeRIE  KAKER
that is not traded in an active market is METHEAAEBE TEMHE
determined by using a valuation technique. B AEBERBEZAEBER
The Group uses the valuation technique TEAWAERHAF AR
when it is applicable under current BAEAME S X HER
conditions and there are enough available flo - BIFET 52 HEEENR
data and other information to support HMEEXBBNXGHAE
and the technique should maximize the EREENIBEREE -
use of relevant observable. Unobservable KB AE - WRAREE L
inputs are used under the circumstance AEBEAERE AR - £11
that the relevant observable inputs cannot Bl A B R b A B A S L
be obtained or not feasible. Those inputs BT DEATHBERT
should be consistent with the inputs a ERATAEERAE-

market participant would use when pricing
the asset or liability.

EAIERRNERAT —F-FEFHEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)
(10) Hedging activities

The Group sets financial instruments as hedging
instrument to manage exposure to foreign
exchange risks. Changes in fair value or cash
flow of the hedging instrument are expected to
offset all or part of the changes in fair value or
cash flow of hedged items. The Group accounts
the hedging by using hedge accounting method.

Fair value of the hedging derivatives would be
classified as a non-current asset or liability when
the residual maturity of the hedged item is

longer than 12 months.

The Group continuously evaluates, both at
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis,
of whether the derivatives used in hedging
transactions are highly effective, analyses the
cause for ineffective portion of hedging which
will influence hedging relationship within the
remaining period of hedging, and evaluates
hedging relationship at the balance sheet
date and when significant changes in relevant
circumstances will affect the effectiveness
requirements of hedging. The Group adopts
ratio analysis to assess subsequent effectiveness

of cash flow hedge.

Gain or loss on the cash flow hedging
instrument relating to the effective portion is
recognized in other comprehensive income. Gain
or loss relating to the ineffective portion, that
is gain or loss deducting the portion recognized
in other comprehensive income, is recognized in

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HE_Z-_TFXA=+BELEXRNEADRHE(RERZHN  2EECRARBETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(10) Hedging activities (Continued)

The amount of cash flow hedging reserve shall
be treated in accordance with the following
provisions: (1) when the hedged item is an
anticipated transaction, and the anticipated
transaction enables the Group to subsequently
recognize a non-financial asset or non-financial
liability, or the anticipated transaction of non-
financial assets or non-financial liabilities to
form a determination commitment applicable to
fair value hedging accounting, the amount of
cash flow hedging reserve recognized in other
comprehensive earnings will be transferred out
and included in the initial recognized amount of
the assets or liabilities; (2) for cash flow hedging
that does not belong to the abovementioned
(1), the amount of cash flow hedging reserve
recognized in other comprehensive income will
be transferred out and included in profit or loss
during the same period when the expected cash
flow of the hedging affects the profit or loss;
(3) if the amount of cash flow hedging reserve
recognized in other comprehensive income is a
loss, and the loss is expected to be irreparable in
whole or in part in the future accounting period,
the expected irreparable part will be transferred
out from other comprehensive income and
included in profit or loss for the current period.

When the Group no longer applies hedging
accounting on cash flow hedging, any
cumulative cash flow hedging reserve
recognized in other comprehensive income
previously should be dealt with in accordance
with the following provisions: (1) when the
hedged future cash flow is still expected to
occur, the cumulative cash flow hedge reserve
should be kept; (2) when the hedged future
cash flow is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative cash flow hedge reserve should
be transferred out from other comprehensive
income and recognized in profit or loss. When
the hedged future cash flow is no longer highly
possible expected to occur but still expected to
occur, the cumulative cash flow hedge reserve
should be kept.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-_ZFXNA=TALAEANEGRENZHAN  SEECAARE T

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(11) Inventories

(a)

(b)

Classification

Inventories include properties under
development, properties held for sale,
land under development, merchandise
inventories and low-cost consumables,
which are measured at the lower of cost
and net realizable value.

Measurement of inventories

Inventories are initially recognized at the
actual costs. The costs of properties under
development and properties held for sale
comprise land cost, construction cost,
capitalized borrowing costs, and other
direct and indirect fees incurred during
the development period. On completion,
the properties are transferred to properties
held for sale at the actual costs. For
land use rights that are developed for
subsequent sales, the cost paid for land
use rights are classified and accounted for
as part of the costs of properties.

Public ancillary facilities comprise
government-approved public ancillary
projects, i.e. roads etc. The relevant costs
are recognized in the properties under
development, and are recorded by each
cost items; the cost paid for land use rights
are classified and accounted for as part of
properties under development.

Merchandise inventories are finished goods
purchased from external for retail, which
are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods is purchase costs agreed in
purchasing contracts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(11) Inventories (Continued)

(c) Measurement of net realizable value
and provisions of inventories

Provisions are determined at the excess
amount of the carrying value of the
inventories over their net realizable value.
Net realizable value is determined based on
the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated
costs to completion and estimated selling
expenses and related taxes.

(d) The Group adopts the perpetual inventory
system.

(e) Low-cost consumables are amortized using
the one-off amortization method.

(12) Long-term equity investments

Long-term equity investments comprise the
Company’s long-term equity investments in its
subsidiaries and the Group’s long-term equity
investments in its joint ventures and associates.

Subsidiaries are the investees over which the
Company is able to exercise control. Joint
ventures are joint arrangements of which the
net asset is attribute to the Group based on the
legal forms, terms of contract and other facts
and the investees over which the Group is able
to exercise joint control together with other
ventures. Associates are the investees that the
Group has significant influence on their financial
and operating policies.

Investments in subsidiaries are presented in
the Company’s financial statements using the
cost method, and are adjusted for preparing
the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method. Investments in joint ventures and
associates are accounted for using the equity
method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-ZERNA=THIENEASB R ENZTHAN

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

CHEURARBE T

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(12) Long-term equity investments
(Continued)
(@) Measurement of investment cost

For long-term equity investments acquired
through a business combination: for long-
term equity investments acquired though
business combination involving enterprises
under common control, the investment
cost shall be the acquirer’'s share of the
carrying amount of the acquiree’s owners’

equity presented
financial

in the consolidated
statements of the ultimate

controlling party on the combination
date; for long-term equity investments
acquired through a business combination
involving enterprises other than common
control, the investment cost shall be the

combination cost.

For long-term equity investments acquired
not through a business combination: for
long-term equity investment acquired by
payment in cash, the initial investment cost
shall be the purchase price actually paid,;
for long-term equity investments acquired
by issuing equity instruments, the initial
investment cost shall be the fair value of
the equity instruments issued.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING . FEEGTBRENgE AR (&)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)
(12) Long-term equity investments (12) REBRERE(Z)
(Continued)
(b) Subsequent measurement and (b) #EBEFERBEZEALE
recognition of investment income and
loss
For long-term equity investments A A EZE 8RB E
accounted for using the cost method, they BE  RBOBREKARNG
are measured at the initial investment cost, B OEEREBMNEEDIKN
and cash dividends or profit distribution WEERMAE - BRABK
declared by the investees are recognized B At A AEHIER -

as investment income in profit or loss.

For long-term equity investments RARR EZZENRAKE
accounted for using the equity method, BE - MBERERERKRRIE
where the initial investment cost of a BREZARREBEMAYH
long-term equity investment exceeds REEEAAEBEGEDN
the Group's share of the fair value of N E K AERKH
the investee’s identifiable net assets REREKAR: FHBIREK
on the acquisition date, the long-term RIREREFEZEHRIRE
equity investment is measured at the BUA#REFEELAAEBE
initial investment cost; where the initial MER - EEFEASHIE
investment cost is less than the Group's o WAEFE IS R B IR
share of the fair value of the investee’s B -

identifiable net assets on the acquisition
date, the difference is included in profit
or loss and the cost of the long-term
equity investment is adjusted upwards
accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HE—

ZoTERA=ZTAEREASE (REEHAN

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(12) Long-term equity investments
(Continued)

(b)

Subsequent measurement and
recognition of investment income and
loss (Continued)

For long-term equity investments
accounted for using the equity method,
the Group recognizes the investment
income or loss according to its share of
net profit or loss of the investee. The
Group discontinues recognizing its share
of net losses of an investee after the
carrying amount of the long-term equity
investment together with any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part
of the investor's net investment in the
investee are reduced to zero. However, if
the Group has obligations for additional
losses and the criteria with respect to
recognition of provisions are satisfied,
the Group continues recognizing the
investment losses expected to be borne.
For changes in owners’ equity of the
investee other than those arising from its
net profit or loss, other comprehensive
income and profit distribution, the Group
adjusts the carrying amount of long-
term equity investments and records its
proportionate share directly into capital
reserve. The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced by the Group's
share of the profit distribution or cash
dividends declared by the investee. The
unrealized profits or losses arising from
the intra-group transactions amongst the
Group and its investees are eliminated in
proportion to the Group's equity interests
in the investees, and then based on
which the investment gains or losses are
recognized. For the loss on the intra-group
transaction amongst the Group and its
investees attributable to asset impairment,
any unrealized loss is not eliminated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FEEHRENGEEE#E)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(12) Long-term equity investments (12) REBRERE(E)

(Continued)
(c) Definitions of control, joint control () BEHHEREENAEFE
and significant influence B HEEG - EXREEN
& &

Control is the power over the investee ZHIREEEEHIREE N
when the investor is exposed, or has rights, W BRSERKES
to variable returns from its involvement EEEEESmER A&
with the investee companies, and has the W WEBENERYHEIER
ability to affect those returns through its BEUNENZEZENRS
power over the investee companies. e
Joint control is the contractually agreed HREEGZERRBBEOTE
sharing of control of an arrangement, HEBBZHMABRZES
which exists only when decisions about the WHZZHNEEES KA
relevant activities require the unanimous KRR EE RS Z RGN
consent of the Group and the other parties Ht2uan—HRAEERAFA
sharing control. FEIRE -
Significant influence is the power to BEAXEREHHKRESM
participate in the financial and operating B BELBRBLER
policy decisions of the investee, but is not KERES - BN TS
control or joint control over those policies. s & B A M 7 — B H R 4%

B R BIE -

(d) Impairment of long-term equity d) EHERERERE
investment
The carrying amounts of long-term HTRe - &% BE
equity investments in subsidiaries, joint EHRARERE A
ventures and associates are reduced to the A e e EENEREER
recoverable amounts when the recoverable B REEERLZZEAIRE
amounts are below their carrying amounts B MFE=09)) -

(Note 2(19)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BHE

“ECEERAZTRENER B (BRI R S

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(13)

(14)

Joint operations

Joint operations are operations with a
contractual arrangement, whereby the Group
and other parties jointly enjoy related assets
and are responsible to related liabilities. Under
joint operations, the assets and liabilities which
belong to joint operations and are related to
profit shares should be recognized separately or
shared by proportion; Revenues were recognized
from selling the Group’s share in joint operations
or selling products of joint operations; expenses
were recognized separately or shared by
proportion in the joint operations.

Investment properties

Investment properties, including land use rights
that have already been leased out, buildings that
are held for the purpose of leasing and buildings
that is being constructed or developed for the
purpose of leasing in the future, are measured
initially at cost. Subsequent expenditures
incurred in relation to an investment property is
included in the cost of the investment property
when it is probable that the associated economic
benefits will flow to the Group and their
cost can be reliably measured; otherwise, the
expenditures are recognized in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

The Group adopts the fair value model for
subsequent measurement of investment
properties. Investment properties are measured
at fair value model when the following
conditions are met:

(@ There is an active property market where
the investment property locates.

(b) The Group can obtain the market price
or the relevant information regarding the
same type of or similar property market,
so as to reasonably estimate the fair value
of the investment property.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HE_Z-_TFXA=+BELEXRNEADRHE(RERZHN  2EECRARBETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(14) Investment properties (Continued)

Depreciation or amortization will no longer be
provided for investment properties measured
at fair value. Investment properties will be
valued as at the balance sheet date and its
carrying amount will be adjusted accordingly.
The difference between the fair value and the
carrying amount will be charged to the profit
or loss for the current period of the Group.

Where fair value of investment properties
under construction is not reliably measurable
but is expected to be reliably obtained after
the construction is completed (including those
investment properties under construction
acquired initially by the Group), the property is
measured at cost until the earlier of the date
construction is completed or the date at which
fair value becomes reliably measurable.

When the Group converts an investment
property to owner-occupied property or
inventory, the property’'s carrying amount is
stated at the fair value on the conversion date.
The difference between the fair value and the
original carrying amount is recognized in profit
or loss for the current period. When any owner-
occupied property or real estate inventory
is converted to investment properties to be
measured through the fair value model, the
fair value on the conversion date is recognized
as the carrying amount of the investment
property. When the fair value on the conversion
date is less than its carrying amount, the
difference will be charged to profit or loss for
the current period. When the fair value on
the conversion date is more than its carrying
amount, the difference will be charged to other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HE—

ZoTERA=ZTAEREASE (REEHAN

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(14) Investment properties (Continued)

CHEURARBE T

An investment property is derecognized on
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from its
disposal. The net amount of proceeds from sale,
transfer, scrapping or damage of an investment
property subtracts its carrying amount and
related taxes and expenses is recognized in profit
or loss for the current period.

(15) Fixed assets

(@) Recognition and initial measurement

Fixed assets comprise buildings, motor

vehicles, and office equipment, etc.

Fixed assets are recognized when it is
probable that the associated economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the
related cost can be reliably measured. Fixed
assets purchased or constructed by the
Group are initially measured at cost at the
time of acquisition.

Subsequent expenditures incurred for a
fixed asset are included in the cost of the
fixed asset when it is probable that the
associated economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the related cost can be
reliably measured. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognized. All
the other subsequent expenditures are
recognized in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-ZTERA=THIENEASBE (KR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING -
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(15) Fixed assets (Continued)
(b) Depreciation methods of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of
the assets to their estimated residual values
over their estimated useful lives. For the

TES

CEHEBLR/ARKTIT

ml>

PR Mg st 5T (8)

(15) BE&EE(#)

(b) BEEEMNFTELE

BEEENERBFRFH
AW E AR EEMEE
FRERERERSS

FHIE - BRI TRIEEED

fixed assets that have been provided for EE & E - AEARREEIR
impairment loss, the related depreciation HBRREEHEZNEREEE
charge is prospectively determined based R =PI A F R E T
upon the adjusted carrying amounts over E&E o
their remaining useful lives.
The estimated useful lives, the estimated EFEEMNEGERSD
rate of residual value and the annual FREERFRTEXRS| RN
depreciation rate are as follows: N
Estimated rate Annual
Estimated of residual depreciation
useful lives value rate
AERAS® BEERER FHEXR
Buildings 10 to 40 years 0%-10% 2.3%-10.0%
EERBEY 10404
Motor vehicles 5 to 10 years 0%-10% 9.0%-20.0%
Eag T H 5-104F
Office equipment 3 to 10 years 0%-10% 9.0%-33.3%
N 3-104F

The estimated useful lives, the estimated
residual value of a fixed asset and the
depreciation method applied to the asset
are reviewed and adjusted as appropriate
at each year end.

(c) When recoverable amount of a fixed asset
is lower than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount should be written down
to the recoverable amount (Note 2(19)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(15) Fixed assets (Continued)

(d) Disposal of fixed assets

A fixed asset is derecognized on disposal
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. The
amount of proceeds from disposal on sale,
transfer, scrapping or damage of a fixed
asset subtracts its carrying amount and
related taxes and expenses is recognized
in profit or loss for the current period.

(16) Borrowing costs

The Group’s borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the construction of investment
properties or properties under development
that need a substantially long period of time
for its intended use or sale commence to be
capitalized and recognized as part of the cost
of the asset when expenditures for the asset
and borrowing costs have been incurred, and
the activities relating to the construction that
are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale have commenced. The
capitalization of borrowing costs ceases, when
the investment properties under construction
becomes ready for its intended use, the
properties under development become ready
for sale (generally after Completion Certification
granted), the borrowing costs incurred
thereafter are recognized in profit or loss for
the current period. Capitalization of borrowing
costs is suspended during periods in which
the construction of the asset is interrupted
abnormally and the interruption lasts for
more than 3 months, until the construction is
resumed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HE_Z-_TFXA=+BELEXRNEADRHE(RERZHN  2EECRARBETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(16) Borrowing costs (Continued)

For borrowings that specified for construction
of investment properties and properties under
development and qualified for capitalization, the
capitalization amount is measured as current
actual interests of the specified borrowings
subtract interest revenue earned from unused
borrowings deposited at bank or investment
income earned from temporary investment
activities with unused borrowings.

For general borrowings that occupied by
the construction of investment properties
and properties under development qualified
for capitalization, the capitalization amount
should be the weighted average exceeds
of accumulated capital expenditures for
capitalization over the amount of specialized
borrowings multiplied by the weighted average
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
is the rate used to discount the estimated future
or the applicable shorter period cash flows of
the borrowings to the initial measurement of the
borrowings.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(17) Intangible assets

Intangible assets include executory contract,
franchise, etc., which are measured at cost.

(@) Executory contracts

Executory contracts are amortised
using the straight-line method over the
remaining contract period.

(b) Franchise

Franchise are amortised using the
straight-line method over the validity of
qualification certificate.

(c) Others

Others mainly include land use rights and
software. Land use rights are amortised
using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of 50 vyears.
Software are amortised using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives
of 10 years.

(d) Regular review of useful lives and
amortisation method

The estimated useful lives and amortisation
method of intangible assets with finite
useful lives are reviewed and adjusted as
appropriate at each year end.

(e) When recoverable amount of a intangible
asset is lower than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount should be written down
to the recoverable amount (Note 2(19)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HE_Z-_TFXA=+BELEXRNEADRHE(RERZHN  2EECRARBETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(18) Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses include
expenditures that have been incurred but should
be recognized as expenses over more than one
year in the current and subsequent periods.
Long-term prepaid expenses are amortized using
the straight-line method over the expected
beneficial period and are presented at actual
expenditure subtract accumulated amortization.

(19) Impairment of long-term assets

Fixed assets, intangible assets with finite useful
lives, investment properties measured using the
cost model and long-term equity investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are
tested for impairment if there is any indication
that an asset may be impaired at the balance
sheet date. If the result of the impairment
test indicates that the recoverable amount of
the asset is less than its carrying amount, a
provision for impairment and an impairment loss
are recognized for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and the
present value of the future cash flows expected
to be derived from the asset. Provision for asset
impairment is determined and recognized on
the individual asset basis. If it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the recoverable amount of a
group of assets to which the asset belongs to
is determined. A group of assets is the smallest
group of assets that is able to generate cash
inflows independently.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(19) Impairment of long-term assets
(Continued)

Goodwill that is separately presented in the
financial statements is tested at least semi-
annually for impairment, irrespective of whether
there is any indication that it may be impaired.
In conducting the test, the carrying value of
goodwill is allocated to the related asset groups
or groups of asset groups which are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the business
combination. If the result of the test indicates
that the recoverable amount of an asset group
or group of asset groups, including the allocated
goodwill, is lower than its carrying amount, the
corresponding impairment loss is recognized.
The impairment loss is first deducted from the
carrying amount of goodwill that is allocated to
the asset group or group of asset groups, and
then deducted from the carrying amounts of
other assets within the asset groups or groups
of asset groups in proportion to the carrying

amounts of assets other than goodwill.

Once the above asset impairment loss

recognized, it will not be reversed for the value

recovered in the subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HE_Z-_TFXA=+BELEXRNEADRHE(RERZHN  2EECRARBETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FEEHRENGEEE#E)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(20) Employee benefits (20) B T % B
Employee benefits are all forms of considerations BIFMEArASEAKER TR
given in exchange for services rendered by HEOREKBREDEERME T
employees or compensation paid in order MEREANRMIHEE B85
to terminate the employment relationship. REHEE - BERREA - BHRAE
Employee benefits mainly include short- M E A R EIR TR A EF -

term employee benefits, demission benefits,
termination benefits and other long-term
employee benefits, etc.

(a) Short-term employee benefits (a) =%

Short-term employee benefits mainly EHEFMeEREIE e
include wages or salaries, bonuses, EERAMA BIRNE -
allowances and subsidies, staff EERRE IGHERRE -
welfare, social security contributions, £ERBE TEAES
housing funds, labour union funds, TEMNHELKE  RBPFH
employee education funds and short- REE - REBEERITRH
term compensated absences. When an FREe IR - SERE
employee has rendered service to the ERREHFEMERRAE
Group during an accounting period, the WEtAE Bk BRI & E
Group shall recognize short-term employee BAS o B EEEE AR A
benefits as liabilities and charge to the cost ERANEETE °

of an asset or as an expense at the same
time. Non-monetary benefits are measured
in accordance with fair value.

(b) Demission benefits (b) BEBEEAR

Demission benefits are classified as rEEBHEBERENGTE S
defined contribution plan and defined BARTERGEFENKRER
benefit plan. Defined contribution plan is matd - REERBFFERK
a demission benefits plan in which the SEMBINESHEFETE
Group is not obliged to make further EBRE THAEE-—FX
payment after paying a certain amount NEBOBBEENGE:
to individual funds. Defined benefit plan HEXmitEI BB R TR
is a demission benefits plan except for FFEt LA e B B 12 18 A 5t
defined contribution plan. During the - MW|ERA > XEEH
reporting period, demission benefits mainly BEBREENEIEZEREIH
include basic social pension security, MOEXREERE  HRAE
supplementary social pension security and ZREMAERE  HER
unemployed insurance, all of which are RERGEEE -

defined contribution plan.

BEIEXEKRNABRRR —Z_FFPHRS

87



88
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(20) Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Demission benefits (Continued)

Basic social pension security

Employees of the Group participate in
the basic social pension plan set up and
administered by the local labour and
security departments. Basic pensions are
provided monthly according to stipulated
proportions and basis, which are paid to
local labour and social security institutions.
After retirement of employees, local labour
and social security departments will pay
related pensions to employees accordingly.
When an employee has rendered service
to the Group during an accounting period,
the Group shall compute and recognize
liabilities according to the above stipulation
and charge to profit or loss for the period
or cost of related assets.

The Group provides a pension scheme,
which is established under the rules and
regulations of the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance (“MPF Scheme”),
for all employees in Hong Kong. The Group
and its qualified Hong Kong employees
make monthly MPF Scheme contributions
in accordance with statutory requirements.
The assets of this pension scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FEEHRENGEEE#E)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(20) Employee benefits (Continued) (20) B T % B (&)

(b) Demission benefits (Continued) (b) EEBEEF(Z)

Supplementary pension security plan HrEERE
Qualified employees of the Group can AEEMFaGRENB IR
voluntarily join the supplementary pension FmMAMEFEEZRERTE -
security plan. Supplementary pensions are AEBNUNBITEFLRE
provided monthly based on employees’ BREZBLOIHEERE
social security basis from the Group and ABE  RARZIEANHN
employee, which are paid to trustee MABERRE - BRI
monthly. After retirement of employees, & ZRAFBETRCEHER
trustee will pay related pensions to BEIXNAMAEEZS - &K
employees accordingly. When an employee EAERITRHEREHN S
has rendered service to the Group during HifE - IR E D RIRE
an accounting period, the Group shall FEEAMNEEERAA
compute and recognize liabilities according & WEtAEBERIAA
to the above stipulation and charge to BEBAK -

profit or loss for the period or cost of
related assets.

() Termination benefits () BEER
Termination benefits are payables when AEEBTEBILEH SR
employment is terminated by the Group ZHIBRERTHNSEHA
before the employment contract expire, R EATEBIEREE
or compensation provided as an offer to EEEMBELG THE &
encourage employees to accept voluntary ANEE B T 88 B 5 RO AR BR
redundancy. The Group recognizes BE AR B OR R E R
termination benefits as liabilities and R LS R XS BER R A
charges to profit or loss at the earlier of MEABENKNAE AR
the following dates: when the Group can ERFR - FERE R EB
no longer unilateral withdraw the offer IS BHEERE THEME
of termination plan; or when the Group EWEE RNFGTASHE
recognizes costs for restructuring which o
involving the payment of termination
benefits.
Termination benefits is presented as HHEEEREBERALE—F
current liabilities if it is planned to be paid NFEXEEREN - JIR
within one year after the balance sheet RMEBEE -
date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
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ZoTERA=ZTAEREASE (REEHAN

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(21) Equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Group are
classified as equity instruments when both of

the following conditions are satisfied:

(@ The financial instruments have no
contractual obligation to pay in cash or
other financial assets to other parties nor
to exchange financial assets or liabilities
under potential adverse condition with

other parties;

(b) The financial instruments should and can
be settled via equity instruments of the
Group. For non-derivative instruments, the
instruments have no contractual obligation
to be settled by delivering fixed number
of equity instruments of the Group. For
derivative instruments, they can only be
settled through the exchange of fixed
number of the Group’s equity instruments
with fixed amount of cash or other

financial assets.

Equity instruments except for ordinary shares
issued by the Company are presented as other
equity instruments in the financial statements.
The amounts issued by the subsidiaries
and classified as equity instruments in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group

are presented as non-controlling interest.

(22) Distribution of dividends

The amount of dividends is recognized as liability
in the current period in which it is approved by

general meeting of shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HE_Z-_TFXA=+BELEXRNEADRHE(RERZHN  2EECRARBETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(23) Provisions

Provisions for product warranties, loss contracts
etc. are recognized when the Group has a
present obligation, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and the amount of the obligation
can be measured reliably.

A provision is initially measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the related present obligation. Factors
surrounding a contingency, such as the risks,
uncertainties and the time value of money, are
taken into account as a whole in reaching the
best estimate of a provision. Where the effect
of the time value of money is material, the
best estimate is determined by discounting the
related future cash outflows. The increase in
the discounted amount of the provision arising
from passage of time is recognized as interest
expense.

The carrying amount of provisions is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimate.

The provisions for financial guarantee contracts
recognized by the Group on the basis of
expected credit loss are presented as provisions.

A provision is disclosed as current liabilities if it
is expected to be paid within one year since the
balance sheet date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(24) Revenue recognition

When a customer gains control of the relevant
goods or services, the Group recognizes
the revenue at the amount of consideration
expected to be entitled to receive.

(a) Sales of properties

Revenues are recognized when or as the
control of the properties is transferred to
the customer. Depending on the terms of
the contract and the laws that apply to
the contract, control of the properties may
transfer over time or at a point in time.

(b) Primary land development

Some of the Group’s primary land
development recognized revenue over
time, and the progress of implementation
is based on the proportion of the cost
incurred over the budgeted cost by the end
of the reporting period. Some recognized
revenue at a point in time.

(c) Investment properties rental income

The rental income of investment properties
is recognized by straight-line method
according to the lease term.

(d) Retail income

The Group is engaged in retail business
through Outlets. When the Group transfers
goods to customers, the Group recognizes
the sales income of the goods. Retail
income is usually settled by cash or credit
card.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(24) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(e) Income from property management
services

Income from property management
services is recognized in the accounting
period in which services are provided. If
the contract involves multiple services, the
transaction consideration will be allocated
to the performance obligations according
to its relatively independent selling price.

(25) Government grants

Government grants are the gratuitous monetary
assets or non-monetary assets that the Group
receives from the government, including tax
returns and financial subsidies.

Government grants are recognized when there
is reasonable assurance that the grants will be
received and the Group is able to comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Monetary
assets of the government grants are measured
as the amount received or receivable. Non-
monetary assets of the government grants are
measured as fair value or notional value if the
fair value cannot be obtained reliably.

A government grant related to an asset is the
government grants acquired by the Group that
specified for construction or in other ways
to form long-term assets. Government grants
related to income are government grants other
than government grants related to assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(25) Government grants (Continued)

Government grants related to assets are
recognized as deferred revenue or writing
down book value of relevant assets and will
be amortized over the useful life of the related
assets in profit or loss using a reasonable and
systematic method. Government grants related
to income which are used to compensate
expenses or losses in subsequent periods, are
recognized as deferred revenue and realized in
profit or loss or writing down relevant costs
for the year such expenses or losses occurred;
the ones which are to compensate expenses or
losses occurred in previous periods are directly
realized in profit or loss or writing down relevant
costs. The Group disclosed government grants
in the same category in the same way.

Government grants related to daily operations
are recognized in other income and otherwise
in non-operating income or expenses.

The book value of the borrowings with granted
prime interest rate received by the Group are
recognized at the value of net cash received, and
the borrowing costs are calculated on the capital
of borrowings and the granted prime interest
rate. The fiscal interests discount received
directly by the Group write down the borrowing
costs related.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(26) Deferred income tax assets and
deferred income tax liabilities

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income
tax liabilities are calculated and recognized
based on the differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts (temporary differences). Deferred
income tax asset is recognized for the deductible
losses that can be carried forward to subsequent
years for deduction of the taxable profit in
accordance with the tax laws. No deferred
income tax liability is recognized for a temporary
difference arising from the initial recognition
of goodwill. No deferred income tax asset or
deferred income tax liability is recognized for
the temporary differences resulting from the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities due to a
transaction other than a business combination,
which affects neither accounting profit nor
taxable profit (or deductible loss). At the balance
sheet date, deferred income tax assets and
deferred income tax liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
income will be available to offset the deductible
temporary differences, deductible losses, and
deductible tax amounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z-_ZFXNA=TALAEANEGRENZHAN  SEECAARE T

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. FEEeSBEMEEEET &)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(26) Deferred income tax assets and (26) EXEFIEHEENELRBH

deferred income tax liabilities
(Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for
temporary differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
except where the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference, and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not be reversed in the foreseeable
future. When it is probable that the temporary
differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates will be
reversed in the foreseeable future and that the
taxable profit will be available in the future to
offset the deductible temporary differences, the
corresponding deferred income tax assets are
recognized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset if all the following conditions are met:

e the deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are related to the income tax
levied by the same tax department on the
same taxpayer within the Group; and

e the tax payer within the Group has a
legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and current tax liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HE_Z-_TFXA=+BELEXRNEADRHE(RERZHN  2EECRARBETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(27) Leases

Lease refers to a contract in which the lessor
transfers the right to use the assets to the lessee
for consideration within a certain period of time.

The Group as lessee

The Group recognizes the right-to-use assets at
the beginning of the lease term and recognizes
the lease liabilities at the present value of the
unpaid lease payments. The lease payment
includes the fixed payment and the payment to
be made when it is reasonably determined that
the purchase option will be exercised or the
lease option will be terminated. The variable rent
determined according to a certain proportion
of the sales volume is not included in the lease
payment and is included in the profit of loss for
the current period when it actually occurs. The
Group presented the lease liabilities due within
one year (including one year) from the balance
sheet date as current portion of non-current
liabilities.

The Group’s right-to-use assets include rental
buildings. The right-to-use assets are initially
measured at cost, which includes the initial
measurement amount of the lease liabilities,
the lease payments paid on or before the
lease term, the initial direct expenses, etc., and
deducted the received lease incentives. If the
Group can reasonably determine the ownership
of the leased asset at the end of the lease
term, depreciation shall be accrued within the
remaining service life of the leased asset; if
it cannot reasonably determine whether the
ownership of the leased asset can be acquired
at the end of the lease term, depreciation shall
be accrued within the shorter of the lease term
and the remaining useful life of the leased asset.
When the recoverable amount is lower than the
book value of the right-to-use asset, the Group
writes down its book value to the recoverable
amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(27) Leases (Continued)

For short-term leasing with a lease term of
no more than 12 months and low value asset,
that is, single asset with low value when it is
new, the Group chooses not to recognize the
right-to-use assets and lease liabilities, and the
relevant rent expense is included in profit or loss
for the current period or cost of related asset
using the straight-line method in each period of

the lease term.

The Group as lessor

A lease that substantially transfers almost all the
risks and rewards related to the ownership of
the leased asset is a financial lease. Other leases

are operating leases.

(a) Operating lease

When the Group leases out its own
buildings, the rental income from
operating leases are recognized using
the straight-line method during the lease
term. The Group includes the variable rent
determined by a certain proportion of the
sales volume into the rental income when

it actually occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(28) Maintenance and quality guarantee
funds

Maintenance fund is collected from property
buyers according to related regulations on behalf
of housing administration bureau, by certain
percentage of selling price of property, the
fund will be delivered to housing administration
bureau upon registration of property ownership.
Maintenance fund is recognized in other
payables when received and is for the repair and
update for the common parts and equipment
and public facilities of the real estate specially.

Quiality guarantee fund is reserved by certain
percentage of the project payment and when
the properties are completed it will be repaid to
constructor, in condition that there’s no quality
issue in agreed warranty period.

(29) Held for sale and discontinued
operations

A non-current asset or a disposal group
satisfying the following conditions is classified
as held for sale: (1) the non-current asset or the
disposal group in current conditions can be sold
immediately according to usual trading terms;
(2) the Group has made a legally binding sales
agreement and has been approved for disposal,
and the transfer will be completed within one
year.

Non-current assets (except for financial assets,
investment property at fair value and deferred
income tax assets), which meet the recognition
criteria for held for sale are measured at the
lower of the fair value less costs to sell and
the carrying amount. Any excess of the original
carrying amount over the fair value less costs to
sell is recognized as an asset impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BHE

“ECEERAZTRENER B (BRI R S

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(29) Held for sale and discontinued

operations (Continued)

Non-current assets classified as held for sale, the
assets and liabilities in the disposal groups are
classified as current assets and current liabilities
and should be presented on the balance sheet
separately.

A discontinued operation is a component of
the Group that either has been disposed of
or is classified as held for sale, and can be
distinguished from other components within
the Group: (i) the component represents a
separate major line of business or an individual
geographical area of operations; (i) is part
of a single coordinated plan to disposal of a
separate major line of business or an individual
geographical area of operations; (iii) is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively for the purpose
of resale.

Profit or loss from discontinued operation
presented in income statements includes profit
or loss from operating and the disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FEEHRENGEEE#E)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(30) Segment information (30) 7 #EE
The Group identifies operating segments based AEBLLASAEEE ERE
on the internal organization, management ko AED IR B E R KR EE L
requirements and internal reporting system and EoEl UNEEHREWET
the reportable segments are determined and REDMBLWED MER -
segment information is disclosed based on the
operating segments.
An operating segment is a component of KEDFRIEAEBRNRFK T
the Group that satisfies all of the following TIMEHRERE S - (—) - %A
conditions: (i) the component is able to earn D EERERB R P EEW
revenues and incur expenses from its operation ABEER: (D) rEEERE
activities; (i) whose operating results are Baes e BB Z AR BO ML
regularly reviewed by the Group’s management ERR - UAETEMEEEZR
to make decisions about resources to be AEHES: (Z) KEEEHER
allocated to the segment and to assess its FHAERBD O EARR - K&
performance; and (i) for which the information KREMRETESHHASHES -
on financial position, operating results and cash MiEsk Z EKE DB EFRUD
flows is available to the Group. If two or more ROESE - W RMRE—ERES
operating segments have the similar economic A&t —ERE D EL -

characteristics and satisfy certain conditions,
they could be aggregated into one single
operating segment.

BEIEXEKRNABRRR —Z_FFPHRS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-ZERNA=THIENEASB R ENZTHAN

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(31) Critical accounting estimates and
judgments

The Group continually evaluates the critical
accounting estimates and key judgments applied
based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable. The following
accounting estimates and key judgments may
lead to significant adjustments in the book value
of assets and liabilities in the next fiscal year:

Critical accounting estimates and its key
assumptions

()

Deferred income tax assets

Judgment for whether deductible
temporary differences and deductible
losses can be reversed in the future
period is required from the Group in
recognizing deferred income tax assets.
For deductible temporary differences and
deductible losses, the Group recognizes
deferred income tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available in the future to offset the
deductible losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING . FEEGTBRENgE AR (&)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)
(31) Critical accounting estimates and (B31) EEEF AT MAE &)
judgments (Continued)
Critical accounting estimates and its key EESAFREBRBR(Z)
assumptions (Continued)
(i) Fair value of investment properties (i) REMEHELAAEE
The Group adopts fair value model for AEEHKAAABERNY
subsequent measurement of investment REUMF M ERETRER
properties. Where fair value of investment E-HRERBREUER
properties under construction is not EmREAAEBEEET
reliably measurable but is expected to be SHTEEBZEMET
reliably obtained after the construction is TEOANBEENFER
completed, the property is measured at cost G LKA E2ZE
until the earlier of the date construction BEREMFME  HARE
is completed or the date at which fair Baemr st 2R T ILE
value becomes reliably measured. Critical (MERF) BAAAEBME
estimates and judgments are required in FHE o BN Dl SRR
determining the timing to adopt fair value REBBEREMFMEE
model for subsequent measurement of BEFEME  mHERE - F
investment properties, the Group makes HEEEEABAMELERX
such estimates and judgments based on the fhEt A E - REEGFR
area, market condition, and development BUE= S EMEEE
progress of the investment property project. HE AAEE2EBZR
The Group obtains independent valuations DENTHEETHEE

for its investment properties annually from
independent professional appraiser as a
third party. The fair value is determined in
accordance with the methods below:

e Current prices (open market e  Z2RERMISLERES
quotations) in an active market for the HEUBEMERIRITM IS
same or similar investment properties; ER (M5 AHRE):

e When such information above is not e  EIEEMGREIEUE
available, then use recent trading HERITHSERD
prices in an active market of the same 2R ™S - REs
or similar investment property, and BURMENZAR
take the factors of situations, dates SER  WERZXFHE
and locations of transactions, etc. into N RHBH - PR
consideration; =T

e Based on the estimated rental income e ERBEFHAKESH
generated in the future and present HeWhmMAEERR S
value of the related cash flows. MENBREEZ -

ERIBEXROBERLAR — T2 FhHRSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z-_ZFXNA=TALAEANEGRENZHAN  SEECAARE T

3. TAXATION =. MIA
The types and rates of taxes applicable to the Group REBEBEANETERE REBREI RN
are set out below: i
Type Taxable base Tax rate
BE =T B AK & B =
Enterprise income tax Taxable income of subsidiaries located in 25%
the PRC
EEMREH REE AT RRENT TS
Income from taxable dividends of 5%-10%
non-resident enterprises and
investments disposal in mainland China
FEE R 10 2 80 JE B AR A A K2
EREZEAEERENKA
Taxable income of subsidiaries located in 16.5%
Hong Kong
BERETRAIERT &AM
Value added tax (“VAT”) Taxable value added amount (calculated 3%, 5%, 6%, 9%,
BEM at taxable sales multiplied by applicable 10%, 11%, 13%,
tax rate, deducting the input VAT 16%, 17%
deductible in current period)
JEMTIBER (BN EIZ AT EE
FLABERAMRENBRER AFENEE
Bz H R ERE E)
Land appreciation tax Taxable value added amount through sales 30%-60%
("LAT") of properties
& IR E A HERMEMRGNEATIEESR
City maintenance and Amount of business tax and VAT paid 5%, 7%
construction tax
W ERERD JE 49 S F RIBE T T AR
Education surcharge Amount of business tax and VAT paid According to the policies
implemented at the
location of the company
A B m JE 4 S F R B (E T B AR 2 N A PTIE Hb BUSR BN
Property tax Taxable residual value of properties 1.2%
BER FEMHERE
Rental income of properties 12%
FEE®MES KA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

TAXATION (Continued)

According to the Notice of the Ministry of Finance
and the State Administration of Taxation on the
Adjustment of VAT Tax Rate issued by the Ministry of
Finance and the State Administration of Taxation (No.
32 of Finance and Tax [2018]), and relevant provisions,
the VAT tax rate applicable to the income of the
Group's sales of properties is 10% from 1 May 2018,
and 11% before 1 May 2018.

According to the Notice of Announcement on
policies to deepen VAT reform issued by the
Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of
Taxation and the General Administration of Customs
(Announcement No. 39 of the Ministry of Finance,
the State Administration of Taxation and the General
Administration of Customs in 2019), and relevant
provisions, the VAT tax rate applicable to the income
of the Group's sales of properties is 9% from 1 April
2019.

CHREUR/RARE T

Tt I8 (#)

RBMEE  BREFEBBDOE
BB~ BIRM B RN HEIREN R
) i &) (B 15 [2018]1325% ) & 48 A 43
E-BET-N\FHA-BR& X&EH
MEMEHRSEXBEWABRNEEDN
MER/IO%  —FT—-N\FHAB—HA%
EBERBERRES% -

REVERE BRREER  BHELE
BN R CIBER A EB R
MAENMBAREEREHEENS
[2019]39%%) RAEBAME - A=FT—NHF
MA—HAE AEENFHEHERH
WABAHIEERRERI% -
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-ZERNA=THIENEASB R ENZTHAN

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

CHEURARBE T

m. &0 BHRERBENT

(1) Cash at bank and on hand E¥ES
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—E_EfF —E—NF
~A=+tH +-A=+—H
Cash on hand EFR& 316 387
Bank deposits |AITFER 32,289,074 26,914,610
Other cash balances HEmEwEe 98,414 120,247
Total &5 32,387,804 27,035,244

As at 30 June 2020, bank deposits include
supervised advances from customers,
mortgaged and pledged deposits for loans,
performance guarantee fee, security deposits
for certain mortgage loans to customers and
certain loan and bond interests amounted
to RMB1,676,977,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB1,165,488,000). The Group has reclassified
the above amounts to restricted bank deposits.

As at 30 June 2020, other cash balances include
deposits for bank acceptance bill amounted
to RMB78,892,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB78,651,000). The Group has reclassified the
above amounts to restricted bank deposits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL m. 8B RRIEEWFE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Trading financial assets 2) xEHEMEE
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—g-®% —E-h%
AHA=tH +ZA=+—H
Investment of real estate —F R EI AR KA T
projects in Australia due 5 i 2 2 B K
within one year 571,468 3,520,171
Asset management plan (i) BEESEAEG 102,594 189,198
Capped currency swap NEEBEBE (i)
contracts (ii) 298,082 51,973
Total =1 972,144 3,761,342
(i) As at balance sheet date, the fair value of the trading (i) REEABRE  ZXH5UEeRE
financial assets is determined by the closing price on EARBEAREZRSFISMAH
the last trading day of the period. HKE—EAXHBEKREBERE -
(ii) The Group entered into capped cross currency (ii) REBATRRERRINEBRFI
swap contracts for certain foreign currency liabilities BEBEBEMSEEEREN  Z
such as medium-term notes and foreign currency EHBNRITETR  AEEE —F
borrowings, etc., which belong to derivatives. The LA RBIERRZMEERME
Group recognized such derivatives due within one year EZE —FUELIBOBSER
as trading financial assets. Others are accounted for HthEmBemEERE -

as other non-current financial assets.

(3) Trade receivables (3) EWERR
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
e e 2 —T-hF
AA=t+H +ZA=+—H
Trade receivables JE T BR K 5,084,097 5,225,581
Less: provision for doubtful B EEREE)
debts (i) (7,171) (7,000)
Net pEig-E 5,076,926 5,218,581
Most sales of the Group are in the form of REBRBHHEAYWNIRE -
cash and advanced payment. Other sales are B R 7 AT - E AR iHE R
collected according to the agreed terms on sales RIE S B4 E 8 FROE E YA -
contract.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BHE

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

TECEERAZTHIESNEASB R EREHAN

CHEMAARET T

m. SO BHRKRIAE W T

(3) Trade receivables (Continued) (3) EWERIRE)
The aging of trade receivables based on their FEMW BRI H A BR A B0 BR B
recording dates is analyzed as follows: franT e
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—E-EBF —E-NF
/\H_-I-E! +=-—A=+—H
Within 1 year —FHURA 987,491 2,125,067
1 to 2 years —H = 1,201,936 1,049,449
2 to 3 years ZH =% 1,754,255 2,042,968
Over 3 years =FMNE 1,140,415 8,097
Total & &t 5,084,097 5,225,581
(i) Provision for doubtful debts (i) =ZHEREME
As at 30 June 2020, analysis of separate RZZE-ZFEFRA=1+H"
assessment for provision for doubtful debts BIEFIREREENELKE
of trade receivables are as follows: RO
Expected Provision
Book lifetime loss for doubtful
value rates (%) debts
BEEFED
EHEAR
B [ &5 58 B X E(%) EIRESE
Trade receivables JE U BR 3K 7171 100 (7171)

108

Except for the trade receivables with the
provision for bad debts mentioned above,
there is no significant anticipated credit
loss and no provision for bad debts in
other trade receivables were recognized by
the Group.
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4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)
(4) Advances to suppliers

M. SO BHRKRIAE W T E)

(4) AENRE

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
—E-_ZEEXNA=tH Z—ZE-AE+_-_F=+—H
% of total % of total
Amount balance Amount balance
15 48 Z8 b 61 fly 4228 £ I
k-] (%) Col - (%)
Within 1 year —F LA 693,102 89 2,377,457 97
Over 1 year —F Ak 88,495 11 66,534 3
Total = 781,597 100 2,443,991 100

(5) Other receivables

(5) E WK

30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
~NB=+tH +=ZA=+—H

Receivables due from related

& W 28 Bt 07 SRR

parties (Note 9(6)) (Bt 7% S1.(6)) 15,558,119 14,559,943
Receivables from joint bidding (i) B & 12 3 () 2,605,542 3,775,266
Consideration receivables from & Ui f% 4 &

disposal of equity and claims & 4 2 2 5K (i)

for debts (ii) 672,405 2,894,796
Land deposits and other THERERRES R

guarantee deposits HiiRE € 437,098 419,630
Receivables from government =+ b B B &

repurchase of land use rights 74,931 124,927
Collect and remit payment on UK # B

behalf 134,800 157,388
Dividends receivables from JE ST 78 Bk 7 P R

related parties (Note 9(6)) (BH 5 11(6)) 111,578 36,578
Interests receivables JE WA B 303 528
Others Hith 1,297,712 628,982
Total &5t 20,892,488 22,598,038
Less: provisions for doubtful o IBERER

debts (264,459) (247,041)
Net ik 20,628,029 22,350,997

(i) As at 30 June 2020, receivables from joint bidding (i) RZEZZTFAA=1TH HEE

were mainly receivables of the Group due from
cooperation in real estate projects with third party real

estate development companies.

BRREAEERE=TTRMEM
ERARKEMERBENKER -

EAIERRNERAT —F-FEFHEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(5) Other receivables (Continued)

(i)

In 2013, the Group disposed 50% of equity interests
of Outlets Property Investment Guangdong Ltd.
(hereinafter “Outlets Guangdong”) to a third
party, with receivables from Outlets Guangdong
unreceived. As at 30 June 2020, receivables from
Outlets Guangdong totaled to RMB316,541,000 (31
December 2019: RMB316,541,000). The Group has
accrued provisions for impairment of RMB178,000,000
based on the lifetime expected credit loss (31
December 2019: RMB178,000,000).

As at 30 June 2020, the equity transfer receivables
due from Huagian Co., Ltd. for the disposal of
overseas equity interests of Beijing Tiancheng
Yongtai Real Estate Co., Ltd., (hereinafter “Tiancheng
Yongtai”), an original subsidiary of the Group,
amounted to RMB53,351,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB50,436,000). The Group believes that the
amounts are recoverable and not impaired, and no
provision for doubtful debts has been recognized.

As at 30 June 2020, the equity transfer receivables
due from Bantex Investments Limited (hereinafter
“Bantex Investments”) amounted to RMB302,513,000
(31 December 2019: RMB1,512,565,000) due to the
disposal of 50% equity interests of Beijing Tiancheng
Yongyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Tiancheng
Yongyuan”), an original subsidiary of the Group
in 2019. The Group believes that the amounts are
recoverable and not impaired, and no provision for
doubtful debts has been recognized.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2020

m. SO BHRKRIAE W T

(5)

H fth P& WK (48)

(ii)

R-Z-_ZTFEXA=+H  EBRES
R BEERARAAATHENE
RERDARRBBATAARYE
316,541,000 (= ZE—hF+= A
=+—H8: AR#¥316,541,0007T) *
EXRAR_ZT—=FELAE£EK
REEHREERS0% B IEEEG
E=FH EBREREERNTRKRIE
MAWE  AEEDKRBERGTE
BB ERE A LR REEE A
R #178,000,000t (= — L F+
—A=+—H: AR¥178,000,000
TT) e

RZZE_ZERA=Z1+H EK
ERERRAIBESERARE
53,351,000 (ZE—AFT=-A=
+—H8: AR%50,436,0007T) - &
FRERAMFEREERFAFAIL
RAWKEBEXFBERATCATHE
[RPKZR]) FIN R M AR E -
SER BB KA AKE - T
FEERNAEHREMER  #ORE
eI AR A o

RZT_TFXA=1+HB EHK
Bantex Investments Limited & ## &
ER A ARK302,513,000T
—E-NAFF+ZA=Z+—HB: AR
#1,512,565,0007T) - EEX R E R
—E-NFERBERBENIERR
WoKTEXBMRARS0%KE - &
SERABEIHSREARE - T
FEEAMNEHEHIBR - BORE
TRERER -



4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

. &GRSR RIAR M )

(5) Other receivables (Continued) (5) HEtEWRE)
(a) Aging analysis of other receivables are as () HMEUHREEITWT:
follows:
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—EC°EF —E-NF
AA=+H +ZHA=+—8H
Within 1 year —FLR 17,292,698 18,525,885
1 to 2 year — R =F 635,689 3,095,488
2 to 3 years —R=F 2,325,216 377,311
Over 3 years =FE 638,885 599,354
Total = 20,892,488 22,598,038
(b) Loss provision and changes in book (b) BAREBREKREGRELY
value *
First stage Third stage Total
5-K8 EELL) At

Expected credit loss
over the next 12

Expected credit loss
over the next 12

Expected credit loss for the
lifetime (impairment has

months(grouping) months(separate) Sub-total occurred)
ART-BARRAGARL ART-BARRAEARL BEGARRAEERAEX
(28) (BH) it (BREEARE)

Provision Provision Provision Provision Provision
Book for doubtful Book for doubtful for doubtful Book for doubtful for doubtful
value debts value debts debts value debts debts
REHE BEEE RAHKE BRER BREE REBE BRER BRER
31 December 2019 ZT-NETZA=t-RB 17,456,863 - 4,712,593 - - 428,582 (247,041) (247,041)
Additions RHE 318,321 - - - - 22,096 (17,418) (17,418)
Reductions ERD - - (2,045,967) - - - - -
30 June 2020 ZE-TFRR=1H 17,775,184 - 2,666,626 - - 450,678 (264,459) (264,459)

BRIBEXRODBERAR —Z2_ZFHhHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(5) Other receivables (Continued)

(b) Loss provision and changes in book
value (Continued)

As at 30 June 2020, there is no significant
expected loss for other receivables at the
first stage and no provision for doubtful
debts has been recognized.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had no
other receivables at the second stage.

As at 30 June 2020, analysis of provision
for doubtful debts for other receivables at
the third stage are as follows:

m. SO BHRKRIAE W T

(5) HubEUWR#E)

(b)

BAEBRAREHREZLD
®R(E)

RZEZFTFA=+A8"
B PR 56 — B B A9 EL Ath B R
THEEEANEBEHEHE
KORFHBERER o

RZZEZZTFA=+A8"
REBRNFERNE —PEE
B E i I UG FR o

R-E-_ZEEFXA=1AH"
BE A 55 = B B A0 H At R K
RSB EGBOTT -

Expected Provision

credit loss for
Book rate for the  doubtful
value lifetime (%) debts Reason
EEFE
MEHER
HR T &4 58 18 X % (%) HIRER HHH
Separate assessment for BIRER:
provision:
Receivables from Outlets — f& Ui B % & B 7R Note 4 (5)(ii)
Guangdong A 316,541 56 (178,000)  Hf & PH (5)(ii)
Receivables of agent FEW g REEMIE A
construction from REEmE
Nanjing Longpao project 66,219 35 (23,219)
Others Hith 67,918 93 (63,240)
Total A& 450,678 (264,459)

12 BEHJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2020



4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(6)

Inventories

(a)

(6) 75

Inventories are classified as follows:

30 June 2020

(a)

CHREUR/RARE T

& Ot S R IA B M R (#)

FESBNT:

31 December 2019

ZE-EEXRAZTH ZE-NETZA=t-H

Book Provision for Book Book Provision for Book

balance inventories value balance inventories value

FESE FELREEE EEEE RAS%E FERELER RAEE

Properties under development %k & 74,341,920 - 74,341,920 69,435,551 - 69,435,551
Properties held for sale BEER 23,464,987 (53,616) 23,411,371 16,218,552 (53,616) 16,164,936
Land under development ARt 128,214 = 128,214 68,928 - 68,928
Others X 305,439 = 305,439 259,284 - 259,284
Total At 98,240,560 (53,616) 98,186,944 85,982,315 (53,616) 85,928,699
(b) The movement of inventories’ book (b) HFERmMHEARNAEEH SN

balance during the period is as follows: T

31 December 30 June

2019 Additions  Reductions 2020

—TNE “ECEF

+-A=+—H AH AHERYP  RA=TH

Properties under development B % ik A& 69,435,551 18,163,836  (13,257.467) 74,341,920
Properties held for sale HEER 16,218,552 13,315,854  (6,069,419) 23,464,987
Land under development FEmLi 68,928 59,286 - 128,214
Others Hi 259,284 184,086 (137,931) 305,439
Total B 85,982,315 31,723,062 (19,464,817) 98,240,560

BRIBEXBRNBERAR —Z_2FhHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z-_ZFXNA=TALAEANEGRENZHAN  SEECAARE T

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(6)

Inventories (Continued)

m. SO BHRKRIAE W T

(6) FEM#®)

(c) Analysis of provisions for impairment of () FEREEGIITWT:
inventories are classified as follows:
31 December  Additions Reductions 30 June
2019  ZAREEN KR D 2020
“T-NEF Provision Reverse Write-off Z—Z2-Z&
+=p=+-H Aie 4G @5  KXA=tA
Properties held for sale HEED 53,616 - - - 53,616

For the six months ended 30 June 2020,
the properties with the carrying amount
of RMB5,825,127,000 (For the six months
ended 30 June 2019: RMB4,503,972,000)
has been recognized as cost of sales from
sales of properties.

As at 30 June 2020, the finance
costs capitalized in the properties
under development amounted to
RMB5,704,618,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB5,472,341,000). For the six months
ended 30 June 2020, the average
capitalization rate is 5.94% (For the six

months ended 30 June 2019: 5.66%).

As at 30 June 2020, certain land use
rights and buildings in properties under
development of the Group with the
carrying amount of RMB30,825,710,000 (31
December 2019: RMB25,110,064,000) have
been mortgaged as security for short-term
borrowings amounted to RMB90,000,000
(31 December 2019: RMB168,000,000)
(Note 4(21)) and long-term borrowings
amounted to RMB9,981,788,000 (31
December 2019: RMB6,934,668,000) (Note
4(28)).

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2020

HzE-_Z-_ZTFXA=1+H
WENE A HE - A& B
REFHEHEXTEER
RANTFEKRANABEARE
5,825,127,000c (#H =2 ==&
—NERNA=ZFTHIEANEA
B - AR #4,503,972,000
K

RZZEZZEF A=
H BERKAFREEER
BREA LS BEARE
5,704,618,000c (=& — A1
F+_A=+—H AR¥
5,472,341,00070) - # & —
T FAAA=ZFTHLER
MAMM FHEAREX
A594% (BE—T—h &
NAZ+THIEREABRM:
5.66%) °

R_ZT-_ZTFxXA=1+AH"
AEEREXNATREREARE
8 A FR#30,825,710,0007T
ZE-NAF+ZA=+—
H: A K #¥25,110,064,000
TNt ERAEREER
LYERHLRT BEE
HA & 3 A R %90,000,000
T(ZE-NEFE+ZA=+—
H :168,000,0007T (M sF M
1) BMEEHERARE
9,981,788,000c (= E— N
F+ZA=+—H:ARK
6,934,668,0007%) (Ff 5 Pd
(28)) °



4.

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(7)

(8)

(9

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

CHREUR/RARE T

M. SO BHRKRIAE W T E)

Contract assets (7) éRAEE
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—EC-EF —T-hF
AA=+H +ZA=+—H
Primary land development 4 b — 4% A B 6,132,721 5,734,719
As at 30 June 2020, there was no significant RZE_ZFRA=1H aRE
expected credit loss in contract assets and EfNFEEANTEHERER
no provision for doubtful debts has been NEHIRBRER -
recognized.
Other current assets 8) HttABHEE
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—E-2F —T-NEF
AA=tH +=ZH=+—H
Prepaid taxes EHME 618,627 2,464,591
Costs for obtaining contracts & R ELE K A 132,926 127,555
Total & 751,553 2,592,146
Current portion of non-current assets 9 —FRIBNERDEE

30 June 31 December

2020 2019

—E-EF —E—NF

~AA=+H +-A=+-~H

Primary land development 43— AR A B 367,790 311,975

As at 30 June 2020, receivables from primary
land development are mainly receivables of
Beijing Liujin Real Estate Co., Ltd. (hereinafter
“Liujin Real Estate”) from primary land
development (rebuilding project of shanty town)
in Xihuangcun, Shijingshan District, Beijing,
amounted to approximately RMB367,790,000
(31 December 2019: RMB311,975,000), which is
expected to be recollected within one year, such
amounts were reclassified as current portion of
non-current assets.

B Lt —FRERBEIER
tRZESBEXZFERAEFE AT
THRIZ2EXDRFLNIER
MARIUEEERNO L —HH
(W P [ 2 &) 18 B 1 8 U e 3R
BORZZE_ZEFRA=THE#HR
A/ ARM367,790,0007T (=
Z-NE+A=+—H: AR¥
311,975,0007¢) 8 & # 20 R 2 —
FARWKE - WEEFA-FAZ

HIWERBEE -

EAIERRNERAT —F-FEFHEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-ZERNA=THIENEASB R ENZTHAN

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

CHEMAARET T

(10) Other non-current financial assets

m. SO BHRKRIAE W T

(10) Atk RBEREE

30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—E-EHE —ET—NEF
/\ﬁ_+5 +—RA=+—H
Investment of real estate BRI 28 B Hb EE 1%
projects in Australia (a) & () 4,554,093 4,586,544
Investment of Tiancheng H R K =R IR E R (D)
Yongtai (b) 2,150,330 2,150,330
Capped currency swap MEEEKERELH
contracts 319,770 285,294
Less: Investment of real estate JB : — & W E| B F9R K
projects in Australia MEEMERSE
due within one year (Bt 5 9 (2))
(Note 4(2)) (571,468) (3,520,171)
Capped currency swap —FAIEMMNE
contracts due within one BEEHELH
year (Note 4(2)) (Bt 778 (2)) (298,082) (51,973)
Net F 6,154,643 3,450,024

(a

This investment is the principal and interest of the AUD
debt investments in real estate development project
in Australia. The principal and interests amounted
equivalent to RMB4,554,093,000 as at 30 June 2020
(31 December 2019: RMB4,586,544,000). Among
which, RMB571,468,000 will be recollected before
30 June 2021, therefore it is reclassified as trading
financial assets as at 30 June 2020.

The investment is the right to profit in real estate
development project of Tiancheng Yongtai held by the
Group.

(11) Long-term equity investments

(a) % FRIE 2 A 5 B R KR 56 BB i B
HERBEBRERNAS R E - »
ZZEZTFXA=FTH e kllE
e AR H 5 494,554,093,000
T(ZE-NAE+_A=+—8H:
/\Emmk4586 544,0007t) - E A -
e kRlima AR LY
571,468,000 TR T =——F XA
=+ HAEE  MRZZEZZTFRA
ETHESDEERZUERMEE -

(b) BFEK/AEBEFTAENRMKER
BIFA MW EE

(1) REAKRERE

30 June 31 December

2020 2019

—EEF = —NF

/\ﬁ_+El +=—HA=+—H

Joint ventures (a) A&t %@Q) 4,220,022 3,923,152

Associates (b) B & 1> 2 (b) 1,774,456 1,777,215

Total NEF 5,994,478 5,700,367
Less: provision for impairment & : RHIAZ AL E R E

of long-term equity 1
investments - -
Net &5 5,994,478 5,700,367

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2020



4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(11) Long-term equity investments

(Continued)

(@) Joint ventures

.

&R RRIAR M )

(1) REKREREE)

(@) &%

Changes in this period

ABEREE
Cash
Share of other dividend
31 December  Increase in - Decrease in  Share of net comprehensive Other equity ~ or profit 30 June
2019 investment  investment ~ {loss)/profit income  movement  declared 2020
BERE BEER
I-nE BB Abhe  HEER RERH -Bo%f
TZAZt-A  ENRE  HORE B Ka3E 29 9B AAZ1A
Shouwan Yuye (Shanghai) Property Senvices Co, Lid. EERA(LBNZRBERLA
("Shouwan Yuye") (i (WTRIEERE))) 1n9n - man) - - - - =
Shanghai Shoujia Real Estate Co, Ltd. LEEREEAERAT
("Shanghai Shoujia") (il (ATRILEEED () 293,829 - BT (105) - - - -
Wuhan Rongcheng Kaichuang Investment Development Co, Utd. EERAREIZEZRARLA
("Wuhan Rongcheng Kaichuang”) i) (ATRIRERARA) (i) - 2280595 (2209532  (71,063) - - - -
Shanghai Zhiyue Industrial Co, Ltd. HEEHEEERLA
(*Shanghai Zhiyue") (i (U TRILBEE) () 201,582 - (199675 (1907) - - - -
Beijing Jinhaihu Culture Tourism Investment Co, Ltd. {y) LREENHEREARAAN) WETT 49,000 - (120 - - - 290,557
Ningbo Shouju Yiming Investment Partnership EREERRRAADLE
(*Ningbo Shouju Yiming) 1) (BRABIITRIERESZR) () B84 6630 - 162 - - - 606
Thuhai Henggin Chengdu Weihua Equity Investment Fund (LLP) % ERERHEZRERER L (BRAE)
("Zhuhai Henggin Chengdu Weihua Fund”) (vi) (WTEHEREAHELEL) () 73458 - - 13 - - - 74,690
Beijing Wanzhu Real Estate Co, Ltd FREERNERSARELRA
("Beijing Wanzhu") (ATRIERER) 41,466 - - I - - - 4,515
Zhuhai Henggin Shouju Chuangxin Equity Fund Co. Ltd. HEREERHEREREELERAA
(*Zhuhai Henggin Fund Management Company') (WTRIGAREELERLA)) 31410 - - (1,917) - - - 29,493
Beijing Chuangyuan Yicheng Real Estate Co,, Lid. [REEREESERAT
("Chuangyuan Yicheng) (ATRIEERE]) 15418 - - (14 - - - -
Chongging Huayu Yesheng Industrial Co, Ltd. ERETENREERAT 24,588 - - 4055 - - - 65,143
Tianjin Ruibin Real Estate Co,, Lid. REERERERAT
("Tianjin Ruibin’) FRIXEEE]) 315013 - - (973) - - - 314,100
Shanghai Henggu Real Estate Development Co,, Lid. LEEERRERYERAT
(“Shanghai Henggu") (TR LEER]) 13207 - - (2,057) - - - 130,070
Shanghai Songming Real Estate Development Co,, Lid. LERERRERYERAT
("Shanghai Songming’) (TR LERE]) 101,498 - - (1) - - - 00
Tianjin Hefa Real Estate Development Co,, Lid. RRAYRHERSARAA
("Tianjin Hefa") (ATRIX2AE) 312728 - - (8589 - - - 304139
Beijing Jinlong Yonghui Real Estate Co, Ltd IREEABERERLA
("inlong Yonghu") (vi) (A FRIEE R il 43,006 - - (7838) - - - 35,168
Beijing Dacheng Guangyuan Real Estate Co, Ltd. FRERKEERERLA
("Dacheng Guangyuan") (ii) (ATRIER R Wil 122,509 - - 1219 - - (75,000) 54,788
Tianjin Lianjin Real Estate Development Co, Ltd. REBEENEREERAR
("Tianjin Lianjin") (PRI EEE]) 256,163 - - 5,658 - - - 26181
Beijing Shangbodi Investment Consultant Co, Ltd. FREERREBRERLA
("Shangbodi") (ix) (PRI ER) ) 212,005 - - 8,553 - - - 20558
Tianjin Lianzhan Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd RETHBERHERZERAA
(“Tianjin Lianzhan") (x) (WTRIXZER] () 142,807 - - (1733) - - - 1m0
HEIEERHOBRAR ZE_2FFPHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(11) Long-term equity investments
(Continued)

(@) Joint ventures (Continued)

m. SO BHRKRIAE W T

(1) REREREE)

(a)

RELEE)

Changes in this period

ABEEEE
Cash
Share of other dividend
31 December  Increase in- Decrease i Share of net comprehensive Other equity  or profit 30 June
2019 investment  investment ~ {loss)/profit income  movement ~ declared 2020
BERE BEEH
B-nE AgH  EfBe  Ab#E RERH -R-%%
ToAZT-A #NRE  HORE B ha3E 29 AR AA=tR
Beijing Jingu Chuangzhan Real Estate Co, Ltd TREAUREZARAA
("fingu Chuangzhan”) (ATRI2AHR]) 170,584 - - (13,383) - - - 15200
Beijing Yuechuang Real Estate Development Co, Ltd IRUERHEREERAA
("Beijing Yuechuang") (TR R8N 137755 - - (148Y) - - - 12934
Beijing Tonghao Beifang Real Estate Co,, Lid FREENRERARLA
("Beiing Tonghao Beifang") i 16,760 - - 4794 - - - 554
Tianjin Harmony Carp Equity Investment Fund Partnership
(Limited) 714942 - - 1 - - - 715669
Xiamen Rongdi Real Estate Co,, Lid. EfBRERERAR
("Xiamen Rongdi") (WTRIEMEL]) 1179 - - (4.834) - - - 16,345
Thuhai Shouzheng Dejin Equity Investrment Fund REETRSRERELS
(Limited Partnership) (BRAD) 24,800 - - (150) - - - 4,65
Yunnan Dianfu Real Estate Development Co, Ltd. EERRREHEREERAT
("Yunnan Dianfu’) (x) 7 (x) - 499591 - ) - - - 419316
Beijing Jingu Chuangxin Real Estate Co,, Ltd _ REELR
(*Jingu Chuangxin’) (x) (ATRIZAEED () - 66,000 - (124) - - - 65876
Tianjin Longma Hechuang Equity Investment Partnership RERBAHRERAGHLE(BRAY) ()
(Limited) {xi) - 285005 - 11,608 - - - 296,633
Others £ BY 676 -3 - - SRR
Total Aif 3923152 3193557 (2714902)  (106,785) - - (75,0000 4,220,022

The related information of significant joint
ventures are set out in note 6(2).

(i) The Group held 51% equity interests of
Shouwan Yuye. According to the articles of
association of the company, the decisions
of relevant operation activities of Shouwan
Yuye require the unanimous consent of the
Group and other shareholders, therefore it is
recognized as a joint venture. In January 2020,
the management and governance structure of
Shouwan Yuye has been changed. After the
change, the Group can control Shouwan Yuye
separately, so it is recognized as a subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(11) Long-term equity investments
(Continued)

(@) Joint ventures (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

The Group held 60% equity interests of
Shanghai Shoujia. According to the articles
of association of the company, the decisions
of relevant operation activities of Shanghai
Shoujia require the unanimous consent of the
Group and other shareholders, therefore it is
recognized as a joint venture. In March 2020,
the management and governance structure
of Shanghai Shoujia has been changed. After
the change, the Group can control Shanghai
Shoujia separately, so it is recognized as a
subsidiary.

The Group held 49% equity interests of Wuhan
Rongcheng Kaichuang. According to the articles
of association of the company, the decisions
of relevant operation activities of Wuhan
Rongcheng Kaichuang require the unanimous
consent of the Group and other shareholders,
therefore it is recognized as a joint venture. In
June 2020, the management and governance
structure of Wuhan Rongcheng Kaichuang has
been changed. After the change, the Group
can control Wuhan Rongcheng Kaichuang
separately, so it is recognized as a subsidiary.

The Group holds 50% equity interests of
Shanghai Zhiyue, it is recognized as a joint
venture. During the current period, the
Group and other shareholders of Shanghai
Zhiyue decrease capital to Shanghai Zhiyue in
proportion to the number of shares owned
amounted to RMB225,000,000.

During the current period, the Group paid in
some of the registered capital of these joint
ventures.

CHREUR/RARE T

M. SO BHRKRIAE W T E)

(1) RERERE#E)

(a)
(i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(11) Long-term equity investments
(Continued)

(a)

Joint ventures (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Zhuhai Henggin Chengdu Weihua Fund is
limited partnership established by Zhuhai
Henggin Fund Management Company as
the general partner in 2015, and the Group
subscribes 22.52% of the intermediate units in
the Fund, which holds 100% equity interests
in Chengdu lJinhui Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(hereinafter “Chengdu Jinhui”). The fund has a
total scale of 1,200,000,000 shares amounted
to RMB1,200,000,000. The fund is treated as
interests of non-consolidated special purpose
vehicle of the Group.

For the six months ended 30 June 2020,
the Group recognized investment income of
RMB1,232,000 (For the six months ended 30
June 2019: RMB39,572,000).

The Group holds 14.55% equity interests of
Jinlong Yonghui. According to the articles
of association of the company, the decisions
of relevant operation activities of Jinlong
Yonghui require the unanimous consent of the
Group and other shareholders, therefore it is
recognized as a joint venture.

The Group holds 12.5% equity interests
of Dacheng Guangyuan. According to the
articles of association of the company, the
decisions of relevant operation activities of
Dacheng Guangyuan require the unanimous
consent of the Group and other shareholders,
therefore it is recognized as a joint venture.
During the current period, the amount of
dividends distributed by Dacheng Guangyuan
to shareholders is RMB600,000,000, and the
Group enjoys a share of RMB75,000,000 in
proportion to the number of shares owned.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEZ

ZoTERAZTALERNEASEGRERIEHAIN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(11) Long-term equity investments

m. & pf

CHREUR/RARE T

B 7% R B B Y 5 (#)

(1) RERERE#E)

(Continued)
(@) Joint ventures (Continued) €)] ¥ (E)

(ix)  The Company holds 51% equity interests (ix) ARG A EH51% K
of Shangbodi. According to the articles of - REBEATER ﬁﬁﬁi‘rﬂ
association of the company, the decisions WIEEESHLAKLBERR
of relevant operation activities of Shangbodi HHEMKRR-HEE %:H—J
require the unanimous consent of the Group BBRK RAULBHEERSE
and other shareholders, therefore it is BERHE-
recognized as a joint venture.

(x)  The Company holds 17.5% equity of Tianjin (x) REBEFBEREBEREITS5%
Lianzhan. According to the articles of MRt - BBRRER - R
association of the company, the decisions B R B RE B L BB A
of relevant operation activities of Tianjin SEEAMKRRE-HEEE
Lianzhan require the unanimous consent of the TR EERE - B EAE
Group and other shareholders, therefore it is RAELERE -
recognized as a joint venture.

(xi)  In this period, the Group newly acquired or (xi) AH - AEBHESHEL
established these joint ventures and paid the ZEEELCE UEHE
capital in place. & o

(b) Associates (b) W&
Changes in this period
rERzE
Cash
Share of other ~ Other ~ dividend
31 December Increase in - Decrease in ~ Share of net comprehensive  equity  orprofit 30 June
2019 investment  investment  profit/{lsses) income  movement  declared 2020
SE%H
ZE-0f RERERE Lbhe EfbEE RERA -%-%F
TIAZT-B EMRE HORE HERE :E1S 2 gHE AAZTR

Thongguancun Integrated Circuit Garden Development Co, Ltd. 3R+ ‘E%ﬂﬁm‘r@%ﬂﬂ

("Zhongguancun Integrated Circuit Garden”) () (ATRIHEHENERE 474,840 - - (17352) - - - 457488
Shenyang Capital Xinzi Real Estate Co, Ltd. ("Shenyang Xinzi") EBEEIFEE AR 243,200 - - (1317) - - - 188
Tianjin Xinming Real Estate Co., Ltd. ("Tianjin Xinming") FE‘%J%WE%EE g 194,808 - - (19) - - - 194793
Tianjin Xinqing Real Estate Co, Ltd. (“Tianjin Xinging") 19776 - - (9 - - - 19,761
Thuhai Hengain Ruiyuan Jialing Equity Investment Fund (LLP)

("Zhuhai Henggin ruiyuan Jialing Fund”) i (WTRMHEEESET - - - - - - _ -
Nanchang Huachuang Xinghong Real Estate Co, Ltd. BERHREELERAAITRIBERS)

("Nanchang Huachuang") 2,780 - - (829) - - - 23,951
Beijing Tengtai Yiyuan Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (‘Tengtai Yiyuan") St REFEEEERANTERERE] 198,168 - - (2.947) - - - 195
Bejing Kaiyuan Hean Investment Management Co,, Ltd. LRRTNEEAERERDA

("Kayuan Hean") (T BIRRAZ]) 492,25 - - (2833) - - - 489422
Guangzhou Zengcheng Runyu Purchase Co,, Lid. EfAE EE%EME

("Guangzhou Runyu’) (TRBIEMEE] 29,845 - - (2,156) - - - 27,689
Beijing Capital Cultural Industry Investment Fund Jtﬁ?éémkfé% E2(ERAR)

(Limited Partnership) ("Cultural Industry Investment Fund”) (i)~ (W FRBI UL E £ REES]) (i) - 25000 - (200) - - - 24800
Others it 39543 - - (101) - - - 39442
Total Aif 1777215 25,000 - (27.759) - - - 1,774,456

The related information of significant EBEPEPNERERE

associates are set out in note 6(2).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-ZERNA=THIENEASB R ENZTHAN

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(11) Long-term equity investments
(Continued)

(b) Associates (Continued)

()

(iii)

The Group holds 50% equity interests of
Zhongguancun Integrated Circuit Garden.
According to the articles of association, the
Group has significant influence on board of
Zhongguancun Integrated Circuit Garden,
which is responsible for the financial decisions
in the ordinary course of business, therefore it
is classified as an associate of the Group.

Zhuhai Henggin Ruiyuan Jialing Fund is limited
partnership established by Zhuhai Henggin
Fund Management Company as the general
partner in 2014, and the Group subscribes
20.73% of the intermediate units in Zhuhai
Henggin Ruiyuan Jialing Fund, which holds
100% equity interests in Chongging Shouhui
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Shouhui
Real Estate”). The fund has a total scale
of 2,200,000,000 shares amounted to
RMB2,200,000,000.

The fund is recognized as interests of
non-consolidated special purpose vehicle, and
the Group has significant influence over the
fund according to the partnership agreement,
therefore it is classified as an associate.

In this period, the company established an
associate Cultural Industry Investment Fund,
and paid the capital in place.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(12) Investments in other equity instrument

M. SO BHRKRIAE W T E)

(12) HtEEZTAKRE

30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
AHA=tH +ZA=+—H
Equity instrument investments iz T AL E
Equity interests of non-listed NG ¢
companies
~ UCOMMUNE (Beijing) - BEIHEER)
Venture Investment BIEREEAR
Co., Ltd. (hereinafter DNE (AT
“UCOMMUNE") [MEETIH]) 238,283 238,283
- CDB Siyuan (Beijing) - B EEGLR)
Investment Fund Ltd. REESBER
(hereinafter “CDB ANaE] (AT 8
Siyuan”) (Bl F B E ) 50,000 50,000
Total =1 288,283 288,283
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—EC-EF —T-hnF
AA=Et+H +ZA=+—H
UCOMMUNE BRIH
— Cost - B AR 200,000 200,000
- Accumulated changes in - R AREBEES
fair value 38,283 38,283
CDB Siyuan HRE
— Cost RN 50,000 50,000
- Accumulated changes in - B ARBEEZS
fair value = -
Total =1 288,283 288,283

BRIBEXBRNBERAR —Z_2FhHRE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(13) Investment properties

m. SO BHRKRIAE W T

(13) REMFHE

Investment  Investment
properties  properties
under under

development development
measured at measured at

fair value cost (i) Total
MEEHE  HATEN

WREKEHE REEEHE() A%

31 December 2019 “E-NFTZAZT-H 14,855,841 1,887,432 16,743,273
Additions KHER - 311,715 311,715
Other adjustments e (11,280) - (11,280)
Reductions &R D (179,261) - (179,261)

Gains on change in fair value (Note 4(44)) MEEEDESR

(F 5270 (44)) 305,367 - 305,367

30 June 2020 “E-ZEXAZTH 14,970,667 2,199,147 17169,814
(i) As at 30 June 2020, some of the investment (i) R-ZBE-_ZFXA=1+H  KEEI

properties of the Group are still under construction,
of which the fair value cannot be reliably determined
but is expected to be measured reliably after
the completion, therefore the Group measures
such investment properties at cost until the date
construction is completed or the date at which fair
value becomes reliably measurable, when is earlier.

As at 30 June 2020, certain investment properties
with book value of RMB4,796,823,000 (31
December 2019: RMB2,967,911,000) have been
pledged for long-term borrowings amounted
to RMB3,523,500,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB2,518,000,000) (Note 4(28)).

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, the
capitalized financial costs in the investment properties
amounted to RMB37,027,000 (For the six months
ended 30 June 2019: RMB105,928,000). The average
capitalization rate is 6.69% (For the six months ended
30 June 2019: 5.93%).
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(13) Investment properties (Continued)

0)

(Continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, the
effect on changes in fair value of investment
properties recognized in profit or loss amounted to
RMB305,367,000 (For the six months ended 30 June
2019: RMB143,463,000).

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, the Group
disposed investment properties with book value of
RMB11,982,000 and the disposal gain amounted to
RMB2,285,000 (For the six months ended 30 June
2019: None).

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, due to the
change of holding intention, the Group converted
the investment properties with a book value of
RMB46,405,000 into inventory, which has no impact
on profit or loss and equity.

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, due to the
change of holding intention, the Group converted
the investment properties with a book value of
RMB120,874,000 into fixed assets, which has no
impact on profit or loss and equity.

CHREUR/RARE T

M. SO BHRKRIAE W T E)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z-_ZFXNA=TALAEANEGRENZHAN  SEECAARE T

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

m. SO BHRKRIAE W T

(14) Fixed assets (M14) BEEE
Motor Office
Buildings vehicles equipment Total
EER
BEY EHIE PARE G5t
Cost [R1E
31 December 2019 —E-AF+ZA=1+—H 304,614 38,954 132,897 476,465
Increase AE M 121,460 2,920 9,000 133,380
Purchase BE 586 1,875 7,815 10,276
Acquisition of Wi F R RIEM
subsidiaries - 1,045 1,185 2,230
Transferred in REUEMESABA()
from investment
properties (i) 120,874 - - 120,874
Decrease AE R D - (2,725) 971 (3,696)
Dispose and written-off I B T - (2,725) 971) (3,696)
30 June 2020 “E-EFERA=TH 426,074 39,149 140,926 606,149
Accumulated depreciation 2EE
31 December 2019 “E-NE+ZA=1+—H (32,988) (28,807) (90,467) (152,262)
Increase AEE (3,686) (2,972) (12,839) (19,497)
Provision B (3,686) (2,150) (12,347) (18,183)
Acquisition of WeBE 7 2 EE
subsidiaries - (822) (492) (1,314)
Decrease AER D - 2,230 653 2,883
Disposed and written off BENHE - 2,230 653 2,883
30 June 2020 “E-EFRA=TH (36,674) (29,549) (102,653) (168,876)
Provision for impairment EER
31 December 2019 —E-NE+ZR=1—H - - - -
Increase AHE - - - -
Decrease AER D - - - -
30 June 2020 “E-EFRA=TH - - - -
Net book value FEEE
30 June 2020 —E-EFERA=ZTH 389,400 9,600 38,273 437,273
31 December 2019 —E-AF+ZA=1+—H 271,626 10,147 42,430 324,203

For the six months ended 30 June 2020,
depreciation amount of fixed assets s
RMB19,497,000 (For the six months ended
30 June 2019: RMB15,980,000), from which
depreciation expenses charged to administrative
expense amounted to RMB13,937,000
(For the six months ended 30 June 2019:
RMB15,980,000).
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BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . ARz BEE W T (&)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(14) Fixed assets (Continued)

(19) BE&EE#E)

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, The Group

converted investment properties with a net book value

of RMB120,874,000 to fixed assets.

@) BE_Z_ZERA=1+HLRA
AR ARESEESE/SAR
#120,874,0007T 1) 1%8 & 1% /= #h

whABEMA -
(15) Right-of-use assets (15 EREEE
Buildings
EEREEY
Cost [R{E

31 December 2019 “E-NE+=ZRA=1+—H 1,009,951
Increase piy: I 243,462
New leasing contract HRBEAR 243,462
Decrease KHR D -
Others Hib -
30 June 2020 “E-EFEXNAZTH 1,253,413

Accumulated depreciation ZHHE
31 December 2019 “Z-NF+-B=1+-H (94,906)
Increase AHE (59,054)
Provision HE (59,054)
Decrease KERE D _
Others Hit -
30 June 2020 “Z-TFRAZTH (153,960)

Provision for impairment WEER
31 December 2019 ZE-NEFTZA=T—H -
Increase AH L -
Decrease AHR D -
30 June 2020 “E-EFEXNAZTH -

Net book value FEEE
30 June 2020 —“Z-TFERA=TH 1,099,453
31 December 2019 “Z-NAF+-A=t-H 915,045

BRIBEXBRNBERAR —Z_2FhHRE
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BE_Z-_ZFANA=TALAXEARNECGRENZHAN  SEELABARE T

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(16) Intangible assets

m. SO BHRKRIAE W T

(16) B EE

Executory
contract  Franchise Others Total
BHHTER BHLEE Hitr &t
Cost RE
31 December 2019 —Z-NFt+ZA=t—H - 20,667 30,796 51,463
Increase REEM 304,692 - 6,812 311,504
Purchase BE - - 6,812 6,812
Acquisition of W F AREM
subsidiaries 304,692 - - 304,692
Decrease KER D - - (45) (45)
Dispose and written-off BE - - (45) (45)
30 June 2020 S e = 304,692 20,667 37,563 362,922
Accumulated depreciation Eag 3
31 December 2019 “E-NE+ZR=1—H - (1,562) (11,393) (12,955)
Increase REEM (15,235) (2,227) (2,796) (20,258)
Provision R (15,235) (2,227) (2,796) (20,258)
Decrease I B > — _ _ _
Disposed and written off RE - - - -
30 June 2020 S 3 e = (15,235) (3,789) (14,189) (33,213)
Provision for impairment REE R
31 December 2019 —E-NE+ZA=1+—H - - - -
Increase AR HRE - - - -
Decrease KER D - - - -
30 June 2020 ZEZTERA=TH - - - -
Net book value FHER
30 June 2020 S e = 289,457 16,878 23,374 329,709
31 December 2019 —E-NFt+ZA=t—H - 19,105 19,403 38,508

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, the
amortization of intangible assets amounted to
RMB20,258,000 (For the six months ended 30
June 2019: RMB9,584,000).
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4.

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

BE—T-_FFANA=TRALANEAMNEGRENZAN  SEELAARE T

M. SO BHRKRIAE W T E)

(17) Long-term prepaid expenses

(17) REZHBER

31 December 30 June
2019 Increase  Amortization 2020
ZENE —2-%F
+-A=1+—-H AHE AH#E SA=TH
Improvements of investment
properties 161,222 7,667 (28,361) 140,528

Improvement of right-of-use
assets
Others

EREEEAR

268,375 53,476
23,547 8,376

(8,219) 313,632
(7,008) 24,915

Total

453,144 69,519

(43,588) 479,075

(18) Deferred income tax assets and
deferred income tax liabilities

(@) Deferred income tax assets before

offsetting

(18) ELEFMEHEENELREH
af\

(a) RAEEHENELEFRESHEE

30 June 2020

31 December 2019

ZE-EERA=1H “E-NE+ZR=1-H
Deductible Deductible
temporary temporary

differences Deferred
and deductible income tax

differences Deferred
and deductible  income tax

losses assets losses assets
TENERMEZE BEMSH TENERHGZE EEMEH
RUENER BE RAENER EE
Provision for impairment of
assets 24,000 6,000 32,310 8,077

Accrued salaries and other
costs and expenses

Accumulated losses

Internal unrealized profit

BRIEREMATER

BHEABRERME

41,608 10,402
952,352 2,288,088

41,608 10,402
7531648 1,882,912

elimination 603,072 150,768 501,008 125,252
Others Hith 28,198 7,049 - -
Total A3t 9,849,230 2,462,307 8,106,574 2,026,643
Including; A
Amounts of reversal expected iR -ER(5—F)

within 1 year Etafok 4

(including 1 year) 168,666 64,756
Amounts of reversal expected B R -FHERNLE

beyond 1 year 2,293,641 1,961,887
Tota At 2,462,307 2,026,643
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL  F9.
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(18) Deferred income tax assets and

&GRSR RIA R M o)

(18) ELEFEHEENELREH

deferred income tax liabilities 8E#E)
(Continued)
(b) Deferred income tax liabilities before (b) REEHEWELFRESHEE
offsetting
30 June 2020 31 December 2019
ZE-2EXAZTH “E-NETZA=1-H
Taxable  Deferred Taxable Deferred
temporary income tax  temporary  income tax
differences liabilities differences liabilities
Eak BEREH @k BEHREHR
OREER 8fF ERMEZE B
Other non-current financial assets AR eRnAE 142,084 35,521 142,084 35,521
Business combination other than FRA-BHTEEAH
common control 2,536,172 634,043 735,552 183,888
Capitalized interest BRI E 3,949,036 987,259 3,739,916 934,979
Changes in fair value of investment ~ HABZEMEEERNE
properties recognized in profit or AREEE
loss 3,795,960 948,990 3,493,693 873,423
Changes in fair value of investment AR fMEGARENEE
properties recognized in other EEHEAABEED
comprehensive income 359,349 89,837 373,220 93,305
Depreciation differences of REMEHENTEEER
investment properties 422,164 105,541 359,360 89,840
Primary land development Ti-HHEE 261,224 65,306 339,696 84,924
Others Hith 69,792 17,448 54,316 13,579
Total At 11,535,781 2,883,945 9,237,837 2,309,459
Including: He:
Amounts of reversal expected BN —FR(E—F)
within 1 year BOMEE
(including 1 year) 123,182 275,477
Amounts of reversal expected BAR-—FREDNSE
beyond 1 year 2,760,763 2,033,982
Total At 2,883,945 2,309,459
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . ARz BEE W T (&)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(18) Deferred income tax assets and
deferred income tax liabilities
(Continued)

(18) SEEFTEHEENIELFTEHR
aE#)

() AEBARBERELEMEHE
ERREMEREERRLA

(c) The deductible temporary differences and
deductible losses with no deferred income

tax assets recognized are as follows: BOEBEBESTOT
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—E=FF —T-NF
AA=tH +ZH=+-—H
Deductible losses AEEE 3,580,392 3,137,492
Deductible temporary AENEREER
differences 445,185 652,010
Total =1l 4,025,577 3,789,502
(d) The deductible losses with no deferred d XERELHMEMEERN
income tax assets recognized will be AEMERBRATEE
expired as follows: H -
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—F-FF —FNF
AA=+H +ZHA=+—H
2020 —E-EF 668,652 668,652
2021 T —F 821,472 821,472
2022 T 444,212 444,212
2023 —E-=F 510,104 510,104
2024 —E-NF 693,052 693,052
2025 —E-RF 442,900 -
Total aF 3,580,392 3,137,492
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M. A BEHzxBEEW T (&)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(18) Deferred income tax assets and (18) IEEFTBREENELFBH
deferred income tax liabilities B8EE)

(Continued)

(e) The net balance of deferred income tax (e) HHEMELEMBEHMEEM
assets and liabilities after offsetting are as RIEFEHAEFAIRN
follows: N

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
—E-EEXA=1H “E-hE+ZR=T-H
Balance Balance
Offsetting after  Offsetting after
amount  offsetting amount  offsetting
DRSE BHEHE DEeE HEEKE
Deferred income tax assets ERFMEHEE 188,016 2,274,291 155,718 1,870,925
Deferred income tax liabilities  EEFEHEE 188,016 2,695,929 155,718 2,153,741

(19) Other non-current assets (19) E3ERBEE

30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—EEF —ZT-NF
ANAB=+H +ZA=+—H
Prepaid taxes EHB 2 2,611,976 -
Others H A 9,921 9,921
Total = 2,621,897 9,921
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . & f0fBF 7 <18 B M i (&)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(20) Provision for impairment of

assets (20) EEREEE
31 December Decrfésje\ 30 June
2019 AR 2020

—“Z—fE  Addiions  Reversal  Wiite off —E-%Z&
TZA=+-B  AHEm #po B AA=TH

Provisions for doubtful debt of T ZRER

trade receivables (Note 4(3)(i) (F 2 3))) 7,000 171 - - 7171
Including: separate assessment H EEHERE
for provision Ef 7,000 - - - 7,000
Provisions for doubtful debt of At ERFERREE
other receivables (Note 4(5)(b)) (B 57 (5)(b)) 247,041 17.418 - - 264,459
Sub-total et 254,041 17,589 - - 271,630
Provisions for inventories FENREBER
impairment (Note 4(6)(c)) (F 3£ (6)(c)) 53,616 - - - 53,616
Provisions for goodwil BEREER
impairment 172,137 - - - 172,137
Sub-total et 225,753 - - - 225,753
Total = 479,794 17,589 - - 497,383

(21) Short-term borrowings

(21) EHER

30 June 31 December

2020 2019

—E-EH —T-hF

~A=+tH +=ZA=+—H

Credit borrowings (a) = A E () 728,311 707,658
Mortgaged borrowings (b) & 5 (b) 90,000 168,000
Pledged borrowings (c) R E () - 833,263
Interest accrued ETRAE 5,970 8,751
Total a5 824,281 1,717,672
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z-_ZFXNA=TALAEANEGRENZHAN  SEECAARE T

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(21) Short-term borrowings (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Credit borrowings

As at 30 June 2020, short-term
borrowings of RMB728,311,000 (31
December 2019: RMB707,658,000) are
credit borrowings obtained by the Group.
Of which, RMB408,872,000 (31 December
2019: RMB358,240,000) are general
credit borrowings obtained by the Group;
RMB319,439,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB349,418,000) are guaranteed by the
Group for subsidiaries.

Mortgaged borrowings

As at 30 June 2020, short-term
borrowings of RMB90,000,000 (31
December 2019: RMB168,000,000)
are mortgaged by properties under
development of subsidiaries with book
value of approximately RMB200,713,000.

Pledged borrowings

As at 30 June 2020, the pledged
borrowings in short-term borrowings have
been fully repaid (31 December 2019:
RMB833,263,000).

As at 30 June 2020, the range of annual
interest rate for short-term borrowings
is 2.43% to 6.50% (31 December 2019:
4.02% to 6.50%).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(22) Trade payables

The aging analysis of trade payables based on

(22) B IR

CHREUR/RARE T

M. SO BHRKRIAE W T E)

ENRAZEARBEHRORE D

their recording dates is as follows: o e
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-hF
AA=+H +ZHA=+—8H
Within 1 year —FLR 8,443,827 8,348,306
Over 1 year — Lk 609,760 203,334
Total a5 9,053,587 8,551,640

(23) Contract liabilities

(23) eA&AfE

30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NEF
AHA=EtH +ZA=+—H
Advances from sales of FMEIEEEEN
properties under development 21,329,003 19,384,092
Advances from sales of 8 W7 o 3R
merchandise 92,729 67,208
Advance from property TEWIEE LR E
management fees and service
fees 57,294 -
Others EAh 43,517 23,982
Total & & 21,522,543 19,475,282

For the six months ended 30 June 2020,
the contract liabilities amounted to
RMB6,381,383,00 (For the six months ended 30
June 2019: RMB6,965,812,000) included in the
opening book value were transferred to revenue
for the period.

BE_Z-_TFRA=THIXRE
AHE - BREESOEEEETDH
AR #6,381,383,000ca@EE
(BEZZE-NFANA=ZFTHLER
&l 5 EAfal - A R #6,965,812,000
TEREREBALRWA -

EAIERRNERAT —F-FEFHEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-ZERNA=THIENEASB R ENZTHAN

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(24) Employee benefits payables

CHEMAARET T

m. SO BHRKRIAE W T

(24) BB T M

30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—EERF —E-NF
~B=+tH +=ZA=+—H
Short-term employee benefits & 52 Hi #7 Bl (a)
payables (a) 160,109 254,559
Defined contribution plans & 3% FE 12 17 51 2 (b)
payables (b) 851 3,995
Total =k 160,960 258,554
(@) Short-term employee benefit payables (a) EHFHM
31 December 30 June
2019 Additions  Reductions 2020
—E-NE it ap 22
+-A=1+—H AEgEm  AERS KA=TA
Wages and salaries, bonuses, T %% RENFEHR
allowances and subsidies 140,767 502,438 (597,758) 45,447
Staff welfare BIGHE - 1,361 (1,361) -
Social security contributions HEeRRE 3,390 18,302 (20,136) 1,556
Including: Medical insurance Ha: BEERRE 3,062 16,489 (18,490) 1,061
Work injury IGRRE
insurance 258 757 (530) 485
Maternity insurance YERKBE 70 1,056 (1,116) 10
Housing funds FRAE: 1,999 30,647 (31,922) 724
Labor union funds and employee I &HLEMBIHELE
education funds 10,950 6,667 (3,970) 13,647
Director's emoluments (Note 9(7)) E £ 4 (M A(7)) 26,550 405 (405) 26,550
Profit sharing plan FlEDZE 70,705 - - 70,705
Others it 52 5 & B 198 2,145 (863) 1,480
Total X 254,559 561,965 (656,415) 160,109

As at 30 June 2020 and 31 December
2019, there is no defaulted payables in

employee benefits.

The Group does not provide non-monetary

benefit to employees.
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4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(24) Employee benefits payables (Continued)

CHREUR/RARE T

M. SO BHRKRIAE W T E)

(24) RSB T %M (45)

(b) Defined contribution plans payables (b) BERFE
31 December 30 June
2019 Additions  Reductions 2020
“E-0% = i
TZA=+-B  AEEM  AHEHS KAZTH
Basic social pension security ETRERR 3114 10,278 (13,083) 309
Annuity ey B 279 1,109 (1,31) 77
Unemployment insurance KERRE 602 713 (850) 465
Total Bt 3,995 12,100 (15,244) 851

(25) Taxes payables (25) EXHE

30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—EB-E®H —E-NEF
AHA=EtH +ZA=+—H
Land appreciation tax payable &z + i 12 {EF 3,530,245 3,274,628
Enterprise income tax payable [EXMZEFEH 662,052 644,918
VAT payable JE R IEE 1,223,333 1,203,307
Others HAth 48,162 81,624
Total A& 5,463,792 5,204,477

As at 30 June 2020, the Group's deferred
output tax generated from advances from
customers amounted to RMB983,823,000.

R-ZE-_ZTEFEXA=1H £A&EE
FF 3 TE B 7B K E £ R A 8
THH A A R983,823,0005T °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(26) Other payables

CHEURARBE T

(26) H tb F& 14 =X

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z-ZERNA=THIENEASB R ENZTHAN

m. SO BHRKRIAE W T

30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—E=FF —TNF
AA=+H +ZH=+-—H
Payables to related parties JRE Y B8 B 77 1 2R 3K
(Note 9(6)) (Pt 5 1.(6)) 4,329,337 4,058,747
Payables for equity transfer JRE <t Bt e 8 5 3K 1,300,000 1,300,000
Payables to Tiancheng Yongtai & - K 3 7k 3 1 2k 3% 2,402,826 2,403,511
Dividends payable to related JRE <t 28 Bt 75 PR A
parties (Note 9(6)) (Fff 5 1.(6)) 617,301 196,753
Payables to project investment JEffIE B & & & = 185,605
Payables for routine business JE 1 E 48 & 1 2R 1,625,062 1,419,884
Dividends payable to other JRE A8 EL fth 4 25 T B AR A
equity instruments 990,483 578,171
Collection of deeds tax and R R EEES
maintenance funds on
behalf of government 84,893 141,945
Deposits from customers BFIT® 233,054 186,078
Tender deposits KERES 117,267 164,178
Dividends payable to senior JE 1~ = 8 ok BB {E 5 AR A
perpetual securities 25,704 25,704
Others Hth 466,395 523,599
Total A& 12,192,322 11,184,175

(27) Current portion of non-current

(27) " RPN FRBEE

liabilities
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—EC-EF —T-hnF
AA=tH +ZA=+—H
Long-term borrowings due  —&F A E|H K K HI &%

within one year (B 5 P4 (28))

(Note 4(28)) 13,650,147 10,275,637
Debentures payable due —FRNIN N ENES

within one year (B 3% 79 (29))

(Note 4(29)) 9,509,045 10,170,173
Long-term payables due —FREHI & BB

within one year (B 5E 2T (31))

(Note 4(31)) = 1,580,000
Interest accrued R AR 798,800 738,468
Lease liabilities due within —FRNINHHNEERE

one year (Note 4(30)) (B 5F 71 (30)) 67,489 54,795
Total & &t 24,025,481 22,819,073
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4.

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 9.
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(28) Long-term borrowings

CHREUR/RARE T

& Ot S R IA B M R (#)

(28) RHIE

30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—EBE-EBH —E-NEF
AHA=tH +ZA=+—H
Credit borrowings (a) EA@) 30,124,690 24,520,023
Guaranteed borrowings (b) 1% 7 (b) 1,115,000 1,631,000
Mortgaged borrowings (c) HH (o) 12,180,288 8,397,668
Pledged borrowings (d) E 1R (d) 2,700,000 1,500,000
Mortgaged and pledged R - L (e)
borrowings (e) 1,055,000 1,055,000
Borrowings from debt &R &5 &)
investment plan (f) 13,500,000 12,900,000
Sub-total NEF 60,674,978 50,003,691
Less: Long-term borrowings due & : —F RN EH &Y
within one year, R BB
including: He:
Credit borrowings (a) E=1C)) (7,551,014) (5,427,605)
Guaranteed borrowings (b) IR 78 (b) (1,115,000) (981,000)
Mortgaged borrowings (c) () (965,133) (1,348,032)
Mortgaged and pledged B (e
borrowings (e) (19,000) (19,000)
Borrowings from debt B R &5 &)
investment plan (f) (4,000,000) (2,500,000)
Sub-total NET (13,650,147) (10,275,637)
Net ik 47,024,831 39,728,054
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BHE

4.

“ECEERAZTRENER B (BRI R S

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(28) Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit borrowings

As at 30 June 2020, the credit
borrowings of the Group amounted
to RMB30,124,690,000 (31 December
2019: RMB24,520,023,000). Of which,
RMB810,000,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB1,363,275,000) are general credit
borrowings obtained by the Group;
RMB29,314,690,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB23,156,748,000) are guaranteed by
the Group for subsidiaries.

Among the borrowings above, interests
of principal of RMB630,000,000 are
paid half-yearly, interests of principal of
RMB29,494,690,000are paid quarterly.
Principal of RMB7,551,014,000 should
be repaid on or before 30 June 2021,
such amount was classified as long-term
borrowings due within one year in financial
statements.

Guaranteed borrowings

As at 30 June 2020, the guaranteed
borrowings amounted to
RMB1,115,000,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB1,631,000,000) are guaranteed by
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
or third parties for subsidiaries.

Interests of the borrowings above are
paid quarterly. The principal amounted to
RMB1,115,000,000 should be repaid on or
before 30 June 2021, and such amount
was classified as long-term borrowings due
within one year in financial statements.
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m. SO BHRKRIAE W T

(28) REAfERR (&)
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(28) Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(c)

Mortgaged borrowings

As at 30 June 2020, the mortgaged
borrowings amounted to
RMB12,180,288,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB8,397,668,000). Of which, borrowing
of RMB6,067,813,000 (31 December
2019: RMB4,319,151,000) were secured
by the mortgage of certain properties
under development of the Group (Note
4(6)), borrowing of RMB180,000,000
(31 December 2019: RMB198,000,000)
were secured by the mortgage of certain
investment properties of the Group (Note
4(13)), borrowing of RMB1,295,000,000
(31 December 2019 : RMB877,262,000)
were guaranteed by the Group for
subsidiaries and secured by the mortgage
of certain properties under development
of subsidiaries (Note 4(6)), borrowing of
RMB1,698,500,000 (31 December 2019 :
RMB1,265,000,000) were guaranteed by
the Group for subsidiaries and secured
by the mortgage of certain investment
properties of subsidiaries (Note 4(13)),
borrowing of RMB2,618,975,000 (31
December 2019: RMB1,738,255,000)
were guaranteed by subsidiaries for
subsidiaries and secured by the mortgage
of certain properties under development
of subsidiaries (Note 4(6)), borrowing of
RMB320,000,000 (31 December 2019:
Nil) were guaranteed by subsidiaries for
subsidiaries and secured by the mortgage
of certain investment properties of
subsidiaries (Note 4(13)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z-_ZFXNA=TALAEANEGRENZHAN  SEECAARE T

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(28) Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Mortgaged borrowings (Continued)

Among the borrowings above, interests
of principal of RMB1,300,000,000 are
paid monthly, interests of principal
of RMB10,880,288,000 are paid
quarterly. The principal amounted to
RMB965,133,000 should be repaid on or
before 30 June 2021, and such amount
was classified as long-term borrowings due
within one year in financial statements.

Pledged borrowings

As at 30 June 2020, borrowings of
RMB2,700,000,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB1,500,000,000) were pledged by
the right to profit of trade receivables of
subsidiaries of the Group.

Interests of the borrowings above are paid
quarterly.

Mortgaged and pledged borrowings

As at 30 June 2020, the mortgaged
and pledged borrowings of the Group
amounted to RMB1,055,000,000 (31
December 2019: RMB1,055,000,000) are
guaranteed by the Group for subsidiaries,
secured by the mortgage of certain
investment properties of the subsidiaries
(Note 4(13)) and pledged by the right to
profit of trade receivables.

Interests of the borrowings above are
paid annually and the principal of
RMB19,000,000 should be repaid before
31 June 2021, such amount was classified
as long-term borrowings due within one
year in financial statements.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
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4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(28) Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(f)

Borrowings from debt investment plan

As at 30 June 2020, the Group
had obtained borrowings of
RMB13,500,000,000 (31 December
2019: RMB12,900,000,000) through
certain debt investment plans. Of which
RMB2,500,000,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB2,500,000,000) are guaranteed by
Capital Group with interest paid quarterly;
RMB11,000,000,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB10,400,000,000) are guaranteed
by the Group with interests paid
quarterly. Among the borrowings above,
RMB4,000,000,000 should be repaid
before 30 June 2021, such amount was
classified as long-term borrowings due
within one year in financial statements.

As at 30 June 2020, the range of annual
interest rate for long-term borrowings
is from 3.08% to 8.50% (31 December
2019: 3.40% to 8.50%).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
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4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)
(29) Debentures payable

m. SO BHRKRIAE W T

(29) ENE %

Amortization
Issued in  of discount Other
31 December current and Redemption movements 30 June Interest
2019 period premium in this period (0] 2020 accrued
—E-NE s g 3.3
TZA=+-H AEEGT HHEEE 2 AHERE HEpE®H(0) AA=TH AHRAIS
Corporate bonds (ii) NGE-E (1) 28,937,970 5,269,985 26,734 (4,100,000 - 30,134,689 719,620
Medium term notes (iii) FE R 1R (i) 6,946,806 3,080,808 9,119  (3,481,050) 139115 6,694,798 137,954
Other notes (iv) HiE#(v) 2,775,730 - 2,839 - 45,018 2,823,587 57,341
Sub-total et 38,660,506 8,350,793 38,692  (7,581,050) 184,133 39,653,074 914,915
Including: debentures H: —FREEHH
payable due ENES
within one
year (10,170,173) (9,509,045)
Net R 28,490,333 30,144,029

Other movements are mainly exchange rate changes.

With the approval of Shanghai Stock Exchange (SSE
letters [2020]216), the Company issued non-public
corporate bond with amount of RMB790,000,000
at 26 March 2020. After deducting the related
underwriting and issuing fees, the net amount of bond
actually received by the Company is RMB787,235,000.
The term of the bond is five years with a fixed annual
interest rate of 3.65% paid annually. The principal and
the interests for the last period will be fully repaid on
the maturity date.

With the approval of China Foreign Exchange Trade
Center National Interbank Funding Center, the
Company issued non-public corporate bond with
amount of RMB1,500,000,000 at 24 April 2020.
After deducting the related underwriting and issuing
fees, the net amount of bond actually received by
the Company is RMB1,493,250,000. The term of the
bond is three years with a fixed annual interest rate of
3.40% paid annually. The principal and the interests
for the last period will be fully repaid on the maturity
date.

With the approval of Shanghai Stock Exchange (SSE
letters [2020]216), the Company issued non-public
corporate bond with amount of RMB3,000,000,000
at 29 May 2020. After deducting the related
underwriting and issuing fees, the net amount
of bond actually received by the Company is
RMB2,989,500,000. The term of the bond is five years
respectively with a fixed annual interest rate of 3.60%
paid annually. The principal and the interests for the
last period will be fully repaid on the maturity date.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(29) Debentures payable (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

(Continued)

As at 30 June 2020, the Company holds corporate
bonds with a total face value of RMB30,250,000,000,
after deducting the related underwriting and issuing
fees, net amount totaling RMB30,134,689,000 with
interest rate range from 3.4% to 6.0%. As at 30 June
2020, the book value of corporate bonds amounted to
RMB5,979,534,000 should be repaid on or before 30
June 2021, such amount was classified as debentures
payable due within one year in financial statements.

As at 10 February 2014, the Board of Directors
of the Company announced the establishment of
medium-term notes and perpetual securities program.
Under this program, Central Plaza Development Ltd. (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, hereinafter
“Central Plaza”) can offer and issue securities to
professional and institutional investors, with a
principal limitation of no more than USD1 billion (or
equivalent in other currency units). Securities will be
issued on different release date and with different
terms. International Financial Center Property Ltd., (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, hereinafter
“IFC") provided unconditional and irrevocable
guarantees and the Company entered into a Keepwell
Deed for the medium-term notes. Pursuant to the
Keepwell Deed, the Company will undertake to cause
Central Plaza to remain solvent and going concern at
all times, and guarantee both Central Plaza and IFC
have sufficient liquidity to ensure timely repayment in
respect of the bonds and the guarantee in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the medium term
notes and other obligations under the Keepwell
Deed. On 12 January 2017, the Medium-Term Notes
and Perpetual Securities Program was updated with
the Keepwell Deed, liquidity support and equity
purchasing commitment provided by the Capital
Group.

As at 25 January 2017, Central Plaza issued medium
term notes amounted to USD400,000,000 and
received proceeds of USD396,006,000. The bond
carries a fixed annual interest rate of 3.875% paid
semi-annually with a maturity period of 3 years. The
principal and the interests for the last period will
be fully repaid on the maturity date. IFC provided
unconditional and irrevocable guarantees and Capital
Group entered into a Keepwell Deed, liquidity support
and equity purchasing commitment for the medium
term notes. As at 30 June 2020, the note was repaid.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(29) Debentures payable (Continued)

(iii)

(Continued)

As at 5 July 2017, Central Plaza issued medium term
notes amounted to USD100,000,000 and received
proceeds of USD99,238,000. The bond carries a fixed
annual interest rate of 3.700% paid semi-annually
with a maturity period of 3 years. The principal and
the interests for the last period will be fully repaid
on the maturity date. IFC provided unconditional and
irrevocable guarantees and Capital Group entered
into a Keepwell Deed, liquidity support and equity
purchasing commitment for the medium term notes.
As at 30 June 2020, the note was repaid.

As at 24 January 2018 Central Plaza updated medium
term notes and perpetual securities program, the
principal limitation for offering and issuing securities
to professional and institutional investors increased to
UsD2,000,000,000 (or equivalent in other currency
units).

As at 30 January 2018, Central Plaza issued medium
term notes amounted to USD500,000,000 and
received proceeds of USD493,832,000. The bond
carries a fixed annual interest rate of 3.875% paid
semi-annually with a maturity period of 3 years. The
principal and the interests for the last period will
be fully repaid on the maturity date. IFC provided
unconditional and irrevocable guarantees and Capital
Group entered into a Keepwell Deed, liquidity support
and equity purchasing commitment for the medium
term notes.

As at 31 October 2019 Central Plaza updated medium
term notes and perpetual securities program, the
principal limitation for offering and issuing securities
to professional and institutional investors increased to
USD3,000,000,000 (or equivalent in other currency
units).

As at 14 January 2020, Central Plaza issued medium
term notes amounted to USD450,000,000 and
received proceeds of USD447,176,000. The bond
carries a fixed annual interest rate of 3.85% paid
semi-annually with a maturity period of 5 years. The
principal and the interests for the last period will
be fully repaid on the maturity date. IFC provided
unconditional and irrevocable guarantees and Capital
Group entered into a Keepwell Deed, liquidity support
and equity purchasing commitment for the medium
term notes.
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4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(29) Debentures payable (Continued)

M. SO BHRKRIAE W T E)

(29) Bt E % (#)

(iv)

As at 2 August 2018, Trade Horizon Global Limited
(a subsidiary of the Company, hereinafter “Trade
Horizon"”) issue note amounted to USD400,000,000
and received proceeds of USD397,619,000 net of
relevant issuance cost. The notes carry a floating
interest rate paid quarterly with a maturity period of
3 years. The principal and the interests for the last
period will be fully repaid on the maturity date. Beijing
Capital Grand Limited(hereinafter “Capital Grand")
provided unconditional and irrevocable guarantees and
Capital Group entered into Keepwell Deed, liquidity
support and equity purchasing commitment for the
note.

(30) Lease liabilities

(v, ZZE-NFNRAZH ARRZFR
AESRERARAAUATHEIER
R KD BEITAEETRRER
MBHEBEAREETERR  BRR
TREF U E)F5397,619,000% T °
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[ERIE R D R B 1~ TR
BR THEAEERAETRR
PESRBENAGREBERZ

(30) AEARE

30 June 31 December

2020 2019

—E_EF —E—NF

~NB=+tH +=ZA=+—H

Lease liabilities HEA®E 1,120,622 930,113
Less: Lease liabilities due B — F AR R

within one year HEAE
(Note 4(27)) (B 3T ™ (27)) (67,489) (54,795)
Net HEadEFE 1,053,133 875,318

(31) Long-term payables

(31) RMEMK

30 June 31 December

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NEF

~NAB=+H +-A=+—H

Trust investment funds ERERAER = 1,580,000

Asset-backed securities BEZHBLFNE 2,691,900 2,691,900

Others Hth 25,576 25,576

Sub-total NEF 2,717,476 4,297,476
Less: Long-term payables due & : —F A E H M K &

within one year JE - 3K

Trust investment funds B RER - (1,580,000)

Sub-total NEF - (1,580,000)

Net pEigl 2,717,476 2,717,476
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4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL /M. &0F8 % &xI1E B M5 (#)

STATEMENTS (Continued)
(31) Long-term payables (Continued)

As at 30 June 2020, the Group's payable to
trust investment funds are fully repaid (31
December 2019: RMB1,580,000,000).

As at 30 June 2020, the Group’'s payable
to asset-backed securities amounted to
RMB2,691,900,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB2,691,900,000), guaranteed by the
Company for its subsidiaries.

As at 30 June 2020, the interest rate range
for long-term payables is 5.20% (31 December
2019: 5.20% to 6.50%).

(32) Derivative financial assets

(31) REMEMNRE)

R-ZE_ZEFEFXA=+H A&
EEMEARERC2BEE (=
T-NF+-_A=+—H: ARK
1,580,000,0007T) °

R-ZE_ZTFNA=1TH x&H
ENEEXHESRBLAARE
2,691,900,0007c (ZE—hF+=
HA=+—H: AR%2,691,900,000
TL) HARBRTFLAFRMER
A

RZE_EEFA=+H  KH
JE T A &R AE5.20% (ZF —
NF+_A=Z+—H:520% =
6.50%) °

(32) TTAEEREE

30 June 31 December

2020 2019
—E-EF —T-hF
AA=tH +ZA=+—H
Derivative financial assets — METHMEE -
Forward foreign exchange R HRONE & 4
contracts
- cash flow hedges -REeEnEEH 149,158 94,872
Cross currency swap RXNEBEEITA
— cash flow hedges -ReREEH 94,151 -
Cross currency interest rate XX B F) = 12 5
swap TEA
— cash flow hedges -ReREEH 23,274 1,059
Total a&t 266,583 95,931

As at 30 June 2020, derivative financial
assets were mainly forward foreign exchange
contracts, cross currency swap and cross
currency interest rate swap with a nominal
amount of AUD513,691,000, USD450,000,000
and USD400,000,000 (31 December 2019:
AUD728,015,000, USDO and USD400,000,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(33) Share capital

CHREUR/RARE T

M. SO BHRKRIAE W T E)

(33)

IR 7

Changes in this period

AHEHED
Transferred
31 December Issue of from 30 June
2019 shares Allotment reserve Others  Subtotal 2020
“E-NE g Sl 33
TZA=t+-H BIHR Bk ABRLER Hit Mt RNB=tH
Non-outstanding shares - EMARBR -
held by domestic legal entity BEREAREBR 2,473,809 - - - - - 2,473,809
held by oversea legal entity ENEARER 357,998 = = = = - 357,998
Outstanding shares - mERG -
H share HP& 1,020,756 - 510,378 - - 510,378 1,531,134
Total A 3,852,563 - 510,378 - - 510,378 4,362,941

In December 2019, the Company issued 5 rights
shares for every 10 existing shares comprising
H share rights issue at HK$1.87 per H rights
share; domestic share rights issue at RMB1.68
per domestic rights share and non-H foreign
share rights issue at RMB1.68 per non-H foreign
rights share (hereinafter “rights issue”). As at
30 June 2020, the Company has received the
proceeds amounting to RMB2,186,095,000 after
deducting the issuance expenses from rights
issue, verified by Grant Thornton International
Ltd and issued capital verification report No.
1102C0016. The Company’'s share capital is
increased by RMB1,334,981,000, and the
remaining RMB851,114,000 is included in
capital reserve (share premium). The Company
has received the proceeds amounting to
RMB1,385,333,000 from domestic shares
rights issue in December 2019, of which
the Company’s share capital is increased by
RMB824,603,000, RMB560,730,000 is included
in the capital reserve (share premium). The
Company has received the proceeds amounting
to RMB800,762,000 from H share rights issue
in January 2020, of which the Company’s
share capital is increased by RMB510,378,000,
RMB290,384,000 is included in the capital
reserve (share premium) (Note 4(34)).

RN_E-NF+A  AREIRE
B 10831 A Bt Al & Aic 3 5 A
P B A7) 2 2 22 DA B HUR 1t B B A
RIEE1.87B T ZHBHA - AE
BRAEREBRENABBEARYE
1.687C 2 W& B I S AT B 3F
HESNEBREREODRBEBEAR
#1.687T Z 3EHRXIMNE P it B (A
THRIMEE]D BE-_FT_FFX
A=+R #EMAEFRECEE
AL - EERFA GRS (IR
EBER) TUAREL D AKR R
F (2020) £110ZC00165% 5 & #
T HBBETERREEESHA
# AR 12,186,095,0007T © AR
AR A 1B 0 A R#1,334,981,000
JT - FER A R¥851,114,0007T 5t
ABRRTE (BAEE) - KRAR
—E-NAFTZRAKRBAERHE
% P15 %18 A R#1,385,333,000
7T A $1824,603,0007T &t A B&
A - 560,730,000 Tt A B ARRTE
(BRAEE) - ARBAR_ZT_-F
F-ARBHRMHEEAEREA
K #800,762,0007T - AFARKE
510,378,000 Lt ABRA - AR
290,384,000t 5t A B AR TR (%
A 0w 8 ) (K 5£ 0 (34)) -

ERIBEXROBERLAR — T2 FhHRSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M. A BEHzxBEEW T (&)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(33) Share capital (Continued) (33) BA (&)
Changes in this period
LS AL
31 December Issue of Transferred 30 June
2018 shares  Allotment  from reserve Others Subtotal 2019
“E-\% “E-hE
+ZA=+t-8 EaFk Bk AE2ER Hity Nt ~A=TH
Non-outstanding shares - HMARAR -
held by domestic legal entity BREABER 1,649,206 - - - - - 1,649,206
held by oversea legal entity BMNEABBR 357,998 - - - - - 357,998
Outstanding shares - mERA -
H share HER 1,020,756 - - - - - 1,020,75
Total At 3,027,960 - - - - - 3,027,960
(34) Capital reserve (34) EXNE
31 December 30 June
2019 Additions Reductions 2020
—B-NF et
+=ZA=+-H 2R H 48 n RE R AA=TH
Share premium BRAG B 395,293 290,384 = 685,677
31 December 30 June
2018 Additions Reductions 2019
—E-)\F ZE-NF
+-—A=+—H AHEM KE R D ~AZTH
Share premium BAEE 469,930 - (52,355) 417,575
As at January 2020, the Company has received ARRRZE_ZEF-AWEIHEK
the proceeds amounting to RMB800,762,000 AR FT15 ;1B AR #800,762,000
from H shares rights issue, of which 7t H290,384,000 L5 A E AR
RMB290,384,000 is included in the capital NE(RARE) -

reserve (share premium).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(35) Other comprehensive income

. &GRSR RIAR M )

(35) Hftt iz & W &

Other comprehensive income

in balance sheet

EERERTANEANE

Other comprehensive income in income statements

for the six months ended 30 June 2020

BEZR-REARCTRLEAEABBARRNARGSUE

Attribute

to

owners
of the

31 December  Company
2019 after taxes

30 June

Amount

2020 before taxes

Less: Transfer

in profit or
loss previously Attribute ~ Attribute
recognized to owners o the non-
in other of the  controlling
comprehensive Less: Income ~ Company  interests
income taes after taxes after taxes

ZE-AE  HEBER  C3CBE KEEA  WUEfAER  WFER  HABER  R4BER
+2B=t-A 808 ARZtR REE  hEAEER L 828 HERR
Other comprehensive income cannot be AR EABEBENHEME LR
reclassified into profit or loss thereafter 38,283 = 38,283 = = = = =
- Changes in fair value of other equity - ZHEXTARE
instrument investments MEEED 38,283 = 38,283 = = = = =
Other comprehensive income may be REARERRN
redlassified into profit or loss thereafter AiGANE 251,660 248 279,102 39,397 (13,871) 1916 .48 -
- Changes in fair value of investment -RREE\RENE
propertes transferred from BEERNERERLE
inventories (3) 230) 279,878 (10,403) 269,475 = (13.871) 3,468 (10,403) =
- Effective portion of gains or losses on -~ - R&FEEHER
hedging instruments in a cash flow
hedge (14,822) 4,656 (10,166) 6,208 = (1,552) 4,656 =
= Currency tranlation differences -hERENEEE (13,396) 33,189 19,793 33,189 - - 33,189 -
Total At 289,943 7,48 317,385 39,397 (13,871) 1,916 7,48 =
(@) For the six months ended 30 June 2020, the (a) BE-ZT-_ZTFAA=1+RHLEXNEAR

Group sold some of the properties in inventories,
of which fair value gains previously recognized
in other comprehensive income amounted to
RMB10,403,000 (For the six months ended 30 June
2019: RMB29,618,000) was accordingly transferred
into profit or loss.

HE ASEHREEBIME -
ZWMoMERTBEHBENFEEE
FARMESKRENITS  REE
FHEEEAZHEANSEAAR
#%10,403,000c (B E-F — L F
NRAZTHLEREASME AR
29,618,0007T) °

BRIBEXRODBERAR —Z2_ZFHhHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL /. &I EHmERIBE W T (4&)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(35) Other comprehensive income (Continued) (35) Hit s a W = (42)

Other comprehensive income
in balance sheet

Other comprehensive income in income statements
for the six months ended 30 June 2019

BERERTEAMGANS HEZZ-NEAA=ZTALABABRAART At KE
Less: Transfer
in profit or
Attribute loss previously Attribute  Attribute to
to owners recognized to owners  the non-
of the in other of the  controlling
31 December  Company 30 June Amount  comprehensive Less: Income  Company interests
2018 after taxes 2019 before taxes income taxes  after taxes  after taxes
“Z-0\E REBER ZT-AE MERE B EtRe O ASH RESER RESER
TZR=+-H 8427 7~A=TH REE  hmrgat ER B SBERE
Other comprehensive income cannot be  MAT & EREEERH
reclassified into profit or loss thereafter ~ E &A% 38,283 - 38,283 - - - - -
- Changes in fair value of other equity - EftEHTEHKE
instrument investments AREEE §JJ 38,283 - 38,283 - - - - -
Other comprehensive income may be AR EHBEERR
reclassified into profit or loss thereafter ~ Efufz ’Sﬂﬁlrm 400463 (121,604) 278859  (117,978) (39,4900 35864 (121,604) -
- Changes in fair value of investment - AFEEARE K EHE
properties transferred from EANEMEARELD0)
inventories (a) 341,951 (29618) 312,333 - (39,490) 9,872 (29,618) -
- Effective portion of gains or losses on - B4R EEHHE
hedging instruments in a cash flow
hedge 66,868 (77,975) (11,107) ~ (103,967) - 25,992 (77,975) -
- Currency translation differences -NBRENEER (8,356) (14,011) (22,367) (14,011) - - (14,011) -
Total EEs 438746 (121,604) 317,142 (117,978) (39,490) 35864 (121,604) -
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4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(36) Surplus reserve

M. SO BHRKRIAE W T E)

(36) BER R

31 December Other 30 June

2019  Additions adjustments Reductions 2020

“B-N% ZEC-%E

+=A=1-H RERR Hitt A% RHE D ~A=t1H

Statutory surplus reserve N YN 829,151 = = = 829,151
31 December Other 30 June

2018 Additions  adjustments  Reductions 2019

“ENF “E0F

+-A=1+-H RERE H i3 % RHER D ~NA=TH

Statutory surplus reserve N YNk 665,381 - - - 665,381

In accordance with the PRC Company Law
and the Company's Articles of Association
and resolution of the board of directors, the
Company should appropriate 10% of net profit
of the year to the statutory surplus reserve, and
the Company can cease appropriation when the
statutory surplus reserve accumulated to more
than 50% of the capital. The statutory surplus
reserve can be used to make up for the loss or
increase the paid in capital after approval from
the appropriate authorities. The Company does
not recognize statutory surplus reserve for the
six months ended 30 June 2020 (For the six
months ended 30 June 2019: RMB Nil).

BIE(PEARKFMBEARE) » &
RAERRESEMRE AR
AIZFEFNEMNI0%RIVEATE
B TEe BEEATABAES
2 AEEDRANS0%IA L
ATNHRER - ATBBABEEE
HEZRTARNBEMEIE - k&g
MR - 2T -FFE/=1
BiE/NE AHM ARRF KRR
ETEBHBRAEBEHEZZE-NLFAN
A=+HINEAHME: &) -

EABEBRBERAT BB EF MRS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-ZERNA=THIENEASB R ENZTHAN

CHEMAARET T

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M.

STATEMENTS (Continued)
(37) Retained earnings

B Ot S R IR M R (#)

(37) A7 BRI H

Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2020 2019

BE-2-%F HE-_TNF
ANA=+HLE NA=tHILE

NE A H A 7~ {8 A HA
Retained earnings at the AR 5 B M E
beginning of the period (A& A
(before adjustments) 11,412,652 11,037,357
Adjustments-the new leasing B -MAEEER
standards = (112)
Retained earnings at the AR 5 B A E
beginning of the period (AER)
(after adjustments) 11,412,652 11,037,245
Add: profit attributable m:ANEHENE AR
to owners of the F& 3R Y F FE
Company 850,221 1,187,493
Less: Dividends to common Ik B AR A R (a)
share (a) (741,700) (666,151)
Dividends to other equity HEMERTE
instruments interests IR 5 B (1,028,783) (284,291)
Retained earnings at the end  Hi K & 5 B F) )8
of the period 10,492,390 11,274,296

(a) On the meeting of board of directors held on 23
March 2020, the directors proposed a final dividend
of RMBO0.17 per share to the shareholder, the tota
amount payable were RMB741,700,000 based on the
Company’s total issued number of shares as at 23
March 2020, which is 4,362,940,850. The dividend
distribution was approved by shareholders on general
meeting of shareholders held on 13 May 2020.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . ARz BEE W T (&)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(38) Revenue and cost of sales (38) B W AFEERAX
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2020 2019

BE-2-%F% HE-_TNF
ANA=+HLE NA=tHILE

~1E A E 7~ & A A3

Revenue from main operations (a) FEEBRA@Q) 9,013,497 10,323,850
Revenue from other operations (b) H 2 % U A (b) 205,786 152,535
Total & 9,219,283 10,476,385
Six months Six months

ended 30 June ended 30 June

2020 2019

BE-2-%F BE_TNF
AA=t+HL NA=t+HL

A~{EBHE N EREEEI
Cost of sales from main operations (a) = & % 7 A 7~ (a) 6,754,423 6,240,113
Cost of sales from other operations (b) th % 75 5k 2 (b) 128,052 77,231
Total = 6,882,475 6,317,344
(@) Revenue and cost of sales from main (@) FEEBWRAFMEZEEBR
operations S
Six months ended Six months ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BZ-Z2-ZFxA=1tH BZE_T-NF~A=TH

EAEAHE LE7~ {8 A
Revenue Cost of sales Revenue Cost of sales

from main  from main  from main  from main
operations  operations  operations  operations
TEER TEEH FEER FEER

A B A WA KA

Sales of properties BHEHE 7,779,698 5825127  7371,862 4,503,972

Primary land development T —HFEE 795,150 705,623 2,565,246 1,695,196
Rental income of investment K E&MEMREMA

properties 298,451 120,513 349,814 40,945

Others it 140,198 103,160 36,928 -

Total B 9,013,497 6,754,423 10,323,850 6,240,113

BRIBEXBRNBERAR —Z_2FhHRE 155



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M. A BEHzxBEEW T (&)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(38) Revenue and cost of sales (Continued) (38) XU AFEERAK(E)

(a) Revenue and cost of sales from main (@) FEEBRWAMEEELR
operations (Continued) (&)
The Group's rental income comes from AABIMESKARERHE
renting out its houses and buildings. For HEEFEREEY - &=
the six months ended 30 June 2020, the ZEZFEFRA=THILER
variable rent recognized based on a certain & A EAfE - S AFRER
percentage of the lessee’s sales in the FHEHABEERN —F
rental income was RMB112,954,000. PlERNAEZHe /AR

112,954,0007T -

(b) Revenue and cost of sales from other (b) HAhEHRWAFMEMERR
operations ¥
Six months ended Six months ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BZ-Z-25XA=tR HE-Z-AF A=1H
ERERAHHE IEAEAESE
Revenue Cost of sales Revenue Cost of sales

from other from other  from other  from other
operations  operations  operations  operations

LRSS REu%®  HEER E R

KA BA Yo A A
Temporary rental RHERE 56,606 35,587 28,044 15,222
Merchandising HmiHE 86,647 72,103 66,408 53,469
Other operations ERES 62,533 20,362 58,083 8,540
Total At 205,786 128,052 152,535 77,231
(39) Taxes and surcharges (39) B & R M n
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019 Standards

BE-ZF_-%2F BE_TNF
AA=tHLE AKNA=t+HL

N8 B 5 7~ {E A 8 AR %
LAT T b 2 (E R 434,026 892,756 Note 3
B =
Others H b 120,242 139,973
Total i 554,268 1,032,729
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

CHREUR/RARE T

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 0. &0 B mKIE\EE W #)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(40) Expense by nature 40) EAEMEDE
Cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses FIBRFHNEENEK - HEEH
and general and administrative expenses in MERERAKRRMEES R JIR
income statements classified by nature are as N
follows:
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2020 2019
BE-2_%F BE_ThLF
NA=T+THILE ANA=THILE
~E B H A 7~ & A B
Costs of properties sold BEith E 8 B ik AR 5,758,369 4,296,207
Costs of primary land development = it — &% 59 3% ik X 656,752 1,695,196
Costs of operation of investment 1% & ¥ % E & K
properties 6,314 21,886
Costs of merchandising EmiHE 72,103 53,469
Wages, social security and welfare T& - R & 1& F 524,526 528,025
Administrative office expenses THRPRE 76,160 136,362
Depreciation and amortization 1 & B o 62,499 34,980
Travel and entertainment expenses = k8% & 10,243 17,419
Auditor’s service fee 25T R AR 75 & A 1,227 2,933
- Audit service - BETRH 656 2,366
- Non-audit services - EEFR® 571 567
Other intermediary service fee Hin RN AR 7% B 41,727 44,182
Marketing and commission fee ZHEAeER 203,609 246,600
Others Hm 192,234 54,285
Total &5 7,605,763 7,131,544

BRIBEXBRNBERAR —Z_2FhHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(41) Financial expenses

(41) B EH

m. SO BHRKRIAE W T

Six months Six months

ended 30 June ended 30 June

2020 2019

BE-Z-TF BE_T-ILF

~NA=1+HIE NA=ZTHLE

NE A H A 7~ & A HA

Interest expense MEXH 2,703,848 2,793,810

Add: Interest expense of lease m:-MHEAENE

¥ 28,461 1,213

Less: cost of capitalized interest & : E&{L F B X HH (1,206,927) (1,267,100)

Interest expenses-net MEERFRE 1,525,382 1,527,923

Interest income LB A (154,768) (155,692)

Exchange gain-net X B m R (97,293) (32,531)

Others H 88,559 137,079

Net 3R 1,361,880 1,476,779

(42) Other income (42) i =

Six months Six months

ended 30 June ended 30 June Assets/

2020 2019  income related
BZE-Z-%F BE_T-NF

AA=THIL NA=tTHIE BEE,/

AEAHE 7 {E A H U5 & 48

Government grants B 75 4 B Income related

19,870 62,460 SRR

Income related

Others Hit 636 180 U7 25 48
Total =E 20,506 62,640
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . & f0fBF 7 <18 B M i (&)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(43) Investment income

(43) rE W =

Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2020 2019
BE-2-%F% HE-_TNF
ANA=+HIE AA=+HLE
<18 A HE 7~ 1E A HA
Share of net profit or loss of BREDEZF AN
investees under equity method DENHRRESEN
FE DR 19,138 107,651
Business combination other than  JER —32#H T %
common control (Note 5(1)) At (HERA) 680,404 -
Interest income earned during the E#E#HEHEIEHN
period of ownership of debt B A
investments 445,429 953,595
Gains from disposal of joint BEGER
ventures and associates Bk 8 1> N a = 1,597
Others H A 2,218 8,897
Total &3 1,147,189 1,071,740

(44) Gains on changes in fair value

(44) 2 REE2HEDR

Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2020 2019
BE-Z2_%2F HE-T—ILHF
NA=T+THILE ANA=THILE
< ME A B E 7~ & A B
Non-financial assets FEMEE
Investment properties HEUEREME 305,367 143,463
Trading financial assets RXHtemEE
Asset management plan BEEEE 1,097 25,928
Capped currency swap contracts MEEEEHAL (18,420) 39,420
Derivative financial assets MHEeMEE
Forward foreign exchange REIONE S K
contract 18,532 -
Cross currency swap RXNEBBHETA (7,781) -
Cross currency interest rate R X B WA =iz 8
swap IA (4,506) -
Realization of fair value gains with & 35 4 & & [o] 45 J&
sale of properties AREEZEEZ (3,100) (8,826)
Total A& 291,189 199,985

EAIERRNERAT —F-FEFHEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-ZERNA=THIENEASB R ENZTHAN

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(45) Income tax expense

CHEURARBE T

m. SO BHRKRIAE W T

(45) REHER

Six months Six months

ended 30 June ended 30 June

2020 2019

Q:I:— “' _— “' ﬂE @i j-l_,fﬁ

/\E—-'—H.u: /\ﬂ_+E|JJ:

~1E B Hi 7~ 18 A

Current income tax based on tax Z# A NEERTE

law and related regulations FTEMEMMER 458,984 706,141
Deferred income tax iIESE TS (311,734) (287,301)

Total =k 147,250 418,840
Reconciliations from income tax calculated BERAEHFBERNFEBBEER

based on the applicable tax rates and total

RERBRERFAENASHANR

profit presented in the consolidated financial FEHER:
statements to the income tax expenses are listed
below:
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2020 2019
BE-_Z-_ZF HEZZT—NLF
/\H—+E.|J: /\H_+E|JJ:
<8 A H A 7~ {E A EA
Profit before income tax BRG] 1,166,911 2,177,923
Income tax expenses calculated at 3% i@ B £25%
applicable tax rates (25%) FTERREN 291,728 544,481
Share of net profit or loss of joint R EZZ AR HIE
ventures and associates under EI’J%BZ&E aF
equity method BENMHE (4,785) (26,913)
Business combination other than JER —#2#| T %
common control X (170,101) -
Other loss/(profit) not subject FEME R
to tax 34,495 (49,129)
Profit from internal equity transfer 5 Z & & R 2B %
transaction subject to tax R E W AR = 2,804
Distribution eligible for A DAFE B A1 51 32 89
tax deduction HETAED4 (134,648) (127,620)
Deductible losses for which EHABREE
no deferred income tax asset FRigHi & EM
was recognized A E e 110,725 66,995
Expenses, costs and losses 15 H R B B S
not deductible BAMIB X 19,138 8,222
Others HAth 698 -
Income tax expenses Frig i & A 147,250 418,840
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-ZTERA=THIENEASBE (KR

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(46) Earnings per share

(a)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated
by dividing the consolidated net profit
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the

CEHEBLR/ARKTIT

M. SO BHRKRIAE W T E)

(46) B W &=

(a)

EXZRWE
EAXGRKREUNEBRER

A E B AR A fFFENE
Br AR AR BT SN E B A

Company by the weighted average number BN HEE
of ordinary shares issued during the year:
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2020 2019
BE-Z2_%TF HE-T—ILF
AA=t+HL /\ﬂf‘f’ElJJ:
A E B 8 7~ {8 A HA
Consolidated net profit FEREARREN
attributable to owners of & HFENE
the Company 850,221 1,187,493
Less: Distribution to other W HMtERTA
equity instruments D HE (363,902) (284,291)
Consolidated net profit HENSARIEER
attributable to ordinary AR R ) & OF 3 F)E
shareholders of the
Company 486,319 903,202
Weighted average number of ZARRQARZEITEINER
ordinary shares issued % B 0 4 15 B
(in thousands) (FH&) 4,276,801 3,027,960
Basic earnings per share E ARG RIK R
(RMB yuan per share) (ARBTER) 0.11 0.30
Including: Eh
- Basic earnings per share —FREKEENR
relating to continuing TR
operations (ANRETER)
(RMB yuan per share) 0.11 0.30

(b) The diluted earnings per share is calculated

by dividing the net profit of the combined
shares attributable to the shareholders of
the parent company after the adjustment
of the diluted potential common shares
by the weighted average of the common
shares issued by the company after the
adjustment. For the six months ended 30
June 2020 and 2019 diluted earnings per
share equal to basic earnings per share.

(b)

TR LMEH‘;%%% IE
BELEBRAZRENES
Qﬂ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ@é\ﬁ%
FE R AR B2 AN QA &
TTIE SN 38 AR B N A 39 2
HE-BHE-_Z-_ZFA
—tTHLEAEABERER
—NLERNA=Z+HIER
B ABREAARATMEGRIK
HmERERTRKE -

BEIEXEKRNABRRR —Z_FFPHRS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-ZERNA=THIENEASB R ENZTHAN

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(47) Notes to the cash flow statements

(a)

CHEMAARET T

Cash received relating to other

.

B Ot S R IR M R (#)

47) B REXREETE
(a) WBHMELEETEHETRAN

operating activities Re
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2020 2019
HE-Z-FH HBHEZT-ILF
AA=tHLE NA=THIE
ANEAHE 78 A B
Bank Interest income |ATH B WA 154,768 155,692
Deposits received KRWTERRES 146,187 -
Government repurchase of land U 3| & Bt fF 4 #

use rights [ & 518 49,996 70,000

Government grants and tax W E & BT IR &
returns T W3R 38 5K 20,506 62,640
Return from operations Ui Bl 48 & 15 3R 63,151 5,317
Total &t 434,608 293,649

(b) Cash paid relating to other operating

(b) XNEMELLITDHEHD

activities B4
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2020 2019
Q:I:— £ ﬂi ﬁ:t— = j‘LﬂE
/\E—-I_H.”: /\Hf‘l'EHJ:
A8 A 78 A B
Marketing and promotion M ES

expenses 107,906 126,858

Sales commission and HeakdN B
agency fees 137,430 166,817
Administrative expenses ERRNE 86,403 182,514
Cash paid to operations T HY AR 1 AR 104,675 255,596
Deposits paid XRERE® 147,182 200,000
Others Hh 46,794 42,973
Total &t 630,390 974,758
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(47) Notes to the cash flow statements

M. SO BHRKRIAE W T E)

47) REREXRBEBITR(Z)

(Continued)
(c) Cash received relating to other () WINEMEREETHEBEN
investing activities BE
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2020 2019
BE-Z-2F HE_T-NF
AA=tHI NB=tHIE
AE A B E 7N M A EA ]
Principals and interests repaid WEEBAFES
from related parties WEALRHE 3,164,361 4,720,968
Cash received from cooperation W 5| & 18 B 2k
projects 239,076 1,057,319
Delivery of forward foreign & HANE & 4 %2 Z
exchange contracts 105,587 135,467
Total At 3,509,024 5,913,754

(d) Cash paid relating to other investing

(d) <FHEHMRREZHEEN

activities BE
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2020 2019
BE-Z_ZF BE_ZT—NF
ANA=t+HIL ANA=THLE
A8 A HE A ERE
Cash paid to related parties TR A E SR 1,966,848 9,317,912
Cash paid for cooperation STRIERAEREE
projects 1,140,294 502,833
Performance guarantees paid for {4k 288 #Es
acquisition of Tianjin T)-Metro BB AFT (L TE
MTR Construction Co. Ltd. ES2 R ot 1)
("T)-Metro MTR") BORARRES 32,125 30,000
Cash paid to Tiancheng Yongtai 3 {5 Kk sk =0 7 3 &%
for operations and investment &Y %
properties 685 117,300
Others Hfth 12,337 -
Total At 3,152,289 9,968,045
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL m. 8P BEHRRIBEEWFE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(47) Notes to the cash flow statements 47) B FREXREETE (&)
(Continued)
(e) Cash received relating to other (e) WEBHEMESETHERAN
financing activities BE
Six months Six months
ended ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BZE-_Z_ZF HE-_ZT—N&F
AA=tHIL NA=THBIE

AME A HE N8 A E

Cash received from related R E S FER
parties 2,058,467 6,297,780

Receive from delivery of MEEBEHREHD
capped currency swap contract % U F| 5B 7122 -
Total B &t 2,065,589 6,297,780
(f) Cash paid relating to financing (f) ZHHMHESEEEZHEEN
activities e

Six months Six months
ended ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE-_Z_ZF HE_ZT—NF
AA=tHI NA=THIE

8 A H R A A E
Principals and interests paid for (g5 E S IF{E
borrowings from e kA
related parties 1,900,909 67,200
Payment of keepwell deed YT HEREE
service fee 32,831 31,329
Payment of financing expenses Y HHREER 30,695 70,533
Cash paid for capped currency JIEEEIEHEH
swap contracts LB = 59,703
Cash paid for repayment of EREEEBREIMNN
lease liabilities Gk 80,428 -
Others Hith 19,865 18,639
Total & &t 2,064,728 247,404
For the six months ended 30 June 2020, BEZT-ZHF A A=1H
the Group paid a total cash outflow of EAREARR AEEMN
RMB80,428,000 related to leasing, and MEBEREANERER
there was no other cash outflow related + & AK#80,428,0007T -
to leasing except for the above amount of B L ETAZE RS EN
cash paid for repayment of lease liabilities HEBBEXMHEEAN
included in financing activities. ﬁﬁi\ﬁﬂiﬁiﬁ*ﬂgifﬁ IR SR
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4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(48) Supplemental information of cash flow

statement

Reconciliation from net profit to cash flows

from operating activities

CHREUR/RARE T

M. SO BHRKRIAE W T E)

(A8) REREXRWAER

BENHATRELEETHRER

p==3
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2020 2019
BE-_S-ZF BHEZT—NF
ABA=THL NA=+HIE
A~EAEE N ELE
Net profit A A 1,019,661 1,759,083
Add: Provisions for credit impairment il : 15 AR {EE & 2,792 -
Depreciation of right-of-use CREBSENE
assets (Note 4(15)) (B EEPE(15)) 59,054 -
Depreciation of fixed assets EEEENE
(Note 4(14)) (B FEPE(14)) 18,183 15,980
Amortization of intangible B EEHH
assets (Note 4(16)) (Mt sEm(16)) 20,258 -
Amortization of long-term REGFHE A EH
prepaid expenses (Note 4(17)) (P EEmE(17)) 43,588 34,643
Gains on disposal of fixed assets BEETEEREM
and other long-term assets RHEENFRE (2,285) (3,090)
Interest expenses HBER 2,654,728 2,787,019
Investment income BEWE (1,091,374) (982,835)
Gains of changes in fair value NREBEZEHRE (294,289) (208,811)
Gains on net exposure hedge FEE Bl s = (5,887)
Increase in deferred income tax EIEFSH A EREM
assets (403,012) (360,849)
Increase in deferred income tax EEFEHAaBmEM
liabilities 85,717 102,467
Increase in inventories HFEREM (6,028,086) (3,558,609)
(Increase)/Decrease in XREBREH
restricted cash (g m),/ mo (511,731) 389,413
Decrease in operating e EIBR MR A
receivables 1,017,221 1,909,376
Increase in operating payables e M EAIEE B350 2,458,285 245,093
Net cash flows (used in)/generated 4% E®) (£ /),
from operating activities EENReTEFE (951,290) 2,122,993

BRIBEXBRNBERAR —Z_2FhHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(48) Supplemental information of cash flow
statement (Continued)

Significant operating, investing and

m. SO BHRKRIAE W T

(A8) RERERWAER (&)

THRESHXINERLE - &

financing activities not relating to cash ENBETH
receivement and disbursement
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE-Z_ZFF HE-Z—NF
ANB=t+HIE NA=THLE
7~ 18 A H & N8 A H
Additions of right-of-use assets EHEIET IS AR
BE 243,462 -
Total = 243,462 -

(@) Change of cash

() REFLHENR

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

BE-_Z-_Z% BEZZT-NE

AHA=THL AV =l =l

AME B H AR

Cash at the end of the period 3 & &) # K % 5 30,631,935 36,847,224
Less: cash at the beginning of & : & M HAV &2 %8

the period (25,791,105) (21,748,206)

Increase of cash eI s 4,840,830 15,099,018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . & f0fBF 7 <18 B M i (&)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(48) Supplemental information of cash flow
statement (Continued)

(A8) RERERWAER (&)

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (b) WMEFLTE

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE-Z2_-%F HE_T-NF
ANA=THIL ANA=THLE
ANEAEE AN ENER

Cash and cash equivalent paid R HI L 4 #)38 & M
ReEED = -

Less: cash and cash equivalent & : F AR AR

held by subsidiaries MRS EEY (125,420) -

Net cash received from WS T RA XM
acquisition of subsidiaries BEFE (125,420) -
Proceeds from acquisition  E{§ T A& W EHE - -

BE_F_FFANA=1H
LEANAE R BB 73 F 22 AR

Net assets of acquiring subsidiaries
at acquisition date for the six months

ended 30 June 2020 BEAYWFEE
Current assets MENEE 12,217,722
Non-current assets EREEE 308,021
Current liabilities mEas (5,668,295)
Non-current liabilities R AaE (458,340)
6,399,108

(c) Cash and cash equivalent

() BERBAEEEY

30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—EC-EE —E—NF
~NA=+tH +-A=+—H
Cash at bank and on hand &#¥& % 32,387,804 27,035,244
Less: restricted bank A =B BR I Y
deposits R ATIF (1,676,977) (1,165,488)
restricted other cash = 2 PR &9 E A

balances BikE g (78,892) (78,651)

Cash and cash equivalent R&RIREZFEY
at period end Hi R 84 R 30,631,935 25,791,105

BRIBEXBRNBERAR —Z_2FhHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

5. CHANGES OF CONSOLIDATION SCOPE h. aHEEME
(1) Business combinations involving (1) ¥R—EHTHWEESH
enterprises other than common control
(a) Business combinations involving (@) AHBEMNFER—ZFHTH
enterprises other than common control TEEH

for the period

Operating
(Loss)/ cash flow Net cash
Revenue from  Profit from fom  flow from
The basis for ~ combination ~ combination  combination  combination
Acquisition  Equity ratio  Acquisition combination date to end of date to end of date to end of date to end of
Acquiree Acquisition date cost  acquired  method Combination date date  the period  the period  the period the period
BEAZ BEAZ BEHZ
EERZ BRH BAK BAH
B BEAN BEAM BEFN

BE B4 BEA EErfy R(BR)/ BEEY ReRg
HEER BEHE mA EERil  REHR BER BEKE LN ik Reng R
Wuhan Rongcheng 29 June 2020 - - Control transferred 29 June 2020 Agreement - - - -
Kaichuang through signed
agreement
RERAFE ZEZZERAZTAR hEBEENE  —I-FFAACTAR ha#:T
Shouwan Yuye 1 January 2020 - - Control transferred 1 January 2020 Agreement 101,324 (6,547) 184,380 10,307
through signed
agreement
EBEZ ZZ2-%%-A-R hEgEANE -2-25-R-H ha#:T
Shanghai Shoujia 31 March 2020 - - Control transferred 31 March 2020 Articles of 1463 1,057 60,929 (1,032)
through Association
agreement changed
LEEE ZE-TEZAZT-H haERENE  _T-TE-AST-R EREER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

5. CHANGES OF CONSOLIDATION SCOPE .
(Continued)

&G RE N E @)

(1) Business combinations involving (1) ¥ER—EFEHTHWEESGHE)
enterprises other than common control

(Continued)

(b) The assets and liabilities of the (b) BEESFTNBEEHEHNWEERN

acquiree on combination date are EEBERITAOT:
listed below:
(i) Wuhan Rongcheng Kaichuang (i) REFBFHE

Fair value on Book value on

combination

combination

date date
BEH BEA
AREE REEER
Cash at bank and BEES
on hand 36,639 36,639
Advances to TESBR X
suppliers 615 615
Other receivables o e IR R 4,589,339 4,589,339
Inventories FE 6,523,479 4,957,559
Other current assets EHibRmeh&&E 2,277 2,277
Fixed assets BEEEE 2 4
Less : Accounts W EA RIB
payable (172) (172)
Contract ARAE
liabilities (4,383) (4,383)
Other payables H e R (5,021,903) (5,021,903)
Deferred RIEMSHAE
income tax
liabilities (391,479) =
Net assets FEE 5,734,414 4,559,975
Less : Non-controlling g : 2> 8% B 25
interests (2,925,272) (2,325,587)
Net assets acquired  HUSHFE E 2,809,142 2,234,388

BRIBEXRODBERAR —Z2_ZFHhHRE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

5. CHANGES OF CONSOLIDATION SCOPE .
(Continued)

BFEHENEE @)

(1) Business combinations involving (1) ¥R—EHTHWEESGHE)
enterprises other than common control

(Continued)

(b) The assets and liabilities of the (b)
acquiree on combination date are
listed below: (Continued)

WBESTRBEANEEN
BEBERITWT: (&)

(i) BEEEX

Fair value on Book value on

(i) Shouwan Yuye

combination

combination

date date
BEA BEA
AREE REEE
Cash at bank and BEES
on hand 70,074 70,074
Trade receivables FE IR 3R B 36,114 36,114
Advances to TE T BR K
suppliers 104,399 104,399
Other receivables o fE IR K 15,095 15,095
Inventories FE 21 21
Other current assets EHmeh&E 1,182 1,182
Fixed assets EEEE 482 482
Right-of-use assets TREEE 41 41
Intangible assets EEAE 304,390 53,827
Long-term prepaid RESHER
expenses 2,683 2,683
Less : Accounts e SR IR
payable (69,065) (69,065)
Contract ARBE
liabilities (45,636) (45,636)
Employee JE < B T % B
benefits
payables (5,334) (5,334)
Taxes payable JE R F B (1,520) (1,520)
Other payables H A BT K (178,057) (178,057)
Deferred BEEMBHAE
income tax
liabilities (62,716) =
Provisions BEE (1,827) (1,827)
Lease liabilities HEAaE (42) (42)
Net assets FEE 170,284 (17,563)
Less : Non-controlling &« 2> 8k R &=
interests (83,630) 8,606
Net assets acquired  EXfSH)FEE 86,654 (8,957)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE—T-_FFANA=TRALANEAMNEGRENZAN  SEELAARE T

(1) Business combinations involving
enterprises other than common control
(Continued)

(iii) Shanghai Shoujia

CHANGES OF CONSOLIDATION SCOPE .
(Continued)

(b) The assets and liabilities of the
acquiree on combination date are
listed below: (Continued)

&G RE N E @)

(1) FE-—ZHTHEHEE @)

(b) WEESTRBEANEEMN
BEBRITWT: (&)

(iii) £EE %

Fair value Book value
BER BEH
On On
combination combination
date date
AREE REEE
Cash at bank and on & &4
hand 18,707 18,707
Other receivables H it JE UR FX 773,506 773,506
Inventories FE 46,275 37,172
Fixed assets EEEE 423 423
Less : Accounts B FE
payable (72,912) (72,912)
Contract ARAE
liabilities (2,684) (2,684)
Employee JE A< Bk T 5 B
benefits
payables 111 111
Taxes payable FE B (180,110) (180,110)
Other payables H b FE 3R (86,630) (86,630)
Deferred ELEFEH AR
income tax
liabilities (2,276) =
Net assets FEE 494,410 487,583
Less : Non-controlling 3 : /> £t i% B 25
interests (198,117) (195,033)
Net assets acquired BMEHNFEE 296,293 292,550
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-ZERNA=THIENEASB R ENZTHAN

5. CHANGES OF CONSOLIDATION SCOPE
(Continued)

(1) Business combinations involving
enterprises other than common control
(Continued)

(b)

The assets and liabilities of the
acquiree on combination date are
listed below: (Continued)

The Group adopts valuation techniques to
determine the fair value of the assets and
liabilities of Wuhan Rongcheng Kaichuang,
Shouwan Yuye and Shanghai Shoujia at
combination date. Valuation methods of
main assets and critical assumptions are as
follows:

The evaluation method of inventory
for sale is a hypothetical development
method, the valuation equals to the
gross development value at completion
by deducting the development costs to
complete, tax and estimated profit margin,
etc. The key assumptions used are as
follows : Properties with contracted sales
amounts are taking reference to contract
price; the unsold properties are evaluated
by market comparison approach taking
reference to expected sales price.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2020
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BFEHENEE @)

(1) FE-—ZHTHEHEE @)
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WBESTRBEANEEN
BEBRITWT: (&)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

5. CHANGES OF CONSOLIDATION SCOPE
(Continued)

(1) Business combinations involving
enterprises other than common control
(Continued)

(b)

The assets and liabilities of the
acquiree on combination date are
listed below: (Continued)

The evaluation method of the inventory
for holding is the discounted cash flow
method. The evaluation value is equal to
the accumulation after the expected future
normal net income is discounted to the
value point by selecting the appropriate
capitalization rate. The key assumptions
used are as follows: evaluated by market
comparison approach taking reference to
expected sales price, the discount rate in
the construction period and the operation,
and the long-term growth rate.

The multi period excess return method
is used to evaluate the intangible assets
formed by the company’s contractual rights
and interests and customer relationship.
The evaluation value is equal to the
value of the main assets calculated by
discounting the excess cash. The key
assumptions used are as follows: the useful
life of contractual rights and customer
relationship, the required return rate of
working capital, the required rate of return
of human resources and the discount rate.

The market method is used to evaluate the
intangible assets formed by the company’s
underwriting contract rights and interests.
The evaluation value is equal to the market
value obtained by comparing the real
estate of the appraisal object with the
similar real estate with similar transactions
in recent years. The key assumptions
used are as follows: evaluated by market
comparison approach taking reference to
expected sales price.

CHREUR/RARE T

h. eHEBENEE @)

(1) FE-—EZHTHLES @)

(b)

WEETRBEERNEEN
BEBRINTWT: (&)

FEBRBDOFETES
FR|ERE - FEESFR
ERAEENENMXRKIER
AREREFREFHRENEE
B R RN - 5 RO Y B
BRRWAT  RIEBFTOER
RAM S BORETHE
RAMERBTIREMEE
R xR RHAERE -

HRREAEAN A RES R
EFRAETERNETLEEDN
AR EARZHEERE
& RHEESRIEBEER S
BBRAEHNETEEENE
B EANERBERNT:
EREDmREFEERNAE
RER - - 2EES2ROR
R ANERERLBBE K
FmE -

HRRAEABHEARER
R EEEMFG A
RMEE  SHEESFR G
EXfREMAERITHELT
BURZH B E i E
A& - BEBHNHESE
B ERANERESKRDOT:
REEANERRBMISLL
BORBEITRIE -

ERIBEXROBERLAR — T2 FhHRSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z-_ZFXNA=TALAEANEGRENZHAN  SEECAARE T

5.

CHANGES OF CONSOLIDATION SCOPE
(Continued)

(2) Changes of consolidation scope due to

other reasons

In January 2020, the Group set up subsidiaries,
Henan Sunac Aoxin Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “Henan
Sunac Aoxin”), Shoujin Ruizhi (Tianjin) Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd., Shoujin Minzhi
(Tianjin) Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.,
Shoujin Yuzhi (Tianjin) Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd., and Shoujin Bozhi (Tianjin) Commercial
Management Co., Ltd..

In February 2020, the Group set up subsidiaries,
Henan Rongshou Xinchuang Cultural Tourism
Real Estate Co., Ltd. and Henan Rongshou
Xinyue Cultural Tourism Development Co., Ltd..

In March 2020, the Group set up a
wholly-owned subsidiary, Beijing Jinghui Real
Estate Co., Ltd..

In April 2020, the Group set up wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Chongging Shouhong Technology
Development Co., Ltd., Shoujin Shengzhi
(Tianjin) Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd., Shoujin Langzhi (Tianjin) Commercial
Management Co., Ltd., and Shoujin Qizhi
(Tianjin) Investment Management Co.,
Ltd., Shoujin Hengzhi (Tianjin) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd., Shoujin Taizhi (Tianjin)
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., Shoujin
Huizhi (Tianjin) Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd., BECL Property Management Holding Ltd.,
and BECL Property Management Ltd..
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-ZTERA=THIENEASBE (KR

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries

(@) Information of significant subsidiaries

N, HEMERTEES

(1) EF2EhHER
(@) EEFAAER

CEHEBLR/ARKTIT

Type of legal Place of main Place of Mode of

Name entity operation registration Nature of business Interests held acquisition

FRARER EA BRI TELE it XBME R A nELA

Direct (%) Indirect (%)
B (%) (%)

Central Plaza Limited liability BV B.VI Investment holding 100 - Injected by

company sponsor

Central Plaza EREARA HEABRES EB4BREE REER EFINEIN

IFC Limited liability B.VI B.VI Investment holding 100 - Injected by

company sponsor

IFC EREARA HEABARES EBR4BRESE REER ERAEA

S.C. Real Estate Development  Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property 100 - Business
Co., Ltd. ("S.C.") company development and combination

sales

BRIEBEHERRARAT BREERA IR LR FHERERHEE CEAH
ATRIEAHB])

Beijing Xinbocheng Real Estate  Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property - 100 Business
Development Co., Ltd. company development and combination

sales

ERFEREHEREERAR BREEAA R R EHERERHE LESH

Zhejiang Outlets Property Real  Limited liability Huzhou Huzhou Property - 72.9  Business
Estate Co., Ltd company development and combination

operation

HIBRRNBEXARAA BEREARA M N FERERES tEAH

Capital Grand Limited liability ~ Cayman Islands ~ Cayman Islands  Investment holding - 72.9  Business

company combination

BEIER BREARA Hews HEHS REER CEAH

Xi‘an Capital Xinkai Real Estate  Limited liability ~ Xi'an Xian Property - 72.9  Business
Co., Ltd. company development and combination

sales

EREENAEEARAA BREERA [k ik EERERHEE LEAH

Liujin Real Estate (i) Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property - 65.88  Business

company development and combination
sales

Z2EE() BREERAF R R EHERERHE TEAG

Beijing Donghuan Xinrong Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property leasing 100 - Business
Investment Management company combination
Limited (“Donghuan
Xinrong”)

TRRBERREERERLT BARERRA R LR FEHRE LEAH
ATHRIRRER))

Zhuhai Henggin Capital Real Limited liability ~ Zhuhai Zhuhai Investment - 96.39  Business
Estate Eco Village Equity company Management combination
Investment Fund (Limited
Partnership)

GEREEAIEXAMNKE BRELRA %igm Kigm REER CEAH

REES(BERAE)

BRIBEXBRNBERAR —Z_2FhHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EHEMERBRERE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries 1) EFRAEHRHEZREE)
(Continued)
(a) Information of significant subsidiaries (@) EEFRABRE)
(Continued)
Type of legal Place of main Place of Mode of
Name entity operation registration Nature of business Interests held acquisition
FRAEH EAER TERER it FBME FREpl nELA

Direct (%) Indirect (%)
E#(%) 8 (%)

Chongging Shouyong Real Limited liability ~ Chongging Chongging Property - 96.39  Business
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and combination

sales

EEEXEEARRA BREERA BEEM EEW FEHERERHEE TEAH

Shenyang Haohua Real Estate  Limited liability Shenyang Shenyang Property - 100 Business
Co., Ltd. company development and combination

sales

BHREEXERAA EREARA BHm B FERERHEE LEAH

Chengdu Capital Ruihua Real  Limited liability Chengdu Chengdu Property - 100 Business
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and combination
("Chengdu Ruihua"”) sales

RBEAREELBRAGUL ARELRA KA 2%l EHERERHE tEAH
TRIKBRE])

Tianjin Capital Xinyuan Real Limited liability ~ Tianjin Tianjin Property - 55  Capital
Estate Development company development and injection
Co., Ltd. sales

REBEIFEEEERAA BREERA REM RET FEHERERHEE AR

Jingjin Tongcheng (Tianjin) Limited liability ~ Tianjin Tianjin Property - 90 Capital
Investment Co., Ltd. company development injection
("Jingjin Tongcheng”)

RERB(RRDREERLAT BREEAA REM REM FiERE HERL
AT R ZE)

Beijing Capital Outlets Limited liability ~ Beijing Beijing Property - 729  Capital
Property Investment Fang company development, injection
Shan Ltd. operation and

management

TREAERRIELE % BREERA ERM R EHERBELRER HERYL
BRRF

Beijing Capital Zhongbei Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property - 100  Capital
Infrastructure Investment company development injection
Co., Ltd.

IREEPILERRIERE BEREARA R IR FiERZ HART
1N

Beijing Anshunyuan Real Limited liability ~ Beijing Beijing Property - 95  Capital
Estate Development company development and injection
Co., Ltd. sales

TRZRERMEREERAR BREERA i) (Nl FEHERERHEE AR

Jiangyin Yuyue Real Estate Limited liability ~ Jiangyin Jiangyin Property - 100  Capital
Development Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

TIRHREEXERAF BEREARA IR LB FERERHEE HERL
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

CHREUR/RARE T

N, EEAD TR A ()

(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (1) EFRAHFHERE)
(Continued)
(a) Information of significant subsidiaries () EEFRABRE)
(Continued)
Type of legal Place of main Place of Mode of

Name entity operation registration Nature of business Interests held acquisition

FRARER EAE TELER i ES 331 R Epl nELA

Direct (%) Indirect (%)
E#&(%) (%)

Qingdao Xinli Weiye Real Limited liability ~ Qingdao Qingdao Property - 100  Capital
Estate Development company development and injection
Co., Ltd. sales

EEEURERHERE BREERA EBM B8 FHERERHEE k- v
BERAE

Hainan Outlets Tourism Limited liability Wanning Wanning Property - 100  Capital
Development Co., Ltd. company development, injection
("Hainan Outlets Tourism") operation and

management

BEESREREREERAR ARELRA BEM BEM EHERZELRER HARY
ATBIEmERKED

Shenyang Capital Xinyun Real  Limited liability Shenyang Shenyang Property 100 - Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection
("Shenyang Xinyun") sales

BERANEERBRLA BREERA EET EET EHERERHEE kv
AT BIEGHE])

SAS Datang Weiye Holdings Limited liability France France Real estate business - 100  Capital

company and others injection

REBEREBRAA BEREARA el EH EEBRELM HERT

Hainan Capital Outlets Real Limited liability Wanning Wanning Property - 100  Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

BHEARREXBERAA BEREFLA BEM BEm FHERERHEE HERT

Beijing Chuangrui Xiangan Limited liability ~ Beijing Beijing Property - 100  Capital
Real Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

LREFHEEEERRA BREERA XM LR FHERERHEE HERYL

Beijing Guijiamao Real Estate  Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property - 100  Capital
Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

IREEREXERAA BEREARA R R EHERERHE HERL

Tianjin Xingtai Jihong Real Limited liability ~ Tianjin Tianjin Property - 100  Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

RERRERBEXERRA BEREARA REM RET FHERERHEE HERT

Beijing Lianchuang Shengye Limited liability ~ Beijing Beijing Property - 100  Capital
Real Estate Development company development and injection
Co., Ltd. sales

LTREERER N ERME BREERA i) R FERERHEE kv

BERAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EHEMERBRERE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries 1) EFRAEHRHEZREE)
(Continued)
(a) Information of significant subsidiaries (@) EEFRABRE)
(Continued)
Type of legal Place of main Place of Mode of
Name entity operation registration Nature of business Interests held acquisition
FRAEH EAER TERER it FBME FREH nELA

Direct (%) Indirect (%)
E#(%) 8 % (%)

Chengdu Capital Zhenghua Limited liability ~ Chengdu Chengdu Property - 100  Capital
Real Estate Co.,Ltd. company development and injection
sales
KHBELEEEXBRAR BREERA T 2%l FEHERERHEE HERT
Beijing Xujia Real Estate Co.,  Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property - 100 Capital
Ltd. company development and injection
sales
TRBEEXBRDA BREERA ERM ERm EHERERHE HERL
Tianjin Xingtai Jisheng Real Limited liability ~ Tianjin Tianjin Property - 100  Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
RERRERBERERAR BEREARA REM XEM EHERERHE HERYL
Tianjin Hongtai Weiye Real Limited liability ~ Tianjin Tianjin Property - 100  Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
RERZRERHERE BREERA REM REW FEHERERHEE HERT
BERRE
Shanghai Shoupu Real Estate  Limited liability ~ Shanghai Shanghai Property - 100  Capital
Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
LEBEREXBRDA BREERF Lgm LiEm EHERERHE HERL
Beijing Tianzhiying Real Estate  Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property - 100  Capital
Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
IRREREXERAA BEREARA R LR FHERERHEE HERYL
Beijing Jinyifeng Real Estate Limited liability ~ Beijing Beijing Property - 100  Capital
Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
TREBEEEARAA BREERA i) (Nl FEHERERHE HERYL
Beijing Baochitong Real Estate  Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property - 100  Capital
Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
ERERBEXERAR BREERF iyl R EHERERHE HERL
Shanghai Shouhu Investment  Limited liability Shanghai Shanghai Property - 100  Capital
Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
TEERREBRRA BEREARA Ligm L FHERERHEE HERYL
Shanghai Shouyang Limited liability ~ Shanghai Shanghai Property - 100  Capital
Investment Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
LEEBRABRAA BREERA Lgm Ligm FEHERERHEE HERYL
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

CHREUR/RARE T

N, EEAD TR A ()

(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (1) EFRAHFHERE)
(Continued)
(a) Information of significant subsidiaries () EEFRABRE)
(Continued)
Type of legal Place of main Place of Mode of
Name entity operation registration Nature of business Interests held acquisition
FRARER EAE TELER i ES 331 FR LA nELA
Direct (%) Indirect (%)
E#&(%) (%)
Hangzhou Capital Outlets Real  Limited liability ~ Hangzhou Hangzhou Property - 729  Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development, injection
operation and
management
MMEARERGEXBRLA BRAFERT M i FHERZESRER kv
Jiangxi Capital Outlets Real Limited liability ~ Nanchang Nanchang Property - 729  Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development, injection
operation and
management
IREARSREEXERAT BREARA MEM BEM FHERZEZRER HARY
Wuhan Capital Juda Outlets Limited liability ~ Wuhan Wuhan Property - 72.2  Capital
Business Management company development, injection
Co., Ltd. operation and
management
REBRIEARREEER BREERA REM REM FHERZESRER kv
BRAF
Xi‘an Shouju Commercial Limited liability ~ Xi'an Xi‘an Property - 729  Capital
Development and company development, injection
Management Co., Ltd. operation and
management
AREER*REERERAT AREERA kg [i-q FHERZEZRER HERT
Zhengzhou Juxin Outlets Limited liability ~ Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Property - 729  Capital
Industrial Co., Ltd. company development, injection
operation and
management
BMEERREEARAA EREARA g i FHERZEERER HART
Beijing Yongyuanxing Real Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property - 100  Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
ERKEREZBERAF BEREARA R LR FHERERHEE HART
Shanghai Yujing Real Estate Limited liability ~ Shanghai Shanghai Property - 51 Capital
Development Co., Ltd. company development and injection
("Shanghai Yujing”) sales
TERBELEREERAR AREERA Lgw is:3ii) FHERERHEE k- v
AT BILERE])
Shanghai Xuanxi Real Estate Limited liability Shanghai Shanghai Property - 51 Capital
Development Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
LEBERHEREERLAR BRELAA rigw Figm FHERERHEE HERL
Beijing Youda Real Estate Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property - 70  Capital
Co., Ltd. company development injection
LIREEEXZFRAA BEREARA R LR FIERZ HART
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EHEMERBRERE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries 1) EFRAEHRHEZREE)
(Continued)
(a) Information of significant subsidiaries (@) EEFRABRE)
(Continued)
Type of legal Place of main Place of Mode of
Name entity operation registration Nature of business Interests held acquisition
FRAEH EAER TERER it FBME FREpl nELA

Direct (%) Indirect (%)
E#(%) 8 (%)

Shanghai Shoujing Investment  Limited liability ~ Shanghai Shanghai Property - 100  Capital
Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
LEETREBRAA BREERA L&m L FEHERERHEE HERT
Jinan Shouju Real Estate Co.,  Limited liability ~ Jinan Jinan Property - 72.9  Capital
Ltd. company development, injection
operation and
management
HHEEEXARAT EREARA EHE® EET EHERZELRER HERL
Hefei Chuangju Outlets Limited liability ~ Hefei Hefei Property - 729  Capital
Commercial Management company development, injection
Co., Ltd. operation and
management
ARAERRBEERERA BREERA Gl il E) il FHERZEERER HEART
Chongging Shouju Outlets Limited liability Chongging Chongging Property - 72.9  Capital
Real Estate Co., Ltd. company development, injection
operation and
management
EREFERRNELERAR ARELRA BEEM EEW FHERZEZRER HERL
Shanghai Lingyu Real Estate Limited liability Shanghai Shanghai Property - 100  Capital
Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
TERGEXFRAA BEREARA Lgm i:2ii) FHERERHEE HART
Kunming Capital Outlets Limited liability Kunming Kunming Property - 62  Capital
Commercial Management company development, injection
Co., Ltd. operation and
management
RABEIARBEEEER EREARA REA™ BB FHERZEERER HERL
BRAHE
Shanghai Shoudian Real Estate  Limited liability Shanghai Shanghai Property - 100 Capital
Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
TEEREXBERAA BEREARA Lgm i:2ii) FHERERHEE HART
Shenzhen Shoulong Real Limited liability Shenzhen Shenzhen Property - 100 Capital
Estate Development company development and injection
Co., Ltd. sales
RIEEEHEREERAA BREFAA RN RN T FEHERERHEE HERYL
Tianjin Xingtai Jichang Real Limited liability ~ Tianjin Tianjin Property - 100  Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
REARESEXERAA BEREARA REM REM FERERHEE HARL
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES
(Continued)

(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries

CHREUR/RARE T

N, EEAD TR A ()

(1) EF2aAPNERE)

(Continued)
(a) Information of significant subsidiaries () EEFRABRE)
(Continued)
Type of legal Place of main Place of Mode of
Name entity operation registration Nature of business Interests held acquisition
FTRARAER EAE TELER i ES 331 R Epl nELA
Direct (%) Indirect (%)
E#&(%) (%)
Beijing Tailongxiang Real Limited liability ~ Beijing Beijing Property - 100  Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
IRZEAEXERAA EREARRA R LR FHERERHEE k- v
T)-Metro MTR Limited liability ~ Tianjin Tianjin Property - 100 Capital
company development and injection
sales
REREEE EREARA REM XEMD EHERERHE HERL
Hangzhou Linchuang Real Limited liability Hangzhou Hangzhou Property - 100  Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
MMEBRIEZERAR BREERA M i FHERERHEE HERL
Chongging Shouhao Real Limited liability ~ Chongging Chongging Property - 100  Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
EFEEEXERAA BREERA BEET EEm FHERERHEE k- v
Qingdao Grand Outlets Limited liability Qingdao Qingdao Property - 72.9  Capital
Commercial Management company development, injection
Co., Ltd. operation and
management
BREEARRBXERERAR BRELAA BB HEM EHERZELRER HERL
Trade Horizon Limited liability Hong Kong B.VI Investment - 72.9  Capital
company management injection
BRIERIK BEREARA Bk EBABARES REER HART
Shanghai Shouyue Real Estate  Limited liability ~ Shanghai Shanghai Property - 100  Capital
Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
LEEREXBRAA BREERA Lgw is:3ii) FHERERHEE k- v
Shanghai Shoudi Real Estate Limited liability Shanghai Shanghai Property - 100  Capital
Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
TBEEEXARAT EREARA +igm LiE®m EHERERHE HERL
Zhejiang Hualong Real Estate  Limited liability Huzhou Huzhou Property - 100  Capital
Development Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
HIEEEXERAR BEREARA M WM FHERERHEE HERL
Capital Outlets (Kunshan) Real  Limited liability Kunshan Kunshan Property - 100  Capital
Estate Development company development and injection
Co., Ltd. sales
BRIRR(BIWEXERRAR BREERA Bl B FHERERHEE k- v

— = —
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

N, EEAD TR A ()

(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries 1) EFRAEHRHEZREE)
(Continued)
(a) Information of significant subsidiaries (@) EEFRABRE)
(Continued)
Type of legal Place of main Place of Mode of

Name entity operation registration Nature of business Interests held acquisition

FRAEH EAER TERER it i ES 331 FREH nELA

Direct (%) Indirect (%)
E#(%) 8 1 (%)

Beijing Chuangrui Huaan Real  Limited liability ~ Beijing Beijing Property - 100  Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

IREGEREEZFRAA EREARRA LR LR FEHERERHEE HERT

Kunshan Capital Xinkai Real Limited liability Kunshan Kunshan Property - 100 Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

RUTEAIFHAEZERAA  BAREARA =1 Bl EHERERHE HERL

Shoujin Capital Management  Limited liability ~ Tianjin Tianjin Investment 100 - Capital
(Tianjin) Co., Ltd (“Shoujin company management injection
Capital”)

BEREAER(RB)ERRA  BREERA REM REM REER HART
ATHEIE2ER])

Qingdao Canghai Weiye Real  Limited liability ~ Qingdao Qingdao Property - 100  Capital
Estate Development company development and injection
Co. Ltd. sales

BEERBEXFHERR BREERA &M BRM FEHERERHE HERYL
BRARE

Chengdu Capital Huafu Real Limited liability Chengdu Chengdu Property - 100  Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

KBEEEREZXERAR BEREARA wEBH 2%l EHERERHE HERYL

Nanning Grand Outlets Real Limited liability ~ Nanning Nanning Property - 729  Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development, injection

operation and
management

EESPNE T BREERA MED BEM EHERBELRER HERYL
BRARE

Foshan Shoulang Real Estate  Limited liability Foshan Foshan Property - 100  Capital
Development Co. Ltd. company development and injection

sales

HLUEREHMEREERLR  AREELRA i il FHERERHEE HERYL

Zhangjiakou Ruiyuan Real Limited liability ~ Zhangjiakou Zhangjiakou Property - 92 Capital
Estate Development company development injection
Co. Ltd.

FROBEFHEREERAT HREERA RRAT RRAM i B % HERT

Capital Jiaming New Limited liability Beijing Beijing Project investment - 70  Capital
Town Investment and company and property injection
Development Co., Ltd. development

BRIESANEREER EREARA ERM ERm HERERBHERE HERL
BRAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

CHREUR/RARE T

N, EEAD TR A ()

(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries 1) EFREAHRHEZREE)
(Continued)
(a) Information of significant subsidiaries () EEFRABRE)
(Continued)
Type of legal Place of main Place of Mode of

Name entity operation registration Nature of business Interests held acquisition

FTRARAER EAE TELER i ES 331 R Epl nELA

Direct (%) Indirect (%)
(%) (%)

Kunming Shouzhi Xinye Real  Limited liability Kunming Kunming Property - 100  Capital
Estate Development company development and injection
Co., Ltd. sales

RREENERILE BREERA BB 2kl FHERERHEE HERYL
REERAA

Foshan Shourui Real Estate Limited liability Foshan Foshan Property - 100  Capital
Development Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

BLUERBHEREERRF BREERA il i EHERERHE HERL

Beijing Capital Xindu Real Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property - 100  Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

LIREEFHBEXERAR BEREFLA IR LR FHERERHEE HERT

Dongguan Shouwang Real Limited liability ~ Dongguan Dongguan Property - 100  Capital
Estate Development Co., company development and injection
Ltd. sales

RREEZRHEREERAR BRELEAA REm REm FHERERHEE HERYL

Shenyang Longjing Real Estate  Limited liability ~ Shenyang Shenyang Property - 100  Capital
Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

EHERENERAR BEREARA EHT Edenil EHERERHE HERL

Xiamen Shouzhi Xiangfa Real  Limited liability Xiamen Xiamen Property - 65 Capital
Estate Development company development and injection
Co., Ltd. sales
("Xiamen Shouzhi Xiangfa”)

EFMEEARRNE BREERA BT B FHERERHEE HERYL
REERAA
ATHIEFEENE])

Chengdu Shouyu Huachuang  Limited liability Chengdu Chengdu Property - 100  Capital
Real Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

KBEHEAELERAA BREERA KA 2%l EHERERHE HERL

Xiamen Shoujing Real Estate  Limited liability ~ Xiamen Xiamen Property - 100  Capital
Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

EFEREXBRAA BREERA BT B FHERERHEE HERYL

Tianjin Ruiji Real Estate Limited liability — Tianjin Tianjin Property - 100  Capital
Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

REREEEBERAA EREARA KET KEMD EHERERHE HERL
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 R M R
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z-_ZTFXA=THLEANEAPHEKREZHEN  BEECRKRARBT L)
6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EHEMERBRERE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries 1) EFRAEHRHEZREE)
(Continued)
(a) Information of significant subsidiaries (@) EEFRABRE)
(Continued)
Type of legal Place of main Place of Mode of

Name entity operation registration Nature of business Interests held acquisition

FARER EAER TERER it i ES 331 FR LA nELA

Direct (%) Indirect (%)
E#(%) 8 1 (%)

Kunming Kunlun Shouzhi Real  Limited liability Kunming Kunming Property - 49.85  Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection
("Kunming Kunlun sales
Shouzhi”) (iv)

ENEREERMERRAR ARAERH =1l EHRm FEHERERHE AR
ATHRIEAEEEE]D (v)

Tianjin Xingtai Jiming Real Limited liability ~ Tianjin Tianjin Property - 100  Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

RERZERER BEREARA REM REM FHERERHEE HERYL
BRAF

Kunshan Guangsheng Real Limited liability Kunshan Kunshan Property - 100  Equity transfer
Estate Development and company development and
Management Co., Ltd. sales

BUTEREEMERE BREERA = B LT FEHERERHE BERE
BEERLA

Shoujin Tianke (Tianjin) Real Limited liability ~ Tianjin Tianjin Property - 100  Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

RERMEXBARRLA BEREARA REM REM FHERERHEE HART

Beijing Tongchuang Jinlong Limited liability ~ Beijing Beijing Property - 25 Capital
Real Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection
("Tongchuang Jinlong”) (ii) sales

IRAGEEEXZFRLA EREARRA LR LR FEHERERHEE HEZ Y
AT BIR A D (i)

Tianjin Xingtai Jucheng Real Limited liability ~ Tianjin Tianjin Property - 20 Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection
("Xingtai Jucheng”) (iii) sales

RERZRKEEARDA EREARA REM REM EHERERHE HERL
AT R E R (i)

Wuhan Rongcheng Limited liability ~ Wuhan Wuhan Property - 49  Business
Kaichuang (v) company development and combination

sales

RERBAAEW BREERA RED REM FEHERERHEE TEAH

Henan Sunac Aoxin Limited liability ~ Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Property - 50 Capital

company development and injection
sales

i R A A EREARA M M FHERERHEE HAR T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-ZTERA=THIENEASBE (KR

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries
(Continued)
(@) Information of significant subsidiaries
(Continued)
(i) In 2019, Liujin Zhiye received

(ii)

(iii)

RMB1,000,000,000 through equity
capital increase. The Group holds
65.88% of equity interests in Liujin
Zhiye after equity capital increase
and still has control over Liujin Zhiye,
therefore it is still recognized as a
subsidiary.

The Group holds 25% equity in
Tongchuang lJinlong and 57% voting
rights in the board of directors.
According to the articles of
association, the decisions of relevant
operation activities of Tongchuang
Jinlong shall be effected by the voting
of more than one half of the directors
of the board of directors. The
Group has control over Tongchuang
Jinlong, therefore it is recognized as
a subsidiary.

The Group holds 20% equity in
Xingtai Jucheng and 56% voting
rights in the board of directors.
According to the articles of
association, the decisions of relevant
operation activities of Xingtai
Jucheng shall be effected by the
voting of more than one half of the
directors of the board of directors.
The Group has control over Xingtai
Jucheng, therefore it is recognized as
a subsidiary.

CEHEBLR/ARKTIT

JN. FEE b 88 E) #E R (A7)

(1 &¥

DRE PR (E)

() EEFRREBERE)

()

(ii)

(iii)

R-ZZ-N%F B2
B X808 A S X
MG HERAR M
1,000,000,000TE '
EEEAREREE
T & %65.88% MK
DANEHEL B X
FUL I R IEAT AR
%H

AEBEBEERE T H
5% K HE - IRAE
=G P57% K R HE
BRIEARIERR - AFH
EREESEERREK
Ei%A_AZ ML
e $E@TMTM
Bl &g B EE
R/FRABIGE -

RNEEFRFA®EFEK
0%k WA E
£ g H56% FKIRE -
BIEARIERR - AFH
WL R AR RR
mEZEE —_H2— MUt
EFEXRRBRAARE
R+ 7S B AT LA i) 65
RERAK B EE
BTRAIZE -

BEIEXEKRNABRRR —Z_FFPHRS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BHE

6.

“ECEERAZTRENER B (BRI R S

EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(Continued)

(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries
(Continued)

(@) Information of significant subsidiaries
(Continued)

(iv)

The Group holds 49.85% equity
in  Kunming Kunlun Shouzhi and
50.15% voting rights in shareholders’
meeting. According to the articles of
association, the decisions of relevant
operation activities of Kunming
Kunlun Shouzhi shall be effected by
the voting of more than one half of
shareholders’ meeting. The Group
has control over Kunming Kunlun
Shouzhi, therefore it is recognized as
a subsidiary.

The Group holds 49% equity in
Wuhan Rongcheng Kaichuang and
holds 60% of the voting rights in the
board of directors. According to the
articles of association, the decisions
of relevant operation activities of
Wuhan Rongcheng Kaichuang shall
be effected by the voting of more
than one half of the directors of
the board of directors. The Group
has control over Wuhan Rongcheng
Kaichuang, therefore it is recognized
as a subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, HHEMEBFRELSE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries 1) EFREAHRHEZREE)
(Continued)
(b) Subsidiaries with significant non- (b) FEEELHBRREZNTF
controlling interests AF
(b1) Non-controlling interests from (b1) AZERKERERF
common equity interests TEELHRRER
B F 2 A

Profit/(Loss)  Dividends

Equity attributable distributed

interests to non- to non-

portion controlling controlling
held by interests interests Non-
non- for the six for the six controlling
controlling months months interests as
interests ended 30 ended 30 at 30 June
(%)  June 2020 June 2020 2020

Bz Bz

R CZBIEE
AB=THLE RB=tHL =—ZE-%%
YERRN AMEAME AEABE AASTH
BRitHl BERYE BIERR  LERR
Name FRARER (%) BERWNEZ HREA E#
Xingtai Jucheng BREK 80 22,7111 - 985,409
Shanghai Yujing LiEHE 49 (17,880) - 941,627
Kunming Kunlun Shouzhi ERBaEE 50.15 (837) - 600,648
Xiamen Shouzhi Xiangfa EMEENE 35 (187) - 294,506
Tongchuang Jinlong B 75 59,134 225,000 120,524
Wuhan Rongcheng Kaichunag . Z @b 2l 51 = - 2,925272
Jingjin Tongcheng RERM 10 (1,109) - 124,158
Tota At 61832 225000 5,992,144

BRIBEXRODBERAR —Z2_ZFHhHRE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, mEMERBARERE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (1) EFRAHPHERE)
(Continued)
(b) Subsidiaries with significant non- (b) ZFEEELHRREEZNT
controlling interests (Continued) nE(#E)
(b1) Non-controlling interests from (b1) AZERKEREF
common equity interests TEELHRRER
(Continued) HF R a (%)
The financial information of partly- FTHBEZEFRETEFR
owned subsidiaries above are as AMEZHMBIELET
follows: RIATR

Financial information as at 30 June 2020
ZEZEERASTHEEMR
Non- Non-

Current  current Total  Current  current Total
assets assets assets liabilities liabilities liabilities

RBEE #RBEE KESH RBAE FRBAGE AESH

Xingtai Jucheng AREHK 1,766,798 21 1,766,819 535,058 - 535058
Shanghai Yujing LBHE 6,876,052 26,219 6,902,271 4,980,582 - 4,980,582

Kunming Kunlun Shouzhi  EBE&EE 2,151,978 938 2,152,916 80,213 875,000 955213
Xiamen Shouzhi Xiangfa ~ EFEEAE 1,272,632 519 1,273,151 231,706 200,000 431,706

Tongchuang Jinlong BEES: 344,929 215 345144 184,445 - 184,445
Wuhan Rongcheng RERNFEE 6,888,396 358 6,888,754 1,153,987 - 1,153,987
Kaichunag

Jingjin Tongcheng RERS 2,774,510 454 2,774,964 1,533,388 - 1,533,388

Financial information as at 31 December 2019

“F-AE+-A=t-HEEHRDR

Non- Non-

Current  current Total  Current  current Total

assets assets assets liabilities liabilities liabilities

RYEE FRDEE AEAT RIAE FRPRE AGEAH

Xingtai Jucheng AREN 1,786,337 30 1,786,367 582,995 - 582,995
Shanghai Yujing LE#E 5823164 14085 5837249 37229071 650,000 3,879,071
Kunming Kunlun Shouzhi ~ EHE#EE 1,369,071 362 1369433 170,060 - 170,060

Xiamen Shouzhi Xiangfa ~ EFIEEM% 1,057,320 340 1,057660 15681 200,000 215,681

Tongchuang Jinlong EEE 762,368 4858 767226 385372 - 385372
Wuhan Rongcheng RERAFE N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Kaichunag rER  FMER TER  TER  TER TER
Jingjin Tongcheng RERS 4,938,489 538 4,939,027 3,686,361 - 3,686,361
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EHMERAERE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries 1) EFREAHRHEZREE)
(Continued)
(b) Subsidiaries with significant non- (b) ZFEEELHRFAEZNT
controlling interests (Continued) DR (#E)
(b1) Non-controlling interests from (b1) AZERKERERF
common equity interests TEELHRRER
(Continued) B F LA (&)
Financial information for the six months ended
30 June 2020
BE-Z-BERR=THLEAERHEHEMRR
Cash flows
Total from
Net profit/ comprehensive  operating
Revenue (loss)  income/(loss) activities

BRE/ GakE/  BEED
EXUA (B8R (FR)28 HeRE

Xingtai Jucheng BREN 36,752 28,389 28,389 (97,296)
Shanghai Yujing LigihiE - (36,490) (36,490) 463,185
Kunming Kunlun Shouzhi EREAEE = (1,670) (1,670)  (771,769)
Xiamen Shouzhi Xiangfa EFBENE - (535) (535) 116,416
Tongchuang Jinlong Gk 238,309 78,845 78,845 24,996
Wuhan Rongcheng Kaichuang ~ EE & 2l - (1,061) (1,061) (4,524,751
Jingjin Tongcheng RERY = (11,090) (11,090) 23,318

Financial information for the six months ended
30 June 2019

HE_Z-NE A=tRLE~AAHMM KRR
Cash
Total  flows from
Net profit/  comprehensive ~ operating
Revenue (loss) income/(loss) activities
FH8/ BAkE/ B2Ey
EERA (B#) (BB &% Beme

Xingtai Jucheng BRER 1,751,590 449,238 449,238 (137,890)
Shanghai Yujing LERE - (1,454) (1,454) 222,972
Kunming Kunlun Shouzhi EREREE N/A N/A N/A N/A

TR AR AER TER
Xiamen Shouzhi Xiangfa EMEENY - (229 (229 (13,007)
Tongchuang Jinlong EHES 14,270 3,283 3,283 (166,744)
Wuhan Rongcheng Kaichuang ~ HE 554l N/A N/A N/A N/A

TER TER TER rER
Jingjin Tongcheng RERM 1,087,739 564,386 564,386 (29,481)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HE_Z_ZFAZFTHENEABRE(RENZHIN eBELRARE T
6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, HHEMEBRELSE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries 1) EFRAEHRHEZREE)
(Continued)
(b) Subsidiaries with significant non- (b) ZFEEELHRREEZNT
controlling interests (Continued) AT (#E)
(b2) Equity instruments issued by (b2) 7RE#HIRTHAM
subsidiaries of the Group #EmTA
Profit Dividends
attributed  distributed
to non- to non-
controlling  controlling
interests interests Non-
for the six  for the six  controlling
months months interests as
ended 30 ended 30  at 30 June
June 2020 June 2020 2020
BE-S-%F BE-B-EF
~A=tH ~A=tH
ERERAHAE  LREAHH ZE-EEF
RERIH mAOHRR ANAZTH
RENES 2MRF SERRER
Senior perpetual securities  FARETER
issued by subsidiaries (i) KEE () 101,703 101,703 3,470,846
Perpetual convertible bond  F 2R E%{TKA
securities issued by BE:3 &1 (1)
subsidiaries (ii) 49 = 945,527
Ping An Pension Debt FrEEERE
Investment Plan (iii) & & & Eliii) = = 475,870
Total CXl 101,752 101,703 4,892,243
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

£ H A 88 PR M 2 ()

(Continued)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES 7N,

(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries

(Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries with significant non-
controlling interests (Continued)

(b2) Equity instruments issued
by subsidiaries of the Group
(Continued)

@)

In November 2019, Central Plaza issued
Senior Perpetual Securities amounted
to USD500,000,000, equivalent to
RMB3,503,200,000, at a distribution rate of
5.75% per annum under the Medium Term
Note and Perpetual Securities Program. After
deducting relevant issuing costs, the Group
received RMB3,470,846,000. As the issuer,
Central Plaza may defer distribution without
any frequency limitations only if Central
Plaza or the Company do not declare or pay
dividends. The Group has no contractual
obligation to repay its principal or to pay any

(1) EF2aAPNERE)

(b) FHEELBERREZNT

DR (E)

(b2) FRAHINZITEEAM
ERTHEE)

RZZT—NF+ —
A+ Central Plaza
BEFHEER
X EE FE B B
77500,000,000%
T E AR
3,503,200,0007T & i
MKBEES  FHE
575% - MEKkE#EE
ArKIESITEAR
#3,470,846,0007T °
%77 ACentral Plaza®]
HEEELESA RIT

distribution. The perpetual securities do not REAZAE IR -
meet the definition of financial liabilities by the {8 nCentral Plazagk A
Group. The Group recognized non-controlling ARAEEHHARF) -
interests amounted to RMB3,470,846,000. BT REBRIE 55 4L - A<
Subsequent distribution declared will be SEAMHEMILLE
treated as profit distribution to non-controlling EER DS TE

interests.

DIEN SR ARIET
At ZFEHFLATAE
EHABENESE &
REEA G EEER
LB RERARYE
3,470,846,0007T * &
B SRR D A A
1ERY D BB R F
BOBCEIE

BRIBEXBRNBERAR —Z_2FhHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BHE

6.

TECEERAZTHIESNEASB R EREHAN

EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(Continued)

(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries

(Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries with significant non-
controlling interests (Continued)

(b2) Equity instruments issued
by subsidiaries of the Group
(Continued)

(i)

In November 2016, Capital Grand
entered into a subscription agreement
with Sino-Ocean Group Holding Limited
(hereinafter “Sino-Ocean”) and KKR
CG Judo Outlets (hereinafter “KKR")
to issue 95,192,308 ordinary shares
to Sino-Ocean and KKR respectively.
Meanwhile, Capital Grand issued
perpetual convertible bonds securities
(the “PCBS”) in the principal amounts
of HKD657,594,260 to Sino-Ocean
and in the principal amounts of
HKD420,096,153 to KKR. The Group has
no contractual obligation to repay the
principal or pay any assigned interests,
and the instrument will or may not
be settled in a variable number of
equity instruments. Therefore, the PCBS
does not comply with the definition
of financial liabilities. The principal
deducted by issuance cost amounted
to RMB945,197,000 was recognized
as non-controlling interests in the
consolidated financial statements.
Subsequent distribution declared will
be treated as profit distribution to non-
controlling interests. For the six months
ended 30 June 2020, profit attributed
to non-controlling interests amounted to
RMB49,000 (For the six months ended
30 June 2019: RMB47,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HE_Z-_TFXA=+HIEANEABE(KRERIFEHS -

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(Continued)

(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries

(Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries with significant non-
controlling interests (Continued)

(b2) Equity instruments issued
by subsidiaries of the Group
(Continued)

(iii)

In June 2020, Ping An Pension Insurance
Co., Ltd. established a debt investment
plan amounted to RMB500,000,000
According to the relevant terms of the
Investment Contract, the raised funds
are subject to no fixed repayment terms.
Unless the Company or its subsidiary
Beijing Ruiyuan Fengji Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. (hereinafter “Ruiyuan Fengji”)
declares dividend or reduces registered
capital, it may elect to defer distribution
without any frequency limitations. The
Group has no contractual obligation
to repay its principal or to pay any
distribution,therefore the investment
complied with the definition of equity
instrument and were recognized as non-
controlling interests in the consolidated
level. Subsequent distribution declared
will be treated as profit distribution
to non-controlling interests. Non-
controlling interests amounted to
RMB475,870,000 was recognized after
deducting the inevitable dividend
payable in the foreseeable future.

CHREUR/RARE T

N, EEAD TR A ()

(1) EF2aAPNERE)

(b) FHEELBERREZNT

DR (E)

(b2) FRAHINZITEEAM
ERTHEE)

(iii)

RZEZZTFRA
TeEEZRBR®
BRARZEER
BrtglHE R
A R#500,000,000
T e MIBGEEAR)
HEBEER %45
& EmE T E KR
BrRAARHKF AT
R TYEEESR
RAR(ATHEIHT
LHEIR DA SOR
DM EARS - AT
BERESERZ
B R EAZ AW
PR - AN
BREAS R I FE
AR BEHEHNE
% FULZIBRAR
AEZIANTES
EAREEESHE@E
RRELHBR RS
EEERAED LK
A4 1 B D SRR
FMESEOEE - 0
BRI 78 R oK SR Al i
EHDAE R
FREEZARE
475,870,000 7% °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EEMETEANERE)
(Continued)
(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and (2) HEEELEMNMBELERNE
associates =
(a) Basic information of significant Joint (a) EECELENHELEN
ventures and Associates EBER

Interests held

R A
Place of main Place of Strategic to the
operation registration  Nature of business Group's operation  Direct (%) Indirect (%)
HEBEBHRERS
TELER i it EBHE B B#(%) (%)
Joint ventures
RELE
Shangbodi Beijing Beijing Construction engineering Yes 51 -
survey and design and
investment consultation
ief 18 30 R R TREFERRG E
RERNAS
Dacheng Guangyuan Beijing Beijing Property development and No - 12.5
sales
ERLE R R EHERERHE &
Tianjin Lianjin Tianjin Tianjin Property development and Yes - 25
sales
KRR REM REM EHERERHEE E
Associates
B %
Zhongguancun Beijing Beijing Property development and Yes - 50
Integrated Circus sales
Garden
TRNERERE R R FHERERHEE E
Tianjin Xinging Tianjin Tianjin Property development and No - 40
sales
REHE REM REM FRERERHEE &
Investments in above equity are accounted NEREE Ll REREHR
for using the equity method. AR EZE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EEMERBAPAERDE)
(Continued)
(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and (2) HEEELEMNMBELEFRNE
associates (Continued) = (&)
(b) Key financial information of significant (b) EERECENTERKE
joint ventures B
Shanghodi Dacheng Guangyuan Tianjin Lianjin
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

—B-8% “E-NF ZB-8f “E-NF ZB-%f —“E-NF
~A=+H +t=ZA=t-B AAB=tR +=A=t-H #RA=t+H +=A=1+-AH

Current assets MBEE 259,413 248,587 3,080,569 3,672,175 1,033,255 1,599,575
Including: cash and cash £ - BefBe 62,653 54,228 521,434 645,064 208,948 541,259
equivalent ZEM
Non-current assets FRBEE 466,577 472,706 759 903 800,086 800,240
Total assets BEAG 725,990 721,293 3,081,328 3,673,078 1,833,341 2,399,815
Current liabilities REaE 39,524 43,597 2,643,024 2,693,007 786,056 1,375,161
Non-current liabilities EIN=E S 254,000 262,000 - - - -
Total liabilities BEAR 293,524 305,597 2,643,024 2,693,007 786,056 1,375,161
Total equity MEEERA 432,466 415,696 438,304 980,071 1,047,285 1,024,654
Net assets calculated by the BERLAIFED 220,558 212,005 54,788 122,509 261,821 256,163
percentage of shares holding REEME
- Unrealized profit from intra- - AEBRFRER = - = - = -
group transaction Lk}
Book value of investment in joint HEELEREN 220,558 212,005 54,788 122,509 261,821 256,163
ventures GEER
Market value of joint ventures (Public) & R BEHEM N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
AELERER TEA T@ER TEA T@ER TEA T@ER
ARER

BRIBEXRODBERAR —Z2_ZFHhHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES
(Continued)

(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and
associates (Continued)

(b)

Key financial information of significant
joint ventures (Continued)

N, EEAD TR A ()

B

(2) EEEbXNBELXEPIRE

= (&)
(b) EZCELENTENHE
B(#E)

Shangbodi Dacheng Guangyuan Tianjin Lianjin
oh: 5] EREE P93 )-3
Six months Six months Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended ended ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019 30 June 2020 30 June 2019 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE-Z-Z2F HE-T-NF BE-ECEE HECT-NF BE-ECEE OHECT AR
AA=TAL AAZTALE AAZTHL NAZTHLE  RA=TALE NAZTAL
~EAHE N8 A HA R ~EAEH N E A AEAHME ~NEAHE
Revenue BEMA 46,824 43,565 385,336 835,657 112,344 -
Interest (expenses)/income  Ef % (&) /A (6,350) (6,916) 3,203 1974 949 4,756
Income tax expenses MERER (5,590) (3,262) (19,411) (34,816) (7,545) -
Net profit/(loss) FHE/(BR) 16,770 9,801 58,233 104,347 22,631 (4,792)
Other comprehensive Eftgala = - = - = -
income
Total comprehensive RAWE/ (BB) 16,770 9,801 58,233 104,347 22,631 4,792
income/(loss) X
Dividends from joint FEERBREMKE = - 75,000 - = -
ventures HRERELE
HR A

The Group, based on the amount assigned
to the Company in the consolidated
financial statements of joint ventures,
calculates asset proportion by its
shareholding.

The amount in the consolidated financial
statements of joint ventures has taken the
influence of the fair value of identifiable
asset and liability of the investee joint
venture into consideration and the unified
accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES 7N
(Continued)

£ H A 88 PR M 2 ()

(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and (2) HEEELEMNMBELEFRNE

associates (Continued) = (&)
(c) Key financial information of significant () EEMHELCENTEHEE
associates 2

Zhongguancun Integrated
Circus Garden

Tianjin Xinging

FENERERE REHE

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2020 2019 2020 2019

ZB-EF  ZE-Nf ZEBZEE  ZE-Nf

~ABZtH +-A=t-H X~B=t+H +-A=1+-H

Current assets TEEE 1,406,907 1,546,680 866,977 866,502

Including: cash and cash E:BeAns 84,011 205,376 1,661 2,082

equivalent ZEM

Non-current assets ERPEE 2,449,063 2,419,096 150 181

Total assets EEARH 3,855,970 3,965,776 867,127 866,683

Current liabilities mHEE 442,50 585,351 665,463 664,996

Non-current liabilities ERBaE 2,442,420 2,392,819 - -

Total liabilities BEARF 2,884,961 2,978,170 665,463 664,996

Total equity MBEERAG 971,009 987,606 201,664 201,687

Net assets calculated by the BERLATED 485,505 493,803 80,666 80,675
percentage of shares holding FEENE

- Unrealized profit from intra- -RPRHRER (28,017) (18,963) (899) (899)

group transaction M

Book value of investment in joint ~ SBt 2O EERRE 457,488 474,840 79,767 79,776
ventures MERER

Market value of joint ventures FEDFARENHZ N/A N/A N/A N/A

(Public) TEREN TER TiE A TEA T

AEBE

BRIBEXRODBERAR —Z2_ZFHhHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-ZERNA=THIENEASB R ENZTHAN

6.

EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES
(Continued)

(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and
associates (Continued)

(c)

Key financial information of significant
associates (Continued)

CHEMAARET T

(2) EEEbXNBELXEPIRE

= (&)
() EEZBECENTIENHE
B(#E)

Zhongguancun Integrated

Circus Garden Tianjin Xinging

FENSAERE REFE

Six months Six months ~ Six months Six months

ended 30 June ended 30 June ended 30 June ended 30 June

2020 2019 2020 2019

BE-B-%% HE-Z-NEF HE-S-ZF HBE_T-NE

~B=tALE AA=THLE AA=tAL AKA=tALE

~EAHE N E A EE ~ERHE ~MEABE

Revenue BEMA 102,559 242,163 - -

Interest (expenses)/income FB(ER) /KA (67,642) (65,489) 5 2

Income tax expenses FERER 5733 (59,875) = -

Net (loss)/profit F(ER)/ME (16,597) 179,500 (23) (6)

Other comprehensive income B e s = - - -
Total comprehensive (loss)income Fa(B8E)/

WxBE (16,597) 179,500 (23) (6)

AEERHRELIN
REBELEORT

Dividends from associates

The Group, based on the amount assigned
to the Company in the consolidated
financial statements of associates,
calculates asset share in proportion to the
number of shares owned.

The amount in the consolidated financial
statements of associates has taken the
influence of the fair value of identifiable
net asset and liability of the investee
associates into consideration and the
unified accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

CHREUR/RARE T

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EHMERAERE)
(Continued)
(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and (2) HEEELEMNMBELEFRNE
associates (Continued) = ()
(d) Summary information of insignificant (d TEESELENHELE
joint ventures and associates HWEHZEE
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 .lune 2020 30 June 2019
/\H_+E|ll: NA=tHIE
{8 A A AN ENER:
Joint ventures: EEDE:
Total book value of investment #&BREBEES 5+ 3,682,855 3,246,603
Subtotals by the percentage of T %I IB#%+5 I% tt il
shareholding HEMAEH
Net profit/(loss) FRE(B1R) 16,353 (3,368)
Other comprehensive income — H 44 d % - -
Total comprehensive LmeEWE/(FE)
income/(loss) BE 16,353 (3,368)
Associates: B
Total book value of investment #®&ERHEEES 1,237,201 1,517,694
Subtotals by the percentage of %I & 1B # 45 % . I
shareholding AEHEFH
Net (loss)/profit F(B8R),/ B (10,408) 3,255
Other comprehensive income — Ef 44Uz = -
Total comprehensive e (B8 Wa
(loss)/income B (10,408) 3,255

The calculation of net profit and other
comprehensive income has taken the
market value of recognized assets and
liabilities at acquisition date and its
accounting policy adjustments into
consideration.

FR B S
EEMERANTHREE

YeEge

%Dfé%-\ﬁ’]’&ft{ﬁfﬁlz/(&
SRR ARTE

BEIERKRMNARLDA

=
— =

ZERHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-ZERNA=THIENEASB R ENZTHAN

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(Continued)

(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and

associates (Continued)

(e) The excess deficit related to joint

ventures and associates

CHEURARBE T

N, EHEM TR PR E)

(2) EEELXNBELXPE

The
accumulated
unrecognized

(%)

(e) EELENBELEREN

BHEER

The
accumulated

The
accumulated

loss at the unrecognized unrecognized
beginning of loss of the loss at the end
the period period of the period
HAOE% 7 H HRRE
ARANBEELE RABEINBEEX RBEINBEX
Joint ventures aEhE 10,973 8,580 19,553
Associates B 11,016 553 11,569
Total & 21,989 9,133 31,122
7. INTERESTS OF NON-CONSOLIDATED . ERMAGHIHBmREBEDLE

SPECIAL PURPOSE VEHICLE

In June 2016, the Company entered into the
equity trusteeship agreements (hereinafter
“Trusteeship Agreement”) with the shareholders
of Huludao Chuangrong Investment Co., Ltd.
(hereinafter”Huludao Chuangrong”), Huludao Capital
Investment Development Co., Ltd. (hereinafter
“Huludao Investment”), Huludao Capital Industrial

Development Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Huludao
Industrial”) and Huludao Capital Longwan
Development Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Longwan

Development”) (collectively”Trusteeship Companies”).
The Company shall exercise the shareholder rights
by trusteeship (except for the right to profit, residual
properties distribution and disposition), including but
not limited to the right to attending shareholders’
meeting, voting, nomination, recommendation,
supervision, proposal and questioning etc. The
Company shall perform supervision, propose
suggestions for the trusteeship companies and
appoints individuals for directors, supervisors and
senior management on behalf of the trusteeship
companies’ shareholders. According to the
Trusteeship Agreement, the trusteeship expenses are
calculated as 0.2% of the sales revenue of trusteeship
companies within maximum of RMB900,000 and
minimum of RMB500,000.
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- Huadong segment,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

INTERESTS OF NON-CONSOLIDATED
SPECIAL PURPOSE VEHICLE (Continued)

As at 30 June 2020, the Group has no equity
interests in the above trusteeship companies and
treated Huludao Chuangrong, Huludao Investment,
Huludao Industrial and Longwan Development as
interests of non-consolidated special purpose vehicle.
These trusteeship companies are principally engaged
in the real estate development, and the revenue
are mainly from the real estate project. As at 30
June 2020, the Group has not transferred assets to
the trusteeship companies, and has no obligation
or intention to provide financial support to these
trusteeship companies.

Other non-consolidated special purpose vehicles,
including Zhuhai Henggin Chengdu Weihua Fund and
Zhuhai Henggin Ruiyuan Jialing Fund, are disclosed in
note 4(11).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The segment of the Group is a business unit that
provides different products or services and operates
in different regions. Since various businesses or
regions require different market strategies, the Group
independently manages the production and operation
activities of each reporting segment, evaluates its
operating results separately, and decides to allocate
resources to it and evaluate its performance.

For the six months ended 30 June 2020 and as at
30 June 2020, the Group has total eight reporting
segments, which are:

- Beijing segment, responsible for property
development, sales and related business in
Beijing.

responsible for property
development, sales and related business in East
China.

+.

J\.

— ;E%/\—L

CHREUR/RARE T

E%WAAMW%%% BBl K 45
BltXRITNER#@)

RZZEZTFRA=1+H AEERE
MIEEEBRRPRARR  BHES
AR BHEBERE VESEELEE
%EWE$EI$WAAH%IM =
ftxfg - FEEAER ENEFME
EERERE Wmﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ
E%%%Fi%ﬂﬂo%i_?_?ﬁ
ﬁé%%é%%ﬁﬁ@ﬂo$%@$ﬁ
EREERERAIEHI B IHFHER
MEE -

K’El/ﬁ\‘r@ﬁ%)\/—\ﬁﬁﬁkiﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ
BRCIRAKEBREENMBEEES
I%/iﬁia%iﬁ”ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ(w &@(11))

ol IREPS\

AEENHREDMRERTRAEMRK
RG ~ HETRAMELENEBET -
HREBEHKAMWEFTEAIRNTS
BR RS - At Zli’il’“%lJﬁjﬁﬁxf
BREDHNEELERD  DHIFE
HE=EmMR - LAJ&EWEHEE%&J?I
AFEEES -

BE_Z-_ZFRA=THIERERH
F'EJL/USZEQ E-TFEXNA=1TH K&
HBESEREDE 2 AR

- bR E - AEAEILLRMEETT
FHERBHERMBBEERY -

CRARREFERMEETT
FiERBHEENBBAER -

ERIBEXROBERLAR — T2 FhHRSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HE—

ZoTERA=ZTAEREASE (REEHAN

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Tianjin segment, responsible for property
development, sales and related business in
Tianjin area.

Chengyu segment, responsible for property
development, sales and related business in
Chengdu and Chongging area.

Other segments, responsible for property
development, sales and related businesses in
other regions, mainly including the Group's
real estate development and sales and related
businesses in Shenyang, Xi‘an and Hainan etc..

Outlets business segment, responsible for the
development and operation of the first outlet
complex in each region.

Other investment real estate segments,
responsible for non-first Outlet investment real
estate development and operation.

The primary land development segment
(including shantytown reconstruction) is
responsible for the primary land development
and shantytown reconstruction business in the
Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei region.

Inter-segment transfer prices are determined by
reference to the prices used for sales to third parties.

Assets are allocated based on the operation of the
segment and the location of the assets, and liabilities
are allocated based on the operation of the segment.
The expenses attributable to each segment are borne
by each segment directly.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) N. DEHME R (#)

(1) Segment information for the six months ended () HEZZ-_ZFRA=THIL~AE
30 June 2020 and as at 30 June 2020 are as AHEE_Z_FFA=THH
follows: HEEINRAT
Primary land  Unallocated Intersegments
Property development, sales and related business Investment properties  development Intersegments elimination Total
EHERRHERRREY REKEHE TH-8E% AIENEE  SHMER &it
Beiing  Huadong Tianjin ~ Chengyu Others Outlets Others
R E1 X2 R At REREER A
Revenue from external S Z M A
customers 867434 4,420,158 1,162,454 1,221,167 208,358 225,741 42,950 795,150 275,865 - 9,219,283
Inter-segment revenue BELETTON - - - - 246,518 1,822 - - 7,615 (255,955) -
Revenue from contracts ~ REZFAHEMA:
with customers:
Recognized at a pointin ~ REEHEEER
time 867434 4,382,992 1,162,454 1,221,167 176,483 = = = 258,546 - 8,069,076
Recognized over time RE-BRAER = 37,166 = = 31,875 = = 795,150 = = 864,191
Cost of sales from main ~ TEEHAE
operations (516,434)  (3,693,416) (728,845) (725111) (163,606) (114,779) (5,734) (705,623) (100,875) - (6,754,423)
Interest income LEL 9N 8,529 10,218 6,324 2,903 6,852 1,450 249 807 117,436 - 154,768
Interest expenses HEBR (67,264) (90,514) (32,353) (9,803) (16,276) (103,096) (17.811) (147,082) (1,344,091) 302,908 (1,525,382)
Share of profit/loss) of ~ HEEMAELEY
associates and joint ek, (B%)
ventures 29,904 (3,118) 3414 o (2,156) (1,455) o o (7,451) o 19138
Provisions from credit ERREERX
impairment loss - - - - - - - - (2,792) - (2,792)
Depreciation and FEENEHE
amortization (99) (133) (19) (68) (69) (28,909) (712) - (32,730) = (62,499)
Total profit/(loss) g/ (BB ag 158,733 431,185 406,845 321,604 939,349 (59,864) (2,749) (59,865) (998,899) 30,572 1,166,911
Income taxes expense FRHER (57,373 (111,709 (102,591) (79,998) (90,625) (14,975) (3,144) (10,536) 331,344 (7,643) (147,250)
Net profit/(loss) FHE/ (BB 101,360 319,476 304,254 241,606 848,724 (74,839) (5,893) (70,401) (667,555) 22,929 1,019,661
Total assets AELE 45,001,438 28,972,092 18,588,791 11,056,918 35141797 10,918,368 3,012,607 19,642,299 143782582  (113,708,461) 202,408,431
Total liabllities BELE (41,074,521) (28,203,919) (15,062,007)  (8,526,299) (23,828,838)  (7,874,640)  (1,815537) (14,669,727)  (135,997,791) 120,118,439 (156,934,840)
Long-term equity gBELEMAED
investments on ENRERERE
associates and joint
ventures 210,846 230,840 1,021,135 = 42,652 266,864 = 0 4162141 - 5994478
Increase in non-current  ERBEEENE()
assets (i) 911,977 326,783 469,005 58,285 796,268 442,418 21,020 30,058 591,313 - 3653127
(i) Non-current assets exclude financial assets, long-term (i) IRBEETEREMEE RH

equity investments and deferred income tax assets.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

J\.

(2) Segment information for the six months ended
30 June 2019 and as at 31 December 2019 are
as follows:

Segment information for the six months ended

30 June 2019:

DEME R (&

) A

=

2 BE-T-AFXA=T+BILAE
H%Fﬁﬁ&:g*ﬂfﬁ+:ﬂ E+i
A5 HEEFIRMT :

BHE-_ZT—NAFNA=ZtBI1E~E
RAHEIE » 3= 8 -

Primary land ~ Unallocated  Intersegments
Property development, sales and related business Investment properties development  Intersegments elimination Total
EREREHERABZEE RENEHE TH-BRE AFENEE  ATREH EE
Beijing Huadong Tianjin Chengyu Others Outlets Others
R 27 X A 2 REREEH A
Revenue from external MIRFUA
customers 1,180,886 1,302,455 2,903,185 704170 1,304,471 378,188 5,310 2,565,942 80,778 - 10,476,385
Inter-segment revenue LEETTON - - - - - - - - 123,520 (123,520) -
Revenue from contracts REZPADRMA:
with customers:
Recognized at a pointin ~ REEBBHED
time 1,180,886 1,302,455 2,903,185 704170 1,304,471 378,188 56,310 1,087,739 80,778 - 8998182
Recognized over time RE-BRNER - - - - - - - 1478203 - - 1478203
Cost of sales from main ~ TEEHAK
operations (754,413) (882,854)  (1,662,890) (394,150) (731,455) (34,224) (7082) (1,697,385 (75,660) - (6,240113)
Interest income HakA 16,417 5,663 8,313 960 8,391 14,835 338 491 100,284 - 155,692
Interest expenses HSER (243,83%3) (14,738) - (45,040) - (179,558) (50,386) (208,178) (786,190) - (1527.93)
Share of profit/(oss) of HRENRELEN
associates and joint FEhE/(B%)
ventures 75,860 2497 (11,801) - (12,835) 4,769 - (1,264) 50,425 - 107,651
Provisions from credit ERAERXHRE
impairment loss - - - - - - - - - - -
Depreciation and NEERRHE
amortization (51) (120) (416) (35) (148) (31,095) (87) - (3,028) - (34,980)
Total profit/(loss) HE/(BlB)2E 62,206 185,863 739,656 154,858 254,890 107,808 48,688 734,898 (110,944) - 2177923
Income taxes expense fBHER 1914 (58,49) (186,743) (39,078) (63,996) (76,251) (12,111) (207,612) 223533 - (418,840)
Net profit edilhel 64,120 127,367 552,913 115,780 190,894 31,557 36,577 527,286 112,589 - 1,759,083
Increase in non-current FRDEEEME()
assets (i) 757 637 102 34 1322 1,174,705 23,699 573 1996 - 1,203,825
(i) Non-current assets exclude financial assets, long-term (i) IRNBEETRESMEE - KRB
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HE—

ZoTERAZTAENEASEBEZEHAN - &

HMEL/ARETT)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) J\. D EE B (&)
(2) Segment information for the six months ended (2) BE-Z-AFAA=tHIEKRE
30 June 2019 and as at 31 December 2019 are RAHEE_Z-NF+A=+—
as follows: (Continued) Ho EE 25 RMAT : (&)
Segment information as at 31 December 2019: ZE-NEFETZA=+—H5HE
B
Primary land  Unallocated  Intersegments
Property development, sales and related business Investment properties development  Intersegments elimination Total
EREREHERERER RENENE TH-BF% AFEMEE  AREEH ait
Beijing Huadong Tianjin Chengyu Others Outlets Others
IR 27 X2 A A BEREXH At
Total assets BELE 63910828 43,256,029 23,600,170 12371951 30,259,573 11,671,314 301810 21578869 104,102,524 (128,493,750) 185,269,318
Total liabilities BEEE (59,857,275 (43,836,713)  (20,290,720)  (10,070,738) (23,305402)  (5466,777)  (1,808,847) (16,588,537) (94,490,214) 132,487,011 (143,228,212)
Long-term equity HBELENARED
investments on EHRBRERE
associates and joint
ventures 640,356 729,035 1,026,772 - 5,778 - - 3247425 - 5700367

The revenue gained in Mainland China and oversea
transaction and total non-current assets apart from
financial assets, long-term equity investments and

RS B B R E B 3R A 4 [ 9 41
RBWANEFE - ARAEBRRBEA R
HBERMiEOREMEE  REK

deferred income tax assets were disclosed as below: ERENBIEFSHEE 2NN IER
FELBEHRDOT

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE-_Z_-_ZTF HEZZ—hF
ANB=1+HI1E NA=1THIE
Revenue from external customers %4325k A ~{E B H S 7~ {E A Bf FE
China F 9,216,552 10,476,385
France iy 2,731 -
Total &5 9,219,283 10,476,385
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—EZEF —ET—NF
Total non-current assets FRBEELE ~A=+tH +=ZA=+—H
China F 21,954,337 18,303,618
France A 182,884 182,476
Total = 22,137,221 18,486,094

BEIERKRMNARLDA
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z-_ZFXNA=TALAEANEGRENZHAN  SEECAARE T

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) J\.

Most business of the Company and the subsidiaries
are operated in mainland China. For the six months
ended 30 June 2020, the Group has revenue of
RMB2,731,000 (For the six months ended 30 June
2019: Nil) generated from overseas transaction.

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, the
revenue generated from a client in the primary
land development amounted to RMB379,958,000.
Accounted for 4% revenue of the Group (For the
six months ended 30 June 2019: RMB1,087,739,000.
Accounted for 10% revenue of the Group).

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY 7.

TRANSACTIONS

(1) The parent company

(a)

7 EE B (#)

AR REEETRARNEBLZHEMRN
FE - HE_Z_FFXA=ZFTHIER
MARE AEEEHEMBRAZZ K
ANEBNREE2,731,000c (2 —A
FRNAZ+THIEANEAHME &) -

HE-_Z2-_ZEFA=+H1E~EA
HE AEEE LM —RFEEDI
—UEPREBENEERABARE
379,958,000t - i AEBEEE W AN
4% (HE—Z—hF~NA=Z+tHIENHE
FAHAR - AR#1,087,739,0007T @ 14

SEZEXWANI0%)

BB OTBERLARS

(1) B286FR

The general information of the parent

company

(a)

BARERER

Place of
registration
= fit it

Nature of business
ERME

Capital Group

Beijing, the PRC

Infrastructure, financial securities,

(b)

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2020

industrial technology, commercial
trade and tourist hotel, etc.

REAE R EMRiE 28Er ITEMR
BEEHMIREEES

The Company’s ultimate controlling party
is Capital Group, incorporated in Beijing.

RRABREIES T HEE
£® - EMAERT -

Registered capital and changes in (b) BAREMERARESZ L

registered capital of the parent
company

31 December 30 June

2019 Increase Decrease 2020

“Z-NE ZBCRE

+=A=1+—H RHEE AP  AA=tTH

Capital Group EEEE 3,300,000 - - 3,300,000




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(1) The parent company (Continued)

(2)

(3)

(c) The proportions of equity interests
and voting rights in the Company held

by the parent company

.

(1)

30 June 2020

CHREUR/RARE T

BT REERERNEERS )

ISEYNCIR-DAC )
() BRAHAXIAFTNFREA
2R IR FE L

31 December 2019

The general

note 6(1).

ZE-8E5A=1H “E-NETZA=t-AR
Interest held Voting held Interest held  Voting held
% % % %
BREA  RRELA BRILH  RRERLD
% % % %
Capital Group ELESE 56.7 56.7 54.47 54.47
Subsidiaries (2) F2EIER
information and other related EZTRANEXNBZRLAEE
information of the subsidiaries are set out in B RN -
Joint ventures and associates B3) EELENBELERBNR
The general information of joint ventures and BREMEMBEEEBERRME
associates are set out in note 6(2). N (2) e

Except for the significant joint ventures and
associates set out in note 6(2), the rest
of information of other joint ventures and
associates engaged in related party transactions
with the Group is listed as follows:

BHEAQFERBENEELH
MBS EMERN  EHREA
EEBEEBIHOEBAEDL
RS RO RNT

Relationships with the Group

HAEE N R
Tianjin Ruihe Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Ruihe”) Joint Venture
REWMEEARABDGATHEIR ERKM]) BERE

Beijing Yuanchuang Xingcheng Real Estate Co.
("Yuanchuang Xingcheng”)
IREEEPEXARQAAUATEERAIEH])

Tianjin Yongyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Yongyuan”)

REBXTEXZABRAFTUATHEIRZKIT])

, Ltd.

Beijing Zhicheng Xinda Property Management Co., Ltd.

(“Zhicheng Xinda")

IRBHBEDNEFEBERAANMATEIBAHEZE]
Ningbo Yixing Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.

("Ningbo Yixing")

EREELERERAREEARNUATHIERER])

Joint Venture

AEME
Joint Venture
AahFE

Joint Venture

BELE

Joint Venture

o

RERE

EAIERRNERAT —F-FEFHEE

207



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z-_ZFXNA=TALAEANEGRENZHAN  SEECAARE T

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N. BETEERERERERSE)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(3) Joint ventures and associates (Continued) (3) 6L ENBELERTRE)

Relationships with the Group

B & B 1) B (R

Nanjing Xidi Xinke Business Management Co., Ltd. Joint Venture
("Xidi Xinke")

AREBMEBENEEEEAERAAI (U TEIE M ER]) BELRE

Tianjin Ruitai Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Ruitai"”) Joint Venture

REGFEBEEARAGUATEIREKZE]) BEDE

Beijing Yuanchuang Xingmao Real Estate Co., Ltd. Joint Venture
("Yuanchuang Xingmao”)

IR BRAEXEERRARIATHEIERIEX]) BERE

Guangzhou Bizeng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Joint Venture
("Guangzhou Bizeng”)

BMBEEERBEARART (A THEIEMBE]) BELE

Beijing Yuanchuang Chunhe Pension Service Co., Ltd. Associate
("Yunachuang Chunhe”)

IRBRABENEZREARIFUATERAIEBR]D B b 2

Beijing Ruicheng Yongchuang Technology Co., Ltd. Associate
(“Ruicheng Yongchuang”)

bR IR BRI B AR AT (AT R KAl B b %

Shoujin Yuanchuang (Tianjin) Real Estate Development Associate
Co., Ltd. ("Shoujin Yuanchuang”)

BEeA(RB)EXERARABDUATHEIEZTAD B b %

Chongging Haohua Real Estate Co., Ltd. Associate
("Chongging Haohua")

ERREEXARDAUUTHEIEERE)) B b

Hangzhou Zhenmei Investment Co., Ltd. Associate
("Hangzhou Zhenmei”)

MNZEEREERABDUATEIMIMNEED Bt b 5

Beijing Golden Net Property Investment Adviser Co., Ltd. Associate
("Golden Net"”)

IREHEBEEREERMERAFAUATHEIEEED B b %
Wuhan Rongshou Xinchuang Investment Development Associate

Co., Ltd. ("Wuhan Rongshou Xinchuang”)
REREHAREEZRERARIUATEIR ZmEsall) B e 1 2
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9.

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HE_Z-_TFXA=+HIEANEABE(KRERIFEHS -

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4) Other related parties

.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B s 3R M =T

(4)

BT REERERNEERS )

Htt = Z@BLHER

Relationship with the Group
BN 62 [ B B MR

CHREUR/RARE T

Capital Securities Co., Ltd. (“Capital Securities”)

BREIEFESFBEREAQAAATHEIFGAES]

Beijing XCapital Construction Investment Fund
(Limited Partnership) (“XCapital Fund”)

ITREEIFPERRREES (BRER)

(ATHEFmEES])

Beijing Chuangzhi Xinrong Investment Center

(Limited Partnership) (“Chuangzhi Xinrong”)
ERAEEREEPLERAB)ATHIAEERD)
Beijing Capital Dahe Investment Co., Ltd.

("Capital Dahe")

ERBEAXAREBRAB A THEIER AT

Beijing Capital Investment

BEIRE
Chengdu Jinhui

P #B 85 B

Shanghai Liangyue Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai

Liangyue”)

FTERUEERRAR(ATEIEBERED
Tianjin Ruixiang Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Ruixiang”)

REWTFEEEBR QA (LATHEIRRIRFFED
Chongging Huayu Shengrui Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. ("Chongging Huayu Shengrui”)
EEEFRHEWERBEARATDATHIEEESF
Ningbo Yuelong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

("Ningbo Yuelong”)

ERNEEHEREAERAA AT EIERNE]
Hongzhou Rongxiang Real Estate Co., Ltd.

("“Hongzhou Rongxiang”)

MMNBEEZEERABCATEIUINEEED
Guangzhou Biging Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

("Guangzhou Biging”)

BMNEEEMERBEERAGCATHEIBMNEED
Beijing First One Capital Management Ltd.

("First One Capital”)

AR TEERERAERARTUATHEIEITED

Bl

Controlled by the same
ultimate controller
RE—HEER TR E R
Controlled by the same
ultimate controller
XRA—&BEHNTEWNNER

Controlled by the same
ultimate controller
RA—HEEHNTEHNER
Controlled by the same
ultimate controller
RE—HAEESNTEGNE®R
Controlled by the same
ultimate controller
RE-—HEERNT RN TR
Significant subsidiary of joint
venture of the Company
RRARIZAERENEEFRA
Significant subsidiary of joint
venture of the Company
RRARZEERENEERZFRA
Significant subsidiary of joint
venture of the Company
RRAFZEERENERFRA
Significant subsidiary of joint
venture of the Company
RRBIZEEENERZF LA
Significant subsidiary of joint
venture of the Company
RRARIZAERENEEFRA
Significant subsidiary of joint
venture of the Company
RRARZEERENEERFRA
Significant subsidiary of joint
venture of the Company
RRAFZEERENERZFRA
Significant subsidiary of joint
venture of the Company
RRBIZEEPENERF LA

BEIEXEKRNABRRR —Z_FFPHRS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z-_ZFXNA=TALAEANEGRENZHAN  SEECAARE T

9.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2020

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4) Other related parties (Continued)

.

T REERENRERS &)

(4)

Htt = ZBB L HERE)

Relationship with the Group
BN R B B B MR

Shoujin Zhiyuan enterprise management (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

("Shoujin Zhiyuan”)

BEeHECEEREMRNBRARMUUTHIEEHE]

Nanjing Shouxi hi tech Development Co., Ltd (“Nanjing

Shouxi”)

HAREBRRMEBERERABDUATHEIER A &)

Shouhui Real Estate

BEEX

Wuhan Rongcheng Xinchuang Investment Development

Co., Ltd. ("Wuhan Rongcheng Xinchuang”)

REmMBAEREERBR AR (AT Z R FAN])
Zhejiang Rongshengda Holdings Limited (“Rongshengda”)

WITREZERARABCATRIRIZ]

China Railway Construction Kunlun Asset Management

Co., Ltd. ("China Railway Construction Kunlun”)
HFEHEEREEERERARGATRIFEHREESD
Xiamen Xiangfa Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Xiamen Xiangfa”)

EFAEMERRATATEIEFMAE]

Shanghai Poly Jianjin Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Poly Jianjin"”)

FERMNEREMEGRIFUATHEMRANZR])
Hangzhou Weixin Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

("Hangzhou Weixin")

TN K 55 b 22 BA B8 A PR A (BA TS A8 AR M B 37 1)
Xuhui Group Co., Ltd. (“Xuhui Group”)

BESERNERATCATHIBESE])
Beijing Xinshang Zhiyuan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

("Xinshang Zhiyuan”)

ERFTHBEFMEREGRARUATHEIF B E]D
Tianjin Xuwei Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

("Tianjin Xuwei")

REBEFHERBERAA A THEIREBME])

Beijing Yongtongchang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

(“Yongtongchang”)

EFKRAEFEHEREERATUATEIKRE ]

Significant subsidiary of joint
venture of the Company
RRARIZEERCENEEFRA
Significant subsidiary of joint
venture of the Company
RRARIZAERENEEFRA

Significant subsidiary of
associate of the Company
RARZBEPENERZFRA

Significant subsidiary of
associate of the Company
RAFZBEEENERZFRA
Significant non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries
RRRZFRAAIMNEZELERR
Significant non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries
RRARZFRAMNEZLHKRE
Significant non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries
RARZFRAANEZDLHKRR
Significant non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries
RARZFRAANEZDHKRE
Significant non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries
RRAFZFRAINEZLBRR
Significant non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries
RRARZFRAAMNEZELERR
Significant non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries
RRARZFRAAMNEEZELERR
Significant non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries
RRARZFRANEZLHKRE
Significant non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries
RRRZFRANEZLHKRRE




9.

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HE_Z-_TFXA=+HIEANEABE(KRERIFEHS -

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY 7.

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(4) Other related parties (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B s 3R M =T

(4)

BT REERERNEERS )

Htt = ZBB L HERE)

Relationship with the Group
BN R [ B B MR

CHREUR/RARE T

Reco Yanshan Private Limited (“Reco Yanshan")

Reco Yanshan Private Limited (LA~ #[Reco Yanshanl)
Jindi Xingye Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Jindi Xingye")

SHBEERMERRARUATHEI© B X])

Beijing Longhu Zhongbai Real Estate Co., Ltd (“Longhu
Zhongbai”)

IRERAFEEXEERARIATEIERFMED

Kunming Wuhua District Industry Development Co., Ltd.
(“Kunming Wuhua")

ERTLEREXRERERAANUATRHIERARE]D

Reco Ziyang Pte Ltd (“Reco Ziyang”)

EEREERABIATHILBRED

Henan Sunac Aocheng Real Estate Co., Ltd.
("Henan Sunac Aocheng”)

MBI R EBEEER AR (AT EF A 2]

Wuhan Sunac Chancheng Ronghe Investment Development

Co., Ltd. ("Wuhan Sunac Chancheng Ronghe")
RERMBERBEREERBRAA
(ATHEIFOZERBIERRE])
Beijing Jiayuan Hongye Investment Management Co., Ltd.
("Jiayuan Hongye")
ERBEREFREEEARAGUATHEIZRER]D
Suzhou Hongchang Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou
Hongchang”)
M RBEEBR AT (LATREIER MBI
Nanchang Wanda City Investment Co., Ltd.
("Nanchang Wanda City”)

HEBENKRERARARAUATHIMEEEM]

Significant non-controlling
interests of former
subsidiary

RRARZRFRBINEZLH
& =R

Significant non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries

RRABIZFRAINEZLERR

Significant non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries

RRARZFRAMNEZLHKRRE

Significant non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries

RARZFRAANEZDLHRKRRE

Significant non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries

RRARZFRAAMNEZLHRRE

Significant non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries

RRBIZFRAAINEZLERE

Significant non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries

RABZFRAINEEZLERR

Significant non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries
RABZFRAINEEZLERR
Joint venture of a former
subsidiary of the Company
ARARIZRFRAIMEGEDRE
The entity controlled by
the ultimate controller of
the significant minority
shareholders of the
company'’s subsidiaries
RARBIZFRAAINEZDERE
B AP 07 12 o 8 RS

BEIEXEKRNABRRR —Z_FFPHRS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-ZERNA=THIENEASB R ENZTHAN

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(5) Related party transaction
(a) Pricing policy

The Board of directors
transactions with related

normal commercial terms,

considers all
parties are on
and prices of

related party transactions were agreed by

CHEMAARET T

.

BT RENER S (#E)
(5) BHXS
() EEHX

AEBERBABY T HHMD
MEH SRR T R mIAT
LEBIEATERR  BX
A B 7 1 1k A 55 75 DA R B i

the Group and the related parties. RHABATNSBEAREER
BEGRN BBMISEER
P 7S &2 E ER A B 5 1 — B
HEE °
(b) Purchases of goods and receiving (b) HBERAMm ESHK:
services:
Six months Six months
Related party ended ended
Related party transactions 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE-Z2_%F BE_ThLF
ANB=+HI NA=THIE
ki) B 5 AR ANEBHE 75 A HA
Capital Group Keepwell Deed
EEEE] i 30,350 35,396
Capital Group Guarantees
EE-IESE ERR® 16,750 21,750
Golden Net Selling agency
ok ke HERERS 3,625 8,425
Shangbodi Property leasing
fe 155 3 FEMHE 3,986 3,796
Capital Securities Securities consignment
BEIEH & H EITR 2,741 -
Others Property leasing
H FEHEE = 739
Total
=k 57,452 70,106

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2020



9.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY 7.

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(5) Related party transaction (Continued)

(c)

Sales of goods and providing services:

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

CHREUR/RARE T

BT REERERNEERS )

(5) BAEXZ (&)
() #HEmm REFHK:

Six months Six months
Related party ended ended
Related party transactions 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE-Z2-2F HE_Z-NF
ANA=+HL NA=TAHIE
Bkl BB HAD ANEBHE 75 B A HA
Yunnan Dianfu Management Service
EEER IR AR5 18,000 -
Capital Group Property leasing and
management
EEIES:! FEMEE &Y% RB 12,582 14,130
Guangzhou Biging Advisory Service
BINEE i o PR % 2,830 -
Shouhui Real Estate Merchandise sales
HESE 2 on 85 B 157 6,608
Tianjin Ruihe Merchandise sales
R % I M % oo iH & = 1,087,739
Chengdu lJinhui Merchandise sales
B D &9 (& % on 85 & = 1,140
Others
HAtb 5,915 5,584
Total
a5t 39,484 1,115,201

BRIBEXBRNBERAR —Z_2FhHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N. BETEERERERERSE)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(5) Related party transaction (Continued) (5) BBBXRS (&)
(d) Interest income/(expense) generated d) XEEERBEIZRENES
from related parties: HRABA(BR) :
Six months Six months
ended ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE-_Z_-_ZF HEZZ—NTF
NA=THL NA=F+HIE

A E B 8 7~ {8 A HA
Wuhan Rongcheng 2 &b A Al
Kaichuang 143,965 -
Yuanchuang Xingcheng R Al EL 76,969 130,585
Zhicheng Xinda B EE 49,194 -
Tianjin Yongyuan RAEKTT 45,924 34,027
Tianjin Hefa REEGE 30,645 100,345
Jingu Chuangzhan TAEIE 18,733 13,212
Zhongguancun Integrated RN R K E KR
Circuit Garden 17,081 17,840
Yunnan Dianfu EMEN 15,552 -
Beijing Yuechuang b A% Al 14,587 43,749
Tianjin Lianzhan RAEMR 8,467 40,204
Hongzhou Rongxiang M 6,921 20,376
Guangzhou Runyu BN E S 5,306 13,296
Shanghai Liangyue EBRY 3,164 36,671
Rongshengda Tt E 1,064 -
Tianjin Ruixiang R 2 T = 53,160
Suzhou Hongchang MM 3A 2@ = 37,234
Tianjin Ruihe X2 I - 13,701
XCapital Fund MM EES - (10,824)
Others EH A 1,282 1,100
Total a5t 438,854 544,676
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY . BEATERERERS#E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(5) Related party transaction (Continued) (5) BBBXRS (&)
(e) Leasing (e) ME
The Group as lessor: REBEEREER:
Six months Six months
ended ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE-_Z_ZT HBE=E-Z—h%F
NA=THL NA=+THIE

AE A H A 7~ A& A EA e
Donghuan Xinrong RIRE R 17,747 -
The Group's interest expense of lease REEVEREATE T B BAYE
liabilities undertaken for the current period WEEAERNE X H
as a lessee:
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE-ZE_-_2HF BHEZE—NF
~NA=1+HI1E NAZ=ZTHILE
A E B 8 7~ {8 A HA
Shangbodi 1) 18 3, 111 -

BRIBEXBRNBERAR —Z_2FhHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY 7.

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(5) Related party transaction (Continued)

(f) Guarantee and keepwell deed

T REERENRERS &)

(5) BAEXZ (&)
(f) BERREHEFHER

30 June 31 December
2020 2019
g et 33 —EB-NF
AA=+H +ZH=+-—H
Capital Group for the BREIEBRARAR
Company (i) R () 2,500,000 2,500,000
Keepwell deed for HEIEBARTAA
subsidiaries by Capital 12 M4 R
Group 10,019,408 10,082,299
Non-controlling interests of  F 2R & Z b &%
subsidiaries for subsidiaries RAEFREER
(Note 4(28)(b)) (Bt 3£ 9 (28)(b)) 1,115,000 1,631,000
The Group for subsidiaries of AEBAS & A F
joint ventures (ii) ZF R EEAR (i) 144,000 1,400,800
The Group for joint ventures ARN&EBAA & A
(iii) AR (i) 1,080,360 -
The Group for associates (iv) AEB A AR
AR (iv) 598,476 569,292

In 2015, Capital Group provided irrevocable
guarantee for the Company’s long-term
borrowings from Taikang Assets Management
Co., Ltd. amounted to RMB2,500,000,000. The
guarantee will expire in August 2022.

The Group provided unconditional and
irrevocable guarantees for the long-term
borrowings of RMB747,950,000 borrowed by
a subsidiary of a joint venture in March 2018
from AVIC Trust Co., Ltd.(hereinafter "AVIC
Trust”). As at 30 June 2020, the long-term
borrowings have been fully repaid.

As at 30 June 2020, long-term borrowings
of subsidies of joint ventures of the Group,
amounted to RMB144,000,000(31 December
2019: RMB652,850,000) are guaranteed by the
Group. The guarantee will expire in 2022.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2020

RRABWERFEAEBR
T -—RAFRAREIRER
BEEEERETRRAEE
) A R #2,500,000,0007T
REERIRHT T HHEDE
HEARE  ERIBHBA
ZEZZFNRA-

REBARAEELENTA
RIRZZT—N\FE=FB#%+ M
FEREOHBRAAUATIHE
[ EENDEANARE
747,950,0007t & HA {8 3 iR
HATHEOETEER
CTRZTEZEFRA=T
CZERHBERDKEHE

ME IO R

R—ZZE-_ZTFNA=+
H AEEAELEMEDN
FRAARBEBERARE
144,000,0007T 2 # # ®
—ET-nEF+=ZA=+—
H :652,850,000) « # (& &
BAAR-T -4 -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(5) Related party transaction (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Guarantee and keepwell deed
(Continued)

(i)

(iv)

As at 30 June 2020, long-term borrowings
of joint ventures of the Group, amounted to
RMB1,080,360,000 (31 December 2019: Nil)
are guaranteed by the Group. The guarantee
will expire from 2022 to 2043.

As at 30 June 2020, long-term borrowings of
associates amounted to RMB598,476,000(31
December 2019: RMB569,292,000) are
guaranteed by the Group. The guarantee will

expire in 2029.

Provide/(receive) funding

CHREUR/RARE T

BT REERERNEERS )

(5) BAEXZ (&)
(f) ERERRHEFHRE)

(i) RZTZTFXA=Z+H XK
EEAEEETERMERA
K #1,080,360,0007T 2
ER( ZE-—NAF+ZA=T
—A: &) ERIBEAAZ

TZZFE-TPN=F

(ivy RZZEZZTFSA=+H"
AEBAME PERIER
A R #598,476,0007T $Z
BER(ZE-NAF+=ZA=T
— B: A R #569,292,000
L) EREBHEAEZZT =N
£

(9) B# (BWEES

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE-F-%F HE_TNF
ANA=+H ~NA=1H
1< {8 B B R 1E 7518 A A
Shouhui Real Estate HEE X 1,502,925 -
Yunnan Dianfu AN 462,404 -
Xidi Xinke B i & B 375,000 -
Tianjin Yongyuan RAEKTT 279,746 226,029
China Railway Construction  F#HEZE=
Kunlun 234,595 -
Wuhan Rongcheng % R A
Xinchuang 224,790 -
Zhicheng Xinda B & E 175,000 580,000
Guangzhou Bizeng & M 2 3 98,000 (263,338)
Kaiyuan Hean BT % 80,266 36,440
Wuhan Rongshou Xinchuang &% gt & ¥7 & 74,950 -
Tianjin Lianjin PAND= S D= 50,000 -
Shanghai Shoujia FBER 33,000 67,200
Xiamen Xiangfa EFI3E 28,000 (12,602)
Chuangyuan Yicheng Bl IR iR 26,500 (1,240,361)
Yuanchuang Xingcheng R Al B 21,392 206,251
Guangzhou Runyu BEMEE 20,000 -
Suzhou Hongchang M S5k AE - 1,340,809
Nanchang Huachuang M & gl = 16,340

BRIBEXBRNBERAR —Z_2FhHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY . BB ATBERERERS#E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(5) Related party transaction (Continued) (5) BBBXRS (&)

(g) Provide/(receive) funding (Continued) () RB#B#t (kz)ER(E)

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE-Z2_FF BE_TILF
ANB=1H ANAB=1H
1718 B H 1E 7518 A HA
Tianjin Xinging RAENE = 1,000
Tianjin Ruitai RAEE R = 307
Shangbodi i) 18 3 = (10,000)
Ningbo Shouju Yiming =R B 28 - (10,000)
Ruicheng Yongchuang ¥ B 7K Al = (11,100)
Tianjin Ruibin RKEBRE = (20,000)
Dacheng Guangyuan KR = (31,250)
Poly Jianjin IR 7 3£ 5% - (13,054)
Tengtai Yiyuan BRER - (50,000)
Chuangzhi Xinrong BlE A - (54,078)
Xiamen Rongdi E PR b = (155,977)
Chengdu Jinhui X #B &3 [ - (2,695,000)
Beijing Tonghao Beifang @k E (4,900) -
Shoujin Zhiyuan EEE§ (8,000) -
Tianjin Ruibin KEBE (15,000) -
Zhongguancun Integrated HREAR K E R R
Circus Garden (25,000) (18,911)
Tianjin Xinming P il (26,000) 47,760
Jingu Chuangxin T RBIE (59,070) -
Tianjin Ruixiang K= I (66,000) (912,024)
Henan Sunac Aocheng 7] R Al B (68,299) -
Chongging Huayu Shengrui  ZEEEF IS (69,300) 9,900
Tianjin Lianzhan KEBE (91,000) (87,500)
Tianjin Ruihe X 2 I Fl (100,000) 1,200,000
Tianjin Hefa KRG (125,970) (93,860)
Shanghai Liangyu B2 (140,000) -
Ningbo Yixing R EHE (165,000) -
Jingu Chuangzhan TREIRE (171,774) 601,865
Shoujin Yuanchuang Elsa-l (198,900) -
Yuanchuang Xingmao R Bl B K (270,000) (1,232,850)
Ningbo Yuelong O E (293,487) -
Hangzhou Rongxiang )M B A (341,488) 281,943
Beijing Yuechuang b R Al (735,000) 682,080
Others H (6,052) 2,620
Total A& 706,328 (1,611,361)
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9.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

CHREUR/RARE T

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N. BETEREREERSE)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(5) Related party transaction (Continued) (5) BHMXRZ (&)
(h) Key executives compensation (h) BAEEEASFHH
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE-Z-_Z5 BHEZZT—NEF
~A=+H NA=+H
1E 75 B HA 175 A #
Remuneration of key BiREREAESH
executives 5,946 5,960
Others Ef 165 177
Total = 6,111 6,137
(I In February 2017, the Company entered into (i) RZZE—tEZA  ARA

an Asset Management Agreement with Capital
Securities and the custodian bank. Capital
Securities shall provide asset management
and investment services in respect of the
addition of the Entrusted Assets no more
than RMB2,000,000,000 in accordance with
the investment policies under the Asset
Management Agreement. The above agreement
expires in February 2020.

In May 2020, the company signed the 2020
asset management agreement with Beijing
Capital Securities and the custodian bank,
stipulating that Beijing Capital Securities will
provide asset management and investment
services for the Company’s entrusted assets
not exceeding RMB1,600,000,000 within three
years from the initial operation of the entrusted
assets.

IHAIESRIEERITE
FEEERERE  NTEEHE
BHEMARAIRBEEESE
BREERYE ZXEE
MESBEEMNTEAARE
2,000,000,0007T * & 2 A
BREFEEEFEYEEE
BEREBERILEEMEAFESH
ST EBHRM o g E R
—E-TF-ARE -

\

R-F-FEHEA AAA
IgAl B HFRIEERTER
TS FEETEBE
HNTEEHBIBESFBRERE
EfRmEFEzZBRHN=F
RNEARBRTRBBARE
1,600,000,000t B Z £ &
ERHREEERLRER
ﬁ% o

Bl

\

el
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N. BETEERERERERSE)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(6) Related party balances (6) A AEW ENFRIEREE

Receivables due from related parties: JE Wit 8 Bk 5 3R 1A
30 June 2020 31 December 2019

ZE-_ZEExXA=+tH Z—E-AFt+-A=t—H

Provisions Provisions

for for

Carrying  doubtful Carrying doubtful

amount debts amount debts

RESE BEREE  KAHE  ZRER

Advanced to suppliers Golden Net
ENEE S Gk 17,091 - 4,936 -
Others receivables Chuangyuan Yicheng
H feh & Y 5K Elp=g) L 2,155,544 - 2128433 -
Tianjin Yongyuan (i)
P2 i () 1,617,991 - 1,289,566 -
Kaiyuan Hean
RTiZ 1,261,258 - 1,180,992 -
Zhicheng Xinda (i)
HABE() 965,606 = 735,000 -
Tianjin Ruihe
RERM 941,397 - 932,260 -
Tianjin Ruitai
PN SRS 765,906 - 765,906 -
Tianjin Hefa (i)
KEEE) 757,695 = 851,181 -
Guangzhou Bizeng
BMBEE 505,146 = 407,146 -
Yunnan Dianfu (i)
EEEN() 487,889 - - -
Yuanchuang Xingmao
BB 454,371 = 454,371 -

Zhongguancun Integrated
Circus Garden (i)

RENERERE() 415,604 = 440,604 -
Guangzhou Runyu (i)

BME ) 412,323 - 387,017 -
Xidi Xinke

BinER 375,000 = - -
Tianjin Ruixiang

REmHF 369,659 = 435,000 -
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9.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE—T-_FFANA=TRALANEAMNEGRENZAN  SEELAARE T

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(6) Related party balances (Continued)

Receivables due from related parties: (Continued)

N. BETREMERS @)

(6) Bt L EW - BN RIRERE

(%)

FE U BARE T 3R0R : (B8)

30 June 2020

31 December 2019

“E-ZEXAZtTHE ZE-NE+ZA=1+-H
Provisions Provisions
for for
Carrying  doubtful Carrying doubtful
amount debts amount debts
EHEEE BEERE RESKE BRER
Jingu Chuangzhan
2R8I R 349,225 - 501,141 -
Hangzhou Weixin
M B 266,408 = 266,408 -
Xuhui Group
TBEEE 249,703 - - -
Yongtongchang
XEE 242,970 = 317,970 -
Xinshang Zhiyuan
HRBE 242,189 = 242,189 -
Tianjin Xuwei
RE B 242,189 - 242,189 -
China Railway Construction
Kunlun
THEES 234,595 - - -
Wuhan Rongcheng
Xinchuang
2 B3 A 224,790 = - -
Tianjin Ruibin
REEE 219,796 = 234,796 -
Shanghai Zhiyue
LBEH 199,675 = - -
Jingu Chuangxin
ARG 195,690 = - -
Tianjin Lianzhan (i)
KRR () 178,140 = 260,165 -
Yuanchuang Xingcheng (i)
E BB () 174,725 - 152,518 -
Chongging Haohua
EERE 167,694 = 167,694 -
Tengtai Yiyuan
BRER 158,500 = 158,500 -

BRIBEXBRNBERAR —Z_2FhHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N. BETEERERS #E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(6) Related party balances (Continued) (6) P AEW - ENFEREE

(&)
Receivables due from related parties: (Continued) JFE U B B 5 R IE - (BR)
30 June 2020 31 December 2019

“E-ZEXAZTHE —E-AE+-A=1-H

Provisions Provisions

for for

Carrying  doubtful Carrying doubtful

amount debts amount debts

REHE S2REE  REHE  FRER

Shanghai Liangyue (i)

FERH) 152,466 = 289,112 -
Yuanchuang Chunhe
BEIEA 120,800 = 120,000 -
Dacheng Guangyuan
ERLE 75,000 - - -
Wuhan Rongshou

Xinchuang
BOE R E Al 74,950 = - -
Nanchang Huachuang
MEES 68,999 = 69,133 -
Shoujin Yuanchuang
k] 64,589 = 72,181 -
Jinlong Yonghui
S K 58,200 - 58,200 -
Rongshengda (i)
RIE() 50,825 = 49,760 -
Xiamen Xiangfa
EFMAE 28,000 = - -
Jindi Xingye
S EE 25,000 - 100,000 -
Longhu Zhongbai
EHRAE 25,000 = 100,000 -
Ningbo Yuelong
ERE 17,772 - 311,259 -
Shouhui Real Estate
EEEX 15,817 = 11,920 -
Tianjin Xinming
KA A 12,000 = 12,000 -
Hangzhou Zhenmei
IRE$S 10,663 = 10,663 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(6) Related party balances (Continued)

Receivables due from related parties: (Continued)

CHREUR/RARE T

N. BETREMERS @)

(6) Bt L EW - BN RIRERE

(%)

FE U BARE T 3R0R : (B8)

30 June 2020

31 December 2019

“E-ZEXAZtTHE ZE-NEF+ZA=1-—H
Provisions Provisions
for for
Carrying  doubtful Carrying doubtful
amount debts amount debts
BEH BRER RESKE BERERE
Shenyang Xinzi
BEAE 8,437 = - -
Chengdu Jinhui
7, 20 57 [ 8,305 = 8,202 -
Ningbo Yixing (i)
B (2 EL() 6,172 = 165,000 -
Guangzhou Biging
BMEE 3,000 = - -
Nanjing Shouxi
HMREE 2,000 = - -
Shangbodi
it 1 4 1,993 = 1,993 -
Hangzhou Rongxiang (i)
N () - = 280,152 -
Beijing Yuechuang (i)
b AL AG) = = 200,790 -
Reco Yanshan
Reco Yanshan = = 92,272 -
Chongging Huayu
Shengrui
EREFER = = 57,772 -
Shouwan Yuye
BEEZ - = 27,636 -
Others
Hith 8,031 = 7,430 -
Total
Gl 15,669,697 - 14,596,521 -
(i) As at 30 June 2020, the amounts were the principal (i) RZZE_TFEXA=Z1+H " ZER

and interests of interest-bearing transactions receivable
from joint ventures and associates of the Group. The
annual interest rate of the payment ranges from 5.4%
to 12%, and there is no fixed repayment period.

FAREEERAECENHE D
EWHBERRASRAL  HE

FHREERRS5A%E12% -

9 % [E

ERFEMR -

BRIBEXBRNBERAR —Z_2FhHRE

223



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY . BB TEBERENERS#E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(6) Related party balances (Continued) (6) EAEE A HEUR - FE(TRIEEREE
(#&)
Except for the aforesaid amounts, the rest of Br Bt ;RIB AN - HERELEREE 5 1
the transactions with related parties are non- RARIBHAEE - EEF K ER
interest bearing, have no collateral or guarantee, Bo - BEEEEEBRR -

and have no fixed repayment period.
Payables due to related parties: JR& 1<t [ Bst 75 SR -

30 June 31 December

2020 2019
—E-2F —T-hF
AA=+H +ZA=+—H
Trade Payables Golden Net
J& 151 BR 5K ® i = 715
Contract liabilities Shouhui Real Estate
aREE BEEX 15,425 19,327
Yuanchuang
Xingcheng
R Bl B 5,617 -
Tianjin Ruitai
ROR I & 4,383 380
Chuangyuan Yicheng
BlE N A2 1,763 2,699
Total
A&t 27,188 22,406
Other payables Nanchang Wanda
City
H h FE 5K MEBEM 965,763 -
Poly Jianjin
R 7 2 87 639,237 639,237
Beijing Yuechuang
1k A &l 518,748 -
Capital Group
ER-IES 420,548 -
Yuanchuang Xingmao
RAIELX 270,000 -
Tianjin Lianjin
P 200,000 250,000
Shoujin Yuanchuang
BEEl 198,900 -
Reco Ziyang
RERE 179,240 179,240
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY 7.

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(6) Related party balances (Continued)

Payables due to related parties: (Continued)

BT REERERNEERS )

(6) Bt L EW - BN RIRERE

(%)

J& 1 R B 5 3K0R

(&)

30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—EC-E®F —T-hF
AA=+H +ZHA=+—H
Zhuhai Henggin
Ruiyuan lJialing
Fund
KEEERhTEREES 125,536 125,536
Tianjin Xinming
K2 ¥ EA 122,660 96,660
Kunming Wuhua
BRARE 118,225 118,225
Shanghai Henggu
FigEE 114,800 114,800
Dacheng Guangyuan
KR 107,500 107,500
Tianjin Ruihe
K2 3 A 100,000 -
Shanghai Songming
g 92,400 92,400
Jiayuan Hongye
BREE 87,500 87,500
First One Capital
2l T & 83,288 83,288
Capital Dahe
EEIRNE 76,500 76,500
Jinlong Yonghui
©REKIE 72,750 72,750
Henan Sunac
Aocheng
A e AN BRI 68,299 -
Jingu Chuangxin
T REE 59,070 -
Hangzhou Rongxiang
BN b A 54,000 -
Xiamen Rongdi
= 9 & i 36,000 36,000
Tianjin Xinging
RENE 35,590 35,590

BREIEXERMHARLQA

—EoTERER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY . BB TEBERENERS#E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(6) Related party balances (Continued) (6) P AEW - ENFEREE
(%)
Payables due to related parties: (Continued) FETRAEE 7 1B ()

30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—E-EF —E—NF
~AB=+tH +=ZA=+—H

Tianjin Yongyuan

RIFKTT 30,010 30,010
Hangzhou Weixin

UM B 27,002 27,002
Xinshang Zhiyuan

¥ im BUR 24,547 24,547
Tianjin Xuwei

K2 B ME 24,547 24,547
Yongtongchang

KA B 22,093 22,093
Capital Investment

BElIIRE 20,000 20,000

Wuhan Sunac
Chancheng Ronghe

RZMAEIEMEES 16,960 -
Chongging Huayu
Shengrui

ERETFTRR 11,528 -

Shoujin Zhiyuan

B2 ¥E 8,000 -

Shouhui Real Estate

HEE X - 1,500,000

Shanghai Shoujia

LBER - 468,089

Golden Net

ok =k - 20,368

Others

HAth 15,397 3,618

Total

& Ef 4,946,638 4,255,500
The other payables due to related parties REBEER AT - HaE g
were interest free, without any mortgage nor FARRBBHIE  EERL
guarantee, and with no fixed maturity date. ERER BEETEEHR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(7) Remuneration payable to the Board of
directors (Note 4(24)):

BT REERERNEERS )

(7) ENES=MSE (M ED(Q4)

30 June 31 December

2020 2019

—EZEF —E—NF

~NA=+tH +=-A=+—H

Remuneration EEWe 26,550 26,550
CONTINGENCIES A EI18

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
customers and has provided guarantees to secure
repayments obligations of these customers.

The Group provided guarantees in respect of
mortgage facilities granted by certain banks relating
to the mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers
of the Group’s properties. These guarantees will be
expired when relevant property ownership certificates
are lodged with the various banks by the purchasers.
As at 30 June 2020, outstanding guarantees
amounted to RMB9,621,571,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB6,919,548,000).

AEECRETHXREUBE D LB
RITRE  YHREBETNENRRE
REHER -

AEENID B ERRRITIESE (AR
BN ABEASERENERER
RERTENBABEFERERNE
Ko AEEARBRITABEEP BM
MRS HEE R MEER - RBEER
EFCEBFEEPHETEEEMA#EE
Uz FEERRELTFERER - N
TTFERNA=TH RBFEERE®R
B AR®9,621,571,000(ZZE—N4F
TZA=+—H:AK#%6,919,548,000
JT) °

EAIERRNERAT —F-FEFHEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-ZERNA=THIENEASB R ENZTHAN

11. COMMITMENTS

(1) Capital commitments

CHEMAARET T

+— & EIR
1) BEXMHEZTHEAFBEE
MAMNEEEEER LI TIHNE

Capital expenditures contracted for but not yet
necessary to be recognized in the balance sheet
by the Group at the balance sheet date are as

AR 3T H AR

follows:
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—t i —T-hF
~NA=+tH +=ZA=+—H
Authorized but not contracted B #tERZFEL 41,940,051 32,077,864
Contracted but not paid EERAORZT 18,698,691 11,806,026
Total = 60,638,742 43,883,890
(2) Investment commitments (2) HIREAXZEE
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—E=FF —T-NF
ANA=+H +=ZHAH=+—H
Investment for acquisition of g SN

subsidiaries 969,800 304,114

Investment in joint ventures HEHeE R AmRE
and associates 1,017,230 2,710,730
Total AF 1,987,030 3,014,844
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B s 3R M =T

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks, including credit risk, liquidity risk, and market
risk (foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk). The financial risks and the Group’s overall
risk management program focusing on the financial
risks are summarized as follows:

The board of directors is responsible for planning
and establishing the risk management structure of
the Group, formulating risk management policies and
related guidelines and supervising the implementation
of risk management measures. The Group has
established risk management policies to identify and
analyze the risks the Group exposed to. The risk
management policies has clearly defined specific risks,
covering market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk
management, etc. To update the risk management
policies and systems, the Group regularly assesses
its operating activities and the market environment.
The Risk Management Committee carries out the
risk management in accordance with the policies
approved by the Board of Directors. The Risk
Management Committee identifies, evaluates and
circumvents related risks through close cooperation
with other business units of the Group. The internal
audit department of the Group conducts regular
audits on risk management controls and procedures,
and reports the audit results to the audit committee
of the Group.

(1) Market risk
(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s major operational activities
are carried out in Mainland China and a
majority of the transactions are dominated
in RMB. The Group is still subject to
foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions, recognized assets
and liabilities in foreign currency (most of
the Group’s foreign currency transactions
and balances are dominated in USD,
HKD, AUD and Euro (“EUR")). Financial
department in the Group’'s headquarter
is responsible for monitoring the amount
of assets and liabilities, and transactions
denominated in foreign currencies to
minimize potential foreign exchange
risk. Therefore the management of the
Group may consider entering into forward
exchange contracts or currency swap
contracts to mitigate the foreign exchange
risk.

CHREUR/RARE T

T eMIANMEER

AEENKEEDEHESESHMA
B TERBEARER  RBERR
mEAR(EER/INERR M XER
ME M ERSRE ) o Lt 2 B E R R
AR EE B PR K 55 L L R P ER EX RO AL B
EIEBRI AT AL :

EXREAIYRYARENER
BIRARE - BIEANREAERE E B R
MABEESILEERREERENN
TR - NRECHIE R R E 2 BRI
A MO AR EBAEERARR - S
REREERREFTRARETTHE
ME - BRETHMSRAR - ERERMR
PUuREREREHZIE AEETEH
FAEMERERAEELEEHNE
EAREREBHABREERRMEGR
ETEH - ARENRBREEARRE
BREeRREFSLENRRAR -
REEEZEeREEAEEHEME
B FIM E & B ER R - FFEMR &
R - NEB R EE BT E R
EEEFMEFETESNEZ LA
BERERLLBASENETZES -

(1) mEmEkE
(@) SHERB

AEENEZEECNFHE
BR - EBRBAAREE
H-AEECERNINEE
EMEE R KRR INEZ
GINEBEEMBBERINERS
MEHEE®TERET &
%R RE L) FESME
[ B o 7N 52 [ 48 0 B 7% ER P
AEREBEEREEINERS
MONEEE R ABHRE
LA B A A2 X 8 K T B ) 9 B
R St AEBEAES
NHBEYIINEGOHEE
BB A KM 2 HE B R
SINEE R\ B B B R

ERIBEXROBERLAR — T2 FhHRSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HE_Z_ZFAZFTHENEABRE(RENZHIN eBELRARE T
12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK tZ.emIT A NKHERER )
(Continued)
(1) Market risk (Continued) (1) mERKE)
(@) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (@) HERK(E)
As at 30 June 2020 and 31 December E(\\_?_gix\ﬂ THR
2019, the carrying amounts in equivalent T-NE+A=+—80"

REEBARERIESAR
BORRFANINESRE
EMIESBABTERA
RENSEI RO :

RMB of the Group’s assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
summarized as follows:

30 June 2020

—E-_ZFXA=+H
usb HKD AUD EUR Total
EPy= BHIEE RuTEHE BrEE &%
Financial assets IEERARE
denominated in
foreign currencies
Cash at bank and E¥ED
on hand 4,934 2,848 141 103,900 111,823
Trading financial R EBHEE
assets = = 571,468 = 571,468
Other non-current H i IE B
financial assets CREE = - 3,982,625 - 3,982,625
Total &t 4,934 2,848 4,554,234 103,900 4,665,916
Financial liabilities HNEERERE
denominated in
foreign currencies
Short-term HEER
borrowings = 273,873 = = 273,873
Current portion —FRNIEE
of non-current FRBEE
liabilities 3,529,511 - - - 3,529,511
Debentures eI & 3
payable 5,988,874 = = = 5,988,874
Long-term R H &%
borrowings = 1,186,781 = = 1,186,781
Total A&t 9,518,385 1,460,654 - - 10,979,039
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK T 2R T A NRHEAR@#)

(Continued)
(1) Market risk (Continued) (1) TmHEE)
(a) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (a) HEREKE)

31 December 2019
—T-hF+=-A=+—8H

usb HKD AUD EUR Total
XTIERE B IER RITIEE BT IE A a5
Financial assets IEERMEE
denominated in
foreign currencies
Cash at bank and E¥ED
on hand 30,358 1,916 146 - 32,420
Trading financial RoMeREE
assets - - 3,520,171 - 3,520,171
Other non-current HiEmeem
financial assets BE - - 1,066,373 - 1,066,373
Total &5t 30,358 1,916 4,586,690 - 4,618,964
Financial liabilities EEREE
denominated in
foreign currencies
Short-term BEHER
borrowings - 268,802 - - 268,802
Current portion —FWNEEK
of non-current FRBERE
liabilities 146,139 - - - 146,139
Debentures payable e E % 9,722,536 - - - 9,722,536
Long-term REE R
borrowings - 1,162,375 - - 1,162,375
Total At 9,868,675 1,431,177 - - 11,299,852
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-_ZFXNA=TALAEANEGRENZHAN  SEECAARE T

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK
(Continued)

(1) Market risk (Continued)

(a)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 30 June 2020, since the foreign
exchange risk of part of the USD debentures
payable has been offset by the purchased
capped currency swap contracts and cross
currency interest rate swap contracts, for
the other USD dominated financial assets
and liabilities, if RMB had increased/
decreased by 5% against USD with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been decreased/
increased by approximately RMB247,000 (31
December 2019: decreased/increased by
approximately RMB1,518,000).

As at 30 June 2020, since the foreign
exchange risk of part of the HKD
borrowings is offset by the purchased
capped currency swap contracts, for the
other HKD dominated financial assets and
liabilities, if RMB had increased/decreased
by 5% against HKD with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been decreased/increased by
approximately RMB142,000 (31 December
2019: decreased/increased by approximately
RMB96,000).

As at 30 June 2020, since the foreign
exchange risk of the investment of real
estate projects in Australia has been offset
by the purchased forward contracts, for
all the other AUD dominated financial
assets, if RMB had increased/decreased by
5% against AUD with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been decreased/increased
by approximately RMB130,734,000 (31
December 2019: decreased/increased by
approximately RMB155,035,000).
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK
(Continued)

(1) Market risk (Continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

The Group has exposed to interest rate
risk mainly generated from long-term
interest bearing borrowings such as long-
term borrowings and debentures payable.
Borrowings issued at floating interest rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-
risk, and borrowings issued at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest-rate
risk. The Group determines the contracts
proportions of fixed rate and floating rate
depending on the market conditions. As
at 30 June 2020, the Group’s long-term
interest bearing borrowings were mainly
RMB-denominated with floating rates,
amounting to RMB30,742,050,000 (31
December 2019: RMB20,519,323,000).

The financial department of the
headquarters continuously monitors the
Group's interest rate condition. Increases
in interest rates will increase the cost of
new borrowing and the interest expenses
of to the Group’s outstanding borrowings
with floating rate, and therefore could
have a material adverse impact on the
Group's financial position. The Group's
finance department of its headquarters
continuously monitors the interest rate
position of the Group and makes decisions
with reference to the latest market
conditions. The management of the
Group may enter into interest rate swap
agreements to mitigate its exposure to
interest rate risk.

As at 30 June 2020, if interest rates of
borrowings with floating rate increased/
decreased by 0.5% with all other variables
held constant, the post-tax profit for
the year of the Group would decrease/
increase by approximately RMB153,710,000
(31 December 2019: decrease/increase by
approximately RMB102,597,000).
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z-_ZFXNA=TALAEANEGRENZHAN  SEECAARE T

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK
(Continued)

(1) Market risk (Continued)

T2 eI AENMEERGE)

(1) wEEREE)

234

(c) Other price risk

Other price risks of the Group are mainly
generated from other equity instrument
investments and exposed to the risk of
price fluctuation of equity instruments.

As at 30 June 2020, for all other equity
instrument investments, if the expected
price increase/decrease 5% with all
other variables held constant, other
comprehensive income for the year
would have been increased/decreased
by approximately RMB14,414,000 (31
December 2019: increased/decreased by
approximately RMB14,414,000).

(2) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk mainly arises from cash
at bank and on hand, trade receivables, other
receivables, contract assets, debt investments,
and investment in debt instruments at fair value
through profit or loss which are not included
in impairment assessment, derivative financial
assets and financial guarantee contracts. At
the balance sheet date, the book value of the
Group's financial assets has represented its
maximum credit risk exposure. The maximum
credit risk exposure off the balance sheet is the
maximum amount of that must be paid to fulfill
the financial guarantee, which is amounted to
RMB1,822,836,000.

Since cash at bank of the Group are mainly
deposited at state-owned banks and other large
and medium-sized listed banks, which have high
reputation and credit rating. The Group expects
no significant credit risk associated and that
there would not be any significant losses due to
non-performance by these counterparties.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK
(Continued)

(2)

(3)

Credit risk (Continued)

In addition, the Group has policies to limit the
credit risk exposure on trade receivables, other
receivables and contract assets. The Group
assesses the credit quality and sets credit limits
on its customers by taking into account their
financial position, the availability of guarantee
from third parties, their credit history and other
factors such as current market conditions. The
credit history of the customers is regularly
monitored by the Group. In respect of customers
with a poor credit history, the Group will use
payment reminders, reducing or canceling credit
periods, to ensure the overall credit risk of the
Group is limited to a controllable range.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group has no
significant collateral and other credit
enhancement.

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed by each
subsidiary of the Group and aggregated by the
Group's finance department in its headquarter.
On such basis, the Group’s finance department
at its headquarter monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group's short-term and long-term liquidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash and
securities that are readily convertible to cash
to meet operational needs, while maintaining
sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed
borrowing facilities from major financial
institution so that the Group does not breach
borrowing limits or covenants on any of its
borrowing facilities to meet the short-term and
long-term liquidity requirements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BHE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK
(Continued)

TECEERAZTHIESNEASB R EREHAN

CHEURARBE T

T 2T A NMEER#)

mortgage loans, the Group provides temporary
guarantee to the mortgage loans provided by
the banks to the customers, who purchase the
Group's available-for-sell properties by housing
mortgage. The guarantee would expire after the
customers obtain owners certification or other
relevant warrant and completing the registration
of mortgage on properties. As at 30 June 2020
and 31 December 2019, the balance of such
guarantee refers to note 10.
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(3) Liquidity risk (Continued) (3) HEHEREEE)
The financial liabilities of the Group at the REEAGBXRA XEEEHES
balance sheet date at their undiscounted BEBEARTRONERARERE
contractual cash flows by their maturity date are REEBAYTRAT
analyzed below:
30 June 2020
—E-ZEFXA=TH
Within 1to 2 to Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—ELR -3 =% —HEE AENE &%
Short-term borrowings REER 839,950 = = = 839,950
Payables e R 21,299,359 = = - 21,299,359
Long-term borrowings REER 2,668,259 20,785,420 26,991,773 3,854,704 54,300,156
Debentures payable B ESH 1,346,758 17,485,510 14,132,825 5,008 32,970,101
Long-term payables REEMRK 215,352 215,352 3,241,991 = 3,672,695
Current portion of —F AR5
non-current liabilities FRBEE 23,831,977 = = - 23,831,977
Total A&t 50,201,655 38,486,282 44,366,589 3,859,712 136,914,238
31 December 2019
—T-hF+=-A=+—H
Within 1 to 2 to Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—FHR — B =F —HRHEF AENE =5
Short-term borrowings BHEER 1,764,336 = = - 1,764,336
Payables e R IE 19,787,632 - - - 19,787,632
Long-term borrowings REER 2,259,074 19,541,490 20,285,874 3,769,629 45,856,067
Debentures payable EHEFH 1,364,791 16,496,739 13,440,994 - 31,302,524
Long-term payables REEMK - 215,352 3,349,372 - 3,564,724
Current portion of —ERE
non-current liabilities FEREBAE 22,856,473 - - - 22,856,473
Total &t 48,032,306 36,253,581 37,076,240 3,769,629 125,131,756
According to the terms of individual housing AEBNIHHSEFREEITIRES

(EHEF) AN BEE REE R
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NOTES
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK
(Continued)

+tZ. ¢RI ARHEREKE)

(3) Liquidity risk (Continued) (3) HKEEREE)
()  Bank and other borrowings analyzed by (i) SFITEREEMEFKEE
repayment terms are as follows: DM
30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Z2C2FXA=TH “E¥-NAFE+-A=t-A

Bank Other Bank Other

borrowings borrowings  borrowings  borrowings

RITER it fa RITIEN H b 5 5

Within 1 year —EHUR 14,468,458 9,576,534 11,984,558 11,804,968

110 2 years —E-F 18,673,934 16,688,682 17,790,167 15,530,883

2 10 5 years “EERE 25,029,885 13,704,204 18,702,534 15,862,614

Over 5 years HBBREF 3,321,012 804,277 3,235,353 689,630

61,493,289 40,773,697 51,712,612 43,888,095

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair

value on an ongoing basis

The level of fair value measurement result is
determined by the lowest level of the input
value, which is of great significance to the
overall fair value measurement.

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are observable for
the assets or liabilities, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that
are not based on observable market data (that
is, unobservable inputs).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair
value on an ongoing basis (Continued)

As at 30 June 2020, the financial assets/
(liabilities) measured at fair value on an ongoing
basis by three levels are analyzed below:

+t=. ARBEMETE)
(1) BEWUAABAENEWNSE

B/ (88 #)
RZE-FFNA=FH BEN
UWARBEIFENEE, (AE)
WA =@ R R

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—BR FZER F=ZEBR &t
Financial assets: SREE
Trading financial assets RHMemEE
Investment of real estate —FARN BB R A B
projects in Australia FEHERER
due within one year = = 571,468 571,468
Asset management plan FBEXBFROER
operated by First DA (AT I8l
Capital Securities EHFNEEERE
Co., Ltd. (“First
Capital Securities”) 102,594 = = 102,594
Capped currency swap MEEBEBAEHD
contracts = 298,082 = 298,082
Other non-current BRI emEE
financial assets
Tiancheng Yongtai Ak T = - 2,150,330 2,150,330
Investment of real estate —FIA R ERR AR B
projects in Australia R ERE K
over one year - - 3,982,625 3,982,625
Capped currency swap MEEBEBAEHD
contracts = 21,688 = 21,688
Derivative financial assets MTEemEE
Forward foreign EHSNEA L
exchange contract = 149,158 = 149,158
Cross currency swap RNEEERTA
instrument = 94,151 = 94,151
Cross currency interest RREBMNEREHTA
rate swap instrument = 23,274 = 23,274
Other equity instrument EmEaTARE
investments
Equity interests of BEISRE
UCOMMUNE = = 238,283 238,283
Equity interests of B B R Ak
CDB Siyuan = = 50,000 50,000
Total financial assets CREEA 102,594 586,353 6,992,706 7,681,653
Non-financial assets: FemEE
Investment properties REURHE
North region REWE - # = - 7,039,415 7,039,415
Central region REWE - Er = - 6,827,252 6,827,252
South region REME-%9 = - 1,104,000 1,104,000
Total non-financial assets FERMEEAR = - 14,970,667 14,970,667
Total assets BEARG 102,594 586,353 21,963,373 22,652,320
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair
value on an ongoing basis (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the financial assets/
(liabilities) measured at fair value on an ongoing
basis by three levels are analyzed below:

CHREUR/RARE T

T=. 2R BEM @)

(1) FENUAAEBEFENE

E/(af)#)
RZT—NE+_A=+—8 " #
BOARRBEAENEE (A
E) R B =R

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E =t F_BR E=ER B
Financial assets: ERMEE
Trading financial assets RHMEHMEE
Investment of real estate — AR B )R K F
projects in Australia DREMERER
due within one year - - 3,520,171 3,520,171
Asset management plan HEIZSFEEERHNE
operated by Capital
Securities 67,126 - - 67,126
Asset management plan E—REBFFRHAR
operated by First Ral (A T4l
Capital Securities EHAEEHEE
Co., Ltd. (“First Capital
Securities”) 122,072 - - 122,072
Capped currency swap MEEBEHEH
contracts - 51,973 - 51,973
Other non-current HtwERHemEE
financial assets
Tiancheng Yongtai R K 2R - - 2,150,330 2,150,330
Investment of real estate — P EFHa0R KA
projects in Australia DREMERER
over one year - - 1,066,373 1,066,373
Capped currency swap MEEEEBHELD
contracts - 233,321 - 233,321
Derivative financial assets TEERMAEE
Forward foreign EHINES R
exchange contract - 94,872 - 94,872
Cross currency interest RXEENEIZHIA
rate swap instrument - 1,059 - 1,059
Other equity instrument Hihgm TARE
investments
Equity interests of BEIGKRE
UCOMMUNE - - 238,283 238,283
Equity interests of BB B R R
CDB Siyuan - - 50,000 50,000
Total financial assets CRMEEAL 189,198 381,225 7,025,157 7,595,580
Non-financial assets: FeREE
Investment properties BREMEHE
North region KEME - =1 - - 6,901,658 6,901,658
Central region BAWE - EF - - 6,850,183 6,850,183
South region RAME -2/ - - 1,104,000 1,104,000
Total non-financial assets FEeMEEAR - - 14,855,841 14,855,841
Total assets BEAL 189,198 381,225 21,880,998 22,451,421
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair

value on an ongoing basis (Continued)

The Group recognizes transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of
the date of the event that caused the transfer.
There was no transfer occurred among level 1
and 2 during the period.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
in active markets. The fair value of financial
instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined by valuation techniques.
Specific valuation techniques mainly include
discounted cash flow analysis and so on. The
inputs in those valuation techniques mainly
include risk-free rate, benchmark interest rate
and exchange rate.

The Group obtains independent valuations for
investment properties from an independent
professional appraiser as a third party. The
valuations are based on income capitalization
and residual approach which mainly uses
input such as market rent and its growth rate,
discount rate, interest rate and profit rate, etc.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2020

CHEURARBE T

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued) T=. ARBEMAEF#E)
(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair 1) FEWNUAAREBEFTENWE
value on an ongoing basis (Continued) E/(BE)#)
The change of assets in level 3 are as follows: FPRE=ZFREEZSHMOT :

Investment properties

REMEHE
North Central South
region region region Total
Z2iE EhihE EELE &t
As at 1 January 2020 —E-ETE-F—H 6,901,658 6,850,183 1,104,000 14,855,841
Transferred to inventory/fixed —®EHE TS EEEE
asset (52,243) (127,018) = (179,261)
Other adjustments E & (11,280) - - (11,280)
Gains from changes in RABEZH K
fair value 201,280 104,087 = 305,367
As at 30 June 2020 —T-TFXA=TAH 7,039,415 6,827,252 1,104,000 14,970,667
Realized gains recognized in  FTAEHEZHNEERERFE
current profit or loss = = = =
Unrealized gains recognized FPAEHERNARTRNE
in current profit or loss
- Gains from changes in - AnEEEZY N
fair value 201,280 104,087 = 305,367
Other non- Other
Trading current equity
financial financial instrument
assets assets investments Total
XHME HMEERD H A =%
SRMEE SREE IERE A&t
1 January 2020 —E-TF—A—H 3,520,171 3,216,703 288,283 7,025,157
Reclassification BN (2,948,703) 2,948,703 - -
Realized gains recognized in  FTAEHEZMNEEEFE
current profit or loss = (32,451) = (32,451)
30 June 2020 —EZTHFRA=1H 571,468 6,132,955 288,283 6,992,706
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

T=. AR EBEM @)
(1) BFEOURAAEENENE

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair

value on an ongoing basis (Continued) E/(BE)#)
The change of assets in level 3 are as follows: T E=ZFEREEZHNT:
(Continued) (%)

Investment properties

REMREME

North Central South
region region region Total
FEAb i [@ P i [ E [ b (R At
As at 1 January 2019 —T—-hF—HA—H 11,662,541 6,314,400 1,102,000 19,078,941
Additions HE 2 266,703 528,854 - 795,557
Reductions e (5,709,000) (28,548) - (5,737,548)
Transferred from investment — AAGT £ K& &1 F i &=
properties at cost A 638,990 - - 638,990
Other adjustments H AR (12,090) - - (12,090)
Gains from changes in AREEEH K
fair value 54,514 35,477 2,000 91,991
Gains recognized in other SEAE A AR & W w5
comprehensive income - - - -
As at 31 December 2019 —E-NF+ZA=+—H 6,901,658 6,850,183 1,104,000 14,855,841
Realized gains recognized in T AEHEFNCDERFE
current profit or loss - 296,404 - 296,404
Unrealized gains recognized FTAEBERNRERAE
in current profit or loss
- Gains from changes in - AREBEEZHPHYNR
fair value 54,514 35,477 2,000 91,991
Other non- Other
Trading current equity
financial financial instrument
assets assets  investments Total
XM HtFERD H fth 1 55
CREE CREE TAERE A
1 January 2019 —T—-h&F—HF—H 2,950,405 3,226,200 288,283 6,464,888
Additions REEA - 347,190 - 347,190
Reductions RELE - - - -
Reclassification ENH 569,766 (569,766) - -
Realized gains recognized in  FFAEHEZHEERFEG
current profit or loss - 213,079 - 213,079
31 December 2019 —E-NEF+=ZA=+—H 3,520,171 3,216,703 288,283 7,025,157
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

T=. 2R BEM @)

CHREUR/RARE T

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair (1) FEHNUAARAEBETENE
value on an ongoing basis (Continued) E (8 #)
Information about fair value measurements in FZBRARLEBEEFAENHEBE
level 3 are as follows: BT
Unobservable inputs
FUBE@AE
Fair value Relationship of
as at unobservable
Investment 30 June Valuation Range/weighted  inputs of fair
properties 2020 techniques  Name average value
e 32
AA=TH BE ME HAAEE
REMEHE AAEBE RERW A7 ¥ E ZENEE
North region 7,039,415 Income Discount 4% to 7% The higher discount
approach rate rate, the lower
fair value
REWME - £t gk FrHEx 4%Z7% FHREES AR
BEBE
Market RMB50 to RMB351  The higher market
rents per square rent, the higher
metre per fair value
month
miziHe  BTAKEA MHeHs DAE
ARBS0LE B8R
AR#351T
Central region 6,827,252  Income Discount 4% to 7% The higher discount
approach rate rate, the lower
fair value
REYNE - #h W g % 4% % 7% FREER 2R
BEME
Market RMB29 to RMB155  The higher market
rents per square rent, the higher
metre per fair value
month
m%He BTYHKREA HeHm DAE
ARB29TE EHE
AREI55T
South region 1,104,000  Income Discount 6.5% to 7% The higher discount
approach rate rate, the lower
fair value
REME - %8 W& % e x 6.5%F7% FREER AR
BlEHE
Market RMB52 to RMB87  The higher market
rents per square rent, the higher
metre per fair value
month
m%sHe BYHKRES HeHm DAE
ARKS2LZE R
ARSI
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-_ZFXNA=TALAEANEGRENZHAN  SEECAARE T

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair
value on an ongoing basis (Continued)

T=. AR EBEM @)
(1) BFEOURAAEENENE
E(BE)#E)

F-BAAREBESENHEERE
BT (&)

Information about fair value measurements in
level 3 are as follows: (Continued)

Unobservable inputs

Ta BREAE
Fair value
as at Relationship of
Investment 31 December  Valuation Range/weighted unobservable inputs
properties 2019 techniques Name average of fair value
—E-NE
+ZA=+—H &E ik HAREE
REMEE AABE HERK £ FHE Z B &
North region 6,901,658  Income Discount 4% to 7% The higher discount
approach rate rate, the lower
fair value
REME - #1 &% e x 4% ZET7% THREES AR
BEEBE
Market RMB45 to RMB351  The higher market
rents per square rent, the higher
metre per fair value
month
mizie  ARBOLTE HeHm DAE
ARE351T ERag=
BYHKREA
Central region 6,850,183  Income Discount 5.5% to 7% The higher discount
approach rate rate, the lower
fair value
REYE - & Woas & iR 5.5%%7% FHREES AR
BEBE
Market RMB29 to RMB155  The higher market
rents per square rent, the higher
metre per fair value
month
mHHe ARB29TE HeHs DAE
ARH#1557 B8R
BYAKEGA
South region 1,104,000  Income Discount 6.5% to 7% The higher discount
approach rate rate, the lower
fair value
REME - £/ g% % 6.5%%£7% FREER 2R
BEME
Market RMB52 to RMB87  The higher market
rents per square rent, the higher
metre per fair value
month
mnHe AR¥SRZE HeMe AAEBE
ARBTT Ha
BYHKEA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HE_Z-_TFXA=+BELEXRNEADRHE(RERZHN  2EECRARBETT)

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair

value on an ongoing basis (Continued)

Information about fair value measurements in

level 3 are as follows: (Continued)

T=. 2R BEM @)
(1) HENOUQAAEBETENE

E/(af)#)
FZBRAnBEFENHEBE
BT (&)

Unobservable inputs
FaUBE@AE

Fair value Relationship of
as at unobservable
Investment 30 June Valuation Range/weighted  inputs of fair
properties 2020 techniques Name average value
it et
~A=TH BE HAAREE
REMEWHE AREE HERN £ ¥ E ZEH R
Trading financial assets
ROMEREE
Investment of real 571,468  Discounted Discount Discount rate for The higher discount
estate projects in future cash rate period from one rate, the lower
Australia due within flow day to three fair value
one year years
—F R B B89 R KM ARRETIMEA FHE —RE=FH8m TREER 2
FibERE K i BEME
Other non-current
financial assets
HiERnDemEE
Investment of real 3,982,625  Discounted Discount Discount rate for The higher discount
estate projects in future cash rate period from one rate, the lower
Australia over one flow day to three fair value
year years
—E EHHERKRA ARRERIME FH % —RE=F B FRELR - DA
T E R x BEME
REHK
Tiancheng Yongtai 2,150,330 Market Contract RMB28,878 to The higher contract
approach price RMB58,200 per price, the higher
square metre fair value
RFK T 5% BHER  BYAXRARE GHBBER 2R
28,878 E BEUS
AE#S58,2007T
Other equity
instrument
investments
HitEmTAKRE
Equity interests of 238,283  Market Equity Fair value of The higher equity
UCOMMUNE approach valuation net assets of valuation, the
UCOMMUNE higher fair value
multiplied by
interests held
according
to the latest
capital injection
agreement
BRI SHRE %% RERE RESMEEHZ REGEES 2R

HENEETE 0 MEES
FREAAEE
RO R O
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z-_ZFXNA=TALAEANEGRENZHAN  SEECAARE T

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued) T=. A REBEMET#E)
(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair (1) FENUAAEBETENE
value on an ongoing basis (Continued) E (B #)

F-BAAREBESENHEERE
BT (&)

Information about fair value measurements in
level 3 are as follows: (Continued)

Unobservable inputs

Ta BREAE
Fair value
as at Relationship of
Investment 31 December  Valuation Range/weighted unobservable inputs
properties 2019 techniques Name average of fair value
—TAF
+ZA=+—H &E ik BHAREE
REMEE LABE HERM £ FHE 2 I H) R
Trading financial
assets
RHUEMEE
Investment of real 3,520,171 Discounted Discount Discount rate for The higher discount
estate projects future cash rate period from one rate, the lower
in Australia due flow day to three fair value
within one year years
—FERIHERKH ARRERFTE FHE —RH=F B TREES AR
TRMERER R x BEEBE
Other non-current
financial assets
HtEnHepieE
Investment of real 1,066,373  Discounted Discount Discount rate for The higher discount
estate projects in future cash rate period from one rate, the lower
Australia over one flow day to three fair value
year years
—E L EMR X ARBERAE HRE —RE=F B TREES AR
NEFHmERER iR BEBE
Tiancheng Yongtai 2,150,330 Market Contract RMB28,878 to The higher contract
approach price RMB58,200 per price, the higher
square metre fair value
RFK T 5% AHEE  BYAXRARE BRERER AR
28,878 & BEUS
AE#S58,2007T
Other equity
instrument
investments
HitEaTAKRE
Equity interests of 238,283  Market Equity Fair value of The higher equity
UCOMMUNE approach valuation net assets of valuation, the
UCOMMUNE higher fair value
multiplied by
interests held
according
to the latest
capital injection
agreement
BRI SHiRE %% RERE RESMEEAHZ REGESES 2R
TENERIS BEMSE
FREAAEE
T A% B L 71
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair
value on an ongoing basis (Continued)

Information about the fair value measurement

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

CHREUR/RARE T

T=. 2R BEM @)

(1) FENUAIRABEEFENE
E(BE)#)

F_EBRAAEBEFENHEBERE

of level 2 are as follows: BT
Observable input
TRZEBAE
Fair value
as at
30 June Valuation Range/weighted
2020 techniques Name average
32
~A=TH
AREE EERN f18 BE/ MEFHE
Derivative financial 266,583  Discounted future AUD forward 48484 to 4.9667
assets cash flow exchange rate at
balance sheet date
TEERMEE ARRERITH BEBRRARN 4.8484%4.9667
%
Discounted rate 0.95% to 1.00%
% 0.95%%£1.00%

Black Scholes Cross currency Observable exchange
formula, interest rate rate, interest rate and
discounted future volatility level
cash flow

Bhz-FRHAKX - RXEENX A B R B ) A0 B
ARBERITE KF

Trading financial 298,082  Discounted future Discount curves Discount rate for one
assets cash flow year (currency include
USD and RMB)
RHUERMEE ARBERMR TR —EHNTRE(EY
BEETNARE)
Forward exchange Forward exchange rate
rate for each forward
contract from the
valuation date to the
maturity date
EHE X BERBARAMMEERS
FEHAMEER
Other non-current 21,688  Discounted future Discount curves Discount rate for two

financial assets

Rk RDSH
Az

cash flow

AREERAB

FRms

Forward exchange
rate

years (currency include
USD and RMB)
MERHMHEE(EE
BEETMARYE)
Forward exchange rate
for each forward
contract from the
valuation date to the
maturity date
BERBARNEERS
AHAMREER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-ZERNA=THIENEASB R ENZTHAN

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair
value on an ongoing basis (Continued)

Information about the fair value measurement
of level 2 are as follows: (Continued)

CHEURARBE T

T=. ARBEME &)
1) BENUAREETENE
E (A #E)
BE_BRAABEFENHEBE
BT (&)

Observable input

Bk PNE
Fair value
as at
31 December Range/weighted
2019  Valuation techniques ~ Name average
SRS
+-A=+-H
AABE HEERMN e ®E/MEFHE
Derivative financial 95,931  Discounted future AUD forward 4.8960 to 5.0413
assets cash flow exchange rate at
balance sheet date
TEemEE KRB RITH BEABRKARN 4.8960£5.0413
BHEX
Discounted rate 0.84% to 1.01%
% 0.84%%1.01%

Black Scholes Cross currency Observable exchange
formula, interest rate rate, interest rate and
discounted future volatility level
cash flow

Bhz — &M TREHF % A B R B ) AN &
AR RERBEER KF
wE

Trading financial 51,973  Discounted future Discount curves Discount rate for one
assets cash flow year (currency include
USD and RMB)
RHUNEMEE KRB RFTH R —FHNTRE(EE
BEETNARY)
Forward exchange Forward exchange rate
rate for each forward
contract from the
valuation date to the
maturity date
EEEX BERBMARNMERD
HAEARMEHER
Other non-current 233,321  Discounted future Discount curves Discount rate for two

financial assets

Hi ERY TR
BE

cash flow

ARBEERAE

R ix

Forward exchange
rate

years (currency include
USD and RMB)
WERMTHRE (G
BEETMARYE)
Forward exchange rate
for each forward
contract from the
valuation date to the
maturity date
BERBPARNEERS
AHEMREER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

T=. 2R BEM @)

(2) TUQAAREEFEEREAD
REENEENERE

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(2) Assets and liabilities not measured at
fair value but disclosure fair value

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
amortized cost mainly include receivables,
short-term borrowings, payables, long-term
borrowings, debentures payable and long-term
payables.

Except for the financial assets and liabilities
listed below, the carrying amount of other
financial assets and liabilities not measured at
fair value is a reasonable approximation of their

AEENHEBKANGTENS AL
EENESRAGEIEERE BK
HE - EHER - BARE K
HER BNEFMRAEMRK

= o
=T

BT iemEEMSREBENIIN -
Hi NARAEBEFENEHE
EMBENEEEEZEZALEE
HER -

fair value:
30 June 2020 31 December 2019
—E-EEXA=TH ZE-AE+-A=1-—H
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
REEE DNAEE REEE AAEE
Long-term borrowings REER 32,756,516 33,700,783 26,708,636 27,507,849
Debentures payable e E S 36,829,486 36,537,116 35,884,775 36,073,995
Long-term payables REENR 2,796,956 2,830,792 4,297,476 4,309,657
Total B 72,382,958 73,068,691 66,890,887 67,891,501

EHERNANEAFEERBT SN
BRES  UARREHNRKR

The fair value of long-term borrowings and
debentures payable without active market price

are determined by the present value of the
contracted future cash flow, which is calculated
using the discount rate in the market of
comparable credit rating that can provide much
the same cash flows in the same conditions. This
situation belongs to Level 3.

SRERBHS L ABTLER
% 4 30 7 48 R {68 4 T 9 4 2 48
BEESEIOLIES SRR Y
RERTHAABE BRE=
B -

EAIERRNERAT —F-FEFHEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HE—

14.

ZoZFERAZTAERNEASBE(REHNZEHAN  SHEL/SARETIT)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives of capital management are to
safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders,
benefits for other stakeholders and to reduce cost of
capital by maintaining an optimal capital structure.

In order to maintain or adjust capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The total capital of the Group is the equity in the
consolidated balance sheet. The Group is not subject
to external mandatory capital requirements and
monitors its capital by Asset-liability ratio.

TH.ERNER

AEEEAEERENARRRTRE
AEBRMITEESE ’iéffﬁﬁ’jﬁx%?m
(AR S 1A R F Sl
\%&ﬁ%&mézﬁ,ﬂu%wﬂ&é%&
o

RTHRFAFBENEE  AKEARE
EHREBINERREROBEMNEE - AR
RIREBEAR - BITHBRALEE EAR
EER -

AEENBREARBHEEABRTAHN
SRR B R A o AN BB R SMED
BHMEEARK  MREERBLRE
EHEXR -

The asset-liability ratios as at 30 June 2020 and 31 i $¢ NAZTRARZE-—NHF
December 2019 were as follows: +-A=+—8 AEENEEAFEL
YRR
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—E-SHE = — &
~A=+H +=-—A=+—H
Total liabilities wEE 156,934,840 143,228,212
Total assets BB E 202,408,431 185,269,318
Asset-liability ratio BEABRILE 78% 77%

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2020



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE
SHEET DATE

(1) Important non-adjustment matters

ThEERBEXRAKSER

(1) EENFARER

Impact on The reason
Important financial status for the impact
non-adjustment and operating cannot be
matters Content results estimated
3 B 751k R A \EhE R
EHH RA REFRNTEH EYNRE
Issuance of In July 2020, the Group  The assets and N/A
non-public successfully issued liabilities would
corporate bonds RMB1,419 million increased by
corporate bonds with RMB1,419 million
the interest rate of approximately
3.85%
FEAFBEITARME RZZEZZF+ A - AKE BENEBEHEMD N iE A
BINETRARBARE ARE141918 T
14198 T - B1TEE
F%=3.85%
Issuance of overseas  In August 2020, the The assets and N/A
medium-term Group successfully liabilities would
notes issued medium-term increased by
notes of USD200 RMB1,400 million
million with issuance approximately
coupon rate of 4.5%
BITHRINPRARR RZZE_ZTFN\A AEE BENBEHEMNQY A iE A

pInEETT2{ER T
R BOTEEAMNE
4.5%

ARB14ET

STATEMENTS

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL

(1) Cash at bank and on hand

aWAYWNCIR P E SR

(1) EBES

30 June 31 December

2020 2019

—EEF —E—NF

~NA=+tH +-A=+—H

Cash on hand EFRE 4 4
Bank deposits RITTFER 16,681,782 10,003,374
Total B 16,681,786 10,003,378

BRIBEXBRNBERAR —Z_2FhHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

WACIE R T e EAE )

(2) Trading financial assets 2) xEZHEMEE
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—EB-EF —E-NF
~B=+tH +=ZA=+—H
Asset management plan (i) BEEEEEG 102,595 189,198
(i) As at balance sheet date, the fair value of the trading (i) REEABRE  ZXH5UEeHE
financial assets is determined by the closing price on EARBEAREZERFISIMAH
the last trading day of the period. HE—EAXHEKREBERE -
(3) Other receivables (3) HaEWRR
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—ECRHF —ENF
ANA=+tH +=ZA=+—H
Receivables due from JE W F 2\ R FR(3)
subsidiaries (i) 71,799,068 80,486,370
Receivables due from other JiE Wy EL i B8 B 5 SRR
related parties 6,239,656 6,736,829
Tender bonds and other WIERIRE 2
guarantee deposits 87,600 87,600
Others Hth 393,596 1,990,251
Total A5 78,519,920 89,301,050
Less: provisions for B EERERE
doubtful debts (24,000) (24,000)
Net iRt 78,495,920 89,277,050

As at 30 June 2020, the loan from the Company

to subsidiary Hainan Outlets Tourism amounted
to RMB969,816,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB655,844,000) with interest rate of 5.66%,
with no fixed maturity date; and the loan from the
Company to subsidiary Chengdu Ruihua amounted
to RMB1,006,993,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB2,060,043,000) with interest rate of 10%, no
fixed maturity date.

Except for the receivables above, the other receivables
due to related parties were interest free, unmortgaged
and unguaranteed, and with no fixed maturity date.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2020
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RZZE-ZFA=+H  AQEMHE
FFARBERRERERBEHREA
R #969,816,000 T (= —NF+
—A=+—H: AR%655,844,000
TL) . FH X AB5.66% - EE T E
FEAPR - AR RME T F A A K E R
= RIE # 5 A R #1,006,993,000
T(ZE—-—h&F+=-A=+—8:
2,060,043,0007T) © & F & £10% -
EETEERER -
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16.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

AAVWANGIE N S A -,

(3) Other receivables (Continued) (3) HEWFHE)
(@) The aging of other trade receivables is (a) EHiEWREBRITOT :
analyzed as follows:
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—z-2f = N4
AA=tH +ZHA=+—H
Within 1 year —FLR 36,811,163 56,229,329
1 to 2 years — 3 =F 12,993,184 20,179,764
2 to 3 years ZR=F 18,082,961 6,620,757
Over 3 years =FHNE 10,632,612 6,271,200
Total BF 78,519,920 89,301,050
(b) Loss provision and changes in book (b) BAREBREKREGRELY
value *
First stage Third stage
F-ER EZER
Expected credit loss Expected credit loss Expected credit loss for
over the next 12 months over the next 12 months the Lifetime (impairment
(grouping) (separate) Sub-total has occurred) Total
FRR12BAREH AR12EAAEH ERFANRSER
EREX(AR) FREX(ER) M BAEREERRE) at
Carrying Carrying Carrying
amount  Provisions amount  Provisions  Provisions amount  Provisions  Provisions
REHE RRER R 8 BRER RRER R 8 BRER RRER
31 December 2019 ZZ-NEFZA=T-B 89,277,050 - - - - 24,000 (24,000) (24,000)
Additions KEHE - - - - - - - -
Reductions KBRS (10,781,130) - - - - - - -
30 June 2020 ZZZTFRA=1A 78,495,920 - - - - 24,000 (24,000) (24,000)

As at 30 June 2020, there is no significant RZZEZZEFA=+1H"

expected loss for other receivables at the
first stage and no provision for doubtful
debts has been recognized.

As at 30 June 2020, there is no other
receivables at the second stage.

BE 7 55 — i B A EL A 8 LR
TFEEANEHRERIE
KoOREHERZERER -

b_/\\\ 7—7415/\% +El

ARR A FERNE KR
H) H A & UK o

BRIBEEROAERAR —Z_TFPHRSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z-_ZFXNA=TALAEANEGRENZHAN  SEECAARE T

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(3) Other receivables (Continued)

(b) Loss provision and changes in book
value (Continued)

As at 30 June 2020, the analysis of bad
debt provision for other receivables in the

TR R A B 7 R M R (8D

(3) HbFEUWR#E)

(b) BREGERAREHELD
®(E)
R-ZZE-_ZTFXA=+H"
B 03 = P BR ) E b FE MK

third stage are as follows: BWIZBREFBONMT
Lifetime  Provision
expected for
credit loss  doubtful
Book value rate debts
BEFEB
EEfE A
AR TH 4 72 BRER(%R) ZERER
Separate provision: BIHATIE
Receivables JE& Wb R EE b
from Beijing EREBCATHE
Gehua Culture [FELE])
Development Co.,
Ltd (hereinafter
“Gehua Group”) 14,000 100 (14,000)
Dongguan Xinzi Real REMMEFME
Estate Development HERRAQF
Co., Ltd. (hereinafter (AT 78
“Dongguan Xinzi") [REFED 10,000 100 (10,000)
Total A&r 24,000 (24,000)

As at 30 June 2020, the loans from the
Company to Gehua Group amounted
to RMB14,000,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB14,000,000). The Company expected
that the receivable would not be collected,
so a full provision for impairment is
recognized.

As at 30 June 2020, the loans from the
Company to Dongguan Xinzi amounted
to RMB10,000,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB10,000,000). The Company expected
that the receivable would not be collected,
so a full provision for impairment is
recognized.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-_ZERA=THIEREASBE(KREREHIN

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(4) Long-term equity investments

TR

CHREUR/RARE T

NI B EJEEAE )

(4) REKRERE

30 June 31 December
2020 2019
=X $3 %5 =
AA=+H +ZHA=+—8H
Subsidiaries (a) FAEl() 7,684,632 7,679,532
Joint ventures (b) & & ED) 201,993 195,307
Associates (c) B 2 1> 2(0) 39,912 17,945
Sub-total NEF 7,926,537 7,892,784
Less: Provision for impairment & : K Ef IR AE L B R E
of long-term equity i
investment - -
Net ek 7,926,537 7,892,784
There is no significant restriction on sale of the RABAFERBREZRRK
long-term equity investments and collection of a ME B A & KR o
the investment income for the Company.
(@) Subsidiaries (a) F4d
Changes in this period
AREHED
31 December Increase in Decrease i~ Provisions for 30 June
2019 investment investment impairment Others 2020
Z3-nE ZBIEE
tZR=+-H BmgE HORE  HRAEER i A~A=1A
S.C R 734,095 - - - - 734,095
Bejing Anhua Shiji Real Estate IRZEHERNERE
Development Ltd. ARADE 136,303 - - - - 136,303
Beijing Capital Xinzi Real Estate Ltd. FREBFEEEERAA 642,625 - - - - 642,625
Beiing Capital Langyuan Culture FREEBEAXER
Development Co,, Ltd. ﬁ ’A 369,970 - - - - 369,970
Beiing Sunshine City Real Estate EHEHEERAT
Development Co,, Ltd,, 82,766 - - - - 82,766
Beijing Ruiyuan Fengji Real Estate g
Development Co,, Ltd. 10,000 - - - - 10,000
Bejing Ruiyuan Fengwiang Real Estate St ZlTE¥EFERAA
Development Co., Ltd. 10,000 - - - - 10,000
Beiling Zhongrui Kaihua Investment IRAGHEREER
Management Co,, Ltd. ERAF 219,043 - - - - 219,043
Capital Guoxin Asset Management BEREAEERERDA
Co., Ltd. 100,000 - - - - 100,000
Beiling Dongq Jinzhao Infrastructure IRRBEREURERE
Investment Co., Ltd. ﬁ 3N 30,000 - - - - 30,000
Beiing Xiangneng Real Estate Ltd. RAREZERAA 500,000 - - - - 500,000
Beiling Shouzhi Culture Technology it R éEY HEER
Development Co., Ltd. BRAH 100,000 - - - - 100,000
Tianjin Eco City Jiaming Ronghe REERAZHRANT
Development Co., Ltd. REERAR 60,000 - - - - 60,000

BRIEZERNERRA —_2_FTFPHHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(4) Long-term equity investments
(Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

AWAWWANGILE R EA N EC ),
Q) RHmERSESE)

(@) FRAE)

Changes in this period

AREHED
31 December Increase in Decrease i~ Provisions for 30 June
2019 investment investment impairment Others 2020
“ENE It i 23
TZA=1-A EmRE HORE  HRAEER £t AR=1H
Shoujin Capital BEE 300,000 - - - - 300,000
Beijing Capital Land Chengdu Co, Ltd.  EEIEXAHERAH 150,000 - - - - 150,000
Jiangsu Capital Real Estate THEAEZERLA
Development Ltd. 60,165 - - - - 60,165
Wauxi Capital Xindong Real Estate ERBUNREZARLA
Development Co., Ltd. 100,000 - - - - 100,000
Haikou Capital Xinye Investment BREAFEREBRAA
(o, Ltd. 10,000 - - - - 10,000
Beijing Shangboya Investment FRHEERAERERAT
Consultant Co,, Ltd. 30,000 - - - - 30,000
Central Plaza Central Plaza 39,466 - - - - 39,466
IFC IFC 20,480 - - - - 20,480
BECL Investment Holding Ltd. BERERRERAA 67,29 - - - - 67,296
Bejing Zhongzhi Dingfu Real Estate IRRESRRHERE
Co., Ltd. BRAE 100,000 - - - - 100,000
Shanghai Capital Zhengheng Real Estate LA &I FEE$ARAT
(o, Ltd. 10,000 - - - - 10,000
Juyuan Xincheng (Tianjin) Investment BREF(R2)RAER
Management Co,, Ltd. ARADE 500,000 - - - - 500,000
Donghuan Xinrong RRER 1,064,065 - - - - 1,064,065
Shenyang Xinyun i i 20,000 - - - - 20,000
Bejing Zhoulian Weiye Investment IRNBEEREBRAA
Co., Ltd. 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
Chongging Capital Xinshi Real Estate ERHEINRERARAR
(o, Ltd. 1,151,290 - - - - 1,151,290
Others £ 61,968 5,100 - - - 67,068
Total At 7,679,532 5100 - - - 7,684,632
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL TR AR B mEWE#E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(4) Long-term equity investments 4) REEBEREZ)
(Continued)
(b) Joint ventures (b) 68t
Changes in this period
AHEREY
Share of other
31 December  Increase in ~ Decrease i Share of net ~comprehensive  Other equity Cash dividend 30 June
2019 investment investment  profit/{loss) income changes declared QOthers 2020
REEE SEEH
Z5-hE HEH ifelsa RERA =t =t 2
tZA=+-H EnkE RORE 3 haRE ApERRE pail f  ABZ1A
Shangbodi Mg 115,799 - - 8,553 - - - - 124,352
Zhuhai Henggin Fund HAREELER 31410 - - (1917) - - - - 29,493
Management Company R
Tianjin Tonghua Qiangyu REBEETRER 6,632 - - 1 - - - - 6,633
Investment and Management BERAA
Co., Ltd.
Beijing Wanzhu LRES 41,466 - - 49 - - - - 41,515
Total EEl 195,307 - - 6,686 - - - - 201,993
(c) Associates () HWELZE
Changes in this period
ABEEED
Share of other
31 December Increase in - Decrease in  Share of net  comprehensive  Other equity Cash dividend 30 June
2019 investment investment profit/{loss) income changes declared Others 2020
R BEEMH
Z3-hE BEH ipka RERH ut =t 23
TZA=1-H EnkE RORE BRg haRE EpEsED pail Hfh  AB=1A
Golden Net E2 L 13,394 - - - - - - - 13,394
Kaiyuan Hean Rafg 4,551 - - (2833) - - - - 1718
Cultural Industry WEEREES
Investment Fund - 25,000 - (200) - - - - 24,800
Total At 17945 25,000 - (3,033) - - - - 39,912
(5) Investments in other equity instrument (5) HMESZITARSE
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—2=FF —TNF
AA=tH +ZA=+—H
Equity instrument investments #Em T AKRE
Equity interests of non-listed E NS B
companies
CDB Siyuan BB R 50,000 50,000
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
AA=tH +Z-ZH=+-—H
CDB Siyuan BB R
— Cost - KR 50,000 50,000
- Accumulated changes in - BEHAREEED
fair value = -

BRIBEXBRNBERAR —Z_2FhHRE
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BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

AAYWANGIE/ N S A -,

258

(6) Other non-current financial assets (6) EttkmBEMEE
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—E-FH —FTNF
~A=+tH +=-A=+—H
Investment of Tiancheng R K RAIRE ()
Yongtai (a) 1,133,245 1,133,245

(a)

The investment is the right to profit in real estate

development project of Tiancheng Yongtai held by the

(a

R RAVNCIE R SN PN
BIHA M Y

Group.
(7) Fixed assets (7) BEEE
Motor Office
Buildings  vehicles equipment Total
EERK
EEY ERIAE HRRAE a5t
Cost RE

31 December 2019 —T-hF+ZA=+—H 72,925 12,959 17,256 103,140
Increase AN HR 2 0 = = 1,136 1,136
Purchase i = = 1,136 1,136
Decrease AH R - - - -
Dispose and written-off BERBE - - - -
30 June 2020 ZZE-THEXA=1+H 72,925 12,959 18,392 104,276

Accumulated depreciation it e
31 December 2019 —Z-AF+=-A=+—H (24,286) (11,908) (14,248) (50,442)
Increase AHIHE N (871) (133) (221) (1,225)
Provision FHiE (871) (133) (221) (1,225)
Decrease AHE I D - = - _
Disposed and written off BERBE - - - -
30 June 2020 —E-ZTFXA=1H (25,157)  (12,041) (14,469) (51,667)

Provision for impairment HEEE
31 December 2019 —Z-NE+ZRA=1+—H = = - -
Increase N HA 3 N - - - _
Decrease AH I D - = - _
30 June 2020 ZZE-TFRA=1H = = - -

Net book value FEEE
30 June 2020 ZZE-TEFXNA=1+H 47,768 918 3,923 52,609
31 December 2019 —Z-NAF+-A=-+—H 48,639 1,051 3,008 52,698
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HE—

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)
(7) Fixed assets (Continued)

ZoTERAZTALERNEASEGRERIEHAIN

AT

For the six months ended 30 June 2020,
depreciation amount of fixed assets

RMB1,225,000 (For
30 June 2019: RMB1,248,000),

is

the six months ended
from which

depreciation expenses charged to administrative
expense amounted to RMB1,225,000 (For the six
months ended 30 June 2019: RMB1,248,000).

(8) Deferred income tax assets

30 June 2020

CHREUR/RARE T

EEELE EEEE )

(7) BEEE#E)

HE_Z-_ZEZFA=THILAX
flﬁﬁﬂ?ﬁlméﬁuﬂmmﬁ%
+ 851,225,000 (B2 =% —
NERNRAZ=Z+THIEREABM:
1,248,0007T) - EHETAEREBE
RAHTEER R/ ARY1225,000
TEHE-ZE-—NLFAAA=+H
WEXE A HIRE - A R#51,248,000
JT) °

8) EELMBMEE
31 December 2019

—E-EEXA=TH —NE+ZR=+—H
Deductible Deductible
temporary temporary
differences differences
and Deferred and Deferred
deductible income deductible income
losses  tax assets losses tax assets
CIE: %1 CIE: il
FENEZER FE EBHHEZER BT
MENEE FEREE AWEMNER HMEHEE
Provision for impairment of EERBEER 24,000 6,000 24,000 6,000
assets
Accrued expenses ERER 19,130 4,782 19,130 4,782
Accumulated losses 2HER 6,502,760 1,625,690 5,397,891 1,349,473
Total A&t 6,545,890 1,636,472 5,441,021 1,360,255
(9) Short-term borrowings (9) EHIfER
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
/\H—'i'E' +ZHE+_E|
Credit borrowings (a) = AfE R @) 90,000 90,000
Pledged borrowings (b) &A1& (b) = 833,263
Interest accrued FHEEFE 3,449 6,850
Total =k 93,449 930,113
(a) Credit borrowings () EAER
As at 30 June 2020, short-term RZEZZEFNA=Z+
borrowings of RMB90,000,000 (31 H @ BEHXARE
December 2019: RMB90,000,000) are 90,000, OOOTE(_ T — A
credit borrowings obtained by the FT+ZA=+T—H:AR®
Company. 90 000,0007T) 2 i A2 A

BHERER-

EAIERRNERAT —F-FEFHEE
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z-ZERNA=THIENEASB R ENZTHAN

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(9) Short-term borrowings (Continued)
(b) Pledged borrowings

As at 30 June 2020, pledged short-term
borrowings has been fully repaid (31
December 2019: RMB833,263,000).

As at 30 June 2020, the annual interest
rate for short-term borrowings is 6.50%
(31 December 2019: 5.70% to 6.50%,).

(10) Employee benefits payables

CHEMAARET T

AAYWANGIE/ N S A -,

(9) EHMERGE)

(b)

BHREX

R-ZE-_FFA=1+H"

LHJH%*JXEPE’Jé\TW%%K
BEECE-NEF

+ = ﬂ =+t —B:AR%
833,263,0007T) °

K-Z-FFAA=+H

5 1 f 3 80 FI % 56.50%
—E-AETZA=t-

H:570%%6.50%) °

(10) FE {4 B T % BA

30 June 31 December
2020 2019
-t —E-NF
/\H_'i'EI +=—A=+—H
Short-term employee benefits g {5 £ % B (a)
payables (a) 113,076 162,715
Defined contribution plans FE 1T 35 1215 51 2 (b)
payables (b) 147 147
Total & 113,223 162,862
(a) Short-term employee benefit payables (a) = A% i
31 December 30 June
2019 Additions  Reductions 2020
ZZ-NF —B-EE
+-A=+-H AEEM  KEES KAZtH
Wages and salaries, bonuses, TE - 8£5 2N 60,000 46,919 (99,019) 7,900
allowances and subsidies e
Staff welfare BIRAE - 338 (338) -
Social security contributions HEREE 46 970 (970) 46
Including: Medical insurance Eh EERRE 40 944 (944) 40
Work injury insurance IERRE 2 13 (13) 2
Maternity insurance YFERBE 4 13 (13) 4
Housing funds FEAES 23 1,936 (1,936) 23
Labor union funds and employee ~ T&EEMBIHE 4,310 2,461 - 6,771
education funds g
Director's emoluments (Note 9(7))  EZE#M 4 (M A (7)) 26,550 405 (405) 26,550
Profit sharing plan MBS 8 71,784 - - 71,784
Others 2t 2 135 (135) 2
Total Eh 162,715 162,715 (102,803) 113,076
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL ARG R E L IE=3E )
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(10) Employee benefits payables (Continued) (10) EN B T &H M (&)
(a) Short-term employee benefit payables () EHFME)
(Continued)
As at 30 June 2020 and 31 December RZEZTFRA=ZTHRK
2019, there is no defaulted payables in —T-hNF+=-A=+—8"
employee benefits. JERT B TH B PR BB RN
RUEB BB -
The Company does not provide non- AAREABIRMHMIEE
monetary benefit to employees. IR A -
(b) Defined contribution plans payables (b) FREREFE
31 December 30 June
2019 Additions  Reductions 2020
—E-hg —g-%%
+=-A=1+-H AEEM  REHD A~A=1H
Basic social pension security EXRBZRE 84 517 (517) 84
Annuity FeHB 26 599 (599) 26
Unemployment insurance KERRBRE 37 313 (313) 37
Total A 147 1,429 (1,429) 147
(11) Other payables (1) HaEMAR
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—E-2F —E-NF
ANA=+H +ZHA=+—H
Payables to subsidiaries JESFRBIRIA 44,666,638 47,178,519
Payables to other related & 1< HL Ath B Bst 75 5K IR
parties 529,556 1,008,097
Payables from business JE < 4% 8 1 2R 3K
transactions 2,484,318 2,488,532
Dividends payable to JRE A1 B A R 2 T BLAR A
other equity instruments 966,352 578,171
Dividends payable to JRE <t 28 Bk 75 PR )
Capital Group 420,548 -
Total &5t 49,067,412 51,253,319
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BE_Z-ZERNA=THIENEASB R ENZTHAN

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(12) Current portion of non-current

CHEMAARET T

7.4

NS R EGEAE )

(12) — RPN FRBEE

liabilities
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—E-FF —FTNF
AA=tH +ZH=+—H
Long-term borrowings due —F AR EER
within one year 3,310,000 4,032,000
Debentures payable due within ~ — & R 2| B ERHEH
one year (Note 16(13)) (M EE+75(13)) 5,979,534 6,690,454
Interest accrued FTHR A B 505,703 505,815
Total &5t 9,795,237 11,228,269
(13) Debentures payable (13) EfSE S
Amortization
for discount
31 December  Issued in and Redemption 30 June Interest
2019 current year  premium in this year 2020  accrued
—E-0E ZECEE
TZA=T-B  AHET WEEEE  AHEE RAZTR GHRAS
Corporate bonds (i) REAEH() 28937970 5,269,985 26,734 (4,100,000) 30,134,689 719,620
Including: debentures payable o —ERiHn
due within one year ERES (6,690,454) (5,979,534)
Net 8 22,247516 24,155,155

With the approval of Shanghai Stock Exchange (SSE
letters [2020]216), the Company issued non-public
corporate bond with amount of RMB790,000,000
at 26 March 2020. After deducting the related
underwriting and issuing fees, the net amount of bond
actually received by the Company is RMB787,235,000.
The term of the bond is five years respectively with a
fixed annual interest rate of 3.65%. The principal and
the interests for the last period will be fully repaid on
the maturity date.

With the approval of China Foreign Exchange Trade
Center National Interbank Funding Center, the
Company issued non-public corporate bond with
amount of RMB1,500,000,000 at 24 April 2020. After
deducting the related underwriting and issuing fees,
the net amount of bond actually received by the
Company is RMB1,493,250,000. The term of the bond
is three years respectively with a fixed annual interest
rate of 3.40%. The principal and the interests for the
last period will be fully repaid on the maturity date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL AAWWANGIL R EA N EEC ),
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(13) Debentures payable (Continued) (13) ENEH (&)

(i) (Continued)

With the approval of Shanghai Stock Exchange (SSE
letters [2020]216), the Company issued non-public
corporate bond with amount of RMB3,000,000,000
at 29 May 2020. After deducting the related
underwriting and issuing fees, the net amount
of bond actually received by the Company is
RMB2,989,500,000. The term of the bond is five
years respectively with a fixed annual interest rate of
3.60%. The principal and the interests for the last
period will be fully repaid on the maturity date.

As at 30 June 2020, the Company holds corporate
bonds with a total face value of RMB30,250,000,000,
after deducting the related underwriting and issuing
fees, net amount totaling RMB30,134,689,000 with
interest rate range from 3.4% to 6.0%. As at 30 June
2020, the book value of corporate bonds amounted to
RMB5,979,534,000 should be repaid on or before 30
June 2021, such amount was classified as debentures
payable due within one year in financial statements.

(14) Other equity instruments

In April 2019, the Company issued Perpetual
Securities amounted to RMB1,000,000,000.
According to relevant terms of Offering Circular,
the raised funds are subject to no fixed
repayment terms. Unless the Company declares

(i) (&)
& LB SR 5 LR R[2020]216
XM RZEZTFRA=TN
H3E AR E 1T AR %3,000,000,00
TTEY A RNME o 1 AR B R g B
TERK  ARRERKINESRF
# /5 A K %2,989,500,0007T © &
FHRIBABREE BEMNER
3.60%  BFEME—R FH—-KR
MEEASY IN&E-HHE -

RZEBEZZTFANA=Z+H K
AREEEZEEERFARE
30,250,000,000t 8 R RIfE S +
RAABEEABEZETERENEGAR
#30,134,689,0007t ' FlX[&H A
34%%26.0% - RZZE =T F A
=tH RAELFEAHE2BEARE
5,979,534,000t ER =T = —F <
A=+HAEE WEVBREK L
FIRAB—FRNEBENERDEE -

(14) HERZTH

RZZE-NLFWEA ARF
TXEBERRE 2BEBRARE
1,000,000,0007T - R FE(H £
REVHBGR  E£EEEE
EXHR BARAE RS ALK

dividend or reduces registered capital, it may BWAEMERI - AIAERIET
elect to defer distribution without any frequency DEEME NMBREREIZE

limitations. The Company has no contracted
obligation to pay the principal or interests
to other investors, therefore the investment
complied with the definition of equity
instrument and were recognized as other equity
instrument in the consolidated level and in the
Company financial statement. The dividends
declared will be treated as profit distribution.
As at 30 June 2020, other equity instruments
amounted to RMB995,500,000 was recognized
after deducting the relevant costs.

R BARALEBEERE
REHIMEFMDIENBHE L
% AHZERENAGEET
AEMEE EXBEEHBELEAR
NAERERER S HEMERST
B B E TR DA R
AR BEDEMNEE - MRHEBE
g EREOESTAARE
995,500,0007T -

BEIEXEKRNABRRR —Z_FFPHRS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(14) Other equity instruments (Continued)

In April 2019, CFAE established Bond
Financing Plan Investment amounted to
RMB2,000,000,000 in the Company. According
to relevant terms of Offering Circular, the
raised funds are subject to no fixed repayment
terms. Unless the Company declares dividend or
reduces registered capital, it may elect to defer
distribution without any frequency limitations.
The Company has no contracted obligation
to pay the principal or interests to other
investors, therefore the investment complied
with the definition of equity instrument and
were recognized as other equity instrument
in the consolidated level and in the Company
financial statement. The dividends declared will
be treated as profit distribution. Other equity
instruments amounted to RMB1,862,842,000
was recognized after deducting the inevitable
dividend payable in the foreseeable future.

In April 2019, AVIC Trust set up a Bond
Financing Plan Investment to raise a total
amount of RMB1,800,000,000. According to
the Trust loan contract, the raised funds are
subject to no fixed repayment terms. Unless
the Company declares dividend, reduces
registered capital, declares liquidation or breach
contractual obligations, the Company may
elect to defer the distribution without any
frequency limitations. In addition, there is no
contracted obligation for the Company to repay
the principal and distribute the interests. As a
result, this asset management plan complied
the definition of equity instrument and were
recognized as other equity instrument in the
consolidated level and in the Company financial
statement. The dividends will be treated as profit
distribution. Amounted of RMB1,685,347,000
was recognized as other equity instrument after
deducting the inevitable dividend payable in the
foreseeable future.
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BE_Z-_ZFXNA=TALAEANEGRENZHAN  SEECAARE T
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
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16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(14) Other equity instruments (Continued)

TR R BB 7 R M R (8D

(14) Eft = T A (%)

In September 2018, Sino-Australian International
Trust Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Sino-Australian
Trust”) set up a special asset management plan
to raise a total amount of RMB870,000,000.
According to the Investment Agreement, the
raised funds are subject to no fixed repayment
terms. Unless the Company declares dividend,
the Company may elect to defer the distribution
without any frequency limitations. Within 12
months from value date, the company shall not
exercise the right of deferred interest and the
frequency of deferring interest is not restricted.
In addition, there is no contracted obligation
for the Company to repay the principal and
distribute the interests. As a result, this asset
management plan complied the definition of
equity instrument and were recognized as other
equity instrument in the consolidated level
and in the Company financial statement. The
dividends will be treated as profit distribution.
Amounted of RMB796,050,000 was recognized
as other equity instrument after deducting the
inevitable dividend payable in the foreseeable
future.

In September 2018 - CAFE established Bond
Financing Plan investment amounted to
RMB350,000,000 in the Company. According
to relevant terms of “prospectus”, the raised
funds are subject to no fixed repayment
terms. Unless the Company declares dividend
or reduces registered capital, it may elect to
defer distribution and can’t exercise any such
rights within 12 months of value date without
any frequency limitations. The Company has
no contracted obligation to pay the principal
or interests to other investors, therefore the
investment complied with the definition of
equity instrument and were recognized as
other equity instrument in the consolidated
level and in the Company financial statement.
The dividends declared will be treated as profit
distribution. Other equity instruments amounted
to RMB337,400,000 was recognized after
deducting the inevitable dividend payable in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(14) Other equity instruments (Continued)

In August 2018, CFAE established Bond
Financing Plan investment amounted to
RMB1,800,000,000 in the Company. According
to relevant terms of “prospectus”, the raised
funds are subject to no fixed repayment
terms. Unless the Company declares dividend
or reduces registered capital, it may elect to
defer distribution and can’t exercise any such
rights within 12 months of value date without
any frequency limitations. The Company has
no contracted obligation to pay the principal
or interests to other investors, therefore the
investment complied with the definition of
equity instrument and were recognized as
other equity instrument in the consolidated
level and in the Company financial statement.
The dividends declared will be treated as profit
distribution. Other equity instruments amounted
to RMB1,735,200,000 was recognized after
deducting the inevitable dividend payable in the
foreseeable future.

In August 2018, the Company issued Perpetual
securities amounted to RMB2,000,000,000.
According to relevant terms of “Prospectus”, the
raised funds are subject to no fixed repayment
terms. Unless the Company declares dividend
or reduces registered capital, it may elect to
defer distribution and cannot exercise any such
rights within 12 months of value date without
any frequency limitations. The Company has
no contracted obligation to pay the principal
or interests to other investors, therefore the
investment complied with the definition of
equity instrument and were recognized as
other equity instrument in the consolidated
level and in the Company financial statement.
The dividends declared will be treated as profit
distribution. Other equity instruments amounted
to RMB1,991,000,000 was recognized after
deducting the relevant costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HE_Z-_TFXA=+BELEXRNEADRHE(RERZHN  2EECRARBETT)

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(14) Other equity instruments (Continued)

TR R BB 7 R M R (8D

(14) Eft = T A (%)

In June 2018, the Company issued Perpetual
securities amounted to RMB2,000,000,000.
According to relevant terms of “Prospectus”, the
raised funds are subject to no fixed repayment
terms. Unless the Company declares dividend
or reduces registered capital, it may elect to
defer distribution and cannot exercise any such
rights within 12 months of value date without
any frequency limitations. The Company has
no contracted obligation to pay the principal
or interests to other investors, therefore the
investment complied with the definition of
equity instrument and were recognized as
other equity instrument in the consolidated
level and in the Company financial statement.
The dividends declared will be treated as profit
distribution. Other equity instruments amounted
to RMB1,988,000,000 was recognized after
deducting the relevant costs.

In April 2018, CFAE established Bond Financing
Plan investment amounted to RMB200,000,000
in the Company. According to relevant terms
of “prospectus”, the raised funds are subject to
no fixed repayment terms. Unless the Company
declares dividend or reduces registered capital, it
may elect to defer distribution and can’t exercise
any such rights within 12 months of value date
without any frequency limitations. The Company
has no contracted obligation to pay the principal
or interests to other investors, therefore the
investment complied with the definition of
equity instrument and were recognized as
other equity instrument in the consolidated
level and in the Company financial statement.
The dividends declared will be treated as profit
distribution. Other equity instruments amounted
to RMB184,600,000 was recognized after
deducting the inevitable dividend payable in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(14) Other equity instruments (Continued)

In March 2018, CFAE established Bond
Financing Plan investment amounted to
RMB600,000,000 in the Company. According
to relevant terms of “prospectus”, the raised
funds are subject to no fixed repayment
terms. Unless the Company declares dividend
or reduces registered capital, it may elect to
defer distribution and can’t exercise any such
rights within 12 months of value date without
any frequency limitations. The Company has
no contracted obligation to pay the principal
or interests to other investors, therefore the
investment complied with the definition of
equity instrument and were recognized as
other equity instrument in the consolidated
level and in the Company financial statement.
The dividends declared will be treated as profit
distribution. Other equity instruments amounted
to RMB553,800,000 was recognized after
deducting the inevitable dividend payable in the
foreseeable future.

In December 2017, Sino-Australia Trust set up
a special asset management plan to raise a
total amount of RMB1,100,000,000. According
to the Investment Agreement, the raised funds
are subject to no fixed repayment terms. Unless
the Company declares dividend, the Company
may elect to defer the distribution without any
frequency limitations. Within 12 months from
value date, the company shall not exercise the
right of deferred interest and the frequency of
deferring interest is not restricted. In addition,
there is no contracted obligation for the
Company to repay the principal and distribute
the interests. As a result, this asset management
plan complied the definition of equity
instrument and were recognized as other equity
instrument in the consolidated level and in the
Company financial statement. The dividends
will be treated as profit distribution. Amounted
of RMB1,024,650,000 was recognized as other
equity instrument after deducting the inevitable
dividend payable in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HE_Z-_TFXA=+BELEXRNEADRHE(RERZHN  2EECRARBETT)

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(14)

(15)

Other equity instruments (Continued)

In September 2017, China Fortune International
Trust Co., Ltd. set up a special asset
management plan to raise a total amount
of RMB2,000,000,000. According to the
Investment Agreement, the raised funds are
subject to no fixed repayment terms. Unless
the Company declares dividend, the Company
may elect to defer the distribution without any
frequency limitations. In addition, there is no
contracted obligation for the Company to repay
the principal and distribute the interests. As a
result, this asset management plan complied
the definition of equity instrument and were
recognized as other equity instrument in the
consolidated level and in the Company financial
statement. The dividends will be treated as profit
distribution. Amounted of RMB1,970,027,000
was recognized as other equity instrument after
deducting the inevitable dividend payable in the
foreseeable future.

TR R BB 7 R M R (8D

(14) Eft = T A (%)
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Capital reserve (15) EXQE
31 December 30 June
2019 Additions Reductions 2020
—E-hE —BC-EHE
+t=ZA=t+—H < HR 8 0 R D AA=TH
Share premium F& 7 4 B 3,515,341 290,384 = 3,805,725
31 December 30 June
2018 Additions  Reductions 2019
—E-N\F —ENF
+=-A=+—8 7N E 3% 7N H R A ~NA=+AH
Share premium IR A B 3,059,320 - (52,355) 3,006,965

As at January 2020, the Company has received
the proceeds amounting to RMB800,762,000
from H shares rights issue, of which
RMB290,384,000 is included in the «capital
reserve (share premium).

ARRRAM T -_TF—ARBHAE
A P15 50E AR %800,762,000
7T - H 290,384,000t sFAE AR
~NEBEAEE) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL TR AT WKW T E)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(16) Retained earnings

(16) & 7 & R &

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE-ZE-2F HE-_ZT—NE
NA=t+tHILE NA=F+HIE

A E A H A 7~ {E A ER
Retained earnings at the AR 5 B M E
beginning of the period 789,834 788,162
Add: profit attributable to m:ANEEBRE AR
owners of the A% 5 & % A1
Company (280,128) (292,057)
Less: Dividends to common R Ik 3 AR R (a)
share (a) (741,700) (666,151)
Dividends to other equity HHEMBEZTARED
instruments interests Al (1,028,783) (284,291)
Retained earnings at the end  HiK & 5 B F) )8
of the period (1,260,777) (454,337)

(a) On the meeting of board of directors held on 23
March 2020, the directors proposed a final dividend
of RMBO0.17 per share to the shareholder, the total
amount payable were RMB741,700,000 based on the
Company’s total issued number of shares as at 23
March 2020, which is 4,362,940,850. The dividend
distribution plan was approved by shareholders on
general meeting of shareholders held on 13 May
2020.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-ZERAZTHLEANEANBH(REHNTAN  2REL/ARE T L)

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL AAVWANGIE N S A -,
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(17) General and administrative expenses 17) EBE A
Six months Six months
ended ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE-_ZE_Z BE=E_ZT—hL%F
ABE=tHL NA=t+B8IE

< B E 7~ {8 A HA
Wages, social security and TE& - R &ER
welfare 53,939 71,987
Administrative office expenses fTEH A E 8,987 11,728
Depreciation and amortization ¥ £ &2 # $5 1,225 1,248
Travel and entertainment ZRBEFE
expenses 1,248 3,228
Auditor’s service fee = 5T R0 AR 75 & A 571 1,846
- Audit service - B R - 1,704
- Non-audit services - FEARH 571 142
Other intermediary service fee HFANREE 14,004 2,908
Marketing and commission fee &8 M{HE &2 B 621 -
Others HAb 444 8,061
Total & &t 81,039 101,006
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(18) Financial expenses

AAYWANGIE/ N S A -,

(18) M & A

Six months Six months

ended

ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE-_ZE_Z HBE_ZT—hL%F
AA=+HL NA=tHIE

A E A H A 7~ {E A ER
Interest expense MEXZH 871,781 1,002,267
Interest income AW A (89,935) (91,561)
Exchange (gains)/losses fE 18 = (9,611) 10,395
Others HAtb 16,107 61,792
Total & &t 788,342 982,893

(19) Investment income

(19) B&E W=

Six months Six months

ended

ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE-2-%F HE_FT-IF
AA=+HL NA=THBIE

7~ B H B 7~ {E A HA

Share of net profit or loss RRSEZANDED

of investees under equity WIREBAFIEED

method R 3,653 15,162
Interest income earned during E##FH A HEEREN

the period of ownership of M EHA

debt investment 302,399 428,460
Others Hin 2,219 8,897
Total &5t 308,271 452,519
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R I RE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HE—

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

ZoTERAZTALERNEASEGRERIEHAIN

CHREUR/RARE T

TR R BB 7 R M R (8D

(20) Income tax expense (20) Fr8 B E H
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE—_Z-_2F HEZZT-—NF
ANA=t+HIE NA=F+HIE
AE B H A 7~ & A B
Deferred income tax iIE JE TS (276,217) (273,841)
Reconciliations from income tax calculated HERDAMBERNEIEABER
based on the applicable tax rates and total loss RERBRERFENMERAGR
presented in the Company financial statements RS E R :
to the income tax expenses are listed below:
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE-_Z-_ZF HEZT—NF
/\H—+E.|J: /\H_+E|JJ:
~E A H A 7~ & A B
Loss before income tax B 1B B R (556,345) (565,898)
Income tax expenses calculated 3ZER E25%tEH
at applicable tax rates (25%) P15 % (139,086) (141,475)
Share of net profit of joint REREZZAXDED
ventures and associates WIRERRNFIEZRED
under equity method Gk (913) (3,791)
Other profit not subject to tax JEFERLIE %8 (2,403) (2,247)
Distribution eligible for tax A LATE B A 71| 2 B0 fE 2
deduction TEDH (134,179) (126,635)
Expenses, costs and losses not  TEFBRAIK AR - B
deductible AECES 364 307
Income tax expenses FiEHE A (276,217) (273,841)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ_ZEXRA=ZTHLERNEASNE(REHNTHAN  SHEC/BARE T

17. NET CURRENT ASSETS

T ERBEE

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2020 2019 2020 2019

Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company

—E-%F —Z-NF —EZEF ZE-NEF

AA=tH +=A=+-—-H AA=tH +=ZA=1+-—H

&6 & B NG NG|

Current assets MEBEE 165,285,508 155,377,694 95,330,163 99,510,837
Less: current liabilities HRBEE (73,296,416)  (69,262,690)  (59,112,415)  (63,641,823)
Net current assets FREBEE 91,989,092 86,115,004 36,217,748 35,869,014

18. TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES TNRBEERLTB AR

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2020 2019 2020 2019

Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company

—E-EE —T-NF —EC-2F ZT-NE

AA=tH +=ZA=+-—-H AA=tH +=—A=+-—H

&8 & NG| NG|

Total assets EEMHG 202,408,431 185,269,318 106,129,026 110,000,644
Less: current liabilities W B AR (73,296,416)  (69,262,690)  (59,112,415)  (63,641,823)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRYAR 129,112,015 116,006,628 47,016,611 46,358,821
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Note: The financial statements section in this Report has been prepared

in both Chinese and English. For any discrepancies, the Chinese
version shall prevail.
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